VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
VILLAGE COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
THURSDAY, MARCH 28, 2019
7:30 PM

VILLAGE HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
501 U.S. HIGHWAY 1
Darryl C. Aubrey
Mayor

Mark Mullinix
Vice Mayor

Andrew D. Lukasik
Village Manager

David B. Norris
President Pro Tem
Leonard G. Rubin
Village Attorney

Susan Bickel
Councilmember

Deborah Searcy
Councilmember
Melissa Teal
Village Clerk

ROLL CALL
INVOCATION – MAYOR AUBREY
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – VICE MAYOR MULLINIX
AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1.

Minutes of Regular Session held 3/14/19

COUNCIL BUSINESS MATTERS
STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Members of the public may address the Council concerning items on the Consent Agenda or any non agenda item
under Statements from the Public. Time Limit: 3 minutes
Members of the public who wish to speak on any item listed on the Regular Session or Workshop Session Agenda
will be called on when the issue comes up for discussion. Time Limit: 3 minutes
Anyone wishing to speak should complete a Public Comment Card (on the table at back of Council Chambers) and
submit it to the Village Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.

DECLARATION OF EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS
2.

1ST READING OF ORDINANCE 2019-02 – Approving a Budget Amendment for General Fund
Capital Lease Acquisitions.

CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda is for the purpose of expediting issues of a routine or pro-forma nature. Councilmembers
may remove any item from the Consent Agenda, which would automatically convey that item to the Regular
Agenda for separate discussion and vote.

Village Council Regular Session Agenda, March 28, 2019
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OTHER VILLAGE BUSINESS MATTERS
3.

RESOLUTION – COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT Accepting the Fiscal Year
2018 Audit Report.

4.

RESOLUTION – COUNTRY CLUB RESTAURANT LEASE Approving a 5-Year Restaurant
Operator Agreement with Farmer’s Table, LLC for exclusive provision of Restaurant and Catering
Services to the North Palm Beach Country Club.

5.

RESOLUTION – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT OFFICE SPACE Approving a
Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC to extend the term an additional
five years.

6.

RESOLUTION – PRECISION LANDSCAPE PAYMENT Approving payment to Precision Landscape
Company in the amount of $19,960.00 for drainage repairs at the golf course.

COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATION MATTERS
MAYOR AND COUNCIL MATTERS/REPORTS
VILLAGE MANAGER MATTERS/REPORTS
REPORTS (SPECIAL COMMITTEES AND ADVISORY BOARDS)
ADJOURNMENT
If a person decides to appeal any decision by the Village Council with respect to any matter considered at the Village Council meeting,
he will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based (F.S. 286.0105).
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person who may require special accommodation to participate in this
meeting should contact the Village Clerk’s office at 841-3355 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting date.
This agenda represents the tentative agenda for the scheduled meeting of the Village Council. Due to the nature of governmental duties
and responsibilities, the Village Council reserves the right to make additions to, or deletions from, the items contained in this agenda.

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE REGULAR SESSION
VILLAGE COUNCIL OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MARCH 14, 2019
Present:

Darryl C. Aubrey, Sc.D., Mayor
Mark Mullinix, Vice Mayor
David B. Norris, President Pro Tem
Susan Bickel, Councilmember
Deborah Searcy, Councilmember
Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager
Len Rubin, Village Attorney
Melissa Teal, Village Clerk

ROLL CALL
Mayor Norris called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. All members of Council were present. All
members of staff were present.
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
President Pro Tem Bickel gave the invocation and Mayor Norris led the public in the Pledge.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
The Minutes of the Regular Session held February 28, 2019 were approved as written.
ADMINISTRATION OF COUNCILMEMBERS OATHS
Village Clerk Melissa Teal administered the Oath of Office to re-elected councilmembers
Susan Bickel and David Norris. Said Oaths are attached to the official Minutes of Record.
COUNCIL REORGANIZATION
Mayor Norris opened the floor to nominations for the office of Mayor. David Norris nominated
Darryl Aubrey for Mayor. With no other nominations for Mayor, Darryl Aubrey was declared Mayor.
Susan Bickel nominated Mark Mullinix for Vice Mayor. With no other nominations for Vice Mayor,
Mark Mullinix was declared Vice Mayor.
Susan Bickel nominated David Norris for President Pro Tem. With no other nominations for
President Pro Tem, David Norris was declared President Pro Tem.
Thereafter, the names of Darryl Aubrey, Mark Mullinix, and David Norris were entered into
Resolution 2019-21.
RESOLUTION 2019-21 APPOINTING COUNCIL OFFICERS
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Mullinix and seconded by Councilmember Aubrey to adopt
Resolution 2019-21 entitled:
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH,
FLORIDA, APPOINTING THE MAYOR, VICE MAYOR AND PRESIDENT PRO TEM FOR
THE UPCOMING YEAR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
Thereafter, the motion to adopt Resolution 2019-21 passed unanimously.

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

THRU:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

FROM:

Samia Janjua, Director of Finance

DATE:

March 28, 2019

SUBJECT:

1ST READING OF ORDINANCE 2019-02 – Approving a Budget Amendment for
General Fund Capital Lease Acquisitions

During the Fiscal Year 2019 budget process, Village Staff evaluated the option of leasing its vehicles
versus directly purchasing them. Village Council has approved the following capital lease programs:
Description

Lease
Term

Annual
Payment

Total
Payments

Total
Financed

2018-88

Village-wide Vehicle Lease

5 years

$77,935

$389,676

$343,593

2018-105

Fire Engine Lease

7 years

$54,629

$598,737*

$481,350

$132,564

$988,413

$826,943

Resolution

Total
* Includes balloon payment of $216,884

The annual debt service for these capital leases is budgeted in the General Fund; however, the
Village’s Auditor has advised that the total amount financed for capital leases should be shown in the
Fiscal Year 2019 budget as “other financing sources/uses” and capital outlay for financial reporting
purposes. (Note: this requirement is for the first year of the lease only):
GASB
“When a capital lease represents the acquisition or construction of a general capital asset,
the acquisition or construction of that asset should be reflected as an expenditure and other
financing source, consistent with the accounting and financial reporting for general obligation
bonded debt.”
There will not be a net income effect in 2019 but, because it increases the total FY 2019 General Fund
Budget, a budget amendment ordinance is required:
Budget Amendment:
Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Total

Account
A4200-09901
A5540-66000

Description
Capital Lease
Capital Lease

Use
$826,943
$826,943

Source
$826,943
$826,943

The attached Ordinance has been prepared/reviewed by the Village Attorney for legal sufficiency.
Recommendation:
Village Staff requests Council consideration and approval of the attached Ordinance authorizing
the Mayor and Village Clerk to execute the required budget amendment for the Capital Leases
on first reading in accordance with Village policies and procedures.

1

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-02

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ADOPTED GENERAL
FUND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 TO CLASSIFY THE TOTAL
AMOUNT FINANCED FOR VILLAGE VEHICLES AS CAPITAL OUTLAY;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

WHEREAS, during Fiscal Year 2019, the Village Council approved two capital lease programs,
one for multi-department vehicles and the other for a fire truck; and
WHEREAS, while the Village has budgeted the annual debt services for these leases in the
General Fund, the Village Auditor has advised the Village that the total amount financed for
capital leases should be shown in the Fiscal Year 2019 budget as “other financing uses/sources”
and capital outlay for financial reporting purposes; and
WHEREAS, notwithstanding the lack of any net income effect, because this amendment increases
the total amount of the budget, this transfer must be accomplished by ordinance as required by
Section 166.241, Florida Statutes; and
WHEREAS, the Village Council determines that the adoption of this budget amendment is in the
best interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified as true and correct and incorporated herein.

Section 2.
The Village Council hereby amends the adopted Village of North Palm Beach
General Fund budget for Fiscal Year 2019 as follows:
Budget Amendment:
Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Total

33
34
35
36
37
38
39

Account
A4200-09901
A5540-66000

Description
Capital Lease
Capital Lease

Use
$826,943
$826,943

Source
$826,943
$826,943

Section 3.
The Mayor and Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the
budget amendment for and on behalf of the Village of North Palm Beach.
Section 4.
If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this Ordinance is for
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, inoperative or void,
such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance.
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1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Section 5.
All ordinances and resolutions, or parts of ordinances and resolutions, in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

11
12
13

(Village Seal)

14
15

ATTEST:

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

Section 6.

This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

PLACED ON FIRST READING THIS _____ DAY OF ________________, 2019.
PLACED ON SECOND, FINAL READING AND PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF
___________, 2019.

MAYOR

VILLAGE CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

VILLAGE ATTORNEY
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RESOLUTION
OF

A RESOLUTION
NORTH
LEASING

INC. FOR

2,

ESTABLISHED
APPROVING
BRINDLEE

FLORIDA
THE

VILLAGE

TO

EQUIPPED

THE VILLAGE

BEACH,

PALM

BY

A

MOUNTAIN

RELATED

DOCUMENTS

OF

ONE

SHERIFFS

PURCHASE

FIRE

OF

VILLAGE

PROPOSAL

SUTPHEN

FIRE

ENGINE

TO

PRICING

LEASE
WITH

ONE FIRE ENGINE

CONTRACT;

AGREEMENT

LLC;

THE

OF

FROM

PURSUANT
ASSOCIATION

IN ACCORDANCE

FOR AN EFFECTIVE

THE

A

VALUE

APPARATUS,

EXECUTE

TO

PROPOSAL; DECLARING
AND PROVIDING

LEASE

FLORIDA

MANAGER

COUNCIL
ACCEPTING

SPECIFICATIONS

DEFERRED

VILLAGE

2018- 105

WITH

AUTHORIZING

THE

AGREEMENT

AND

THE TERMS

AS SURPLUS

OF THE

PROPERTY;

DATE.

WHEREAS, Village Staff recommended accepting a proposal from Leasing 2, Inc. for the lease of
one FSA20 Sutphen Fire Engine equipped to Village specifications ("

Equipment")

from South

Florida Emergency Vehicles pursuant to pricing established by Florida Sheriffs Association
Contract No. FSA 18- VEH 16. 0 ( Cab &

Chassis and Heavy Equipment);

and

WHEREAS, the proposal is for a lease term of seven ( 7) years, and at the conclusion of the lease,

the Fire Engine will be purchased by Brindlee Fire Apparatus, LLC for $ 216, 334. 00,

the amount of

the balloon payment; and
WHEREAS,

the Village Council has determined that a true and very real need exists for the
acquisition of the Equipment described in the Lease -Purchase Agreement by and between the

Village and Leasing 2, Inc. and has further determined that the Equipment will be used solely for
essential governmental functions and not for private business use; and
WHEREAS,

the Village has undertaken the necessary

steps, including,

without

limitation

to

compliance with legal bidding requirements, under applicable law to arrange for the acquisition of
such Equipment; and
WHEREAS, the Village Council determines that the adoption of this Resolution is in the best
interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.

Section 2.

The Village Council hereby accepts the proposal submitted by Leasing 2, Inc. for

the lease of one Sutphen Fire Engine equipped to Village specifications

from South Florida

Emergency Vehicles pursuant to pricing established by Florida Sheriffs Association Contract No.
FSA18- VEH 16. 0 ( Cab &

Chassis Trucks and Heavy Equipment).

The total annual cost of the

lease shall be $ 54, 629. 06 for a term of seven years, with a balloon payment of $216, 334. 00, to be
paid by Brindlee Fire Apparatus, LLC. Funds for the lease payments will be expended from
Account No. A8535- 49158 ( Debt Service —Vehicle Lease).
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The Village Council determines that the terms of the Lease -Purchase and Escrow

Section 3.

Agreement with Leasing 2, Inc. are in the best interest of the Village for the acquisition of the
Equipment,

and the Village Council designates and confirms that Village Manager Andrew D.
is authorized to execute and deliver the Lease -Purchase Agreement and Escrow

Lukasik

Agreement and any related documents necessary to the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Lease -Purchase Agreement and Escrow Agreement.
The Village Council further authorizes the Village Manager to execute a Deferred

Section 4.

Purchase Value Agreement with Brindlee Mountain Fire Apparatus, LLC,

a copy of which is

attached hereto and incorporated herein. All agreements shall be subject to review by the Village

Attorney for form and legal sufficiency.
Upon delivery, acceptance and placement into service of the new Fire Engine, the
Village Council declares the following equipment as surplus property and authorizes its disposal
Section 5.

in accordance

with Village policies and procedures:

Engine 3 Shop #
Section 6.

VIN

Engine Hours

4P1CT02U93A003196

5900

Description

Unit No.
323

Pierce Enforcer

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.
13TH

PASSED AND ADOPTED

THIS

DAY OF DF

Village Seal)

ATTEST:

szz

A-,
VILLAGE CLERK
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VILLAGE

OF NORTH PALM BEACH

FIRE RESCUE DEPARTMENT

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

THRU:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

FROM:

J. D. Armstrong, Fire Chief

DATE:

December 13, 2018

SUBJECT:

RESOLUTION —

Approval

of Fiscal

Year

2019

Fire

Apparatus

Lease

Program with Leasing 2, Inc. in the annual amount of $54, 629. 06

During the Fiscal Year 2019 budgetary process, Village Staff evaluated the option of a fire
apparatus leasing program versus direct purchasing of its -fire apparatus and presented it to the
Village Council at a budget workshop session. Council was supportive of moving forward with a
There are five ( 5) apparatuses

leasing program for fire apparatus replacement.
however,

only one ( 1)

is being replaced in Fiscal Year 2019.

in this program;

The leasing program will be

reviewed annually as part of the budget process.
Background:
In an effort to maximize the return on investment

in our vehicles,

Fire Rescue staff, through its

Apparatus Committee, began with developing a vehicle replacement schedule to guide decisions
about surplusing and replacing vehicles. The
hours of use, age and maintenance
schedule:
apparatus

group used three criteria to establish a replacement
history. Because Fire Rescue' s fleet includes fire

and rescue vehicles which need to be outfitted with special equipment,

staff evaluated

leasing programs that included the financing of both the vehicle and the outfitting of the vehicle.
Staff had multiple meetings with Pierce Manufacturing who use PNC Bank as their leasing
agent, Emergency One who use REV Financing as their leasing agent, and Sutphen Corporation
who use Leasing 2, Inc. as their leasing agent. After meeting with the named lease providers and

studying their plans, staff reached out to other local municipalities to find out who they use for
vehicle leasing. Palm Beach Gardens, who use Pierce Manufacturing apparatus, chose to use
Leasing 2, Inc. rather than Pierce' s PNC agent due to Leasing 2' s superior program. Based on

the Village' s needs and reference checks with other communities, Leasing 2, Inc. offered the best
program and services for the Village.

The Leasing 2, Inc. program includes the financing of the following items:
Sutphen Monarch FSA20 fire engine from South Florida Emergency Vehicles ( SFEV)
Ft. Myers, FL

The pricing is based on the following:
Contract, etc.

Vendor
Sutphen ( SFEV)

Florida

Sheriff Assoc.

FSA18- VEF13. 0 ( Cab

and Chassis Trucks and Heavy Equipment)

of

The total cost of the fire engine with equipment

and options

is $ 518, 000. 00. This amount

is

reduced by $ 36, 650. 00 accounting for trade- in value and pre -payment discount. This brings the
total amount of the lease to $ 481, 350. 00. The lease term is seven ( 7) years and the annual lease
is $ 54, 629. 06. There is an end of lease balloon

payment

payment

of $ 216, 334. 06; however,

through an agreement with Brindlee Mountain Fire Apparatus, Inc (" BFA"), BFA will purchase
the apparatus from the Village at the end of lease for the amount of the balloon payment and not

take delivery until our replacement engine has been received.

Vendor

Total

Annual

Financed

Payment

Leasing 2, Inc.

481, 350. 00

549629. 06

Total

4819350. 00

549629. 06

Once the Village Council accepts the lease proposal, Leasing 2, Inc. will forward

final lease

agreements for execution by the Village Manager, subject to legal sufficiency review by the Village
Attorney.

The attached Resolution has been prepared and/ or reviewed by the Village Attorney for legal
sufficiency.
Account Information:

Fund

Department

General Fund

Debt Service

Account

AccountAnnual

Number

Description

A8535- 49158

Vehicle Lease

Amount

545629. 06

The following vehicle will be surplused and traded - in once the replacement vehicles arrive:
Unit No.

Engine 3 Shop #

Description

1

323

Engine Hours

VIN

Pierce Pierce Enforcer Enforcer

5900

4P4P 11 CT02U93A003196 CT02U93A003196

Recommendation:
Village

Staff requests

Council

approving the lease of one (

consideration

1) Sutphen

Monarch

Emergency Vehicles through Leasing 2,
payments

of $

54, 629. 06

and

balloon

and

approval
FSA20

of the attached

fire engine from South Florida

Inc. at a total cost of $ 481, 350. 00 (
payment

of $$

Resolution:

216, 334. 00)

pursuant

with

to

annual

pricing

established by an existing Florida Sheriffs Association contract with funds expended from
A8535- 49158 ( Debt
Agreement

with

Service —

Brindlee

Vehicle

Mountain

Lease);
Fire

approving a Deferred Purchase Value
Apparatus, LLC; authorizing the Village

Manager to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the transaction; and declaring
one (
1) Fire Rescue vehicle as surplus and authorizing its disposal in accordance with
Village policies and procedures.

SUTPHEN CORPORATION
6450 Eiterman Road

Dublin, OH 43016

PROPOSAL
October 25, 2018

The Village of North Palm Beach Fire Rescue

Chief J. D. Armstrong
560 US Highway 1
North Palm Beach, FL 33408
FOR YOUR REVIEW:

We hereby propose and agree to furnish the following firefighting apparatus upon
your acceptance

of this proposal:

One ( 1) 2019 Sutphen Custom Pumper- G9 Body
Contract FSA18- VEF 13. 0 Level II Custom Pumper ................ $
Modifications, Options and NFPA equipment ......................... $

475, 385. 22

Enginecost.................................................................. $

518, 000. 00

Trade In of 2004 Pierce Pumper ........................................ $ -

42, 614. 78

28, 550. 00

Total....................................................................... $

489, 450. 00

A prepayment discount of $8, 100. 00 can be taken if payment in full is received
within the first 30 days following contract acceptance.
TotalPrice............................................................... $

481, 350. 00

Apparatus will be manufactured completely in accordance to the included proposal

documents and delivered approximately 10- 12 months after approval of contract,
subject to delays from all causes beyond our control. Unless accepted within 45 days
from this date, the right is reserved to withdraw this proposal.

Respectfully submitted by:

X

GSD

U

Guy Lombardo
Sales Representative

LEASE FINANCING PROPOSAL

Requested

by

South Florida Emergency Vehicles
Representing

SUTPHEN.
Presented

To ( As Lessee)

Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
Proposal Date:

October 25, 2018

Equipment Description:

Sutphen Custom Engine

Commencement Date:

November 30, 2018
Option 1

Equipment Cost:

518, 000

Trade In:

28, 550

Prepay Discount:

8. 100

Amount Financed:

481, 350

Lease
First

7 Years

Term:

Payment

11/ 30/ 2019

Date:

Annual

Payment Frequency:
Lease
Payment

Rate:

4. 19%

54, 629. 06

Amount:

Balloon:

216, 334. 00

Balloon Due Date:

11/ 30/ 2026

Qualifications:

1. Pricing: This is a lease proposal

for the payment stream( s) indicated above.

advise us so that we can determine

if a new proposal is required.

a) Rate

Expiration:

signed,

and the lease funded

b) Closing
etc.

If any of the information

Signing this proposal does not in itself lock in your rate.
by Leasing

identified above are not correct, please

Other important elements of this proposal are:

This lease must be credit approved,

2 within thirty days from the date of this proposal

contracts

properl

to protect the rates quoted.

Costs: There will be no up -front costs of any kind charged by Lessor including closing costs, points, administrative

Your attorney may charge you to review the lease documents

costE

and complete the opinion letter required with our lease

documentation.
c) Fixed Rates:

adjustment
2. Type of Lease:

Rates for ten ( 10) years and under are fixed for the entire term.

Terms over ten years have a one time rate

after seven ( 7) years to the then current interest rates for the remaining

This is a lease - purchase type of financing.

After all the lease payments

term.

are made, Lessee will own the equipment without

further cost.
3.

Financial

Reporting:

All city, county and tax districts ( including fire districts) will be expected

All non -for profit corporations (

vfd' s) will be expected

to provide

IRS 990 federal

tax returns.

to provide GAAP audited financial

If you do not maintain

reports.

these types of financial

reports, please contact us to discuss.

4.

Credit Approval

and Documentation:

credit review and approval
agreement

and execution

This is a proposal

only, and does not represent

of mutually acceptable

documentation,

is legal, valid and binding, and qualified as a tax exempt obligation

Financing

provided

leasing

by:

2

a commitment

to lease.

This financing

is subject to

including the opinion of lessee' s counsel opining that the

under the tax reform act of 1986 as amended.

Leasing 2, Inc.
Contact:

Brad Meyers

Phone:

800- 287- 5155

Date:

October 25, 2018

Email:

bmeyers@leasing2. com

Web:

www. leasing2. com

x12

MEMBER

ROM
ASSMA"

o'

GOVERNMENTAL
E0. 51NG8FINANGE

REQUEST TO PROCEED:

When you are ready to proceed with Leasing
below and completing

the requested

2 towards finalizing

information.

this lease financing

We will immediately

arrangement,

email you our application.

please indicate so by signing
Thank you for your confidence

and consideration.

Proposal date:

Upcoming

Option Chosen: (

October 25, 2018

Governing

Body meeting

where applicable

date for lease approval

Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
Name of LesseE

Authorized

Signature

Printed Name Of Authorized

Date

Signature

Title

Contact Name ( If Different Than
Authorized

Contact Phone

Signature)

Last month of your budget year?
Contact E -Mail Address

Please complete the above information and

fax or email all pages of the proposal to

813- 258- 9333 / bmeyers@leasing2.

ASSOCIATION

com

FOR

GOVERNMENTAL
LEASING 6x FINANCE

Important: A Resolution will be required with the lease contract **
In the event that you require board action to sign this proposal,

please call us so that we may forward the preferred form for the meeting.

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION, FLORIDA FIRE CHIEFS'
ASSOCIATION, &

FLORIDA

SPECIFICATION #

20 -

MEDIUM

ALL ITEMS FACTORY

INSTALLED

Minimum Requirements:
1901,

applicable

ASSOCIATION

LEVEL II CUSTOM

4 DOOR CUSTOM

UNLESS OTHERWISE

fire apparatus

Chapter

PUMPER

CHASSIS

INDICATED

In all areas of this specification

for pumper

OF COUNTIES

bidders must comply with currently established

5 and all other

required

chapters,

FMVSS ( applicable

NFPA

areas)

and

NHTSA standards. When requested, bidders must submit complete detailed specifications for the apparatus being
offered, as well as all options, to the end user.

Documentation: Prospective bidder( s) are advised that the following documentation is to be included and made a
part of the bid submission. The Bid Coordinator reserves the right to disqualify any bidder( s) who are in noncompliance

with

this

provision.

Each manufacturer

shall provide

or exceeding $ 15, 000, 000. 00.
submitted

All bidders
motorized
license

evidence

A copy of the current

of Product

Product

Liability

Liability

and Facility Insurance

equal to

Insurance

shall

be

and Manufacturer

of

Certificate

with the bid.

must offer proof positive
fire apparatus

5%

Bid

Bond

evidence

and/ or motor vehicles

and the dealer' s license

A minimum

proof positive

shall

must

be submitted

be provided

that they are a licensed

in the State of Florida.

Copies

Dealer

of the manufacturer'

s

with the bid.

with the bid

per specification

bid for base vehicle

price.

An

insurance company licensed to provide bond insurance in the State of Florida must supply the bid bond. The
company who is submitting the bid bond must have an " A" Rating as a minimum requirement. The
contractor is required to notify the customer of the availability of a one hundred percent performance bond
at an additional cost to the customer. The company submitting the performance bond must have a
minimum A rating as determined by A. M. Best Company. The cost of the performance bond will be based
on the final price of the contract and must be provided to the customer in writing. The performance bond
must be supplied by an insurance company licensed to provide bond insurance in the State of Florida.
Note: Bidder is to include a copy of a current performance bond with their bid submission.

1.

CHASSIS

a.

110, 000 psi steel frame

b.

10 gauge

polished

rail system

stainless

steel

16"

to 24" extended

front

bumper

with

aluminum diamond plate gravel shield, 1- 1/ 2 front jump line with enclosed
compartment

in center

of front

bumper

to hold

minimum

100' of 1- 3/ 4 DJ fire

hose
C.

d.

Tow hooks or eyes front and rear attached
20, 000

pound

minimum

front

axle,

to the frame

suspension,

tubeless

radial

tires,

polished

tubeless

radial

tires,

polished

aluminum wheels with hub and lug trim package
e.

24, 000

pound

minimum

rear

axle,

suspension,

aluminum wheels with hub and lug trim package
f.

Front and rear mud flaps

g.

NFPA 1901 Chapter 4. 15. 3 top speed rating requirement

h.

S - cam air brakes or equivalent,

i.

Manufacturer' s standard compressor

as large as possible,

with automatic

j.

Minimum 5000 cubic inch air reservoir capacity

k.

Air dryer, color coded air lines, turn drain valves on reservoirs

I.

ABS brakes

M.

Power steering with tilt/ telescopic

n.

Vehicle

data

recorder (

VDR)

slack adjusters

wheel

in compliance

with

Chapter

4. 11 with

required

software meeting 4. 11. 8
o.

Electronic Stability Control shall be provided in compliance with NFPA 1901
Chapter 4. 13. 1. 2 if the manufacturer

cannot comply with Chapters 4. 13. 1. 1 through

4. 13. 1. 1. 3. 2.
p.

2.

Tire pressure monitoring system with Chapter 4. 13. 4

POWERTRAIN

a.

Turbocharged

diesel

engine

with a minimum

400 horsepower

and

1450 ft. lbs.

torque rating
b.

Engine exhaust

C.

Secondary braking

d.

Engine manufacturer'
approved

3.

at front of right rear wheels

s statement of engine installation

approval with

cooling system

e.

Drivelines to meet engine torque rating

f.

Silicone

g.

EVS 4000 or equivalent automatic transmission

h.

65 gallon minimum fuel tank

i.

OEM oil, fuel, transmission

coolant

hoses with constant

torque clamps

filters

CAB

a.

Extended

length

tilt aluminum

cab ( minimum

65" from center

of front axle

to rear of cab) with minimum 10" raised rear roof meeting NFPA 1901
Chapter

14. 3. 2

K

b.

Seating for six, five in SCBA seats with SCBA brackets

C.

Air ride driver seat, all others fixed position

d.

All persons

e.

in 3 - point seat belts per Chapter

14, seats equipped

with seat

belt/ occupant detection/ warning system per Chapter 14
Electric over hydraulic cab tilt with manual back- up

f.

Single tone cab paint finish with 10 year paint warranty pro -rated

g.

Air conditioning and heating

h.

Remote

controlled

mirrors ( from driver' s position)

with

separate

flat and convex

sections

4.

i.

DOT compliant

headlights

j.

LED forward facing turn and warning lights

k.

LED cornering turn and warning lights

I.

Minimum

four ( 4) dome

with LED marker

lights with red and clear

M.

Minimum four ( 4) under cab step lights

n.

Cab and compartment

o.

One ( 1) engine

p.

Color coded and function coded wiring

q.

Minimum

320 amp alternator

r.

Minimum

four ( 4) 750 CCA batteries

S.

Load

t.

Dual air horns with dual in - cab controls

manager

and clearance

lights

bulbs

door ajar light and buzzer

compartment

light

with automatic

high idle function

LIGHTSANDSIRENS

a.

NFPA LED compliant lighting package, upper and lower

b.

100 watt Siren, minimum

C.

Mechanical

d.

Two 100 -watt siren speakers, minimum

siren with dual controls

e.

Two rear deck lights

f.

8kW

g.

All emergency warning lights, rear, stop/ turn/ back- up lights, DOT clearance,

hydraulic

generator,

6 - place

breaker

panel, (

2)

750

watt

telescopic

lights mounted on body,
pump panel, compartment,
interior dome

5.

step, license plate, perimeter scene, and

lights to be LED.

BODY

a.

Bidders

to bid on each of their offered

construction

types:

Extruded aluminum
Formed aluminum
Formed galvanneal

steel

Formed stainless steel
b.

Bidders to state thicknesses, alloys and construction methods of all materials

C.

Three full height, full depth rescue style compartments

d.

Three

used in body construction
full

height,

full

depth

lower,

on drivers side

half -depth

upper

compartments passenger side of body
e.

Lights in compartments

f.

One ( 1) full height, full depth compartment rear of body

to meet NFPA 1901 Chapter 13. 10. 5

g.

Back up alarm

9

rescue

style

h.

Internal ladder storage compartment right rear of body, to hold NFPA
complement

i.

of ground

ladders and two ( 2) pike poles

Hose bed with hose restraints to be NFPA compliant; including
one (

1)

adjustable

divider;

minimum

hosebed

size

of

70

cubic

feet

of

usable

storage

j.

Steps and handrails for climbing from ground to hose bed —

bidders

to state exact

design
k.

Lights at each step

I.

LED stop/ turn/ back up lights

M.

LED DOT clearance

n.

LED license plate light

o.

Minimum

p.

Rub rail along each side of body with reflective stripe in rub rail

q.

Running boards at each pump panel with a recessed hose well with hose restraint
strap in the passenger side running board
Brushed stainless steel or black non -glare aluminum pump panels

r.

S.
t.

and marker

of 4 SCBA bottle

lights

storage

compartments

in rear wheel

wells

Hose bed lighting must be provided per NFPA 1901 Chapter 13. 10. 2
Minimum 4" reflective stripe on cab and body, chevron striping on rear of body
per NFPA 1901

U.

Four ( 4) aluminum adjustable shelves, located by customer

V.

Two ( 2) floor mounted aluminum roll- out trays, minimum 250 Ib. capacity
each, located by customer

W.

Equipment package: One 10' folding attic ladder, one 14' roof ladder, one 24' 2 section

6.

extension

ladder,

two 10' pike poles

PUMP

a.

1500 gpm drive shaft pump with side mount pump panel per NFPA 1901
Chapter 16

b.

One 3" deck gun discharge

C.

Four 2. 5" discharge

outlets ( includes

one ( 1) rear 2- 1/ 2" discharge)

d.

One 2. 5" suction inlet on left pump panel

e.

Two 6" steamer inlets with caps

f.

Discharge and inlet pressure reliefs

g.

Two 1. 75" crosslays with 2" piping

h.

One 3" tank to pump line

i.

One 2" tank fill line

j.

30 degrees

k.

Anti -vibration gauges

I.

Color coded pump panel tags

M.

Stainless steel plumbing with 10 -year warranty

n.

turn downs

on all 2- 1/ 2" or larger discharges

One 4" LDH discharge, right side pump panel, hand wheel control with 4" discharge
valve and piping

7.

WATERTANK

a.

750 -gallon rectangular tank ( U. S.) poly.

4

8.

b.

Lifetime warranty

C.

12" x 12" fill tower

COMPARTMENTS

a.

9.

Manufacturer

will submit cubic feet and size of compartments

with bid.

WARRANTY

a.

1 year bumper to bumper mechanical, excluding normal wear
and tear items

b.

10 year cab and body structural

C.

10 year paint pro -rated

d.

10 year corrosion perforation on cab and body

e.

Lifetime frame warranty

f.

2 year axle warranty

g.

5 year engine warranty

h.

5 year transmission warranty

i.

5 year fire pump warranty

j.

Lifetime

booster tank

I affirm that my bid is inclusive of all requirements listed within this specification and that we will
supply the items listed, at the prices bid.

Bidding Company: SUTPHEN
Bidder Title:

Dealer

Bidder Name: David Stonitsch
Bidder Signature:

David Stonitsch

Date Signed: April 6 2018

SPECIFICATION # 20 — LEVEL II CUSTOM PUMPER MEDIUM 4 DOOR CUSTOM CHASSIS

Bidding Company:
Manufacturer

SUTPHEN
Chassis
Make/

Ladder

Type

Body Type

Base

Price

Discount Included

Model

Discount
Off MSRP

Build Sheet
Insert name of
USB file

SUTPHEN

MONARCH

FSA20

EXT ALUM

475, 390

15

SUTPHEN

MONARCH

FSA20

STS

517, 440

15

DavW Stzrntt$ dh "

Prices are to be rounded to whole dollars ( 100. 00)
Percentage discounts are to be whole number percentages ( 10%)

Indicate the name of the build sheet file from your USB in the Build Sheet column for each vehicle

HEN.

MONARCHFSA

G. EXTALUM

JTPHEN. MONARCHFSA

O. STS. PC

Brindlee

Mountain

LLC

Fire Apparatus,

Deferred Purchase Value Agreement
This

contract

between

is

Brindlee

Corporation,
Beach,
State

entered

Mountain

hereinafter

a municipal

of Florida,

into

on

the

day of ,

Fire Apparatus,

referred

corporation

hereinafter

LLC, an Alabama

to as " BMFA"

organized

referred

2018 by and

and

Limited

the Village

and existing

Liability

of North

Palm

under the laws of the

to as the " End - User"

further,

hereinafter

collectively referred to as the " Parties."
BMFA

for

the

sum

of

ten ($

10. 00)

dollars

and

other

good

and

valuable

consideration the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged agrees
to provide a " Deferred Purchase Value" to " End - User" during the term specified
herein.

The " Deferred

Purchase

Value"

specified

terms, conditions and limitations specified
to honor the " Deferred

herein

herein.

Purchase Value" detailed

shall

be subject

to the

BMFA will have no obligation

herein if " End - User" fails to meet

its obligations hereunder or in the case the Apparatus fails to meet the conditions
as required

and specified

herein.

Further, BMFA will have no obligation

the " Deferred

Purchase

been shipped

from the manufacturer

Value"

540)

month or five -hundred - forty (
executed

if the Apparatus

or after the expiration

contemplated

to the " End - User" within

BMFA

enter

into

a written

to honor
has

not

the eighteen ( 18)

day period after the date this Agreement

of the seven ( 7) year period

date of the Apparatus by the manufacturer to " End - User",
and

herein

extension

is

after the shipment

unless the " End -User"

prior to the expiration

of each

such

period.

Now, therefore;

in consideration

of the foregoing,

the Parties hereto agree as

ollows:
follows-

Deferred Deferred Purchase Value:

BMFA hereby offers and agrees to pay the value as detailed in Exhibit B
Deferred Purchase Values" for the Apparatus and Equipment fully

entitled "

described

and

Description",

detailed
provided

in

Exhibit

A entitled "

that all options

Apparatus

and equipment

and

included

Equipment
in the bill of

materials by the Original Equipment Apparatus Manufacturer are present at
the time of surrender of the Apparatus and the Apparatus
the

conditions

Conditions

and

Application

for

required

to

Association,
NFPA

described

as

Requirements
Payment

undergo

and

hereinafter

ladder/ aerial

acceptable

in

Exhibit
for

successfully

inspection,

to
if

hereto

Apparatus

Hereunder".

referred

D

Further,

pass

as " NFPA",
applicable,

upon

each

a

End - User" by BMFA.
and/ or certifications

will be those

Specific

Surrender
Apparatus
Fire

and specifications

will
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be

Protection

Purchase Value to
for the NFPA tests

in force at the time of the inspection

time -to -time.

and

National
pump test and an annual
by a qualified third party,

to BMFA, prior to the payment of the Deferred
The standards

meets or exceeds
entitled "

from

End -User" hereby agrees to pay BMFA the sums shown in Exhibit C hereto
in the case for any reason
Early Termination Payments",

entitled "

whatsoever " End - User" exercises
its

Early

expiration.

substantial

harm;

applicable

time -frame

Termination

suffer

will

of this

this Agreement

Agreement

will

before
BMFA

cause

therefore "

from

hereunder

termination

the

that

End -User" must pay the amount shown for the
C
entitled "
in
Exhibit
hereto
Early
to partially compensate BMFA for the damages it

as

Payments"

understands

its right to terminate

shown

early

time

of

termination

is of the

essence

this

and

Agreement. "

it must

honor

End -User"

its obligations

If " End -User" fails to provide

in a timely fashion.

the

required

detailed

notice to BMFA or fails to pay the " Early Termination Payments"

in

Exhibit C hereto, it shall be in default of this Agreement and BMFA shall be

entitled to compensatory damages for all of the costs associated with " End User' s" default and shall, in addition to any and all compensatory

damages,

be entitled to any and all punitive damages a court of competent jurisdiction
shall award without limit.

Responsibilities

of BMFA:

BMFA will pay to " End - User" at any time prior to the expiration or termination

of this Agreement by the " End -User" the sum shown on the attached Exhibit
B

entitled "

Deferred

Specific

entitled "

Purchase

Conditions

Value"
and

subject

to

Requirements

the

paragraph

below

for

Apparatus

upon

Surrender and Application for Payment Hereunder".
Responsibilities

End -User"

of End -User:

will

the

maintain

Apparatus

the

under

Manufacturer' s

Recommended Preventative Maintenance Schedule; comply with obligations
of the

Manufacturer' s Warranty;

and

maintain

a

complete

record

of

all

preventative maintenance warranty, and other repairs made to the Apparatus
from the date of acceptance from the manufacturer to the date of surrender of
the Apparatus
Specific

to BMFA.

Conditions

and Application

The

Specific

Surrender
D hereto.

and

Requirements

for Payment
Conditions

and Application

for Apparatus

upon

Surrender

Hereunder:

and

Requirements

for Payment

for

Hereunder

Apparatus

are detailed

upon

in Exhibit

The " End -User" acknowledges and agrees that it fully understands

that BMFA has no obligation

to honor the Deferred

Purchase

Value

shown

in Exhibit C hereto if the Apparatus does not fully meet the criteria described
fully in Exhibit D; however it agrees to have the deficiencies repaired or to
negotiate

the

compensate

Deferred

Purchase

for the deficiencies

Price

with

in the condition

faith,

to

at the time of surrender.

If

BMFA,

in

good

End -User" and BMFA fail to negotiate an amended Purchase Price,

Page 2 of 7

acceptable

to both

parties,

for the Apparatus; "

End - User"

and

BMFA

shall

submit the matter to Binding Arbitration to a panel of three qualified
Arbitrators

under

determine

the

rules

of

the

American

the fair value of the Apparatus.

value as determined

Arbitration

Association

to

If BMFA is not willing to honor the

by the Arbitrators, " End -User" will no longer be bound by

this Agreement and may retain, sell or dispose of the Apparatus in any
manner and at any price it sees fit.
Further, " End -User"

agrees it has the responsibility

to notify BMFA of any

material changes in the value of the Apparatus covered by this Agreement
including,

but

significant

system failure or if the Apparatus

certifications
amended

not limited

as

to, accidental

required

by

from time to time.

this Agreement

NFPA

damage

or collision,

modifications,

fails to meet the required

standards

or otherwise

as

annual

may

be

If the Apparatus is destroyed at any time while

is in effect, " End -User" will offer the salvage, if it owns such

salvage and/ or inform its insurance company of BMFA' s interest in acquiring
such salvage

on a first -right -of -refusal

shall include BMFA as a potential

basis to BMFA.

Further, " End -User"

vendor for the repair of the Apparatus

if it is

damaged by collision or otherwise.
Indemnification:

End

User"

shall indemnify,

defend

and hold harmless

BMFA against

any

actions, claims or damages arising out of "End User' s" negligent or intentional
acts in connection

with this Agreement.

BMFA shall indemnify, defend and

hold harmless " End User" against any actions, claims or damages arising out
of BMFA' s negligent or intentional acts in connection with this Agreement.

No

action will be taken by either party against the other with the exception of a
default

by one of the parties to a specific

provided
waiver

for

of "

Section

herein.

End

requirement

of said

party as

The foregoing indemnification shall not constitute a

User' s"

768. 28, Florida

sovereign
Statutes,

immunity

nor shall

beyond

it create

the limits set forth in

a cause

of action

in favor

of any third party.
Exclusivity:
End -User"
Agreement
covered

hereby
gives

hereunder

acknowledges

BMFA

the

sole

for the duration

and

right

agrees

to

market

that

execution

and

sell

of this Agreement. "

the

of

this

Apparatus

End -User" will

not

advertise, offer to sell, in any fashion, sell or otherwise transfer ownership in
the Apparatus

without first paying the required

sum to BMFA, as required

hereunder, and receiving a full release from BMFA subsequent to payment of
the Value show in Exhibit C which BMFA shall immediately send to " End User"

upon

receipt

of payment

in full

in the form of a " Cashier' s Check"

or

Wire Transfer" drawn on an acceptable Bank.

Jurisdiction:

The validity, interpretation,

performance

and enforcement

Page 3 of 7

of this Agreement

shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Each Party to this
Agreement hereby irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of any state or
federal court located in Palm Beach County in the State of Florida.
Term:

This agreement will be valid and enforceable for a period of seven ( 7) years

or eighty four ( 84) months from the date the Apparatus is shipped to the " End User"

by the manufacturer

months

ship

total

specified

below; providing

for " End - User" to order

the Apparatus,

within
End - User" will

Agreement "

ninety (

and
90)

complete

the manufacturer
days

after

place

and

18)

up to eighteen (
the

its

to produce

execution

purchase

and

of

this

order

for

Apparatus with the manufacturer so named here Sutphen; and the specified

manufacturer will have four -hundred -fifty ( 450) days to produce and ship the
Apparatus

to the " End -User".

This Agreement

will be void and of no effect

after a period of seven ( 7) years from the date the Apparatus

is shipped to the

End - User" by the manufacturer and the seven ( 7) year term shall commence
no later than eighteen ( 18) months or five hundred ( 540) days subsequent

the execution
Apparatus

of this Agreement

by the "

this

by

contemplated

End - User"

Agreement

is

18th)

manufacturer
End - User"
Value"

BMFA

must

both

BMFA.

If the

by

shipped

the

month provided

for herein,

the "

Purchase

re- evaluate

Deferred

specified in Exhibit B and amend this Agreement, in writing, or this

Agreement
User".

by the end of the eighteenth (
and

and

not

to

will

be Void

This Agreement

and

BMFA will

have

may be terminated

no further

obligation

to " End -

by the " End - User" at any time by

providing written notice to BMFA; provided however the " End User" must give
said

notice

expiration
specified

a
of

minimum
this

in Exhibit

of one -hundred - eighty (

Agreement
C hereto

and

entitled "

180)

days

prior

the

Payment

pay the Early Termination
Early Termination

to

Payments".

If " End -

User" chooses to terminate this Agreement by giving the required notice, as
provided herein, at any time prior to one -hundred - eighty ( 180) days prior to its

End -User" shall be responsible to pay the amount specified in
Early Termination Payments" concurrent with its
Notice of Termination and if the Early Termination Payment specified for the

expiration, "

Exhibit C hereto entitled "

time -frame of the Early Termination
Agreement

shall remain

is not included

with said Notice, this

in full force and effect until the receipt of the amount

specified in Exhibit C for the time period as of the date payment is received,
in full.

Subsequent

to receipt of the specified

Payment

provided

for in Exhibit

C entitled "

Early Termination Payments", in full, by BMFA from " End -User"
neither Party will have any obligation to the other under this Agreement.

Interest and Penalties:

End - User"

understands

and

agrees

that time

is of the essence

and " End -

User" agrees to the following specific Interest and Penalties if it fails to honor

any or all of its obligations in a timely manner.
Payment that becomes
interest

past due for more than thirty (

at eighteen ( 18%)

State of Florida.

Any Early Termination
30)

days

will

bear

percent or the highest rate allowed by law in the

Further, " End -User" understands and agrees it will bear all of
Page 4 of 7

the cost of collection of any and all Early Termination Amounts due to BMFA
which become more than sixty ( 60) days past due, including reasonable
collection fees and attorney fees.
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Notices:

Any notice required or permitted to be provided

hereunder will be in writing

and delivered by either ( a) certified mail,

receipt

b)

prepaid; (

hand delivery; (

c)

return

reputable

overnight

requested,

courier

postage

freight

service,

prepaid, requiring the signature of the party to whom the notice is sent.
notice to either party will become

valid and enforceable

delivery by the party serving notice to the other.

without

No

proof of

Notices should be addressed

as follows:

If to BMFA:

Brindlee

Mountain

Fire Apparatus,

LLC

15410 Highway 231
Union Grove, AL

35175

Telephone:

256- 498- 0188

Facsimile-

256- 498- 0924

Attention:

James F. Wessel,

President

If to " End - User": Village of North Palm Beach

501 U. S. Highway One
North Palm Beach,
Telephone:

FL

33408

561- 841- 3361

Facsimile:

561- 848- 3344

Attention:

Andrew Lukasik, Village Manager

Entire Agreement:

This Agreement
parties

embodies

hereto

and

understandings

the entire agreement

supersedes

relating

and

any

to the matters

and understanding

all

provided

prior

of the

agreements

for herein,

including

and

any

verbal representations made on behalf of BMFA by any member of its staff
other

than

a

duly

authorized

officer

No

of BMFA.

alteration,

waiver,

amendment, change or supplement hereto shall be binding or effective unless
the

same

is

set

forth

in

writing

and

by

executed

a

duly

authorized

representative of each Party.
Enforcement

Costs:

If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this
Agreement,

or

because

of

an

alleged

dispute,

breach,

default

or

misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement, the
successful

or

prevailing

party

shall

be

entitled

to

recover

reasonable

attorney' s fees and costs ( including such fees and costs incident to appeals)
incurred in that action or proceeding,

in addition to any other relief to which

such party may be entitled.
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In Witness Whereof, BMFA and the " End - User" have executed

or caused this

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the day and
year first written above.

Village of North Palm Beach
a Florida municipal

corporation

LO
Name: Andrew D. Lukasik
Title:

Brindlee

Village Manager

Mountain

Fire Apparatus,

LLC

an Alabama Limited Liability Corporation
By:
Name ( print):
Title:

Exhibit A: "

Apparatus

Exhibit B: "

Deferred

Its:

and Equipment

Description"

Purchase Values"

Exhibit C: "

Early Termination Payments"

Exhibit D: "

Specific

Conditions

and Requirements

for

Apparatus upon Surrender and Application
for Payment
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Hereunder"

DEFERRED PURCHASE VALUE AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT A

APPARATUS AND EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION

Vehicle
Chassis

Year of Manufacture
Manufacture

Body Manufacturer

2018
Sutphen
Sutphen

Exhibit A - Deferred Purchase Agreement - Page 1 of 1 BMFA

END

USER

DEFERRED

PURCHASE VALUE AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT B

DEFERRED

PURCHASE VALUES

Apparatus as described in Exhibit A

Deferred Purchase Value $

Period

1 Term

218, 334. 00

84 Months

Exhibit B - Deferred Purchase Agreement - Page 1 of 1 BMFA

END USER

DEFERRED PURCHASE VALUE AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT C
EARLY

TERMINATION

PAYMENTS

Period 1 Term begins at date of shipment of apparatus ( as

described in Exhibit A) from manufacturer' s facility ( as
detailed in paragraph entitled " Term" of the " Deferred
Purchase

Value Agreement".

Any early termination agreement

shall result in $ 25, 000 paid to Brindlee Mountain.

Exhibit C - Deferred

Purchase

Agreement -

Page 1 of I

BMFA

END USER

DEFERRED

PURCHASE VALUE AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT D

Specific Conditions and Requirements for Apparatus upon Surrender and
Application

for Payment

Hereunder

1. At time of surrender, apparatus must pass a standard NFPA pump and/ or aerial
test, if applicable, conducted by an independent third party acceptable to BMFA.
2. At time of surrender, apparatus must be free of any rust, corrosion, oxidation,

and any cosmetic deficiencies.
3. At time of surrender, title free of lien must be transferred to Brindlee Mountain
Fire Apparatus,

LLC.

4. At time of surrender, apparatus must have less than 35, 000 miles, based upon the
odometer with " End -User" certification that odometer reflects all mileage and has
not been replaced or tampered with.

5. At time of surrender, if apparatus has suffered any damage as a result of collision,
fire, wind, flood, or other event which would affect Deferred Purchase Value
End -User" must disclose the details of such damage to BMFA.
been repaired to Manufacturer' s specifications

If such damage has

and to the satisfaction

of BMFA,

BMFA will continue to honor Deferred Puirchase Value. If such damage has not
been. repaired, or is unrepairable,

BMFA will not be obligated to honor Deferred

Purchase Value, but would be agreeable to re- evaluating possible purchase of
apparatus

Exhibit

at an adjusted
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value.

BMFA

END USER

RESOLUTION 2018- 88
A RESOLUTION
NORTH

PALM

OF THE
BEACH,

VILLAGE
FLORIDA

COUNCIL
ACCEPTING

OF THE VILLAGE
A

PROPOSAL

OF

FROM

FORD MOTOR CREDIT COMPANY, LLC FOR THE LEASE OF TWELVE
PURSUANT

VEHICLES

PRICING

TO

STATE

BY

ESTABLISHED

CONTRACT AND THE OUTFITTING OF SUCH VEHICLES TO VILLAGE
SPECIFICATIONS;

EXECUTE

THE

AUTHORIZING

NECESSARY

THE

LEASE

VILLAGE

AGREEMENTS

MANAGER

AND

TO

RELATED

DOCUMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE PROPOSAL;
DECLARING
PROVIDING

SPECIFIED

VEHICLES

FOR AN EFFECTIVE

AS

SURPLUS

PROPERTY;

AND

DATE.

WHEREAS, Village Staff recommended accepting a proposal from Ford Motor Credit Company, LLC
for the lease of twelve ( 12) vehicles from Garber Ford, Inc. pursuant to pricing established by
State of Florida Term Contract No. 25100000- 18- 1 ( Motor Vehicles):
A.

Five Police Department vehicles ( 1 unmarked Ford Escape SUV, 2 marked Ford

Interceptor Police Utility Vehicles and 2 unmarked Ford Interceptor Utility Vehicles),
with the vehicles equipped to Village specifications by Dana Safety Supply
pursuant to pricing established by an existing City of Tampa Contract Spec 2- 18
Lightbars and Accessories);

B.

Three Community Development Department vehicle (3 Ford Escape SUV' s);

C.

Two Facilities/ Fleet vehicles ( Ford F- 350 Pick Up Trucks);

D.

One Sanitation Department vehicle ( Ford F- 150 Pick Up Truck),

with the vehicle

equipped to Village specifications by Par -Kan Company utilizing three written
quotes;

E.

and

One Recreation Department vehicle ( Ford Transit Cargo Van);

and

WHEREAS, the proposal is for a lease term of five ( 5) years, with the Village retaining ownership
of the vehicles at the end of the lease term; and

WHEREAS, the Village Council wishes to accept the proposal submitted by Ford Motor Credit

Company, LLC and determines that the adoption of this Resolution is in the best interests of the
residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.
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The Village Council hereby accepts the proposal submitted by Ford Motor Credit

Section 2.

Company, LLC for the lease of twelve ( 12) vehicles from Garber Ford, Inc. pursuant to pricing
established by State of Florida Term Contract No. 25100000- 18- 1 ( Motor Vehicles) and
equipped to Village specifications by Dana Safety Supply ( pursuant to pricing established by an

existing City of Tampa Contract Spec 2- 18 ( Lightbars and Accessories) and Par -Kan Company
utilizing three written quotes).
underwriting costs),

The total annual

cost of the lease is $ 77, 935. 11 ( including

with a total cost over the five- year term of the lease of $389, 675. 55.

Funds

for the lease agreement with Ford Motor Credit Company, LLC will be expended from Account
No. A8535- 49158 ( Debt Service — Vehicle Lease).

Subject to review and approval as to form and legal sufficiency by the Village

Section 3.

Attorney, the Village Council further authorizes the Village Manager to execute the lease
agreements with Ford Motor Credit Company, LLC and all related documents necessary to
effectuate

the transaction.

Section 4.
Upon delivery, acceptance and placement into service of the new vehicles, the
Village Council declares the following vehicles as surplus property and authorizes their disposal

in accordance with Village policies and procedures:
VIN

Description

Unit No.

Mileage (*)

Chevy Colorado

1 GCCS 19E398100622

25, 012

204

Dodge Charger

2B3KA43R58H216278

91, 371

216

Dodge Charger

2B3CL3CG9BH527999

80, 597

217

Dodge Charger

2B3CL3CG8BH513916

101, 366

232

Dodge Charger

2C3CDXAG3CH305132

70, 734

233

Dodge Charger

2C3CDXAG5CH305133

86, 769

12

n/ a

77

Cushman Jitney

23

Chevy Colorado

IGCCS146568273649

68, 315

41

Dodge 2500 Ram

3D7KR26D57G757699

69, 461

51

Chevy 3500 Van

1GAHG39R8Y1179033

75, 453

n/ a

Mileage as of 9/ 28/ 2018

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

Section 5.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 18TH DAY OF O(

Village Seal)

ATTEST:
7

xlw'l
VILLAGE CLERK
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VILLAGE

OF NORTH PALM BEACH

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

THRU:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

FROM:

Steven J. Hallock, Director of Public Works

DATE:

October 18, 2018

SUBJECT:

RESOLUTION —

Approval of Fiscal Year 2019 Village -Wide Vehicle Lease

Program with Ford Motor Credit Company, LLC in the annual amount of
77, 935. 11

During the Fiscal Year 2019 budgetary process, Village Staff evaluated the option of a vehicle
leasing program versus direct purchasing of its vehicles and presented it to the Village Council at
a budget workshop session. Council was supportive of moving forward with a leasing program
for vehicle replacement. There are fifty-four ( 54) vehicles in this program; however, only twelve
12) are being replaced in Fiscal Year 2019. The leasing program will be reviewed annually as
part of the budget process.
Background:
In an effort to maximize

of the interdepartmental

the return on investment

Vehicle Committee,

in our vehicles,

Village

staff, through the use

began with developing

a vehicle replacement
schedule to guide decisions about surplusing and replacing vehicles. The group used three
criteria to establish a replacement schedule:
mileage, age and maintenance history. Because the
Village' s fleet also includes police and sanitation vehicles which need to be outfitted with special

equipment, staff evaluated leasing programs that included the financing of both the vehicle and
the outfitting of the vehicle.

Staff had multiple meetings with Enterprise Leasing, but determined that its lease program did
not meet the needs of the Village.

Staff reached out to other local municipalities

to find out who

they use for vehicle leasing. The Bancorp Bank and Ford Motor Credit Company, LLC were
both recommended.
Staff contacted the following communities in Florida regarding the Ford
Motor Credit Program:

Gadsden County, Madison County, City of West Miami, FL, Baker

County, and Hendry County.

Based on the Village' s needs and reference checks with other

communities, Ford Motor Credit Company, LLC offered the best program and services for the
Village.

The Ford Motor program includes the financing of the following items:
12 vehicles from Garber Ford, Inc. of Green Cove Springs, Florida

Outfitting of the police vehicles by Dana Safety Supply
Outfitting of the dump bed for the Ford F150 from Par -Kan Company of Silver Lake,
Indiana

The pricing is based on the following:

Contract, etc.

Vendor

Garber Ford, Inc.

State Term Contract No. 25100000- 18- 1

Dana Safety Supply

City of Tampa Bid #

Par -Kan Company

Lowest of 3 quotes

21092617

The lease term is five ( 5) years and the Village will own the twelve ( 12) vehicles

at the end of

the lease. The annual lease payment is $ 77, 935. 11:
Total

Annual

Financed *)

Vendor

Garber Ford

338, 426. 00

67, 685. 20

41, 474. 60

8, 294. 92

9, 774. 95

1, 954. 99

389, 675. 55

77, 935. 11

Dana Safety Supply
Par -Kan Company
Total

Payment

Financed amount includes a $ 645. 00 underwriting fee.
Once the Village Council accepts the lease proposal, Ford Motor Credit Company will forward final

lease agreements for execution by the Village Manager, subject to legal sufficiency review by the
Village Attorney.

The attached Resolution has been prepared and/ or reviewed by the Village Attorney for legal
sufficiency.

Account Information:

Fund

General Fund

Account

Account
Department

Debt Service

Annual Amount

Description

Number

A8535- 49158

Vehicle Lease

77, 935. 11

The following vehicles will be surplused once the replacement vehicles arrive:
Unit No.

VIN

Description

Mileage (*)

12

Chevy Chevy Colorado Colorado

1GCCS19E398100622 1GCCS19E398100622

25, 012

204

DodgeDodge ChargerCharger

2B3KA43R58H216278

91, 371

216

Dodge Charger

2B3CL3CG9BH527999

80, 597

217

Dodge Charger

2B3CL3CG8BH513916

101, 366

232

Dodge Charger

2C3CDXAG3CH305132

70, 734

233

Dodge Charger

2C3CDXAG5CH305133

86, 769

77

Cushman Jitney

n/ a

23

Chevy Colorado

IGCCS146568273649

68, 315

41

Dodge 2500 Ram

3D7KR26D57G757699

69, 461

Chevy 3500 Van

1GAHG39R8Y1179033

75, 453

51

Mileage as of 9/ 28/ 2018

n/ a

Recommendation:

Village

Staff

requests

Council

consideration

and

approval

of the

attached

Resolution

approving the lease of twelve ( 12) vehicles from Ford Motor Credit Company LLC, at a
total cost of $ 389, 675. 55 with funds expended
Lease),

from A8535- 49158 ( Debt Service — Vehicle

authorizing the Village Manager and Village Staff to execute the necessary Lease

Agreements and related documents to effectuate the transaction, and declaring ten ( 10)
vehicles as surplus and authorizing their disposal in accordance with Village policies and
procedures.

2018/ 19 Vehicle

Department

Vehicle

CDD

Type

Truck

CDD

SUV

CDD

ISUV

Total

1

Vehicle #

Year

Make

12

2009

Chevy

N/ A

I

N/ A

N/ A

I

N/ A

I

Model

Mileage

Colorado

N/ A

N/ A

N/ A

I N/ A

Replacement

Acquisition

25, 012

N/ A

Date

8/ 6/ 2008

N/ A

I

Schedule

I

Replacement

Vehicle

Vehicle

Cost

Outfitting

Cost

Total

Cost

Replacement

Ford SUV

18, 999

18, 999

2019

New

Small SUV

18, 999

18, 999

2019

New

ISmall SUV

18, 999

18, 999

2019

1$

561997

0

561997

Police

Unmarked

Police Vehicle

204

2008

Dodge

Charger

88, 556

1/ 25/ 2008

Unmarked

Escape

22, 421

4, 025

26, 446

2019

Police

Unmarked

Police Vehicle

216

2011

Dodge

Charger

78, 205

8/ 2/ 2011

Unmarked

SUV

25, 499

4, 025

29, 524

2019

Police

Unmarked

Police Vehicle

217

2011

Dodge

Charger

98, 600

8/ 2/ 2011

Unmarked

SUV

25, 499

4, 025

29, 524

2019

Police

Marked

Police Vehicle

232

2012

Dodge

Charger

66, 683

7/ 31/ 2012

Marked

SUV

28, 705

12, 062

40, 767

2019

Police

Marked

Police Vehicle

233

2012

Dodge

Charger

85, 294

7/ 31/ 2012

Marked

SUV

28, 705

12, 062

40, 767

2019

Total

1301829

361199

1671028

8, 115

PW- Sanitation

Jitney

77

2001

Cushman

6, 671

4/ 4/ 2001

Ford F250 4x2

21, 703

29, 818

2019

PW -Facilities

Truck

23

2006

Chevy

Colorado

68, 315

4/ 21/ 2006

F250

Svc Veh

32, 030

32, 030

2019

PW -Fleet

PW Utility Servcie

41

2007

Dodge

2500 RAM

69, 461

1/ 17/ 2007

F250

Svc Veh

32, 030

32, 030

2019

Total

Body Truck

Jitney

851762

1

13500 Van

25, 691 1

25, 691 1
251691

Total

2991279

Van

51

2000

Chevy

1

75, 453

1

Ivan

251691

Cargo

1

12/ 1/ 1999

1

931877

Total

Recreation

1

81115

441314

3431593

2019

Year

IFORD CREDIT
Municipal

MUNICIPAL

LEASE - PURCHASE

FINANCE

Finance

LEASE - PURCHASE

PROGRAM

OVERVIEW:

Full payout lease; Lessee owns vehicle with $ 1. 00 buyout at term end.

No security deposit, excess wear &
Ford ESP, attached

equipment,

tear

charges

accessories,

or mileage

restrictions.

state sales tax and other associated

costs

may be included in the amount financed.
Flexible payment schedules are offered ( Monthly, Quarterly, Semi -Annual and Annual).
Terms lengths of 2- 5 years.

First payment due at vehicle delivery.
No pre -payment penalty.
Eligible for Government Price Concessions.

Title to the vehicle passes to Lessee at the beginning of the lease; Ford Credit is secured
as the first Lien holder.
ELIGIBILITY:

Eligible:

State and local governments ( Counties, Cities, Townships, Villages),

school districts &
NOT Eligible:
schools &

public

Universities and federally recognized Indian Tribes.

501( c) non- profit corporations, volunteer fire departments,

private

universities, federal agencies.

BENEFITS:

Lessee reserves funds for other projects where leasing is not an option.
Obtain needed equipment today and spread cost over several years.

Provides an alternative to bonds as a source of tax exempt financing.
Non -appropriations clause allows penalty -free return of vehicles if funds are not
appropriated and allows for classification as short- term debt.
No undisclosed fees: total $ 545

underwriting fee, regardless of the number of vehicles

in transaction.

PLEASE CONTACT US WITH ANY QUESTIONS OR FOR A QUOTE
800- 241- 4199 x1

fcmuni@ford. com

How much equipment
can you get this year

for $250, 000T
Option

A

Purchase

Today for Cash

aftr

ICk .

Option B

Ford Credit Municipal Lease/ Purchase Financing

rok

i

t ,

Qrs.

r

mss,

r

si.

r .

Based on the assumption that you could purchase Option A for $ 250, 000
from your annual

equipment

budget

and you could lease/

cost of $ 1. 1 million at 6. 1%

pu rchase

Option

B with a total

APR, resulting in fiveannual

payments

Can Film hpr

IFORD CREDIT
Municipal

Finance

We make it convenient

Bring variety to your

Many public agencies

workforce

State and local governments

Ford offers a wide variety of vehicles that

Counties

bring innovation and capability to any

Public school districts

are discovering

that

Here' s who is eligible

Municipal Lease/ Purchase Financing is today' s
answer to acquiring essential equipment

within limited - budget confines. Working with
municipalities for many years has provided

workforce,

us with the knowledge and expertise to make

Police

the acquisition

of public vehicles

a simple and

including:

and administrative

Public colleges and universities
vehicles
Municipal airports

Ambulances

and fire trucks

accommodating process.

Light-, medium-

Here' s how it works

More benefits

a

s

Newer vehicles to help you avoid the high cost
Street sweepers

Fixed- rate financing helps you get the

and

rbage

tilts

of maintaining

Upf its to any oft

vehicles you need, when you need them

and annual

No mileage restrictions

10

i

warranty plans, etc.

-_

No maintenance

or return provisions

l

5W1,

r

ty is accumulated

and ownership
payment

with each payment,

is realized with a final

We' re a team ready to move fast to
respond to your vehicle needs.

i

of $ 1

Contact

us at 1- 800- 241- 4199 or

fordcredit. com/ municipal- finance.

M.
sem:

40

No down payment or security deposit required

Finance add- on equipment, upfits and

khg&nded

older equipment

Low- cost, tax- exempt interest rates

ll

Flexible repayment terms — monthly,
quarterly, semiannual

and heavy- duty trucks '

aQldL

I

FORD CREDIT

POLICE
Lease/ Purchase Financing

Proposal

Village of North Palm Beach, Schedule: 9351100
October

Description

4uantrty ,

01,

2018

Price

1

Ford Escape $

22, 421. 00

2

Ford Police Interceptor Utility Marked $

28, 705. 00

2

Ford Police Interceptor Utility Unmarked $

25, 499. 00

Total< Arnount

Payment

Number

of

Financed*
131, 374. 00

Payment T(rnmg r

5

Annual

in Advance

APR

Factor

6. 45%

10. 2257491

f

WOMAN"
29, 657. 55

545. 00 underwriting fee included

EXPIRATION

DATE:

11/ 30/ 2018

All vehicles must be delivered, executed contract and payment to Ford Credit prior to this date

This proposal, until credit approved, is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance. It has been prepared

assuming that the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Exempt Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section
103 of the IRS Code. Financing is subject to credit review and approval of acceptable documentation by Ford Credit
Municipal

Finance.

MUNICIPALITY REQUIREMENTS
In order for us to proceed with the approval process, please fax to ( 313) 390- 3783 or email jdoty@ford. com
the following

items:

Most recent audited financial

statements.

A copy of your Tax -Exempt Certificate.
Copy of Board Resolution or Meeting Minutes showing proof of appropriation.
Completed

Municipal

Finance

Application (

attached).

Note: Please forward the signed original Municipal Finance Application by mail to Ford Credit
Municipal Finance, 1 American Road -MD 7500, Dearborn, MI 48126.

DEALERSHIP REQUIREMENTS
In order for Ford Credit Municipal Finance to prepare the Lease/ Purchase Financing documentation for the
municipality, the following items are required from Garber Automall:
Vehicle vin number( s) and/ or equipment serial number( s).
Itemized

list of equipment,

if applicable.

On dealership letterhead, provide the following wire instructions, if not already on file in the following format:
o
o
o
o

dealership' s bank name,
dealership' s bank 9 -digit ABA routing number,
dealership' s bank account number,
signature and title of person providing the information.

Note: You should not deliver any of the vehicle(s) and/ or equipment to the municipality
until credit has been approved and we receive our fully executed contract and
first payment, if applicable.

Ford Motor Credit Company (" FMCC") is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in connection with a proposed arm' s
length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours.
FMCC is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended
to be and should not be construed as " advice" within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the municipal advisor rules of the
SEC. FMCC is not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

Community Development

FORD CREDIT

Lease/ Purchase Financing

Proposal

Village of North Palm Beach, Schedule:

9351103
October 01, 2018

Quant) tY..,

Description

s

Pnce

JFord Small SUV

3

1$
Payment

Total Amou14nt Number,
of

Finariced*
56, 997. 00

18, 999. 00

APR

PaymentFTimmg
Annual

5

in Advance

F-`

ry

10. 2257491

6. 45%

PaymentAmount
12, 867. 02

545. 00 underwriting fee has been WAIVED

EXPIRATION

DATE:

11/ 09/ 2018

All vehicles must be delivered, executed contract and payment to Ford Credit prior to this date

This proposal, until credit approved, is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance. It has been prepared

assuming that the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Exempt Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section
103 of the IRS Code. Financing is subject to credit review and approval of acceptable documentation by Ford Credit
Municipal Finance.

MUNICIPALITY REQUIREMENTS
In order for us to proceed with the approval process, please fax to ( 313) 390- 3783 or email jdoty@ford. com

the following items:
Most recent

audited

financial

statements.

A copy of your Tax -Exempt Certificate.
Copy of Board Resolution or Meeting Minutes showing proof of appropriation.
Completed

Municipal

Finance Application ( attached).

Note: Please forward the signed original Municipal Finance Application by mail to Ford Credit
Municipal

Finance,

1 American

Road - MD 7500, Dearborn,

MI

48126.

DEALERSHIP REQUIREMENTS
In order for Ford Credit Municipal Finance to prepare the Lease/ Purchase Financing documentation for the
municipality, the following items are required from Garber Automall:
Vehicle vin number( s) and/ or equipment serial number( s).
Itemized

list of equipment,

if applicable.

On dealership letterhead, provide the following wire instructions, if not already on file in the following format:
o
o
o
o

dealership' s bank
dealership' s bank
dealership' s bank
signature and title

name,
9 -digit ABA routing number,
account number,
of person providing the information.

Note: You should not deliver any of the vehicle( s) and/ or equipment to the municipality

until credit has been approved and we receive our fully executed contract and
first payment, if applicable.

Ford Motor Credit Company (" FMCC") is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in connection with a proposed arm' s
length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours.

FMCC is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended
to be and should not be construed as " advice" within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the municipal advisor rules of the
SEC. FMCC is not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

Fleet
FORD CREDIT

Facilities

Recreation
Lease/ Purchase Financing Proposal
Village of North Palm Beach, Schedule: 9351104
October 01, 2018

Description

Quantity

Total

Price

r

1

Ford F- 250 4x2

21, 703. 00

2

Ford F- 250 Svc Vehicles

32, 030. 00

1

Ford

25, 691. 00

Amount

Van

Payrr ent

Number

F) nanced*

5

111, 454. 00

APR

Factor

6. 45%

10. 2257491

Payment Timing",,

of ,

Annual

in Advance

Payrrie'

Arin'

J

25, 160. 63

545. 00 underwriting fee WAIVED

EXPIRATION DATE: 11/ 30/ 2018
All vehicles must be delivered, executed contract and payment to Ford Credit prior to this date

This proposal, until credit approved, is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance. It has been prepared

assuming that the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Exempt Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section
103 of the IRS Code. Financing is subject to credit review and approval of acceptable documentation by Ford Credit
Municipal Finance.

MUNICIPALITY REQUIREMENTS
In order for us to proceed with the approval process, please fax to ( 313) 390- 3783 or email jdoty@ford. com

the following items:
Most

recent audited

financial

statements.

A copy of your Tax -Exempt Certificate.
Copy of Board Resolution or Meeting Minutes showing proof of appropriation.
Completed

Municipal

Finance

Application (

attached).

Note: Please forward the signed original Municipal Finance Application by mail to Ford Credit
Municipal

Finance,

1 American

Road - MD 7500, Dearborn,

MI

48126.

DEALERSHIP REQUIREMENTS
In order for Ford Credit Municipal Finance to prepare the Lease/ Purchase Financing documentation for the
municipality, the following items are required from Garber Automall:
Vehicle vin number( s) and/ or equipment serial number( s).
Itemized

list of equipment,

if applicable.

On dealership letterhead, provide the following wire instructions, if not already on file in the following format:
o
o
o
o

dealership' s bank
dealership' s bank
dealership' s bank
signature and title

name,
9 -digit ABA routing number,
account number,
of person providing the information.

Note: You should not deliver any of the vehicle( s) and/ or equipment to the municipality
until credit has been approved and we receive our fully executed contract and
first payment, if applicable.

Ford Motor Credit Company (" FMCC") is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in connection with a proposed arm' s
length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours.

FMCC is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended
to be and should not be construed as " advice" within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the municipal advisor rules of the
SEC. FMCC is not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

FORD CREDIT

Outfit Police Vehicles

Lease/ Purchase Financing Proposal
Village of North Palm Beach, Schedule:

9351101
Septemoer i j, zui is

sQuantity ,,

Pr(ce

Description

Equip for Ford Escape Unmarked

1

4, 025. 00

12, 062. 00

2

Equip for Ford Police Interceptor Utility Marked

2

Equip for Ford Police Interceptor Utility Unmarked

5.

f' i

YrsY

aS.,a

x+x .

c# ^`

atalA ountNu ber
F,„ anced* k Y; of e
36, 744. 00

e#

s,

s,"§

zr

i {;

xr

4, 025. 00

4.,.f

P

Paym

Payrnen_tT(rntng`,`

5

Annual

in Advance

F_

APRS,

s:'#'

n., r

nthsa
Factor

Payment YArnount

10. 2257491

6. 45%

mss"

8, 294. 92

545. 00 underwriting fee included

EXPIRATION DATE: 11/ 09/ 2018

This proposal, until credit approved, is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance. It has been prepared
assuming that the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Exempt Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section
103 of the IRS Code. Financing is subject to credit review and approval of acceptable documentation by Ford Credit
Municipal Finance.

MUNICIPALITY
In order for us to proceed with the approval

process,

REQUIREMENTS

please fax to ( 313) 390- 3783 or email jdoty@ford. com

the following items:
Most recent audited

financial

statements.

A copy of your DR -14 Tax -Exempt Certificate.
Copy of Board Resolution or Meeting Minutes showing proof of appropriation.
Completed

Municipal

Finance Application ( attached).

Note: Please forward the signed original Municipal Finance Application by mail to Ford Credit
Municipal

Finance,

1 American

Road - MD 7500, Dearborn,

DEALERSHIP

MI

48126.

REQUIREMENTS

In order for Ford Credit Municipal Finance to prepare the Lease/ Purchase Financing documentation for the
municipality, the following items are required from Dana Safety Supply, Inc.:
Vehicle vin number( s) and/ or equipment serial number( s).
Itemized list of equipment, if applicable.

On dealership letterhead, provide the following wire instructions, if not already on file in the following format:
dealership' s bank name,
o
dealership' s bank 9 -digit ABA routing number,
o
dealership' s bank account number,
signature and title of person providing the information.
o

o

Note: You should not deliver any of the vehicle(s) and/ or equipment to the municipality
until credit has been approved and we receive our fully executed contract and
first payment, if applicable.

Ford Motor Credit Company (" FMCC") is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in connection with a proposed arm' s
length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours.

FMCC is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended
to be and should not be construed as " advice" within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the municipal advisor rules of the
SEC. FMCC is not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

40*

I FORD CREDIT
Outfit Sanitation Truck
Lease/ Purchase Financing Proposal
Village of North Palm Beach, Schedule

9351102
September

Quant) ty

Descr) pt(on ,:`

1 '

13 Yard Easy Dump for Ford

1

Prue
8, 115. 00

F- 250 42 $

TV -

TOP,

14, 2018

5

Payment
A'"`'

Ftnape *

s

L

z , Payment T)rnings ,.

of

8, 660. 00

5

Annual

in Advance

r, ,

APRFactor..

Payrrrnt AmountY'
R

10.2257491

6. 45%

1, 954. 99

545. 00 underwriting fee included

EXPIRATION DATE: 11/ 12/ 2018
Equipment must be delivered, executed contract and payment to Ford Credit prior to this date

This proposal, until credit approved, is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance. It has been prepared
assuming that the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Exempt Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section
103 of the IRS Code. Financing is subject to credit review and approval of acceptable documentation by Ford Credit
Municipal Finance.

MUNICIPALITY
In order for us to proceed

with the approval

process,

REQUIREMENTS

please

fax to ( 313) 390- 3783

or email jdoty@ford.

com

the following items:
Most recent audited financial statements.

A copy of your DR -14 Tax -Exempt Certificate.
Copy of Board Resolution or Meeting Minutes showing proof of appropriation.
Completed

Municipal

Finance

Application (

attached).

Note: Please forward the signed original Municipal Finance Application by mail to Ford Credit
Municipal

Finance,

1 American

Road - MD 7500, Dearborn,

VENDOR

MI

48126.

REQUIREMENTS

In order for Ford Credit Municipal Finance to prepare the Lease/ Purchase Financing documentation for the
municipality, the following items are required from Par -Kan Company:
Equipment
Itemized

serial number( s).

list of equipment

On dealership letterhead, provide the following wire instructions, if not already on file in the following format:
o

o
o

o

dealership' s bank name,
dealership' s bank 9 -digit ABA routing number,
dealership' s bank account number,
signature and title of person providing the information.

Note: You should not deliver any of the vehicle( s) and/ or equipment to the municipality

until credit has been approved and we receive our fully executed contract and
first payment,

Ford Motor Credit Company ("

if applicable.

FMCC")

is providing

the information

contained

in this document

for discussion

purposes

only in connection

with a proposed

arm' s

length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours.
FMCC is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended
to be and should not be construed

as " advice" within the meaning

of Section 15B of the Securities

Exchange

Act of 1934 and the municipal

advisor rules of the

SEC. FMCC is not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

Price Quote Form ( PQF) Contract No.:

Updated
STATE

AGENCIES

Motor Vehicles

25100000-

MUST

Fac/ Fleet Replaces

18- 1

23 & 41

12! 77
ALSO

SUBMIT

MP6301

Important - Contractor' s must select Vendor Name, Vehicle Group ( Drop Down), and Line No. for the sheet to work.
Formulas are included in the BLUE and YELLOW shaded columns ( auto- calculate)

Please complete only the unshaded white cells
Awarded
Vendor

Name:

Dra

Contractor

Garber Ford, Inc.

Street Address:

3380

City, State, Zip:

Green

HWY 17
Cove

springs,

FL 32043

9112118

Original Quote Date:

Revised

Quote Date:

I

904- 264- 2442 ext.2350

Primary:

Email Address:

Fleet Sales

I
I
Secondary:

Title:

Ryan Davis

Contact Person:

Phone #' s:

Information

own

rdavis

jEst. Delivery:

garberautomall.

90- 120 Days

com

904- 284- 0054

Fax #:
Vendor Purchase Order No.

Requesting Customer Information
Agency/ Organization

Village

Name:
Susanne Hachigian

Contact Person:

Title:

of North

Palm

Beach

Public Works Manager
564) 691- 3442

Phone It' sEmail Address:

shachigian@village-

npb. org

Fax #:

Secondary
Contact

Customer Contact: ( optional)
Title:

Person:

Phone #' s:
Email Address:
Fax #:
UNSPSC
Commodity

Vehicle Group ( Drop Down)

Line No.

Group 4: Light Trucks or Spart Utility Vehicles; Sub- Groups

5

Code

25101507

E- H One
Representative

Ton Trucks

Model

Sub Group
Sub- Group E: TRUCE{,
Base Vehicle

Description

Price

s

MSRP

Description

OEM O
Option

OEM Options

24, 448. 00

2018 Ford Super Duty F- 350 SRW 2WD Reg Cab 142" XL [ F3A] $
Manufacturer'

ONE TON, PICKUP,

OEM Options

2WD
Discount %

2- 00%

Option Total Cast with

Total Discount

s)

Applied Discount
Dollars
Discount Io
Code(
0

610A

Order Code 61 DA $

996

Engine: 621- 2- Valve SOHC EF1 NA V8 Flex-Fuel $

0

44P

Transmission:

0

Z1

Oxford White $ -

AS

Medium Earth Gray, HD Vinyl 40/ 20/ 40 Split Bench Seat $ -

66D

Pickup

TorgShift

6- Speed

Automatic $

0

67E

Extra Extra Heavy- Duty Alternator [ 240 Amp] $

668

Upfitter

Switches (

6) - inc: Located

in overhead

90L

Power Equipment

TBM

Tires: LT245175Rx17E

X3E

Electronic - Locking w13. 73 Axle Ratio $

console $

Group $
BSW A1T

0
575. 00)

Box Delete ( At Dealer Cost) $ (

4$

575. 00)

0

85. 00

2. 00%

1. 70 $

83. 30

165. 00

2. 0D%

3. 30 $

161. 70

915- 00

2. 00%

165. 00

2. 00%

3-30 $

161- 70

390. 00

2- 00%

7- 80 $

382. 20

18. 30

S

0
0
0
0
D
a
o
o
0
0
0
D

S$

D
s

0
0
0
2019

0

12019 Model at 2018 Contract Price

Page Page

11 of of 2 2

s$

896. 70

Price Quote

Form ( PQF) -

Contract No.:

Motor Vehicles

25100000- 18- 1
o

TOTAL

COST:

OEM

1, 110. 60

34. 40

Identified
MSRP

Description

Aftermarket
Aft

S

OPTIONS
MSRP Discount

Total Discount

Option Total Cost with

Dollars

Applied Discount

I $##•##

5

5

TOTAL

COST:

IDENTIFIED

AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

Non -Identified

MSRP

Description

Aftermarket

MSRP Discount

Option Total Cost with

Total Discount

Applied

Dollars

Discount

Option( s)

SSB

Standard

TOW

5, 996. 00

Service Body 8' Steel $

Knapheide,

Reading

or Approved

5

5

5, 996. 00

5

Equivalent)
475. 00

Add Towing Package with Wiring $

475. 00

S

5

S

S

3

TOTAL

COST:

NOWDENTIRED
GRAND

AFTERMARKET

6, 471. 00

OPTIONS

TOTAL PER REPRESENTATIVE

32, 029. 64

MODEL

Additional Savings Off Contract Price Per Vehicle' ( Please provide detailed information

0. 00

in Vendor Comments)

2

Total Vehicles Quoted ( Drop Down)
PO GRAND

Vendor

Additional Savings for Example: Quantity,
for XYZ vehicle due to large order.

64, 059. 20

TOTAL

Dealer Special,

Customer

Picked Up Vehicle.

Ex: DMS

Comments:

Please confirm vehicle color. If no color is specified then the default is white.

Agency
Comments:

UNSPSC =

United Nations Standard

Products

Page Page 22 of of 22

and Services Commodity

Code

negotiated $

50 off of contract

price

Sanitation Replaces 77
Village vj
UNSPSCCCode

Line 9
Unit De Optiw

GA? BER
Jeep

M

tirgil,

repared for

Prepared bV:
911112018

Garber Ford, Inc.

Village of North Palm Beach

Ryan Davis
904)

Attn: Susanne Hachigian (

264- 2442

exr. 2350 FAX, ( 904) 284- 0054

3350 Hwy I7 Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

shachiuiar@vi11age- nob. or4
5611691- 3442

rdayi2agiEberautornWl-

corn

I appreciate your interest and the opportunity to quote. Prices are published by the State of Florida Department of
Management Services.( htip. Ildms. myflorida. comlcontract search/( category) I18). Purchasing contract number is
25100000- 18- 1, expiring November 16, 2019 for Motor Vehicles. Ifyou have any questions regarding this quote
please

call!

Included

100A

Equipment

995

Eng in e: 5. OLV8

44G

Transmission:

Y2

oxford White

AG

Medium Earth Gray, Vinyl 40/ 20/ 40 Front Seat

Included

153

Front

included

DEL

Delivery

2019

License

lCarryover

911112018428 PM

Group

100A Ba5c

1995

Electronic

10 - Speed

Automatic

39. 90)

1$

1, 955. 10

Included
Included

Plate

Bracket

Included

Pricing; 2019 Model at 2018 Contract Price

North Palm 19 Ford F- 150 Reg Cab XL 2wd 8ft Box Quote 9- 11- 18

Sanitation Replaces 77

QUOIAIIUN

PAR- KAN COMPANY

FA

2915 WEST

PAR- KAN

SILVER

STREHGTH. QUALITY. SERVICE.

900 SOUTH

LAKE,

Quote

IN 46982

No.:

PH ( 260) 352- 2141

Date:

FAX ( 260) 352- 0701

Page:

quotation

RF180914-

001

09/ 14/ 18
1

For

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
NORTH

PALM

BEACH,

FL

JACOLBY WASHINGTON

CLATOMER

ID

OUOT E LEADTIM E - VVEEK{ Sj

QUOTE TERMS

PHONE#

UNIT

PART ID
CUSTOMER PART NO

QUOTE QTY

3 YARD

EASY

PRICE

DESCRIPTION

EXIIZN!]

t!]

PRICE

DUMP

5, 995. 0000 $

1

5, 995. 00

ROLL - RITE TARP
1

FREIGHT

TO NORTH

PALM

920. 0000 $

920. 00

1, 200. 0000 $

1, 200. 00

BEACH

1

QUOTE

SPECIFICATIONS **

Total

8, 115. 00

Rayside Truck & Trailer

West Palm Beach, FL

561) 965- 7950

Fax: (

561) 965- 7998

Fed ID:

Tuesday, October 02, 2018

RAYSIVE

33415

Phone: (

TRUCK &

Valid Until

Wednesday,

October

17, 2018

TRAILER

59- 2335808

Attention:

24851

Quote No:

2983 S. Military Trail

Customer:

22070

Salesman:

PAUL—A

Jacolby Washington

VILLAGE

OF NORTH

PALM

BEACH

501 US Highway 1
North Palm Beach, FL
Phone:

33408

841- 3360

Please find attached your requested quote. If you need any additional information please feel free to contact me. If your
request included any detailed specifications there should an a marked -up set attached showing where we comply with the
specs and where we may have taken an exception.
Line:

Part ID:

10

RTTCCE- INST

Rev:

Quantity Ulm
1. 00

EA

List Price

Discount

12, 245. 00

8. 00%

Unit Price
11, 265. 00 $

Ext. Price

11, 265. 00

INSTALL 3YD EASY DUMP

Vehicle
Notes:

Info:

INTO

PICK

ROLL

RITE TARP

UP BED <
INCLUDED <

2019 FORD/ CHEVY PICK UP 8FT

3YD EASY DUMP, JACOLBY

Important Information:
Prices are subject to change after the expiration date of this quote. Specifications are subject to change at any time. For the latest details please
contact you customer service representative prior to ordering.

Thanks for the opportunity,
Rayside Truck & Trailer, Customer Service Team Member

Page:

1

Total Price $

11, 265. 00

Quotation
Quote
To:

Village of North Palm Beach
645 Prosperity Farms Road
North Palm Beach, FL 33408
United States

Quote

Number:

12381

Quote

Date:

09/ 24/ 18

Contact:
Expires:

10/ 24/ 18

Inquiry:

Customer:

VILLOFNPALMB

Terms:

Salesman:

SA

Phone:

Ship Via:

United Parcel Service

FAX:

FOB:

Romeoville

Delivery:

CC
561) 691- 3440

3 Days ARO

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this quote. All prices and term are valid for 30 days from the date of this quote.

Part Number
Item

1

Revision

Description

S3 -S01- 71

Price

Quantity
1$

13, 550. 00 /

EA

1$

2, 150. 00 /

EA

3 YARD FULL SIZE CONTAINER WITH 2 -BAR AMERICAN LIFTER
2

D49039
TARP KIT for 6 Yard Bed Mount Satellite

Total: $

By Jaime

15, 700. 00

Magdaleno

Perkins Manufacturing
Report Generated:

9/ 24/ 2018 11: 41: 27 AM

Page 1 of 1

Recreation

Price Quote Form ( PQF) - Motor Vehicles
Contract

STATE

AGENCIES

No.:

25100000-

Updated

12117

MUST

ALSO

Replaces

51

18- 1

SUBMIT

MP6301

Important - Contractor' s must select Vendor Name, Vehicle Group ( Drop Down), and Line No, for the sheet to work.
Formulas

are included

in the BLUE

and

YELLOW

shaded

columns (

auto- calculate)

Please complete only the unshaded white cells
Awarded
Vendor Name:

Dro

3380 HWY 17

City, State, Zip:

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

Person:

Ryan

Original Quote Date:
Phone #' s:

Information
Garber

Street Address:

Contact

Contractor

Down

Davis

8124118

Inc.

Fleet Sales

Title:
Revised

jEst. Delivery:

Quol

904. 264- 2442 ext.2350

Prima :

Ford,

9 0- 120 pays

Secondary:

Email Address:

rd av i s@ 9arberautomaII

com

904- 284-0054

Fax #:
Vendor Purchase

order No.

Requesting Customer Information
Agency/ Organixaticn

Village

Name:
Susanne Hachigian

Contact Person:
Phone #'

Title:

of North Palm Beach

IPublic Works Manager
561) 691- 3442

s:

Email Address:

shachtgian@village-

npb. org

Fax #:

Secondary Customer Contact:
Contact

tional

Title:

Person:

Phone #' s:
Email Address:
Fax #:
UNSPSC
Commodity

Vehicle Group ( Drop Down)

Code

Group 3. Minivans

25101505

Representative

Model

Line No.

Sub Group

53

Or Vans

Sub- Group
Base

Description

Vehicle

MSRP

Description

OEM Option

Price

OEM Options Discount %

25, 691. 00

2018 Ford Transit Cargo Van T- 150 148" Med Rf 8600 GVWR Sliding RH Dr ( E2c) $
Manufacturer' s

B: VAN, CARGO

OEM

Options

Discount

2. 00%

TotaE Discount

Option Total Cost with

Dollars

Io

Applied

Code s)
S

0

101A

Order Code 101 A

99M

Engine: 3. 7L Ti- VCT V6 - ina SEiC capability $

0

446

Transmission:

0

YZ

Oxford

VK

Pewter, Vinyl Front Bucket Seats $

0

153

Front

Bracket $ -

0

T& D

Temporary Tag and Delivery $

0

6- Speed Automatic

w1OD &

Select5hA $

0

White $

License

Plate

0
0
0

2019

2019 Model at 2018 Contract Price

0

S

0

5

0
0

5

0
0
0

5

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
Page Page 22 ofof 22

S

Discount

Price Quote Form ( PQF) - Motor Vehicles
Contract

No.:

25100000-

18- 1
a

TOTAL

COST:

Identified

MSRP Discount

MSRP

Description

Aftermarket

5

s

S

OEM OPTIONS

Option

Total Discount

Total

Applied

Dollars

Cost with

Discount

Option( s)

TOTAL COST:

IDENTIFIED AFTERMARKET

MSRP

Description
p

Aftermarket

5

OPTIONS

Non -Identified

MSRP Discount

Total Discount

oti

Dollars

Option

Total

Cost with

Applied Discount

Option{ s}

S

S
S-

S
S

S

TOTAL COST:

NON - IDENTIFIED
GRAND

TOTAL

AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

PER REPRESENTATIVE

25, 591. 0

MODEL

0. 00

Additional Savings Off Contract Price Per Vehicle* { Please provide detailed information in Vendor Comments}

1

Total Vehicles Quoted [ Drop Down]
PO GRAND

25, 591. 00

TOTAL

Additional Savings for Example: Quantity, Dealer Special, Customer Picked Up Vehicle.
Vendor

for XYZ vehicle

Ex: DMS negotiated $ 50 off of contract

due to large order.

Comments:

Please confirm vehicle color. If no color is specified then the default is white.
Agency
Comments:

UNSPSC =

United

Nations Standard

Products

Page Page 22 of of 22

and Services Commodity

Code

price

c: f7 Replaces 12 and 2 transfers

Price Quote Form ( PQF) - Motor Vehicles
Contract No.:
Updated

STATE AGENCIES

25100000-

18- 1

12117

MUST ALSO SUBMIT MP6301

Important - Contractor' s must select Vendor Name, Vehicle Group ( Drop Down), and Line No, for the sheet to work.
Formulas

are included

in the BLUE and YELLOW shaded columns ( auto -calculate)

Please complete only the unshaded white cells
Awarded
Vendor

Name:

3380

City, State, Zip:

Green

HWY 17
Cove Springs,

Contact Person:
Quote

Information
Garber Ford, Inc.

Street Address:

Original

Contractor

Drop down)

Ran

Date:

Phone #' s:

8124118

FL 32043
Davis

1

Title:
Revised

Quote

Fleet Sales

804- 264. 2442 ext. 2350

Primary:

lEst. Delivery:

Date:

90- 120 Da

s

Secondary:

Email Address:

rdavis

Fax M

arberautomall-

mm

904- 284- 0054

Vendor

Purchase

Order

No.

Requesting
AgencylOrganization

Customer Information

Name:

Village of North Palm Beach

Contact Person:

Susanne

Hachigian

Title:

Public Works Manager

Phone #' s:

561 ) 691- 3442

Email Address:

shachigian@village- npb. org

Fax #:

Seconda ry Customer Contact: ( opt! on a 1
Contact

Person:

Title:

Phone #' s:
Email Address-.
Fax #:
UNSPSC

Vehicle

Comm oditV Code
25101507

Line No.

Group ( Drop Down)

Sub Group

Group 4; Light Trucks or Sport Utility Vehicles, Sub -Groups

Sub -Group A: SPORT UTILITY VEHICLE,

A- 13 Sports Utility Vehicle
Representative

2048

Model Description

Ford Escape

Base Vehicle Price

OEM Options Discount%

18, 999. 00

FWD 4dr S ( UOF) $

2WD

35. 00%

Manufacturer' s
MSRP

Description

OEM Option

OEM Options

Total Discount

Discount I

Dollars

Option

Code( s)
100A

Equipment

0

Grou p 1OOA $

Engine: 2. 5L i - VCT - inc: flex - fuel capability $

0

5

Transmission

0

S

0

5

6 -Speed Automatic w/ SelectShift $

YZ

Oxford

7B

Chromite

153

Front License Plate Bracket

S

0

T& D

Temporary

S

0

White $

Tag and Delivery

5

0

Gray/ Chrcl Black, Cloth Front Bucket Seats $

0
0
0
0
2019

2019 Model

at 2018 Contract

Price

S

0
0

5

S-

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5

0

3

0

S

0

S

0
0
Page Page 11 of of 22

S

0

Total Cost with

Applied Discount

Price Quote Farm ( PQ F) Contract

No.:

Motor Vehicles

25100000-

18- 1
o

TOTAL

COST:

OEM OPTIONS

Identified
MSRP

Description

Aftermarket

MSRP Discount

Total Discount

k

Dollars

Option( s)

Option

Total

Cost with

Applied Discount

5
TOTAL

COST:

IDENTIFIED

AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

Non - Identified
Aftermarket

MSRP

Description

MSRP Discount

Total Discount

Option Total Cost with

Dollars

Applied Discount

Option( s)

5

5

S

5

TOTAL

COST:

NON - IDENTIFIED
GRAND

TOTAL

AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

PER REPRESENTATIVE

MODEL

18, 999. 00

Additional Savings Off Contract Price Per Vehicle" ( Please provide detailed information in Vendor Comments)
Total Vehicles

Quoted ( Drop Down)

PO GRAND

Additional
Vendor

Savings

for Example:

0, 00

Quantity,

3

TOTAL

5$, 997. 00

Dealer Special,

Customer

Picked

Up Vehicle.

Ex: DMS negotiated $ 50 off of contract price

for XYZ vehicle due to large order.

Comments:

Please confirm vehicle color. If no color is specified then the default is white.
Agency
Comments:

UNSPSC = United Nations Standard Products and Services Commodity Code
Page Page 22 ofof 22

Price Quote

Farm [ PQF] -

Contract No.:

ncL.+rdGCS

Motor Vehicles

25100000-

204

18- 1

Updated 12/ 17
STATE AGENCIES MUST ALSO SUBMIT MP63O1

Important - Contractor' s must select Vendor Name, Vehicle Group ( Drop Down), and Line No. for the sheet to work.
Formulas

are included

in the BLUE

and

YELLOW

shaded

columns (

auto- calculate)

Please complete only the unshaded white cells
Awarded
Vendor Name:(

Information
Garber Ford, Inc.

Street Address:

3380 HWY 17

City, State, Zip:

Green

Contact

Contractor

Drop Down
Cove Springs,

Person:

FL 32043

Ran Davis

Original Quote Date:
Phone #' s:

8124118

1

Title:

Fleet Sales

Revised Quote Date:

904- 264- 2442 ext. 2350

Primary:

Est

90- 120 Days

Delive :

Secondary:

Email Address:

rdavis

Fax #:

garberautomall. com

904- 284- 0054

Vendor Purchase Order No.

Requesting Customer information
AgencyfOrganization Name:
Contact

Village

Person:

Susanne

Hachigian

Title:

of North

Palm

Beach

Public Works Manager

Phone #' s:

561j 691. 3442

Email Address:

shachigian@village-

nph. org

Fax #:

Secondary Customer Contact: ( optional)
Contact

Title:

Person:

Phone #' s:
Email Address:
Fax #:
UNSPSC

Group 4: Light Trucks or Sport Utility Vehicles;

25101507

Line No.

Vehicle Group ( Drop Down)

Commodity Code

A- B Sports
Representative

Sub- Groups

Sub Group

4

Sub- Group A: SPORT

Utility Vehicle

Model Description

Base Vehicle Price

s
Description

OEM O
Option

VEHICLE,

MSRP

GEM Options

2WD

OEM Options Discount %

22,( 134. 00

2018 Ford Escape FWD 4dr BE ( UOG) $
Manufacturer'

UTILITY

2. 001

Option

TotalDiscount

Total

Cost with

s)

Dollars
Applied Discount
Discount°%
Code(

200A

Equipment

99D

Engine:

0

Group 200A $

Transmission:

6- Speed

S

0

1. 5L EcoBoost $
Automatic

0

w/ SelectShift $

RR

Ru by Red Metallic Tinted Clea rcoat $

395. 00

KL

Medium Light Stone, Heated Cloth Front Bucket Seats $ -

0

153

Front License

0

T& D

Temporary Tag and Delivery $

Plate Bracket $

7. 90 $

2. 00%

0

387. 10

S

0
0

5

0
4
2019

0

2019 Model at 2018 Contract Price

0
5-

0
0
0

5

0

S

0
0
0
o
S

0
0
0
0

S

G
G
5
0
Page Page 11 of of 22

S

Price Quote Form ( PQ F) - Motor VehiGies
Contract
TOTAL

COST:

OEM

No.:

25100000- 18- 1

OPTIONS

387. 10

7. 90

Identified
MSRP

Description

Aftermarket

MSRP Discount

Option

Total Discount

rmarkJ

Total

Applied

Dollars

Option

Cost with

Discount

S

5

TOTAL COST:

IDENTIFIED AFTERMARKET OPTIONS

Non - Identified
MSRP

escription

Aftermarket

MSRP Discount

Total Discount

Option Total Cost with

Dollars

Applied Discount

Option( s)

5
5
5

5

TOTAL COST:

NON - IDENTIFIED

AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

GRAND TOTAL PER REPRESENTATIVE
Additional

Savings

Off Contract

Price Per Vehicle" ( Please

provide

22, 421. 10

MODEL

detailed

information

in Vendor Comments)

0. 00
1

Total Vehicles Quoted ( Drop Down)
PO GRAND

22, 421. 10

TOTAL

Additional Savings for Example: Quantity, Dealer Special, Customer Picked Up Vehicle.
Vendor

Ex: DMS negotiated $ 50 off of contract price

for XYZ vehicle due to large order.

Comments:

Please

confirm

vehicle

color.

If no color is specified

then the default

is white.

Agency
Comments:

UNSPSC =

United

Nations

Standard

Products

Page Page 22 of of 22

and Services

Commodity

Code

Police Replaces 204

Sales Quote
DANA SAFE' T' Y SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

NC 27407

Telephone:

800- 845- 0445

NORTH

PALM BEACH

POLICE

Contact:

NORTH

GEORGE

HACHIGIAN

PALM

Contact:
Telephone:

Ship Via

06/ 21/ 18

GROUND

Customer

F.O. B.
FOB DESTINATION

BEACH

EDWIN

GEORGE

DEPT

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

SALGADO-

npb. com
Payment

PO Number

Ordered
Miami

NET 30

85- 801264634IC- 6

HATCH
Unit

Tax

Item Number 1 Description

Price

Quantit y
l

Y

ETSA461BPP
SOI 404 Series Handheld

Y

1'

299. 00

139. 0000

139. 04

0. 4000

0. 00

100. 0000

200. 00

104. 0000

2.08. 00

MIAM

ETSS IOOCBKFV BP
SOI 2016+

299. 0000

100N SPEAKER
Warehouse:

1

Price

MIAM

ETSS100N
SOI SERIES

Extended

Siren

Warehouse:
1

Method

Resale Number

By

Approve

1

POLICE

PIUT UNMARKED

Salesperson

EDWIN SALGADO

1

NPBPD

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

npb. com

Entered By

1

No.

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

561- 848- 2525

Quote Date

Q
Quantityy

Customer

560 US HIGHWAY I

I

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

Order

248985- A

Ship To

DEPT

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Telephone:

No.

71

Bill To

560 US HIGHWAY

Quote

Sales

FORD

PI UTILITY

SPEAKER

BUMPER

MNT

BRACKET
Warehouse:
100CI100IJ100N

MIAM

Series Speaker Bracket ( only - no drill) for the Ford PI Utility

2016 - 2017, Bumper Mount

2

2

Y

SFIONJ

WEC SPITFIRE ION DASHIDECK,
Warehouse.

SPLIT RED/ BLUE

MIAM

2) FRONT WINDSHIELD

2

2

Y

ENFSGS4BRW

SOI SGL NFORCE DECKIGRiLL 18 LED LT
BLUE/ RED/ WHITE
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) REAR WINDOW

Print Date

06/ 21/ 18

Print Time

01: 20: 08 PM

Page No.

I

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

NC 27407

Customer

Telephone: 800- 845- 0405

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT
NORTH

PALM

Contact:

Telephone:

560 US HIGHWAY I

1

BEACH,

NORTH

FL 33408

PALM

Contact:

GEORGE HACHIGIAN

BEACH,

GEORGE

RO. B.

Ship Via

06/ 21/ 18

GROUND

Customer

Entered By

Ordered By

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

HATCH

NET 34
Resale Number
85- 8012646341C-

Item Number 1 Description

2

Y

Price

ENFDGSIRB
SOI DUAL NFORCE

DECK/ GRILL
Warehouse:

6

Extended

Unit
Tax

2

Payment Method

P1UT UNMARKED

FOB DESTINATION

EDWIN SALGADO

Quantity

npb. com

PO Number

Salesperson

Approve

HACHIGIAN

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

E- mail: ghachigian@village- npb. com
Quote Date

Order

FL 33408

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

561- 848- 2525

Quantity

NPBPD

No.

Ship To

Bill To

560 US HIGHWAY

248985- A

Sales Quote No.

Price

158. 0000

316. 00

92. 0000

184. 04

92. 0000

368. 00

5. 5000

22. 00

72. 0004

144. 00

6 LED LT RED/ BLUE.

MIAM

2) REAR SIDE CARGO WINDOWS

2

2

Y

EMPS2STS5RBA
SOI MPOWER

FASCIA

4" 1 &

LED STUD

MNT

RED/ BLUE/ AMBER
Warehouse:
2) FRONT

4

4

Y

MIAM

GRILL

EMPS2STS5RBW
SOI MPOWER

FASCIA

4" 1 &

LED

STUD

MNT

RED/ BLUE/ WHITE
Warehouse:
2) REAR

MIAM

SIDE DOORS

2) ABOVE LIC. PLATE

4

4

Y

PMP2BKDGAJ
SOI mPOWER

90 DEGREE

MOUNTING

Warehouse:

BRACKET,

BLACK

MIAM

2) REAR SIDE DOOR BRACKETS
2) ABOVE

2

2

Y

LIC. PLATE

BRACKETS

ENFFTSSMS6I

SOI NForce FIT Surface Mount LED Red/ Blue
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) FRONT CORNER LED' S

Print Date

06/ 21/ 18

Print Time

01: 20: 08 PM

Page No.

2

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4849 KOGER

BLVD

GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Telephone:

Sales Quote

PALM BEACH

560 US HIGHWAY

POLICE

Ship To
NORTH

DEPT

I

Contact:

GEORGE

NORTH

Ship Via

46/ 21/ 18

GROUND

Entered By

Quantity
4

BEACH,

FL 33408

npb. com
Payment Method

Customer PO Number

FOB DESTINATION

NET 30

PIUT UNMARKED

Salesperson

Resale Plumber

Ordered By

85- 801264634IC-

HATCH

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

EDWIN SALGADO

DEPT

1

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

npb. com
F.O. B.

Quote Date

Quantity

PALM

POLICE

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

Approve

BEACH

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Order

PALM

560 US HIGHWAY

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Telephone:

NPBPD

Customer No.

800- 845- 0405

Bill To
NORTH

248985- A

No.

Unit
Tax

4

Y

Item Number 1 Description

Price

ELUC2SO10B

6

Extended
Price

58. 0000

232. 00

29. 0000

29. 00

34. 0000

34. 00

290. 0000

290. 00

290. 0000

290. 00

65. 0000

65. 00

SOI 10- 16V UNIV UNDERCOVER LED INSERT BLUE
Warehouse:

MIAM

4) REAR CORNER LEUS

1

I

Y

ETIFSS- SP
SOI SS HEADLIGHT

FLASHER
Warehouse:

SELECT A -PATTERN
MIAM

1) HLF

I

I

Y

ETFBSSN- P
SOI 100%

SOLID

STATE

TAILLIGHT

Warehouse:

FLASHER (

12 - WIRE)

MIAM

1) TLF

I

1

Y

ENL1607- L
SOI 60" NLINE

RUNNING

LIGHT

Warehouse:

RED/ BLUE

LEFT CABLE

MIAM

10 FLASH PATTERNS - NO CONTROLLER REQUIRED
arvasata•

1

I

Y

rr* Oarrfaaasaaaaaaa**

rwvr*

SOI 60" NL1NE

RUNNING

LIGHT

Warehouse:
1

l

Y

SUPPLY

750 WATT
Warehouse:

Print Date

Page No.

tt

RED/ BLUE

RIGHT

MIAM

TH750
ALL POWER

Print Time

rt* rws•*

ENL160. I- R

THOR

INVERTER

MIAM

06/ 21/ 18
01: 20: 08 PM
3

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Bill To

Ship To
NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

I

Contact:

GEORGE

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@villageQuote Date

Ship Via

06/ 21/ 18

GROUND

npb. com

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

FOB DESTINATION
Salesperson

Ordered By

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

HATCH

Quantity

Quantity

Tax
1

i

I

Y

Payment

Item Number /

Description

SHOP - MIAMI

Method

NET 30

PIUT UNMARKED

Entered By
Approve

npb. com

Customer PO Number

F. O. B.

EDWIN SALGADO
Order

I

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Telephone:

NPBPD

Customer No.

800- 845- 0405

560 US HIGHWAY

248985- A

Sales Quote No.

Resale Number
85- 801264634IC-

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

125. 0000

125. 00

1. 080. 0000

1, 080. 00

100 AMP RESETTABLE BREAKER, 6 GANG FUSE PANEL
Warehouse:
2) EXTENSION
TERMINAL

l

1

N

CABLE

MIAM

FOR POWER

INVERTER

BOXES TO BE MOUNTED

AND TERMINAL

INSTALL
DSS INSTALLATION

OF EQUIPMENT
Warehouse:

INSTALLATION

TO BE PERFORMED

DSS LOCATION.

CUSTOMER

SAME UPON COMPLETION
kkk•*

ekkkk**

MIAM
AT THE

TO PROVIDE

VEHICLE AT THE APPOINTED

tkk* kk# v****

BOXES.

ON FRONT CONSOLE.

TIME & PICK- UP

OF THE INSTALL.
akkkkst**

kk**

aa

LABOR RATE AS PER MIAMI CONTRACT @ $ 64. 00 PER HOUR
LABOR HOURS PER VEHICLE: 18. 0
k 24 8 P[ UT, UNMARKED(

ADMIN

Approved

By:
Approve All Items &

Ouote Good

Print Date

06/ 21/ 18

Print Time

01: 20: 08 PM

Page No.

Quantities

for 30 Days

Subtotal

4, 025. 00

Freight

0. 00

Order Total

4, 025. 00

4

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO

Police Replaces 232 &

233

Price Quote Form ( PQF) - Motor Vehicles
Contract iNo_- 25100000- 18- 1

STATE

AGENCIES

Updated

12117

MUST

ALSO

SUBMIT

MP6301

Important - Contractor' s must select Vendor Name, Vehicle Group ( Drop Down), and Line No. for the sheet to work.
Formulas are included in the BLUE and YELLOW shaded columns ( auto -calculate)

Please complete only the unshaded white cells
Awarded
Vendor

Name: (

Dro

3380 HWY

City, State, Zip:

Green

Cove

Springs,

FL 32043

Ryan Davis
8! 24118

Original Quote Date:

Fleet Sales

TItle:
Revised

I

quote Date:

904- 264- 2442 ext. 2350

Primary:

Inc.

17

Person:

Phone #' s:

Information
Garber Ford,

Street Address:

Contact

Contractor

Down)

90- 120 Days

elivery:

Secondary:

Email Address:

rdavis

Fax #:

arberautomall.

com

904- 284- 0054

Vendor

Purchase

Order No.

Requesting Customer Information
Agency/ Organization
Contact

Village of North Palm Beach

Name:
Susanne Hachigian

Person:

Title:

Public Works

Manager

561) 691- 3442

Phone #' s:
Email Address:

shachigian@village-

npb. org

Fax #:

Seconds ry Customer Contact:
Contact

tional

Title:

Person:

Phone #' s:
Email Address:
Y

Fax #:
UNSPSC

Group 4 Light Trucks or Sport Utility Vehicles;
A -B Sports Utility Vehicle

25101507

Representative

2018 Ford
Manufacturer'

Sub - Groups

14

Sub - Group A: SPORT
Base Vehicle

Model Description

Explorer

MSRP

Description

UTILITY

Price

VEHICLE,

OEM Options

2WD

OEM Options Discount %

25, 499. 00

5

FWD 4dr Base ( K7B)

s

OEM Q
Option

Sub Group

Line Nv.

Vehicle Group ( Drop Down)

Commodity Code

25. 00%

Option

Total Discount

Total Cost with

s)

Dollars
Applied Discount
Discount Io
Code(

100A

0

998

Equipment Group 100A $
Engine: 3. 5L Ti -VCT V6 - inc: Flexible Fuel Vehicle ( FFV)

5

0

44J

Transmission:

5

0

S

0

5

0

FTIUX

1)

6 -Speed

Blue Metallic; (

1)

SelectShift

Automatic

Ingot Silver Metallic

7L

Medium Stone, Cloth Bucket Seats

153

Front License

T& D

Temporary

0

Plate Bracket $

0

Tag and Delivery $

5

0
0
0
0
2G19

2019 Model at 2018 Contract

0

Price

0
0
0
0
0

o
D
0
D
o
0

0
0
0
0
PagePage 11 ofof 22

5

Price Quote Form ( PQF) - Motor Vehicles
Contract

No.:

25100000- 18- 1
o

TOTAL COST:

OEM OPTIONS

Identified

MSRP

description

Aftermarket

MSRP

Discount

Total

Option Total

Discount

Cost with

Applied Discount

Dollars

Option( s)

S

S

TOTAL COST:

IDENTIFIED AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

Non -Identified

MSRP

Description

Aftermarket

MSRP

Discount

Total

Option

Discount

Total Cost with

Applied

Dollars

Discount

Option( s)-

S

5

5

S
TOTAL

COST-

NON - IDENTIFIED
GRAND

TOTAL

AFTERMARKET

OPTIONS

PER REPRESENTATIVE

25, 499. 00

MODEL

0. 00

Additional Savings Off Contract Price Per Vehicle ( Please provide detailed information in Vendor Comments)

2

Total Vehicles Quoted ( Drop Down)
PO GRAND

50, 998. 00

TOTAL

Additional Savings for Example: Quantity, Dealer Special, Customer Picked Up Vehicle.
Vendor

Ex: DMS

for XYZ vehicle due to large order.

Comments:

Please confirm vehicle color. If no color is specified then the default is white.

Agency
Comments:

UNSPSC = United Nations Standard Products and Services Commodity Code
Page Page 2 2 ofof 2 2

negotiated $

50 off of contract

price

Police Replaces 232 & 233

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER

BLVD

GREENSBORO,

NC 27407

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

NPBPD

Customer No.
Telephone:

800- 845- 0405

Ship To

Bill To
NORTH

PALM BEACH

560 US HIGHWAY

POLICE

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

I

Contact:

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

GEORGE HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525
E- mail: ghachigian@villageQuote Date

FOB DESTINATION

EDWIN

EDWIN SALGADO
Order

Approve

Quantity

Quantity

SALGADO-

Y

I

Y

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

250. 0000

250. 00

115. 0000

115. 00

26. 0000

26. 00

190. 0000

190. 00

125. 0000

500. 00

27. 4000

108. 00

265. 0000

265. 00

CONTROLLER

Warehouse:
1

Resale Number
85- 80125463410-

HATCH

Miami

Method

NET 30

BLUEPRIN

ENGCC01241
SOI 100 AMP CENTRAL

Payment

Ordered By

Item Number J Description

Tax
1

1

PIUT PATROL

Salesperson

By

npb. com

Customer PO Number

F.O. B.

GROUND

Entered

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

npb. com

Ship Via

06/ 20/ 18

1

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

MIAM

ENGCP18001

SOI BLUEPRINT CONTROL PANEL W/ BAIL BRACKET
Warehouse:
1

I

Y

SOI BLUEPRINT

CENTRAL CONTROLLER
Warehouse:

1

1

Y

MIAM

ENGHNK01

HARNESS KIT

MIAM

ENGLNK002

SOI BLUEPRINT LINK FOR 15- 18 F- 150, 16- 18 PIUT
Warehouse:
4

4

Y

MIAM

ENGND04101

SOI REMOTE NODE
Warehouse:
4

4

Y

SOI BLUEPRINT

REMOTE NODE HARNESS KIT
Warehouse:

1

I

Y

MIAM

ENGHNK02

MIAM

ENGSA07152

SOI BLUEPRINT 200 WATT DUAL TONE SIREN AMP
Warehouse:

Print Date

06/ 21/ 18

Print Time

12: 52: 58 PM

Page No.

MIAM

l

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

PALM

BEACH

POLICE

PALM

Contact:

560 US HIGHWAY

BEACH,

No.

NPBPD

GEORGE

Quote Date

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

1 ACHIGIAN

Telephone:

Salesperson

BLUEPRIN

Resale Number

HATCH

85- 801264634IC- 6

Item Number 1 Description

Tax

Quantity
2

Y

Method

NET 30

Unit

Approve

2

Payment

Ordered By

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

SALGADO

npb. com

PO Number

PIUT PATROL

FOB DESTINATION

GROUND

EDWIN

Customer

F.O. B.

Entered By

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

Ship Via

06/ 20/ 18

1

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

FL 33408

E- maiI: ghachigian( d) village- npb. com

Quantity

Customer

Ship To

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

Order

248960- B

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY 1
NORTH

No.

800- 845- 0405

Bill To
NORTH

Quote

Sales

Price
139. 0000

ETSS l 00N

Extended
Price
278. 00

SOI 100W SPEAKER WITH UNIVERSAL BRACKET
Warehouse:

MIAM

SPEAKER TO BE MOUNTED BEHIND GRILL
2

2

Y

ETSS 100CBKFV-

BP

0. 0000

0. 00

730, 0000

730. 00

79. 0000

158. 00

58. 0000

232. 00

SOI 2016+ FORD PI UTILITY SPEAKER BUMPER MNT
BRACKET
Warehouse:
1

1

Y

MIAM

ENFWBFS

SOI NFORCE INTERIOR WINDSHIELD
Warehouse:
Ford ExplorerlPI

LIGHTBAR- DUO

MIAM

Utility ( 2011- 17) Split Front

DRV) [ D] 211D1211D121jD12E[

IR_ WIIR Wll

D121ID12[ ID121jD] 21( PAS)

WIIRWjjB_ WIIB_ WjjB_ WIIB_' Wj

DSC wl Breakout Box ( Included)
Y

ENFFTSSMS9BRW

SOI NFORCE FIT 9 LED SURFACE MOUNT ( BIRIW)
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) FRONT CORNER LED' S
4

4

Y

ELUC3H010E

SOI UNIV LiNDERCOVER

LED INSERT, 5 WIRE

BLUE/ WHITE
Warehouse: MIAM
4) REAR CORNER LED' S

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
2

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Customer

800- 845- 0405

PALM

BEACH

560 US HIGHWAY
NORTH

POLICE

Contact:
Telephone:

560 US HIGHWAY

GEORGE

Contact:

HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

Ship Via

06/ 20/ 18

GROUND

F O. B.

Order

Approve

Quantity

Quantity
2

Y

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Payment

Resale Number
85- 801264634IC-

HATCH

Miami

Item Number 1 Description

ENT3B3RBW

Method

NET 30

BLUEPRIN

Ordered By

SALGADO-

SOI INTERSECTOR

npb. com

PO Number

PIUT PATROL

Salesperson
EDWIN

Tax
2

Customer

FOB DESTINATION

Entered By

GEORGE

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

npb. com

SALGADO

1

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

FL 33408

Quote Date

EDWIN

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEP l'

1

PALM BEACH,

NPBPD

No.

Ship To

Bill To
NORTH

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

128. 0000

256. 00

12. 0000

24. 00

92. 0000

184. 00

4. 5000

9. 00

92. 0000

1. 288. 00

18 - LED SFC MNT, BLK HSG

REDIBLUEIWHITE
Warehouse:
2) UNDER

2

2

Y

MISC
SOI UNDER

MIRROR

BRACKET

Warehouse:
2

2

Y

MIAM

SIDE VIEW MIRROR

MIAM

EMPS2QMS5RBW
SOI MPOWER

FASCIA

4" 1 &

LED QUICK

MNT

REDJBLUEIWHITE
Warehouse:
2) FRONT FACING

2

2

Y

MIAM

ON SIDE VIEW MIRROR, AT 45° ANGLE

PMP2WDG05B

SOI MPOWER 4" 5 DEGREE WEDGE BLACK
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) FRONT FACING ON SIDE VIEW MIRROR, AT 45° ANGLE BRACKETS

14

14

Y

EMPS2STS5RBW
SOI MPOWER

FASCIA

4 " 1&

LED STUD

MNT

WHITE
RED/BLUE/
Warehouse:
2) FRONT

MIAM

FOG LIGHT AREA

2) REAR SIDE DOORS
8) REAR UPPER SPOILER
2) REAR

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

LIC. PLATE

06/ 21/ 18
12. 52: 581' M
3

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Ship To

Bill To
NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

NORTH

560 US HIGHWAY

560 US HIGHWAY

I

GEORGE

Telephone:

06/ 20/ 18

GROUND

Order

Approve

BEACH,

2

Y

Payment Method
NET 30

Salesperson

Ordered By

Resale Number

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

HATCH

85- 80126463410- 6

Item Number

Tax

2

npb. com

BLUEPRIN

1 Description

Quantity

Quantity

FL 33408

561- 848- 2525

PIUT PATROL

FOB DESTINATION

SALGADO

DEPT

I

Customer PO Number

F. O. B.

Entered By
EDWIN

POLICE

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

E- mail: ghachigian@village- npb. com

Ship Via

PALM

BEACH

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Quote Date

PALM

NORTH

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Contact:

NPBPD

Customer No.

800- 845- 0405

Telephone:

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

PMP2BKDGA]

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

5. 5040

11. 00

49. 0000

49- 00

18. 0000

18- 00

SOI mPOWER 90 DEGREE MOUNTING BRACKET, BLACK
Warehouse:
2) REAR SIDE DOORS

I

1

Y

MIAM

BRACKETS

PMP2RSBUV4
SOI MPOWER

2015+

PIUT

SPOILER

Warehouse:

BRK 4 MOD KIT ( PAIR)

MIAM

1) UPPER REAR SPOILER BRACKET
1

1

Y

PMP2BRK2LPV

SOI MPOWER FASCIA VERT. LIC PLATE BRACKET
Warehouse:
1)

2

2

Y

REAR

LIC- PLATE

MIAM

BRACKET

EMPS I QMS4RBA
SOI MPOWER

FASCIA

3"

12 - LED QUICK

82, 0000

164- 00

182. 0000

364. 00

MNT

REDIBLUEIAMBER
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) UNDER REAR HATCH DOOR
2

2

Y

ENFDGS3ED

SOI DUAL NFORCE DECKJGRILL
Warehouse:
2) REAR CARGO

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

12 LED LT BIW RIW

MIAM

SIDE WINDOWS

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
4

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY,
4849 KOGER

GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

INC

BLVD

NC 27447

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

Customer

800- 845- 0405

NPBPD

No.

Ship To

Bill To
NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

560 US HIGHWAY

1

Contact:

Telephone:

GEORGE

HACHIGIAN

Contact:
Telephone:

561- 848- 2525

Ship Via

06/ 20/ 18

GROUND

F.O. B.

SALGADO

Order

Approve

Quantity

Quantity
1

Y

Payment

Ordered By
HATCH

Item Number 1 Description

L

Method

NET 30

PIUT PATROL BLUEPRIN

Salesperson

ENL1601-

npb. com

PO Number

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

Tax

l

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Customer

FOB DESTINATION

Entered By
EDWIN

GEORGE

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

E- mail: ghachigian@village- nph. com
Quote Date

1

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Resale Number
85- 801264634IC-

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

290. 0000

290. 00

290. 0000

290. 00

115. 0000

115. 00

520. 0000

520. 00

SOI 60" NLINE RUNNING LIGHT RED/ BLUE LEFT CABLL
Warehouse:
1)

l

1

Y

RUNNER

MIAM

LIGHTS

ENL160J- R

SOI 60" NLINE RUNNING LIGHT REDBLUE RIGHT
Warehouse:
1 ) RUNNER

1

1

Y

MIAM

LIGHTS

60CREGCS

WEC 6" ROUND 12 -DIODE RED/ WHITE DOME LIGHT
Warehouse:

MIAM

1 ) REAR HATCH DOOR

1

1

Y

7170- 0166- 04
GJ FORD

2012+

PI UTILITY

CONSOLE

Warehouse:
PACKAGE

INCLUDES

FLIP - UP ARMREST,

CONSOLE,

MONGOOSE

KIT

MIAM

DUAL

CUPHOLDER,

MOTION

ATTACHMENT,

AND THE FOLLOWING EQUIPMENT MOUNTING BRACKETS.
1]
l)
l}

ALSO INCLUDES ANY BLANK FILLER PANELS NECESSARY TO
COMPLETE
e!!

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

THE INSTALLATION.

estilttts#•

tt*#*kk***

kk*#

r+#**#!#

e!!

e!

littlti!

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
5

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

NC 27407

Customer

Telephone: 800- 845- 0405

560 US HIGHWAY
PALM

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT
560 US HIGHWAY

1

BEACH,

Contact:

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

Salesperson
EDWIN

EDWIN SALGADO
Approve

Quantity

Quantity
I

I

Y

Payment

Resale Number
85- 80126463410-

HATCH

Item Number 1 Description
16648

Method

NET 30

BLUEPRIN

Ordered By

SALGADO- Miami

Tax

npb. com

PO Number

PIUT PATROL

FOB DESTINATION

GROUND

Order

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Customer

F. O. B.

Ship Via

Entered By

GEORGE

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

E- mail: ghachigian[-]avillage- npb. com

06/ 20/ 18 j

I

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

FL 33408

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

Quote Date

NPBPID

No.

Ship To

Bill To

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT
NORTH

248960- 8

Sales Quote No.

6

Unit

Extended.

Price

Price

35. 0000

35. 00

12. 0000

24. 00

175. 0000

t75. 00

170. 0000

170. 00

GJ KUSSMAULAUXIUSB PASSTHRU 6' EXT MODULE
Warehouse:
2

2

Y

MIAM

7160- 0063

GJ 12V OUTLET RECEPTACLE ONLY
Warehouse:

MIAM

FITS IN STANDARD 12 V OUTLET RECEPTACLE
KNOCKOUT

IN PANEL OR CONSOLE.

aatatataataaa##

I

I

Y

oak*#

wr##**:**

w****

atraeattaaaaak###

trttteaa

7t60- 0250

GJ NOTEPAD V UNIVERSAL

COMPUTER

Warehouse:

CRADLE

MIAM

WILL ADJUST FOR COMPUTERS WITH THE FOLLOWING:
WIDTH -

10, 62 TO 165 INCHES

THICKNESS - UP TO 1. 50 INCHES
DEPTH -

9. 00 TO 12. 38 INCHES

W# y## tttlttaaattaat##ak## WWY# WWYatttttatttttaa# k#

REPLACES
tvttaata#

1

I

Y

NP- NOTEPAD4- XL
aaa##*

r#**

vr:

wrtttttstaasaaaasa***

ressrs

7160- 1851

GJ FORD PI UTILITY REAR EQUIPMENT
Warehouse:

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

TRAY

MIAM

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
6

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

an Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER

BLVD

GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

PIC 27407

Customer

800- 845- 0405

PALM

BEACH POLICE

560 US HIGHWAY
NORTH

PALM

Contact:

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

1

BEACH,

Contact:

GEORGE HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

GROUND

EDWIN

EDWIN SALGADO
Order

Approve

Quantity

Quantity

SALGADO-

Payment

PO Number

NET 30

85- 80126463410-

HATCH

Miami

I

Y

tem Number 1 Description

Price

PK04191TU12SCA
SMC

IOS- RP PARTITION -

CTD POLY WIXMTL

Method

Resale Number

Ordered By
Unit

Tax

1

npb. com

PIUT PATROL BLUEPRIN

FOB DESTINATION
Salesperson

Entered By

HACHIGiAN

561- 848- 2525

Customer

F.O. B.

06/ 20/ 18

GEORGE

E- mail: ghachigian@Village-

E- mail: ghachigian( 7avillage- npb. com

Ship Via

I

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

FL 33408

Quote Date

NPBPD

No.

Ship To

Sill To
NORTH

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

6

Extended
Price

630. 0000

630. 00

899. 0000

899. 00

295. 0000

295. 00

COVER -

PIUT
Warehouse:

MIAM

2018 PIUT
RECESSED

PANEL

PARTITION

WITH

COATED POLYCARBONATE WINDOW AND
HORIZONTAL
EXPANDED

SLIDING

WINDOW

WITH

METAL OPENING COVER.

INCLUDES 2 -PIECE LOWER PANEL.
sst•

ttttk##t*

k*#***

f!**!!!

lttttt• t

WITH TALL MAN BRACKETS ss s s
1

1

Y

QK0566ITU12

SMC OEM REPLACEMENT PRISONER SEAT
WI12VS- COATED POLY
Warehouse:

MIAM

2012+ PIUT OEM Full Replacement Transport Seat TPO Plastic, with Center Pull
Seat Belts & 412 Coated Polycarbonate Cargo Partition
STATE YEAR OF VEHICLE - 2018 PIUT
kkkk# k# t*** ltt TFtttktk•

1

1

Y

kkkttkk#

k*

t#***lit TTT==•

kkt

OK10301SIURKSSCAXL

SMC DUAL T -RAIL WEAPON MOUNT,

l SMALL &

I UNIV.

XL
Warehouse:

MIAM

Dual T -Rail Mount I Small_ l Universal XL. IlandcuffKe. Override'

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
7

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

s

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Customer

800- 845- 0405

PALM BEACH

560 US HIGHWAY
NORTH

POLICE

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

1

Contact:

Quote Date
06/ 20/ 18

Telephone:

561- 848- 2525

SALGADO

Approve

Quantity

Quantity

Salesperson

Ordered By

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

HATCH

Item Number 1 Description

Tax
l

1

Y

WK05 WITU I 2
WINDOW

Y

PANELS,

NET 30
Resale Number
85- 801264634166
Unit

Extended

Price

Price

140. 0000

140. 00

110. 0000

110. 00

800. 0000

800. 00

65. 0000

65. 00

125. 0000

125. 00

VS INT -UTILITY

Warehouse:
1'

I

Method

MIAM

DKO59SITU12
SMC ALU. DOOR

1

Payment

BARRIER VS STEEL HORZ
Warehouse:

1

1

npb. com

P1UT PATROL BLUEPRIN

FOB DESTINATION

GROUND

Order

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Customer PO Number

F.O. B.

Ship Via

E:

GEORGE

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

npb. com

Entered By
EDWIN

Contact:

GEORGE HACHIGIAN

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

1

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Telephone:

NPBPD

No.

Ship To

Bill To
NORTH

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

MIAM

BK20441TU16

PB45014 Alum Romper NForce 16- 16 Interceptor Utility
Warehouse:

MIAM

2018 PI UTILITY
CUSTOM

PUSH BUMPER W14 ENFORCE

2) FRONT FACING

TRIO ENFORCE

LED LIGHTS,

LIGHTS

2) SIDE @ 45° ANGLE TRIO ENFORCE LIGHTS,
4) LIGHT_ SO_ SMNFRMS4BRW

1

I

Y

REDI3LUE1WHITE

TH750

ALL POWER SUPPLY 750 WATT THOR INVERTER
Warehouse:
I

I

Y

MIAM

SHOP - MIAMI
100 AMP RESETTABLE

BREAKER,

Warehouse:

6 GANG

FUSE PANEL

MIAM

2) EXTENSION CABLE FOR POWER INVERTER AND TERMINAL BOXES.
TERMINAL BOXES TO BE MOUNTED ON FRONT CONSOLE.

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
8

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY,
4809 KOGER

BLVD

GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

INC

NC 27407

Bill TO

560 US HIGHWAY

POLICE

Ship To
NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

1

NORTH

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Contact:

Telephone:

GEORGE

Telephone:

E- mail: ghachigian@Village-

I

FOB DESTINATION

GROUND

EDWIN

Ordered

1 Description

I

N

2, 160. 0000

DSS INSTALLATION

OF EQUIPMENT
Warehouse:

MIAM

INSTALLATION BY EVT CERTIFY INSTALLERS. INSTALL INCLUDES ALL
ABOVE EQUIPMENT PLUS THE BELOW ITEMS THAT THE CUSTOMER
WILL PROVIDE PRIOR BEGINNING OF VEHICLE BUILD,
STALKER

RADAR W12 ANTENNAS

LABOR RATE AS PER MIAMI CONTRACT @ $ 60. 00 PER HOUR
LABOR HOURS PER VEHICLE:

36. 0

INSTALL OF EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING
BLUEPRINT OPTIONS FOR OFFICER SAFETY,
ADDITIONAL

BRAKE LIGHTS

VII EMERGENCY

LIGHTS

ADDITIONAL BACK -UPI REVERSE LIGHT VIA EMERGENCY LIGHTS
LOW POWER FEATURE TO DECREASE LIGHT INTENSITY FOR
TRAILING

OFFICER

FULL VEHICLE CRUISE MODE { FOR NON AGGREVISE POLICE
PRESENCE)

360 DEGRESS WHITE LIGHTING ( FOR ILLUMINATING SCENES)
WALL OF WHITE FEATURE ON TAKE DOWNS (FOR OFFICER SAFETY
DURING

TRAFFIC

ANTI - THEFT
STOLEN

STOP)

IGNITION

WHEN

RUNNING

SWITCH ( PREVENTS

VEHICLE

FROM BEING

AND UNOCCUPIED)

INTERSECTION DRIVER AWARENESS ( TO ALERT DRIVERS DURING
EMERGENCY

RESPONDS)

SIREN SHUT OFF ( DEACTIVATES SIREN SOUND WHEN VEHICLE PUT IN
PARK)

CONTROL MODULE. DEACTIVATION { CUTS LIGHT BAR CORNERS
WHEN

DOORS

ARE OPEN]

REAR ARROW DEACTIVATION ( WHEN RUNNING CODE. ARROW
DEACTIVATES

Print Date

Page No.

Resale Number

85- 80126463410- 6

Price

INSTALL

FOR OFFICER

SAFETY)

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM
9

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued on Next Page

Method

NET 30

By

Quantity

Print Time

Payment

Unit
Item Number

Tax

i

npb. com

HATCH

SALGADO- Miami

Approve

Quantity

561- 848- 2525

PIUT PATROL BLUEPRIN

Salesperson

EDWIN SALGADO

FL 33408

Customer PO Number

F.O. B.

Entered By
Order

I

BEACH,

E- mail: ghachigian@Village-

npb. com

Ship Via

06/ 20/ 18

PALM

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Quote Date I

NPBPD

Customer No.

800- 845- 0405

NORTH PALM BEACH

248960- B

Sales Quote No.

Extended
Price
2, 160. 04

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

4809 KOGER

SUPPLY,

GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

INC

BLVD

NC 27407

Sales Quote

No.

248960- B

Customer

No.

NPBPD

800- 845- 0405

Bill To
NORTH

PALM BEACH

560 US HIGHWAY
NORTH

Ship To

POLICE

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

DEPT

560 US HIGHWAY

1

Contact:

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN
Telephone:

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

Ship Via

06/ 20/ 18

GROUND

Order

FOB DESTINATION

Item Number 1 Description
WHEEL

Resale

CONTROL (

ALLOWS

FOR STEERING

WHEEL

Number

85- 80I264634IC-

HATCH

Quantity
STEERING

Method

NET 30

BLUEPRIN

Ordered By

SALGADO- Miami

Tax

Payment

PO Number

PIUT PATROL

Salesperson

Approve

Quantity

Customer

F. O. B.

EDWIN

SALGADO

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village- npb. com

npb. com

Entered By
EDWIN

GEORGE

Telephone:

561- 848- 2525

Quote Date

I

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

PALM BEACH, FL 33408

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

AUX

BUTTONS TO OPERATE WITH SIREN][ REQUIERS FORD REMAPPABLE
SWITCHES
20

8 PI UTILITY,

PATR

OPTION

6IR OR 61S }

BLUEPRINT ***

Approved By:
Approve

All Items &

Quantities

Quote Good for 30 Days

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

06/ 21/ 18
12: 52: 58 PM

Subtotal

12, 062. 00

Freight

0. 00

Order' lotal

12, 062. 00

I

5; l2

a1)

10

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO

Police Replaces 216 &
Village

217

of

Line 9
BERLint

E

E1

9/ 11/

S

r•>

Jeep

taAC

4&:&

Garber Ford, Inc.

2018

Ryan Davis

Village of North Palm Beach
Attn:

Susanne

shachioian[

Description

HachWan (

tra

904) 264. 2442 ext. 2350 FAX: ( 904J 284- 0054

3380 Hwy I7 Green Cove Sorings, FL 32043

oe- nnb. om

5611691- 3442

rdayi

agarberautomait- corn

1 appreciate your interest and the opportunity to quote. Prices are published by the State of Florida Department of
Management Services.( htip.Ildms.myflorida. comleantract search/( category)II8). Purchasing contract number is
25100000- I8- 1, expiring November 16, 2019 for Motor Vehicles.
please

Ifyou have any questions regarding this quote

call!

500A

ORDER

Included

0. 00

99R

E N G I N E: 3. 7L V6 TI -VCT FFV

Included

0. 00

44C

TRANSMISSION:

Induded

0. 00

UM

Agate

9W

CHARCOAL

153

FRONT

86P

FRONT HEADLAMP/ POLICE INTERCEPTOR HOUSING ONLY

86T

TAIL LAMP/ POLICE INTERCEPTOR HOUSING ONLY

51Y

DRIVER

CODE

500A

6 -SPEED

AUTOMATIC

Black
BLACK,

UNIQUE

HD CL01- H FRONT

BUCKET

SEATS

Included

0. 00

Induded

50- 00

W/ VINYL REAR
LICENSE

ONLY

PLATE

INCANDESCENT

0. 00

Included

BRACKET

SPOT

LAMP

122. 50

125

2. 50)

60

1. 20)

58. 80

215

4. 30}

210. 70

6. 80)

333. 20

50. 40)

19. 60

295

5. 90)

289. 10

50

1. 00)

340

55F

REMOTE KEYLESS ENTRY KEY FOB W/ O KEY PAD

43D

DARK CAR FEATURE

87R

REAR

53M

SYNC BASIC ( VOICE- ACTIVATED COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM)

60A

GRILLE

WS

VENT VISORS,

ON STYLE

126

126- 00

TINT

TINT FRONT WINDOWS TO MATCH FACTORY REAR

146

145- 00

2019 (

Carryover Pricing; 2019 Model at 2018 Contract Price

9! 71! 20183: 51 PM

20

LED

LIGHTS;
STICK

0. 00

Induded

VIEW CAMERA

SIREN

AND

SPEAKER

PRE - WIRING

49. 00

Nonh Palm 19 Ford Utility interceptor Blade Marked Extra Quote 9. 11- 18

Village •of North Palm Beach
11N5P5C

25101702

C Code

0- 16

Line h

GABBER
Garber

9/ 11/

2018

Village

of North

At=

Susanne

shachioi

56 1)

Palm

nr&

Ford,

Inc.

Ryan Davis

Beach

904)

Hachigian (

villao--

K8A

Unit Description

264- 2442 ext. 2350 FAX: ( 904) 284. 0054

3380 Hwy 17Crreen Cove 5pmrVs, FL 32043

nob. 00r

691- 3442

rdavi

arbcrautomall. com

I appreciate your interest and the opportunity to quote. Prices are published by the State of Florida Department of
Management Services.( http: fldms. myflorida. comlcontract searchl{category) 118). Purchasing contract number is
25100000- 18- 1, expiring November 16, 2019 for Motor Vehicles.
please

If you have any questions regarding this quote

call!

CODE

SU. W

included

500A

ORDER

99R

ENGINE: 3. 7LV6TI- VCT FFV

500A

Included

0. 00

44C

TRA N S M I SSI ON: 6- S PE E D AUTOMATIC

Included

0. 00

VM

Agate

Induced

0. 00

9W

CHARCOAL 3LACK, UNIOU E HD CLOTH FRONT BUCKET SEATS

Included

0. 00

Black

W/ VINYL REAR
0- 00

Included

153

FRONT LICENSE PLATE BRACKET

86P

FRONT HEADLAMP/ POLICE

86T

TAIL LAMP/ POLICE INTERCEPTOR HOUSING ONLY

60

1. 20)

58- 80

51Y

DRIVER ONLY I N CAN DESCE NT SPOT LAMP

215

4. 30)

210- 70

340

6. 80)

333. 20

20

0. 40)

19. 60

295

5. 90)

289. 10

50

1. 00}

ENTRY

KEY

FOB

HOUSING

ONLY

55F

REMOTE

43D

DARK CAR FEATURE

87R

REAR

53M

SYNC BASIC ( VOICE- ACTIVATED

60A

GRILLE LED LIGHTS; SIREN AND SPEAKER PRE - WIRING

VV5

VENT VISORS,

TINT

TINT

2019

KEYLESS

INTERCEPTOR

W/ O KEY PAD

COMMUNICATIONS

SYSTEM)

STICK ON STYLE
WINDOWS

2. 50)

TO MATCH

FACTORY

REAR

122. 50

0. 00

Included

VIEW CAMERA

FRONT

125

49. 00

126

126. 00

145

5146. 00

1 Carryover Pricing; 2019 Model at 2018 Contract Price

9111C20183' 51 PM

Borth Palm 19 Ford Utility Interceptor Black Marked Extra Quote 9- 11- 18

217

Police Replaces 216 &

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Customer

800- 845- 0405

Bill To
NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT
560 US HIGHWAY

560 US HIGHWAY

l

NORTH

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

Contact:

GEORGE

06/ 21/ 18

GROUND

Order

Approve

Quantity

Quantity
1

Y

Ordered By
HATCH

Item Number

Y

Y

Resale Number
85- 80126463410-

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

299. 0000

299. 00

139. 0000

139. 00

0. 0000

0. 00

100. 0000

200. 00

104. 0000

208. 00

MIAM

I00N SPEAKER
Warehouse:

I

Method

NET 30

Siren

ETSS l 00N
SOI SERIES

I

1 Description

ETSA461HPP

Warehouse:
1

Payment

PIUT UNMARKED

Salesperson

SOI 400 Series Handheld

I

FL 33408

561- 848- 2525

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

Tax

l

BEACH,

E- mail: ghaohigian@village- npb. com

FOB DESTINATION

SALGADO

DEPT

l

Customer PO Number

F. O. B.

Entered By
EDWIN

PALM

Telephone:

E- mail: ghaohigian@village- npb. com

Ship Via

PALM BEACH POLICE

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

HACHIGIAN

561- 848- 2525

Quote Date

NPBPD

No.

Ship To
NORTH

Telephone:

248985- A

Sales Quote No.

MIAM

ETSS100CBKFV BP

SOi 2016+ FORD PI UTILITY SPEAKER BUMPER MNT
BRACKET
Warehouse:

1000100IJI00N

2016 - 2017, Bumper

2

2

Y

MIAM

Series Speaker Bracket ( only - no drill) for the Ford PI Utility
Mount

SFION]
WEC

SPITFIRE

ION DASH/ DECK,
Warehouse:

SPLIT

RED/ BLUE

MIAM

2) FRONT WINDSHIELD

2

2

Y

ENFSGS4BRW
SOI SGL NFORCE

DECKIGRILL

18 LED LT

BLUE/ RED/ WHITE
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) REAR WINDOW

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

06/ 21/ 18
01 : 20: 08 PM
i

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Bill To

Ship To

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

NORTH

560 US HIGHWAY

560 US HIGHWAY

I

NORTH

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL 33408

GEORGE

PALM

PALM

Contact:

HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

Ship Via

06/ 21/ 18

GROUND

BEACH

561- 848- 2525

FOB DESTINATION

Ordered By
HATCH

Item Number

1 Description

Quantity
2

Y

ENFDGSIRB

Method

NET 30

PIUT UNMARKED

Salesperson

Tax

Payment

Customer PO Number

F. O. B.

EDWIN' SALGADO- Miami

2

FL 33408

GEORGE HACHIGIAN

Entered By

Quantity

DEPT

l

BEACH,

EDWIN SALGADO
Approve

POLICE

E- mail: ghachigian@village- npb. com

E- mail: ghachigian@village- npb. com
Quote Date

Order

NPBPD

Customer No.

800- 845- 0405

Contact:

248985- A

Sales Quote No.

Resale Number
85- 80126463410-

6

Unit

Extended

Price

Price

158. 0000

316. 00

92. 4000

184. 00

92. 0000

368. 00

5. 5000

22. 00

72. 0000

144. 00

SOI DUAL NFORCE DECKIGRILL 6 LED LT RED/ BLUE
Warehouse:
2) REAR

2

2

Y

SIDE CARGO

MIAM

WINDOWS

EMPS2STS5RBA
SOI MPOWER

FASCIA

4" 1 &

LED

STUD

MNT

RED/ BLUE/ AMBER
Warehouse:

MIAM

2) FRONT GRILL

4

4

Y

EMPS2STS5RBW

SOI MPOWER FASCIA 4" l8 -LED STUD MNT
REDBLUEIWHITE
Warehouse:
2) REAR

MIAM

SIDE DOORS

2) ABOVE LIC. PLATE

4

4

Y

PMP2BKDGAJ
SOI mPOWER

90 DEGREE

MOUNTING

Warehouse:

BRACKET,

BLACK

MIAM

2) REAR SIDE DOOR BRACKETS
2) ABOVE LIC. PLATE BRACKETS

2

2

Y

ENFFTSSMS6J

SOI NForce FIT Surface Mount LED Red/ Blue
Warehouse:
2) FRONT CORNER

Print Date

06/ 21/ 18

Print Time

01: 20: 08 PM

Page No.

MIAM

LED' S

2

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued

on Next Page

Sales Quote
DANA

SAFETY

SUPPLY,

INC

4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO,

Telephone:

NC 27407

Customer

800- 845- 0405

Bill To
NORTH

560 US HIGHWAY

560 US HIGHWAY

1

PALM BEACH,

FL 33408

Quote Date

Ship Via

0 / 21118

GROUND

BEACH,

FL 33408

E- mail: ghachigian@village-

npb. com
Payment Method

Customer PO Number

F.O. B.

NET 30

PIUT UNMARKED

FOB DESTINATION

SALGADO

Salesperson

Ordered By

EDWIN SALGADO- Miami

HATCH

Resale

Tax

Item Number

I Description

4

Y

Price

ELUC2S0IOB
SOI 10- 16V U

IV UNDERCOVER
Warehouse:

LED INSERT

Number

85- 80126463410Unit

Quantity
4

DEPT

1

Approve

Quantity

POLICE

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

Entered By
Order

PALM

BEACH

Telephone: 561- 848- 2525

561- 848- 2525

E- mail: ghachigian@village- npb. com

EDWIN

PALM

NORTH

Contact: GEORGE HACHIGIAN

Telephone:

NPBPD

No.

Ship To

NORTH PALM BEACH POLICE DEPT

NORTH

248985- A

Sales Quote No.

6

Extended
Price

58. 0000

232. 00

29. 0000

29. 00

34. 0000

34. 00

290. 0000

290. 00

290. 0000

290. 00

65- 0000

65. 00

BLUE

MIAM

4) REAR CORNER LED' S

1

1

Y

ETHFSS-

SP

SOI SS HEADLIGHT

FLASHER

SELECT - A -PATTERN

Warehouse:
1)

I

1

Y

MIAM

HLF

ETFBSSN- P
SOI 140%

SOLID STATE TAILLIGHT
Warehouse:

FLASHER ( 12 - WIRE)

MIAM

1) TLF

I

1

Y

ENL 160J - L

SOI 60" NLINE RUNNING LIGHT REDIBLUE LEFT CABLE
Warehouse:
10 FLASH
3****

1

1

Y

PAT' T' ERNS -

e********

t* e**

t+ ss

rrssa•

RUNNING

Y

REQUIRED

t**•

LIGHT

Warehouse:
1

t

t***•

ENL160J- R
SOI 60" NLINE

1

MIAM

NO CONTROLLER

REDIBLUE

RIGHT

MIAM

TH750
ALL POWER SUPPLY 750 WATT THOR INVERTER
Warehouse:

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

MIAM

06/ 21/ 18
01: 20: 08 PM
3

Printed By: EDWIN SALGADO
Continued on Next Page

FORD CREDIT

FORD MOTOR CREDIT COMPANY LLC
MASTER

EQUIPMENT

LEASE - PURCHASE

Lease
Lessee: «

No. ,

AGREEMENT

LeaseNo,>
Lessor:

Municipality>>

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC

LesAddr2>>

1 American

LesCity>>, «LesState>> « LesZip>>

Dearborn,

The terms of this Master

Equipment

Lease Purchase

Agreement ( the " Master Agreement")

Road
MI

48126

are terms which will be incorporated

into,

and constitute a part of, one or more lease schedules executed from time to time by Lessor and Lessee ( together with all attachments thereto,
a " Schedule," or " Lease" or collectively, the " Schedules" or " Leases"), pursuant to which Lessee agrees to lease from Lessor, the equipment,
Each
including all additions, attachments, accessions, and substitutions thereto ( the " Equipment"), described in each such Schedule.
executed

and delivered
1.

Schedule

TERM

AND

will constitute

TERMINATION.

a separate,
The

on the earlier of ( i) the date on which the Equipment
Certificate

lease

assignable

obligation.

term ( the " Lease

listed on the Schedule

Term")

for the Equipment

is accepted

by Lessee

as required under Section 3 below, or ( ii) the date on which sufficient moneys to purchase

an escrow

agent ( the " Commencement

Agreement,

will continue

2.
payments

Date"),

until the expiration

LEASE

PAYMENTS.

Payment

includes

a principal

portion

date ( the " Expiration

Payments")

and

in each

such Equipment

Schedule

will commence

of a Delivery

and Acceptance

are deposited for that purpose with

and, unless earlier terminated as expressly provided for in Sections 6, 19 or 20 of this Master
Date")

set forth

For the lease of the Equipment

and other charges ( the " Lease

listed

by the execution

an interest

The Lease

Schedule.

listed in each Schedule,

set forth in the applicable
portion.

in the applicable

Schedule.

Payments

Lessee shall pay to Lessor the lease

As set forth in the applicable

will be payable

without

notice

Schedule,

or demand

each

Lease

at the office

of

Lessor ( or such other place as Lessor or its assignee may from time to time designate in writing) on the first Lease Payment Date and
thereafter as set forth in the applicable Schedule. If any Lease Payment is received later than 10 days after the due date, Lessee will pay a
late payment charge equal to 1. 8% of the amount of the Lease Payment or the maximum amount permitted by law, whichever is less. Except
as specifically provided in Section 6 hereof, the obligation of Lessee to make the Lease Payments hereunder and perform all of its other
obligations hereunder will be absolute and unconditional in all events and will not be subject to any abatement, setoff, defense, counterclaim,
or recoupment for any reason whatsoever including, without limitation, any failure of the Equipment to be delivered or installed, any defects,
malfunctions, breakdowns or infirmities in the Equipment or any accident, condemnation or unforeseen circumstances.
Lessee reasonably
believes that sufficient funds can be obtained to make all Lease Payments during the applicable Lease Term and hereby covenants that the
official of Lessee responsible for budget preparation will do all things lawfully within his or her power to obtain, maintain and properly request
and pursue funds from which the Lease Payments may be made, including making provisions for Lease Payments to the extent necessary in
each budget submitted for the purpose of obtaining funding, using his or her best efforts to have such portion of the budget approved and
exhausting all available administrative reviews and appeals in the event such portion of the budget is not approved. It is Lessee' s intent to
make Lease Payments for the full Lease Term if funds are legally available therefor and in that regard Lessee represents that the use of the
Equipment is essential to its proper, efficient and economic operation.
The foregoing provisions shall not be construed to require Lessee' s
governing body or other governmental body charged with budgeted or appropriating funds for Lessee to budget or appropriate funds to make
Lease Payments.
Lessor and Lessee understand and intend that the obligation of Lessee to pay Lease Payments hereunder and each
Schedule hereto shall constitute a current expense of Lessee and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of Lessee in contravention of
any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything
contained

herein constitute

a pledge of the general tax revenues, funds or monies of Lessee.

CONDITIONS

3.
EQUIPMENT. (

TO

LESSOR' S

PERFORMANCE

UNDER

SCHEDULES;

DELIVERY

AND

ACCEPTANCE

OF

As a prerequisite to the performance by Lessor of any of its obligations pursuant to the execution and delivery of any
Schedule, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor the following: ( i) if requested by Lessor, a certification satisfactory to Lessor of the Clerk or Secretary
or other comparable officer of Lessee as to due authorization and approval, incumbency of officers and such other matters as Lessor may
require; ( ii) if requested by Lessor, an opinion of counsel to Lessee respecting such Schedule in substantially the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A and otherwise satisfactory to Lessor; ( iii) all documents, including an application for certificate of title with lien notice, as applicable,
and other financing statements, affidavits, notices and similar instruments, in form satisfactory to Lessor, which Lessor deems necessary or
appropriate at that time pursuant to Sections 8 and 15; ( iv) board minutes in a form acceptable to Lessor; ( v) a copy of the executed Internal
Revenue Services (" IRS") form 8038- G or 8038 -GC, as appropriate, as filed, or to be filed, with the IRS, ( vi) satisfactory proof of property and
liability insurance coverage and ( vii) such other items, if any, as are set forth in such Schedule or are reasonably required by Lessor. This
Master Agreement is not a commitment by Lessor to enter into any Schedule not currently in existence, and nothing in this Master Agreement
shall be construed to impose any obligation upon Lessor to enter into any proposed Schedule, it being understood that whether Lessor enters
into any proposed Schedule shall be a decision solely within Lessor' s discretion, and no Lease will be binding or commence until accepted by
Lessor. Without limiting the foregoing, Lessee will provide Lessor with any documentation or information Lessor may request in connection
with Lessor' s review of any proposed Schedule.
Such documentation may include, without limitation, documentation concerning the
Equipment and its contemplated use and location and documentation or information concerning the financial status of Lessee and other
a)

matters related to Lessee.
b)
Location").

Lessee

will

cause

the

Equipment

to be delivered

to

Lessee

at the

location

specified

in the

applicable

Schedule ("

Equipment

Lessee will pay all transportation and other costs, if any, incurred in connection with the delivery and installation of the Equipment.

Lessee will accept the Equipment

as soon as it has been delivered

and is operational.

Lessee will evidence

its acceptance

of the Equipment

by executing and delivering to Lessor a Delivery and Acceptance Certificate in the form provided by Lessor within three days of delivery of the
Equipment.
4.
WARRANTIES. (
a) Assignment
of Warranties.
So long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Lessor
assigns to Lessee during the Lease Term of the Equipment all manufacturer' s warranties, if any, expressed or implied with respect to the

Equipment, and Lessor authorizes Lessee to obtain the customary services furnished in connection with such warranties at Lessee' s expense.
Lessee will resolve any claims under such warranties directly with the appropriate manufacturer or supplier of the Equipment. Lessee' s sole
remedy for the breach of any warranty shall be against the party providing the warranty, and not against Lessor.
Lessee expressly
acknowledges that Lessor makes, and has made, no representations or warranties whatsoever as to the existence or the availability of such
warranties of the manufacturer or supplier of the Equipment.
b)
DESIGN

DISCLAIMER

THE EQUIPMENT, (
HAS

OF

AND CAPACITY

NOT

3) LESSOR

MADE,

RESPECT

TO

AND

THE

OF THE

OF

OR

LESSEE,

LIABILITY
IMPLIED,

LEASES

DOES

NOT

EQUIPMENT

AS TO

THE

IN TORT

OR ANY

RESPECT

LESSOR

SHALL

LESSEE

OR ANY OTHER

EQUIPMENT

MAKE,

NOT

OTHER

5.

BE OBLIGATED

RETURN

OF

OR

IT BEING
OR

LIABLE

OR ENTITY

DURABILITY,

OTHER

FOR

ARISING

OR

THAT ( 1)

WARRANTY,

OR

VENDOR

EXPRESS

OPERATION,

WITH
OR

OR

OF ANY

THE

PURPOSES

WITH

OR

OR CHARACTER,

OR OTHER

THE

USE

A SIZE,
OF

WITH

USE,
AND

OR

USES

AS TO

BASED

ARE TO BE BORNE

CONSEQUENTIAL,

OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION

FOR

DISCOVERABLE,

KIND

THERETO

OF

IMPLIED,

FITNESS

OR FOR

NOT

IS

OR SUPPLIER

AS - IS" AND ( 4) LESSOR

OR AS TO ANY OBLIGATION

INCIDENT

INCIDENTAL,

EQUIPMENT

PART THEREOF "

COVENANT,

WHETHER

OR COVENANT

THAT ALL RISKS
ACTUAL,

EACH

DESIGN,

OR COPYRIGHT,

THE

DISTRIBUTOR,

IN CONNECTION

DEFECTS,

TRADEMARK

AGREED

AND

WARRANTY,

QUALITY,

WHATSOEVER

LATENT

AGREES

THE EQUIPMENT

REPRESENTATION,

RESPECT

THE

ON STRICT

EXPRESS

BY LESSEE

DAMAGES

OR
AND

OF OR TO

OR PERFORMANCE

OF THE

THEREOF.

OF EQUIPMENT.

or earlier termination

ANY

AND

IS NOT A MANUFACTURER,

TAKES

REPRESENTATION,

THERETO,

AND THE MAINTENANCE

the expiration

LESSEE

OF ANY PATENT,

PERSON

ACKNOWLEDGES

CONDITION,

ABSENCE

INFRINGEMENT

WITH

AND

IN ANY

OF ANY

LESSEE

BY LESSEE, ( 2) LESSOR

MERCHANTABILITY,

SUITABILITY
ABSENCE

WARRANTIES.

SELECTED

Unless

of the Lease Term

Lessee

shall have exercised

of the Equipment

pursuant

its purchase
to the terms

Lessor' s option, return the Equipment to Lessor in good working condition, packed
specifications and freight prepaid and insured to any location designated by Lessor.

option
hereof,

as provided
Lessee

for shipment

shall,

in Section

20 hereof,

at its sole expense

in accordance

with

upon
but at

manufacturer' s

6.
NON -APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Master Agreement or any Schedule to the
contrary, in the event no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted and sufficient funds are not otherwise made available in any
fiscal period for all Lease Payments under a Lease, Lessee will immediately notify Lessor in writing of such occurrence and provide
documentation evidencing such non -appropriation satisfactory to Lessor, and the Lease Term for the Equipment under that Lease shall
terminate on the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriations have been received or made without penalty or expense to
Lessee, except as to Lessee' s obligations and liabilities under any Lease relating to, or accruing or arising prior to, such termination. In the
event of such termination, Lessee agrees to peaceably surrender possession of the Equipment under that Lease to Lessor on the date of such
termination

in the manner

set forth

in Section

5 hereof

and

Lessor

will have

all legal

and equitable

rights

and

remedies

to take

possession

of

the Equipment.
7.
each

REPRESENTATIONS

Schedule,

AND WARRANTIES.

Lessee

represents

and warrants

as of the date

hereof,

and as of the date

of

that: (

a) Lessee is a State or a fully constituted political subdivision of a State, and has a substantial amount of one or more of
the following sovereign powers: ( 1) power to tax, ( 2) power of eminent domain, or ( 3) police power, and will do or cause to be done all things
necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence; ( b) Lessee is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State to
enter

into

and

agree

to the

terms

of this

Master

Agreement

and,

as of the

date

of each

Schedule,

that

Schedule

and

the

transactions

contemplated thereby and to perform all of its obligations thereunder; ( c) the execution, delivery and performance by the Lessee of this Master
Agreement, and each Schedule incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement has been duly authorized by proper action and approval of
its governing body at a meeting duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by a requisite majority of the members thereof or by
other appropriate official approval, and will not result in contravention of any state, county, district, city or town statute, charter, ordinance,
resolution, rule, regulation or other governmental provision or requirement, including, without limitation any applicable debt limitations; ( d) each
Schedule incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Lessee enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except to the extent limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws affecting creditors'
rights generally; ( e) all required public bidding procedures, and the purchase of the Equipment covered by each Schedule have been followed
by Lessee, and, as of the date of each Schedule, no governmental orders, permissions, consents, approvals or authorizations are required to
be obtained and no registrations or declarations are required to be filed in connection with the execution and delivery of that Schedule; ( f)
Lessee has made sufficient appropriations or other funds available to pay all Lease Payments and other amounts due hereunder for the
current fiscal period; ( g) the use of the Equipment by Lessee is essential to and will be limited to the performance by Lessee of one or more
governmental functions of Lessee consistent with the permissible scope of Lessee' s authority; ( h) no event or condition that constitutes, or with
the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default hereunder or a default under any debt, revenue or purchase
obligation which it has issued or to which it is a party exists, nor has it been in default under any such obligation at any time during the past five
years; ( i) no lease, rental agreement or contract for purchase to which Lessee has been a party at any time during the past five years has been
terminated by Lessee as a result of insufficient funds being appropriated in any fiscal period; and ( j) there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry
or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending or threatened against or affecting Lessee, nor to the best
knowledge of Lessee is there any basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the
transactions contemplated by this Master Agreement or any Schedule incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement, or any other document,
agreement or certificate that is used or contemplated for use in the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Master Agreement or
any Schedule.
8.
vest

in

TITLE TO EQUIPMENT; SECURITY INTEREST. Upon acceptance of the Equipment by Lessee, title to the Equipment will

Lessee

subject

to Lessor' s rights

under

the

Schedule

and

the terms

of this

Master

Agreement;

provided,

however,

that title

will

immediately vest in Lessor without any action by Lessee and Lessee shall immediately surrender possession of the Equipment to Lessor in
accordance

with Section

5 hereof,

if Lessee

terminates

the Lease Term

of the Equipment

pursuant

to Section

6, or upon the occurrence

of an

Event of Default, or if Lessee does not exercise the purchase option prior to the Expiration Date. It is the intent of the parties that any transfer
of title to Lessor pursuant to this Section shall occur automatically without the necessity of any bill of sale, certificate of title or other instrument
of conveyance. Lessee shall, nevertheless, execute and deliver any such instruments as Lessor may request to evidence such transfer. In
order to secure all of its obligations under each Lease, Lessee hereby ( a) grants to Lessor a first and prior security interest in any and all right,
title and interest of Lessee in the Equipment covered by that Lease including but not limited to computer programs and computer
November

2011 -

Previously

editions

are

NOT

used.

documentation, if any, relating to the Equipment and in all additions, attachments, accessions, and substitutions thereto whether now owned or
hereafter acquired, and on any proceeds therefrom, ( b) agrees that the applicable Lease may be filed as a financing statement evidencing
such security interest, ( c) agrees to execute and deliver all financing statements, certificates of title and other instruments in form satisfactory
to Lessor necessary or appropriate to evidence such security interest, and ( d) authorizes Lessor acting on behalf of Lessee to file any
financing statements and to take any other action required to perfect and maintain Lessor' s security interest in the Equipment.
9.

maintenance

USE; REPAIRS. Lessee will use the Equipment in a careful manner for the use contemplated by the manufacturer of the
Lessee shall comply with all laws, ordinances, insurance policies and regulations relating to the possession, use, operation or
of the Equipment.
Lessee, at its expense, will keep the Equipment in good working order and repair and furnish all parts,

mechanisms

and devices

Equipment.

required

therefor.

10.
ALTERATIONS. Lessee will not make any modifications, alterations, additions or improvements to the Equipment without
Lessor' s prior written consent unless such modifications, alterations, additions or improvements may be readily removed without damage to the
Equipment.
11.
LOCATION; INSPECTION.
The Equipment will not be removed from or, if the Equipment consists of rolling stock, its
permanent base will not be changed from the Equipment Location without Lessor' s prior written consent which will not be unreasonably
withheld.
Lessor will be entitled to enter upon the Equipment Location or elsewhere during reasonable business hours to inspect the
Equipment

or observe

its use and operation.

12.

LIENS AND TAXES. Lessee shall keep the Equipment free and clear of all levies, liens and encumbrances except those
created under any Schedule incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement. Lessee shall pay, when due, to the extent required by law, all
charges and taxes ( local, state and federal) which may now or hereafter be imposed upon the ownership, leasing, rental, sale, purchase,
possession or use of the Equipment, excluding however, all taxes on or measured by Lessor' s income. If Lessee fails to pay said charges, or
taxes when due, Lessor may, but need not, pay said charges or taxes and, in such event, Lessee shall reimburse Lessor therefor on demand,
with interest at the maximum rate permitted by law from the date of such payment by Lessor to the date of reimbursement by Lessee.
13.
cause

RISK

whatsoever,

and

OF LOSS;
no such

DAMAGE;

DESTRUCTION.

loss of or damage

Lessee assumes all risk of loss of or damage to the Equipment from any

to the Equipment

nor defect

therein

nor unfitness

or obsolescence

thereof

shall

relieve

Lessee of the obligation to make Lease Payments or to perform any other obligation under any Lease. In the event of damage to any item of
Equipment, Lessee will immediately place the same in good repair, with the proceeds of any insurance recovery applied to the cost of such
repair.
If Lessor determines that any item of Equipment is lost, stolen, destroyed or damaged beyond repair, within 30 days of such
determination,

Lessee,

at the option

of Lessor,

will either ( a) replace

the same with like equipment

in good

repair ( with its own funds to the

extent that sufficient insurance proceeds are not available for that purpose) and convey, to the extent permitted by law, a security interest in
such replacement equipment to Lessor ( at which time such equipment will become Equipment subject to the Lease), or ( b) pay Lessor an
amount equal to ( 1) the Concluding Payment for the immediately preceding Lease Payment Date as set forth in the applicable Schedule, ( 2)
the accrued interest portion of the next Lease Payment through the date such amount is paid, and ( 3) all other amounts then due under any
Schedule

with

respect

to such

Equipment.

In the event that Lessee

is obligated

to make

such

payment

pursuant

to clause ( b) above

with

respect to less than all of the Equipment under a Schedule, Lessor will provide Lessee with the pro rata amount of the Concluding Payment to
be made by Lessee with respect to the Equipment which has suffered the event of loss. The pro rata amount will be calculated on the basis of
the Cash Price shown on the Schedule for the particular item of Equipment that has been lost, stolen, destroyed or damaged and the

aggregate Cash Price of all items of Equipment under the same Schedule. Upon receipt of the Concluding Payment, Lessee shall be entitled
to whatever interest Lessor has in such Equipment, in its then condition and location, without warranties of any kind.
14.
PERSONAL PROPERTY. The Equipment is and will remain personal property and will not be deemed to be affixed or
attached to real estate or any building thereon. If requested by Lessor, Lessee will, at Lessee' s expense, furnish a waiver of any interest in the
Equipment from any party having an interest in any such real estate or building.
15.

INSURANCE. Lessee, will, at its expense, maintain at all times during the Lease Term, fire and extended coverage, public
liability and property damage insurance with respect to the Equipment in such amounts, covering such risks, and with such insurers
satisfactory to Lessor, or may self -insure against any or all such risks under a self- insurance program satisfactory to Lessor. In no event will
the insurance limits be less than the amount of the then applicable Concluding Payment with respect to such Equipment, as shown on the
applicable Schedule. Each insurance policy will name Lessee as an insured and Lessor as an additional insured, and will contain a clause
requiring the insurer to give Lessor at least 30 days prior written notice of any alteration in the terms of such policy or the cancellation thereof.
The proceeds of any such policies or self- insurance will be payable to Lessee and Lessor as their interests may appear. Upon acceptance of
the

Equipment,

on

or before

each

insurance

renewal

date,

and

otherwise

at Lessor' s request,

Lessee

will

deliver

to

Lessor

a certificate

evidencing such insurance. In the event that Lessee has been permitted to self -insure, Lessee will furnish Lessor with a letter or certificate to
such effect.
In the event of any loss, damage, injury or accident involving the Equipment, Lessee will promptly provide Lessor with written
notice thereof and make available to Lessor all information and documentation relating thereto and shall permit Lessor to participate and
cooperate with Lessee in making any claim for insurance in respect thereof. Should Lessee fail to obtain such insurance or to provide
evidence thereof to Lessor, Lessor may, but shall not be obligated to, obtain such insurance on Lessee' s behalf and charge Lessee for all
costs and expenses associated therewith. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Lessee specifically acknowledges and agrees that
if Lessor obtains such insurance on Lessee' s behalf, Lessee will be required to pay a monthly insurance charge. The insurance charge will
include reimbursement for premiums advanced to the insurer, finance charges ( which will typically be at a rate higher than the rate used to
determine the Lease Payment amount payable by Lessee), billing and tracking fees, administrative expenses and other related fees.
16.
INDEMNIFICATION.
Since Lessor' s sole responsibility in connection with this transaction is to provide an amount equal to
the principal portion of the Lease Payments to pay costs of the acquisition and lease of the Equipment, the parties intend that Lessor incur no
liability, cost or expense with respect to Lessee' s possession, use, condition, storage, operation or return of the Equipment, or the loss of
federal tax exemption of the interest on any Lease. Accordingly, Lessee agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify Lessor against,
and hold Lessor harmless from, any and all claims, actions, proceedings, expenses, penalties, interest, damages or liabilities, including
attorney' s fees and court costs, arising in connection with the Equipment, including, but not limited to, its selection, purchase, delivery,
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installation,

ownership, possession,

indemnification

provided

use, operation,

under this Section

The

rejection, or return and the recovery of claims under insurance policies thereon.

shall survive

the full payment

of all obligations

under all Schedules

or the termination

of the Lease

transfer,

hypothecate,

Term for a Schedule for any reason.
17.

ASSIGNMENT.

Without

Lessor' s prior written

consent,

Lessee

will

not

either ( a) assign,

pledge,

grant any security interest in or otherwise dispose of any Schedule, or the Equipment or any interest in this Master Agreement, any Schedule
or the Equipment or ( b) sublet or lend the Equipment or permit it to be used by anyone other than Lessee or Lessee' s employees. Lessor may,
without the Lessee' s consent, assign all or any portion or portions of its rights, title and interest in and to this Master Agreement, any Schedule,
the Equipment or any documents executed with respect to this Master Agreement or any Schedule, and/ or grant or assign a security interest in
this Master Agreement, any Schedule and the Equipment, in whole or in part, and Lessee' s rights will be subordinated thereto. Lessee
consents and specifically authorizes Lessor to forward any documentation and information that Lessor now has or may hereafter acquire in
connection with any transaction between Lessor and Lessee, to any potential investor, rating agency and any other party involved in the sale,
transfer, assignment, securitization or participation transaction involving this Master Agreement, any Schedule or the Equipment or any interest
in this Master Agreement, any Schedule or the Equipment. Lessor' s assignees shall have all of the rights of Lessor under any Lease with
respect to the rights and interest assigned.
Any such assignment to an assignee may provide that Lessor or the assignee shall act as a
collection and paying agent for any assignee, or may provide that a third -party trustee or agent shall act as collection and paying agent for any
assignee. Subject to the foregoing, the rights and obligations under any Lease inure to the benefit of and are binding upon the successors and
assigns of the parties hereto. Lessee covenants and agrees not to assert against the assignee any claims or defenses by way of abatement,
setoff, counterclaim, recoupment or the like which Lessee may have against Lessor. Upon any assignment by Lessor, unless Lessor provides
Lessee written notice to the contrary, all Lease Payments shall continue to be directed to Ford Motor Credit Company LLC (" Ford Credit"), who
agrees to accept such payments for the benefit of the assignee. Lessee hereby appoints Ford Credit, or its designee, to act as its registration
agent, and Ford Credit shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, a book -entry record identifying the name, address and taxpayer identification
number of the owner of payments due under each Schedule, and to keep or cause to be kept a complete and accurate record of all
assignments, in form necessary to comply with Section 149( a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ( the " Code"). Lessee
agrees to acknowledge in writing, any assignment( s) if so requested, and to make payments directly to the new owner ( assignee) if and when
so directed.
18.
EVENT OF DEFAULT; WAIVERS. Any of the following events shall constitute an " Event of Default" under any Lease: ( a)
Lessee fails to make any Lease Payment ( or any other payment) as it becomes due in accordance with the terms of that Lease, and any such
failure continues for 10 days after the due date thereof; ( b) Lessee fails to perform or observe any other covenant, condition, or agreement to
be performed or observed by it under that Lease, other than as referred to in clause ( a) above; ( c) the discovery by Lessor that any statement,
representation, or warranty made by Lessee in that Lease or in any writing ever delivered by Lessee pursuant thereto or in connection
herewith was false, misleading, or erroneous in any material respect; ( d) any provision of that Lease shall at any time for any reason cease to
be valid and binding on Lessee, or shall be declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability thereof shall be contested by Lessee or
any governmental agency or authority if the loss of such provision would materially adversely affect the rights or security of Lessor, or Lessee
shall deny that it has any further liability or obligation under that Lease; ( e) Lessee becomes insolvent, or is unable to pay its debts as they
become

due, or makes

an assignment

for the benefit

of creditors,

applies

or consents

to the appointment

of a receiver,

trustee,

conservator

or

liquidator of Lessee or of any of its assets, or a petition for relief is filed by Lessee under any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar
laws, or a petition in, or a proceeding under, any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws is filed or instituted against Lessee; ( f)
Lessee fails to make any payment when due or fails to perform or observe any covenant, condition, or agreement to be performed by it under
any other agreement or obligation with Lessor or an affiliate of Lessor and any applicable grace period or notice with respect thereto shall have
elapsed or been given; or ( g) an attachment, levy or execution is threatened or levied upon or against the Equipment under that Lease. The
waiver by Lessor of any breach by Lessee of any term, covenant or condition of a Lease shall not operate as a waiver of any
subsequent breach thereof or of any other Lease.
19.
REMEDIES. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under any Lease, and as long as such Event of Default under any
Lease is continuing, Lessor may, at its option, exercise any one or more of the following remedies: ( a) by written notice to Lessee, declare an
amount equal to all amounts then due under that Lease or all Leases, and all remaining Lease Payments due under that Lease or all Leases
during the fiscal year of Lessee in which the default occurs to be immediately due and payable, whereupon the same shall become
immediately due and payable; ( b) Lessor may enter the premises where the Equipment is located and retake possession of the Equipment or
require Lessee, at Lessee' s expense, to promptly return any or all of the Equipment to the possession of Lessor at a place specified by Lessor,
and sell or lease the Equipment or, for the account of Lessee, sublease the Equipment, holding Lessee liable for the difference between ( i) the
Lease Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder plus the then applicable Concluding Payment, and ( ii) the net proceeds of
any such sale, lease or sublease ( after deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising its remedies under the Lease, including without limitation,
all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing the Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneers' and attorneys'
fees); provided that the amount of Lessee' s liability under this paragraph shall not exceed the Lease Payments and other amounts otherwise due
hereunder, plus the remaining Lease Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder to the end of the then current fiscal year of
Lessee; ( c) terminate unfunded commitments under any escrow agreement; and ( d) exercise any other right, remedy or privilege which may be
available to it under applicable laws of the state where the Equipment is then located or any other applicable law or proceed by appropriate
court action to enforce the terms of such Lease( s) or to recover damages for the breach of such Lease( s) or to rescind that Lease as to any or
all of the

Equipment

under

such

Lease( s).

In addition,

Lessee

will

remain

liable

for all covenants

and

indemnities

under

the

terms

of this

Master Agreement and any Schedule and, to the extent permitted by law, for all legal fees and other costs and expenses, including court costs,
incurred by Lessor with respect to the enforcement of any of the remedies listed above or any other remedy available to Lessor. Lessor may
be a purchaser at any sale of the Equipment pursuant to this Section 19. The proceeds of any sale, lease or sublease of the Equipment
pursuant to this Section shall be applied as described in clause ( b) above, with the balance, if any, being paid to Lessee.
20.
PURCHASE OPTION. On the last day of the Lease Term, as well as at any time upon at least 30 days prior written notice
from Lessee to Lessor, and provided that no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Lessee will have the right to purchase all ( but not
less than all) of Lessor' s interest in the Equipment under any Schedule, at a purchase price equal to the sum of ( a) the Concluding Payment
for the immediately preceding Lease Payment Date, as set forth in the applicable Schedule, ( b) the accrued interest portion of the next Lease
Payment through the date the purchase price is paid, and ( c) any other amounts then due under the Lease with respect to such Equipment
including the Lease Payment otherwise due, if the purchase date occurs on a Lease Payment Date). Upon satisfaction by Lessee of such
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purchase conditions, Lessor will transfer any and all of its right, title and interest in the Equipment to Lessee as is, without warranty, express or
implied.
21.

TAX COVENANTS;

into this Master
each

Lease

Agreement

Payment

and file, or cause

and each

INDEMNITY. (
Schedule

set forth in each

Schedule

to be filed, with the Internal

a) Tax Assumptions and Covenants.

with the expectation
under the column

Revenue

Service,

that, Lessor
captioned "

Interest

the appropriate

The parties assume that, and Lessor is entering

can exclude

from

Portion."

Federal

gross

income

Lessee covenants

the interest

portion

of

that ( a) Lessee will execute

Form 8038- G or 8038 - GC for each

Schedule; (

b) Lessee

shall

be the only entity or person ( other than its employees within the scope of their employment) to own, use, manage or operate the Equipment
during the Lease Term; ( c) Lessee will not take any action which results, directly or indirectly, in any Lease being a " private activity bond" within
the meaning of Section 141( a) of the Code; ( d) Lessee will not take any action which results, directly or indirectly, in the interest portion of any
Lease Payment not being excludable from Federal gross income pursuant to section 103 of the Code and will take any reasonable action
necessary to prevent such result; and ( e) not take any action which results in any Lease becoming, and will take any reasonable action to
prevent any Lease from becoming an arbitrage obligation within the meaning of section 148 of the Code or federally guaranteed within the
meaning of section 149 of the Code. In the event that a question arises as to Lessee' s qualification as a political subdivision, Lessee agrees to
cooperate with Lessor to make application to the Internal Revenue Service for a letter ruling with respect to the issue.
b)
Tax Indemnity.
In the event that Lessor either ( a) receives notice from the Internal Revenue Service, or ( b) reasonably
determines, based on an opinion of independent tax counsel selected by Lessor and not reasonably objected to by Lessee within 10 days after
notice from Lessor of the selection, that the interest portion of any of the Lease Payments set forth in a Schedule is includable in Lessor' s
gross income for Federal income tax purposes, then Lessee will pay Lessor within 30 days after receiving notice from Lessor of such
determination, the amount which, with respect to such Lease Payments previously paid, will restore the after- tax yield ( after taking into account
all taxes, interest and penalties) on the transactions evidenced by that Schedule to that which would have been had such interest portion not
been includable in Lessor' s gross income for Federal income tax purposes, and pay as an additional Lease Payment on succeeding Lease
Payment due dates such amount as will maintain such after-tax yield. Notwithstanding the earlier termination or expiration of the Lease Term
of the Equipment,

the obligations

provided

for in this Section

21 shall survive such earlier termination

or expiration.

22.
MISCELLANEOUS. (
a) Notices. All notices to be given under this Master Agreement or any Schedule shall be made in
writing and mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at its address set forth herein or at such address as the party
may provide in writing from time to time. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been received five days subsequent to mailing.
b)
Section Headings. All section headings contained herein are for the convenience of reference only and are not intended to
define or limit the scope of any provision of this Master Agreement or any Lease.
c)
Governing Law. This Master Agreement and any Schedule incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement, shall be
construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the state in which Lessee is located.

d)
Delivery of Related Documents.
Lessee will execute or provide, as requested
information as are reasonably necessary with respect to the transaction contemplated by a Lease.

by Lessor, such other documents

and

e)
Entire Agreement; Severability. This Master Agreement, any Schedule incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement,
and the other documents or instruments executed by Lessee and Lessor in connection herewith, including, without limitation, the Delivery and

Acceptance

Certificates

referred

to

in

Section

3,

constitutes

the

entire

agreement

between

the

parties

with

respect

to

the

lease

of

the

Equipment, and neither this Master Agreement nor any Schedule shall be modified, amended, altered, or changed except with the written
consent of Lessee and Lessor. Any provision of this Master Agreement or any Schedule found to be prohibited by law shall be ineffective to
the extent of such prohibition without invalidating the remainder of this Master Agreement or the applicable Schedule. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Lessee authorizes Lessor to insert or correct missing information in this Master Agreement and on each Schedule and related
documents, including Lessee' s legal name, Equipment identifying information ( e. g. VIN), Equipment location, and any other information
describing the Equipment.
f)
Interest Rate Limitations. It is the intention of the parties hereto to comply with any applicable usury and other interest rate
limitation laws; accordingly, notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary in this Master Agreement or any Schedule, in no event shall this
Master Agreement or any Schedule require the payment or permit the collection of interest or any amount in the nature of interest or fees in
excess of the maximum permitted by applicable law.
g)
Financial Statements. Lessee shall annually provide Lessor with current financial statements, budgets, proof of appropriation for the
ensuing budget year and other financial information relating to the ability of Lessee to continue this Master Agreement and each Schedule
incorporating the terms of this Master Agreement, as may be requested by Lessor.
h)
executed

Counterparts:

in several

Chattel

counterparts,

each

Paper;
of which

Electronic
shall

Transaction.

be an original

and

This Master Agreement or any Schedule may be simultaneously
all of which

shall

constitute

but one

and

the same

instrument

and

either of the parties hereto may execute this Master Agreement or any Schedule by signing any counterpart, except that, to the extent that any
Schedule constitutes chattel paper, no security interest therein may be perfected through possession except by possession of Counterpart No.
1 of a Schedule, with respect to that Schedule. The parties agree that any Lease and related documents may be stored by electronic means.
IN WITNESS
Lessee: «

WHEREOF,

the parties

have

executed

this Master
Lessor:

Municipality»

By:

as of < MasterLseDt».

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC

By:
Frank Mastrella

LesFirstName>> « LesLastName>>
LesTitle»

Title: «
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Finance

EXHIBIT A TO MASTER
FORM

EQUIPMENT

OF OPINION

LEASE - PURCHASE

AGREEMENT

OF LESSEE' S COUNSEL - Florida

SAMPLE— TO BE SUBMITTED

ON ATTORNEY' S LETTERHEAD]

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC
1 American Road, MD 7500
Dearborn,

MI 48126

Re: Schedule No. 75561 incorporating the terms of the Master Equipment Lease -Purchase Agreement No. , dated
between Ford Motor Credit Company LLC, as Lessor ( the " Lessor"), and Marion County, as Lessee ( the " Lessee")

as of ,

Ladies and Gentlemen:
As legal counsel

to the

Lessee,

I have examined ( a) an executed

counterpart

of a certain

Master Equipment

Lease -

by and between Lessor and Lessee ( the " Master Agreement") and Schedule No. 75561,
between Lessor and Lessee ( the " Schedule"), which, among other things, provides for the lease to with option to purchase by the
Lessee of certain property listed in the Schedule ( the " Equipment"), ( b) executed counterparts or certified copies of the ordinances
or resolutions of Lessee which, among other things, authorize Lessee to execute the Master Agreement and the Schedule and ( c)
such other opinions, documents and matters of law as I have deemed necessary in connection with the following opinions.
Purchase

Agreement,

dated

as

of ,

Based on the foregoing, I am of the following opinions:
1)

Lessee

is a political

following sovereign powers: (
2)

subdivision

of the

State,

a) the power to tax, ( b) the power

and

has

of eminent

a substantial

domain,

amount

and ( c) police

of one

or more

of the

power;

Lessee has the requisite power and authority to lease the Equipment ( as defined in the Master

Agreement), with an option to purchase, and to execute and deliver the Master Agreement and the Schedule and to
perform

its obligations

under each;

3)
the execution, delivery and performance by Lessee of the Master Agreement and the Schedule have
been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of Lessee;
4)
the Master Agreement and the Schedule have been duly executed and delivered by Lessee and together
constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation of Lessee enforceable in accordance with their terms;
5)
there are no suits, proceedings or investigations pending or, to my knowledge, threatened against or
affecting Lessee, at law or in equity, or before or by any governmental or administrative agency or instrumentality ( a)
seeking to restrain or enjoin the delivery of the Master Agreement or any Schedule or of other agreements similar to the
Master Agreement or any Schedule, ( b) questioning the authority of Lessee to execute the Master Agreement or any
Schedule, or the validity of the Master Agreement or any Schedule, or the payment of principal of or interest on the
Schedule, ( c) questioning the constitutionality of any statute or the validity of any proceedings, authorizing the execution of
the Master Agreement or any Schedule, or ( d) affecting the provisions made for the payment of or security for the
Schedule, which, if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on the transaction contemplated in the
Master Agreement and the Schedule or the ability of Lessee to perform its obligations thereunder;
6)
all required public bidding procedures regarding the award of the Schedule which incorporates the terms
of the Master Agreement and the purchase of the Equipment have been followed by Lessee and no governmental orders,
permissions,

consents,

approvals

or authorizations

are required

to be obtained

and

no registrations

or declarations

are

required to be filed in connection with the execution and delivery of the Schedule or the Master Agreement; and
7)

the signatures

of the officers

or representatives

of Lessee

which

appear

on the Master

Agreement

and

Schedule are true and genuine, and such officers or representatives hold the offices set forth below their names, and they
have been duly authorized to execute and deliver the Master Agreement and the Schedule( s).
All

Lessor,

capitalized

its successors

terms

herein

and assigns,

have

the

same

and any counsel

meanings

rendering

as

in the

an opinion

Master

Lease Payments, are entitled to rely on this opinion.
Signed by Attorney for Lessee]
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Agreement

on the tax- exempt

unless

otherwise

provided

status of the interest

portion

herein.

of the

SCHEDULE -

MASTER EQUIPMENT

LEASE - PURCHASE

AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT

That certain Master Equipment Lease - Purchase Agreement, by and between Ford Motor Credit Company
dated as of ( the " Lease") is hereby amended as follows:

Lessor") and (" Lessee"),

Bank Qualified

Tax -Exempt Obliqation

Check box for Bank Qualified

designation)

Lessee hereby designates this Schedule as a " qualified tax- exempt obligation" as defined in Section 265( b)( 3)( B) of the
Code. Lessee reasonably anticipates issuing tax- exempt obligations ( excluding private activity bonds other than qualified
501( c)( 3) bonds and including all tax- exempt obligations of subordinate entities of the Lessee) during the calendar year in
which the commencement date of this Schedule falls, in an amount not exceeding $ 10, 000, 000. 00.
Non - Bank Qualified

Check

Tax- Exemot

Obliaation

box for Non - Bank Qualified

designation)

Lessee reasonably anticipates issuing more than $ 10, 000, 000. 00 in tax- exempt obligations in the calendar year of the
Commencement Date as defined in the Property Schedule.

Except as amended hereby, the Lease shall otherwise remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the day of, .

Lessee:

Lessor:

By:

By:

Title:

Title:

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC

Operations

Manager,

Municipal

Finance

SCHEDULE

MASTER

NO. -

EQUIPMENT

LEASE - PURCHASE

Master Agreement

No.

AGREEMENT

dated as of

This Equipment Schedule dated as of H, is being executed by Ford Motor Credit Company LLC (" Lessor"), and (" Lessee"). The terms and
provisions of the Master Agreement between Lessor and Lessee referenced above ( other than to the extent that they relate solely to other
Schedules or Equipment under other Schedules) are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof. All terms used herein have
the meanings

ascribed to them in the Master Agreement.

Lessor hereby leases to Lessee pursuant to this Schedule, and Lessee hereby accepts and leases from Lessor, subject to and upon the
terms and conditions set forth herein ( including any attachments hereto), the following items of Equipment:

QUANTITY I

DESCRIPTION (

MANUFACTURER,

MODEL

AND SERIAL

NO.)

I CASH PRICE

SUPPLIER

NAME

EQUIPMENT LOCATION:
INITIAL TERM:
COMMENCEMENT

36 months

DATE ( the date on which the Equipment is

accepted by Lessee by the execution of a Delivery and Acceptance

LEASE PAYMENTS:

Consecutive

Annual in Advance

Payments of ( including interest), due under this Schedule. See

Certificate): //

Attachment 1 hereto.

Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Lessee hereby represents warrants and covenants as follows:
a)

The representations,

Commencement

warranties

and covenants

Date for this Schedule

of Lessee

set forth

in the Master

Agreement

are true and correct

on the

as though made on that Date.

b)

The execution, delivery and performance by Lessee of this Schedule has been duly authorized by proper action and approval of its
governing body at a meeting duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by a requisite majority of the members thereof
or by other appropriate official approval.

EXECUTED

as of the date first herein set forth.

Lessee

Lessor:

By:

By:
Title:

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC

Operations

Manager, Municipal

Finance

Counterpart No. 1 of 1 manually executed and serially numbered counterparts. To the extent this Schedule constitutes chattel paper;
no security interest herein may be perfected through the possession of any counterpart other than Counterpart No. 1.

FORD CREDIT

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC
1 American
Dearborn,

Road, MD 7500
MI 48126

DELIVERY

Master Lease Date

AND ACCEPTANCE

Master Lease No.

CERTIFICATE

Date of Schedule

Delivery Number

L__ //

1

In accordance with Section 3 of the Master Equipment Lease -Purchase Agreement ( the " Master Agreement') executed by Lessee and
Lessor, the undersigned Lessee hereby certifies and represents to, and agrees with Lessor as follows:
1)
and accepted

All of the Equipment ( as such term is defined

in the Master Agreement)

EQUIPMENT

1

described

below

has been delivered,

installed

on the date hereof.

I

Quantity

Description (

Manufacturer,

INFORMATION

Model,

Serial

I

Number)

Supplier Name

2)
Lessee has conducted such inspection and/ or testing of the Equipment listed in the Schedule as it deems
necessary and appropriate and hereby acknowledges that it accepts the Equipment for all purposes.
3)

Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by Section 15 of the Master Agreement.

4)

No event or condition that constitutes,

or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute,

an Event of Default

under any Lease ( as those terms are defined in the Master Agreement) exists at the date hereof.
5)

We acknowledge that Lessor is neither the vendor ( supplier) nor manufacturer or distributor of the Equipment and

has no control, knowledge or familiarity with the condition, capacity, functioning or other characteristics of the Equipment.
in this acknowledgement affects any rights Lessee may have against a manufacturer or supplier of the Equipment.
6)
Schedule

The serial

number

for each

item of Equipment

that is set forth on the Equipment

is correct.
LESSEE:

BY:

Title)
DATE ACCEPTED:

Description

contained

Nothing

in the

1

INSURANCE
Lessee Name:

Lessee

Schedule

FACT SHEET

No.:

Address:

Telephone

No.:

Equipment; ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

The Master Lease Agreement requires the Lessee to maintain, at all times, the following insurance coverage for
the financed equipment as described in the Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement and above.

Automobile Liability that includes Bodily Injury and Property Damage with a minimum of $ 1, 000, 000. 00 per
occurrence ( this can be a combination of auto, umbrella or excess liability).
Insurance against all risks of physical loss or damage to the equipment ( including theft).
Ford Motor Credit Company LLC, their successors and assigns named as Loss Payee and Additional Insured.
1.

If you are not self- insured, please complete the following insurance information:
Insurance Company:
Address:

State:

City:

Telephone:

Zip Code:

Agent Name:

Expiration

Policy No.:

Date:

Automobile Liability including Bodily Injury and Property Damage: $
Auto Physical Damage ( select one):

Actual

Stated

2.

If you are self- insured,

Self Retained

Joint/ State

Name

please

select

Cash

Cash

one of the follow

Value

Value

of $

options:

Risk

Fund — PLEASE

COMPLETE

THE FOLLOWING

of fund/ pool:

Automobile Liability including Bodily Injury and Property Damage: $
Auto Physical

Expiration

Please

Damage ( select one):

Date:

also include

Actual

Cash Value

Stated

Cash Value

of $

if Applicable)

your standard

Self - Insured

letter with the return

of your document

package

Company ( if a letter is available.)
Sign and date to acknowledge the provided insurance information to Ford is complete and accurate:

Signature:

to Ford Motor Credit

Information

Form 838-`71

Return

for Tax - Exempt

Under Internal

Revenue

Governmental

Code section

Obligations

149( e)

OMB

Rev. September 2011)

0, See separate

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Caution:

Reporting

No.

1545- 0720

Instructions.

If the issue price is under $ 100. 000. use Form 8038 - GC.

If Amended Return, check here

Authority

1

Issuer' s name

2 Issuer' s employer identification number ( EIN)

3a

Name of person ( other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return( see instructions)

3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

4

Number and street ( or P. O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

6

8

Room/ suite

5

Report number ( For IRS Use Only)

City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code

7

Date of issue

Name of issue

9

CUSIP number

3

10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information ( see

10b Telephone

number of officer or other

employee shown on 10a

Instructions)

Type of Issue ( enter the issue price).

See the instructions

and attach schedule.

11

Education . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11

12

Health and hospital

12

13

Transportation .

13

14

Public Safety

14

15

Environment (

16

Housing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

16

17

Utilities .

17

18

Other. Describe

18

19

If obligations are TANS or RANs, check only box 19a . . . . . . . . .

15

including sewage bonds) .

If obligations are BANS, check only box 19b . . . . . . . . . . .
20

If obligations are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box . .

Description of Obligations. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.
al

Final

m

fi, rih,

rhl I--

rWa

c) Stated redemption
erica (

d) Wei(

I(

at

e) Yield

matu

21

Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue ( including underwriters' discount)
2222

Proceeds

23

Issue Issue price price of of entire entire issue (issue ( enter enter amount amount from from line line 21,21,

24 24

Proceeds used for bond issuance costs ( including underwriters'

2525

Proceeds

enhancement . . . . . . . . . . . .

25

26

Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . . . .

26

27

Proceeds used to currently refund prior issues . . . . . . . . . .

27

28

Proceeds used to advance refund prior issues . . . . . . . . . .

28

29

Total ( add lines 24 through 28) .

29

30

Nonrefunding

30

used

used

for accrued

for credit

22

interest .
column (column (

2323

b)b)

2424

discount) . . .

proceeds of the issue ( subtract line 29 from line 23 and enter amount here).

EWDescription of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31 31

EnterEnter thethe remaining remaining weightedweighted average average maturitymaturity ofof thethe bondsbonds toto bebe currently currently refundedrefunded
.
.

IN.IN.

32 32

Enter Enter the the remaining remaining weighted weighted average average maturity maturity of of the the bonds bonds to to be be advance advance refunded .refunded .

IN.IN.

3333

Enter Enter the the last last date date on on which which the the refunded refunded

IN.IN.

34 34

Enter Enter the the date(date( s)s) the the refunded refunded

For For Paperwork Paperwork

Reduction Reduction

bonds bonds will will be be called (called (

bonds bonds were were issued issued
(
(

Act Act Notice, Notice,

see see separate separate

years years

years years

MM/MM/ DD/DD/ YYYY) YYYY)

MM/MM/ DD/DD/ YYYY)YYYY)

instructions. instructions.

Cat.Cat.

No.No.

63773S 63773S

Form Form 8038-8038- G G( ( Rev.Rev. 9-9- 2011)2011)

Page 2

Form 8038- G ( Rev. 9- 2011)

Miscellaneous
35

Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141( b)( 5) .

36a

Enter the

amount

of gross

proceeds

invested

or to be

invested

in a guaranteed

35
investment

contract

36a

GIC) ( see instructions) .
b

Enter the final maturity date of the GIC

c

Enter

3737

the name

Pooled

of the GIC provider

financings:

Enter

to other governmental
38a

If this

issue

lo-

the amount

of proceeds

is a loan

from

the

proceeds

Enter the date of the master

c

Enter the EIN

dd

Enter the name of the issuer of the master

of the issuer

If the issuer

40

If the issuer has elected

41a

If the issuer

c

Type of hedge

d

Term

of hedge

the issue

of another

a hedge,

pool obligation

to make

loans

tax- exempt

issue,

check

box

and enter the following information:

check

Ol-

pool obligation

under

to pay a penalty

has identified

Name

that are to be used

pool obligation

of the master

has designated

b

issue

37

made

b

3939

of this

units .

section

0-

265( b)( 3)( 13)(

in lieu of arbitrage
here

i)(

rebate,

III) ( small

issuer

exception),

check

box .

check box .

and enter the following information:

provider

of hedge

42

If the issuer

43

If the issuer has established

has superintegrated

the hedge,

written

check

procedures

box

to ensure

that all nonqualified

bonds of this issue are remediated

according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations ( see instructions), check box
44

If the issuer

45a

If some

has established

portion

written

of the proceeds

procedures

Enter

the date the official

the requirements

expenditures,

of section

check here

148,

check

box .

and enter the amount

lo-

of reimbursement . . . . . . .

bb

to monitor

was used to reimburse

intent

was adopted

lo -

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I further declare that I consent to the IRS' s disclosure of the issuer's return information, as necessaryto

Signature Signature

process this return, to the person that I have authorized above.

and

Consent

L
IF

Signature of issuer' s authorized representative

Print/Type preparer' s name

Paid

Preparer' s Signature

Date

or print

Date

name

and

Check

title

if

PTIN

self - employe

Preparer
Firm' s name

lo -

Firm' s EIN

UseUse Only
Firm' s address

Phone no.

Form 8038- G ( Rev. 9- 2011)

ADDENDUM

TO MASTER

EQUIPMENT

LEASE - PURCHASE

AGREEMENT

Lease No. « CMSLeaseNo»
Florida( Except Counties)

THIS ADDENDUM, which is entered into as of E( MasterLseDt)) between Ford Motor Credit Company LLC (" Lessor") and « Municipality»
Lessee") is intended to modify and supplement the Master Equipment Lease -Purchase Agreement between Lessor and Lessee of even date
herewith ( the " Master Agreement").
1.

Capitalized

terms not otherwise defined

herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Master Agreement.

Section 2. LEASE PAYMENTS. The last sentence of Section 2 is amended in its entirety to state as follows:

Lessor and Lessee understand and intend that the obligation of Lessee to pay Lease Payments hereunder and each Schedule hereto
shall constitute a current expense of Lessee and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of Lessee in contravention of any applicable
constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall anything contained herein
constitute a pledge of the ad valorem tax revenues, funds or moneys of Lessee.

Lessor and Lessee further understand

that the use of the ad

valorem taxing to power to make Lease Payments cannot be compelled.
2.

Section 8. TITLE TO EQUIPMENT; SECURITY INTEREST. Section 8 is amended in its entirety to amend the title of the Section to
TITLE TO EQUIPMENT"

and state as follows:

Upon acceptance of the Equipment by Lessee hereunder, title to the Equipment will vest in Lessee subject to Lessor' s rights under the
Schedule and the terms of this Master Agreement; provided, however, that title to the Equipment will immediately vest in Lessor without any
action by Lessee and Lessee shall immediately surrender possession of the Equipment to Lessor in accordance with Section 5 hereof, if
Lessee terminates the Lease Term of the Equipment

pursuant to Section 6, or upon the occurrence

of an Event of Default, or if Lessee does

not exercise the purchase option prior to the Expiration Date. It is the intent of the parties that any transfer of title to Lessor pursuant to this
Section shall occur automatically without the necessity of any bill of sale, certificate of title or other instrument of conveyance. Lessee shall,
nevertheless, execute and deliver any such instruments as Lessor may request to evidence such transfer.
3.

Section 15. INSURANCE.

Section 15 is amended in its entirety to state as follows:

Lessee will, at its expense, maintain at all times during the Lease Term, fire and extended coverage, public liability and property damage
insurance with respect to the Equipment in such amounts, covering such risks, and with such insurers satisfactory to Lessor, or may self -insure
against any or all such risks under a self- insurance program satisfactory to Lessor. In no event will the insurance limits be less than the
amount of the then applicable Concluding Payment with respect to such Equipment, as shown on the applicable Schedule, or, in the case of
public liability property damage insurance, in the amounts of $ 100, 000/$ 200, 000 bodily injury liability and $ 50, 000 property damage insurance
sufficient to meet the requirements of section 324. 021( 9)( b) of the Florida Statutes ( or any successor statute). Each insurance policy will name
Lessee as an insured and Lessor as an additional insured, and will contain a clause requiring the insurer to give Lessor at least 30 days prior
written notice of any alteration in the terms of such policy or the cancellation thereof. The proceeds of any such policies or self- insurance will
be payable to Lessee and Lessor as their interests may appear. Upon acceptance of the Equipment and on or before each insurance renewal
date, Lessee will deliver to Lessor a certificate evidencing such insurance. In the event that Lessee has been permitted to self -insure, Lessee
will furnish Lessor with a letter or certificate to such effect. In the event of any loss, damage, injury or accident involving the Equipment,
Lessee will promptly provide Lessor with written notice thereof and make available to Lessor all information and documentation relating thereto
and shall permit Lessor to participate and cooperate with Lessee in making any claim for insurance in respect thereof. Should Lessee fail to
obtain such insurance or to provide evidence thereof to Lessor, Lessor may, but shall not be obligated to, obtain such insurance on Lessee' s
behalf and charge Lessee for all costs and expenses associated therewith. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Lessee specifically
acknowledges and agrees that if Lessor obtains such insurance on Lessee' s behalf, Lessee will be required to pay a monthly insurance
charge. The insurance charge will include reimbursement for premiums advanced to the insurer, finance charges ( which will typically be at a
rate higher than the rate used to determine the Lease Payment amount payable by Lessee), billing and tracking fees, administrative expenses
and other
4.

related

fees.

Section 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

Section 16 is re -titled LESSEE' S NEGLIGENCE and is amended in its entirety to state as follows:

Lessee assumes all risks and liabilities, whether or not covered by insurance, for loss or damage to any Equipment and for injury or death
of any person or damage to any property, whether such injury or death be with respect to agents or employees of Lessee or to third parties,
and whether such property damage be to Lessee' s property or the property of others, which is proximately caused by the negligent conduct of
Lessee, its officers, employees or agents. Lessee hereby assumes responsibility for and agrees to reimburse Lessor for all liabilities,
obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, costs and expenses ( including reasonable attorney' s fees) of whatsoever kind and
nature, imposed on, incurred by or asserted against Lessor that in any way relate to or arise out of a claim, suit or proceeding based in whole
or in part upon the negligent
5.

conduct

of Lessee,

its officers, employees

or agents, to the maximum

extent permitted

by law.

Section 19. REMEDIES. Section 19 is amended in its entirety to state as follows:

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under any Lease, and as long as such Event of Default under any Lease is continuing, Lessor
may, at its option, exercise any one or more of the following remedies: ( a) by written notice to Lessee, declare an amount equal to all amounts
then due under that Lease or all Leases, and all remaining Lease Payments due under that Lease or all Leases during the fiscal year of
Lessee in which the default occurs to be immediately due and payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable; ( b)
Lessor may enter the premises

where the Equipment

is located

and retake possession

of the Equipment

or require Lessee, at Lessee' s

expense, to promptly return any or all of the Equipment to the possession of Lessor at a place specified by Lessor, and sell or lease the
Equipment upon such terms as Lessor in its reasonable judgment deems prudent, applying the net proceeds of that sale or lease ( after
July 2013 — Previous

editions

may NOT be used.

deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising its remedies under this Master Agreement, including without limitation, all expenses of taking
possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing the Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneers' and attorneys' fees) to pay to Lessor
the Lease Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder plus the then applicable Concluding Payment, with any excess being
paid to Lessee; ( c) terminate unfunded commitments under any escrow agreement; and ( d) exercise any other right, remedy or privilege which
may be available to it under applicable laws of the state where the Equipment is then located or any other applicable law or proceed by
appropriate

court action to enforce

the terms of that Lease or to recover damages

for the breach

of that Lease or to rescind

that Lease as to

any or all of the Equipment under that Lease.
As modified hereby, the Master Agreement and any Schedule incorporating the terms of the Master Agreement, are and shall remain in
full force and effect and, except as modified hereby, the rights and obligations of the parties thereunder are not modified or affected in any
way.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Addendum to be executed in their names by their duly authorized
representatives

Lessee

as of the date first above written.

Municipality»

By:

Lessor:

Ford Motor Credit Company LLC

By:
LesFirstName» « LesLastName»
c LesTitle»

July 2013 — Previous

editions

may NOT be used.

Frank Mastrella
Title:

Operations

Manager,

Municipal

Finance

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

THRU:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

FROM:

Samia Janjua, Director of Finance

DATE:

March 28, 2019

SUBJECT:

RESOLUTION – COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT Accepting the
Fiscal Year 2018 Audit Report.

The September 30, 2018 year-end CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) will be distributed
by our auditors at this coming week’s Council meeting. This report is published to provide the Village
Council, Village staff, our citizens, our lenders, and other interested parties with detailed information
concerning the financial condition and activities of the Village government. This annual financial report
reflects continuing improvement in our Village’s financial operations and overall financial condition.
On March 11th, the Independent Auditors from Nowlen, Holt & Miner P.A. presented the FY2018
“Annual Financial Report” to the Village’s Audit Committee.
The “bound” Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will be provided for review prior to the meeting
and an electronic version will be made available to the public on the Village’s Webpage upon formal
acceptance by Village Council.
The attached Resolution has been prepared/reviewed by your Village Attorney for legal sufficiency.
Recommendation:
Village Administration requests Council consideration and approval of the attached resolution
authorizing the Mayor and Village Clerk to accept the comprehensive annual financial report
prepared by the Auditor for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 and to file the report with
the state as required by law.

RESOLUTION 2019A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT PREPARED BY THE VILLAGE AUDITOR
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND
AUTHORIZING ITS FILING WITH THE STATE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, as required by Chapter 218, Florida Statutes, the Village Council selected the firm of
Nowlen, Holt & Miner, P.A. (“Auditor”) to prepare a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report,
including an audit report, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018; and
WHEREAS, the Village Council wishes to accept the annual financial report and authorize its
filing with the State as required by law.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and correct and are incorporated herein.

Section 2.
The Village Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and Village Clerk to accept the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report prepared by the Auditor for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2018 and to file said report with the state as required by law.
Section 3.

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ______ DAY OF

, 2019.

(Village Seal)
MAYOR

ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK

Village of North Palm Beach, FL
Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
Fiscal year ended September 30, 2018

The Village of
North Palm Beach, Florida

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

Prepared by:
Finance Department
Samia Janjua
Director of Finance
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

THE VILLAGE OF

NORTH PALM BEACH
“THE BEST PLACE TO LIVE UNDER THE SUN”
March 28, 2019

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the Village Council and Residents
Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
The Finance Department and Village Manager's Office are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2018.
This report is published to provide the Village Council, Village staff, our citizens, our lenders, and other
interested parties with detailed information concerning the financial condition and activities of the Village
government. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Village.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
organized in a manner designed to fairly present the financial position and results of operations of the
Village as measured by the financial activity of its various funds. We also believe that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the Village's financial affairs have
been included.
THE REPORT
Nowlen, Holt & Miner, P.A., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on
the Village of North Palm Beach’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2018. The
independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.
The CAFR’s role is to assist in making economic, social, and political decisions and in assessing
accountability to the citizenry by:
•
•
•
•

comparing actual financial results with the legally adopted budget, where appropriate;
assessing financial condition and results of operations;
determining compliance with finance-related laws, rules and regulations; and
evaluating the efficiency and effectiveness of Village operations.

501 U.S. Highway 1, North Palm Beach, FL 33408-4902 * (561) 841-3380 * Fax (561) 848-3344

VILLAGE PROFILE
The Village
The Village of North Palm Beach is primarily a residential community, having been incorporated as a
political subdivision of the State of Florida in 1956. The registered population of the Village is
approximately 12,177, which increases to approximately 18,000 during the winter months by residents
who list their northern homes as their official place of residence. Residents are generally in the middle to
upper income brackets.
Located in the northeastern quadrant of Palm Beach County, Florida, the Village is known for its
abundance of waterfront property (lakes, canals, and the Atlantic Ocean) as well as other assets: Country
Club with a golf course, driving range, pool, and tennis courts; four parks; marina; library; police and fire
rescue stations; and a public elementary school.
The governing body of the Village consists of a five-member Village Council, each of whom is elected to
two-year overlapping terms. The Mayor is selected by majority vote of the Council and serves for a term
of one year. Day-to- day affairs of the Village are under the leadership of the Village Manager who is
appointed by the Council.
FINANCIAL DATA
Financial Reporting System and Budgetary Controls
The Village's financial records for its general governmental operations are maintained on the modified
accrual basis, which means that revenues are recorded when available and measurable and
expenditures are reported when goods and services are received and the related liabilities are incurred.
Financial reporting for its Enterprise Fund (i.e., the Country Club operation) is presented using the full
accrual basis of accounting required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for its annual
financial report. The Country Club annual budget is adopted using a modified accrual basis of accounting
(identical to the general government operations mentioned above) which is consistent with how general
ledger financial records are maintained throughout the year by the Village administration.
In developing and evaluating the Village's financial and accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls which are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance regarding: (a) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition
and (b) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability
for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (a) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (b) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.
All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the Village's internal
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording
of financial transactions.
The Village of North Palm Beach maintains budgetary controls through the annual budget public hearing
and approval process for GAAP-based budgets. The formal budget approval for each fiscal year is
accomplished in a manner compliant with Florida State Statute 200.065, commonly referred to as Truthin-Millage (TRIM).

ii

The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which management cannot overspend the budget
without the approval of the Village Council) is established at the fund level. The Village maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. All expenditures,
other than personal services, are controlled by a procurement system which encumbers purchase orders
against the budget prior to issuance to vendors. All appropriations lapse at year end; however,
encumbrances specifically designated to be carried over to the subsequent year are re-appropriated in
the following year.
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK
Property Values
The Village obtains a major portion of its annual General Fund financial resources (58%) from ad valorem
property taxes. Gross assessed property values increased substantially between the years 2002 through
2006, but slowed significantly in 2007. In years 2008 through 2012, area property values declined in
value, in many instances significantly, as a result of the economic downturn. This unprecedented decline
in property values was exacerbated by the number of properties in various stages of foreclosure. Both of
these real-estate issues have had an adverse impact upon the financial resources of the Village.
However, based on market trends in 2013 as well as in early 2014, it appears that there is new growth in
our community. Both the State and South Florida, in particular, are enjoying resurgence in real estate
activity, which has translated into annual gains in market prices for area homes.
The Village continues to pursue annexation of surrounding unincorporated areas that complement and
enhance the services and values of our existing community. The focus of Village annexation efforts will
be to provide exemplary municipal services that are revenue “neutral” to both the annexed areas and to
the Village.
Investment Revenues
The economic downturn and softening of the money market have had a significant impact on Village
investment revenues over the past few years. In the short-term, the Village made a conscious decision
to modify its investment strategies towards the Treasury market to better protect and ensure the
availability of the Village’s investment balances. This move proved successful in safeguarding Village
investments during this market free fall but impacted the interest/dividend revenues to the Village. The
Village, with the assistance of the Village’s Audit Committee, adopted a “revised” Investment Policy
designed to provide safety and liquidity while maximizing investment return(s). The newly adopted policy
provided numerous investment strategies, parameters, and safeguards. The policy additionally provided
for 1/12 of the annual operating budget to be deposited in a liquid interest-bearing account so as not to
impede operations should other funds be temporarily unavailable. The Audit Committee and staff, along
with the Village’s Investment Advisor, continue to explore other investment opportunities that will improve
yields in future years while still ensuring the safety of our investments.
Personnel Costs
The Village will continue to face increased financial challenges in the areas of personnel costs for both
salaries and benefits. In past years, several retirement plan amendments were implemented by the
Village and then followed by significant salary adjustments that magnified the impact and cost of the
retirement changes. The impact of these changes as well as the continuous improvement in the financial
markets have had a very positive financial impact on both plans. Due to legislative changes and
catastrophic claims losses, the Village has encountered significant increases in annual health insurance
costs during the past few years. In 2018, the Village introduced a high deductible insurance plan along
with funding health saving accounts, is exploring the use of contractual health clinic services for its
employees and will continue its focus on Employee Wellness as a measure to help control health care
costs and improve our opportunity for additional savings from our providers.
iii

The impact of personnel salaries and benefits in the coming years will have a broad and continuing effect
on future Village financing and service priorities in the areas of staffing, public services, and public
projects. Approximately 63% of the annual budget is allotted for wages and fringe benefits.
INITIATIVES AND FUTURE PROJECTS
The FY 2019 budget reflects a renewed commitment and predictable funding for community infrastructure
in areas such as roadways, neighborhood sidewalks, lighting, public buildings, and park facilities. The
use of revenue from a County-wide sales surtax is facilitating the Village’s ability to develop a financially
feasible capital program.
The Community Development Department provides Planning and Zoning, Code Compliance and
Building services. The Department continues to strive to improve its level of services for plan reviews,
building inspections, code enforcement and zoning compliance. The Department will move ahead with
the conversion of paper records to electronic records storage, resulting in a significant savings of staff’s
time and effort in records retrieval.
Upon completion of a design charrette process in which North Palm Beach residents described their
vision for the community’s future, the Village adopted the resulting Master Plan in 2016 that described
the desired character of future development and redevelopment. Having in place a viable Master Plan,
as well as a clear definition of the highest and best use of properties on U.S. 1 and Northlake Boulevard,
will encourage developers to invest in the community creating an enhanced sense of place and
culminating in increased Village revenues. The Village is actively implementing the Master Plan strategies
as well as undertaking additional planning initiatives to include the Evaluation and Appraisal Report for
the Comprehensive Plan. Significant initiatives include the creation of a form-based code to encourage
redevelopment in the Village’s commercial corridors, which will be completed in 2019, the study of the
US1 Corridor to determine if two of the roadway’s six lanes should be repurposed for landscaping and/or
bicycle and pedestrian traffic and the redesign of the US1 and Prosperity Farms Road Bridges to serve
as architectural features signaling the entry into the community.
The Parks and Recreation Department continues to offer programs for all age groups at each of its six
(6) facilities. Anchorage Park will host diverse events in the upcoming year to include: movies in the park,
food truck nights, 5K races, organized volleyball leagues, the Village’s annual fishing tournament, and
Heritage Day. The North Palm Beach Country Club Pool and Tennis facilities plan to offer a wide variety
of leagues, training opportunities and tournaments as well as the July 4th fireworks program. In addition,
the Department will provide youth sports training and leagues in baseball, soccer, flag football, volleyball,
lacrosse and basketball. The Department will continue to sponsor bus trips throughout the year, ranging
from local day activities to weekend excursions to Key West. The Department will review all of its
programming and facilities as part of a Parks and Recreation Master Plan, which is scheduled to be
completed during the fiscal year.
The Public Works Department is tasked with the oversight and management of Village sanitation,
infrastructure, streets, parks, buildings, equipment, and the roadways. This Department’s current focus
is on enhancing infrastructure maintenance standards and meeting the community’s expectation
regarding the appearance of public spaces during the coming year. Department staff will also be
analyzing all critical infrastructure needs throughout the community and in our facilities to determine
future project priorities and identify opportunities to improve performance through the use of best
maintenance practices. Public Works will address currently identified infrastructure projects such as
drainage improvements, road maintenance, and parks improvements in the five (5) year Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP).
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The Police Department has focused on improvements in community policing/neighborhood outreach by
conducting community meetings and high visibility directed patrols that incorporate a high rate of officer
interaction with Village residents. The Department continues to emphasize the importance of reducing
crime in the Village through the use of advanced technology to analyze crime trends and deter future
crime using predictive policing concepts. Additional crime suppression and community engagement
efforts through the use of Transitional Neighborhood Teams and the newly created, interdepartmental
Neighborhood Enhancement Team (NET). Two new full-time officers were funded in the FY 2018 budget
in order to create this program, which allows officers and other members of the NET team to concentrate
their efforts in neighborhoods requiring assistance in achieving their quality of life goals. The Department
continues to benchmark itself against the best policing practices by participating in the CALEA
(Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies) accreditation process. The Department
was re-accredited in July, 2017.
Fire Rescue has experienced an annual increase in calls for service since 2011 with the majority (77%)
being medical in nature. The Department continues to support the annual Hands-Only CPR initiative as
a charter provider. The fire inspector provides existing business inspections, fire code enforcement, and
plans review and site inspections of new projects. This proactive approach to fire prevention has resulted
in decreased incidents of commercial responses. Through the CIP, the Department anticipates replacing
older apparatus on a rolling schedule that will allow it to maintain high quality service to the Village’s
residents and guests.
The Human Resources Department is committed to fostering a work environment that attracts quality
applicants and encourages employees to perform at the highest level in support of the Village's goals
and objectives. In accordance with the Council's direction to "continuously improve the way the Village
operates", the Department strives to promulgate policies and procedures that are consistent across all
administrative functions while remaining current, relevant and compliant with local, state and federal labor
and personnel laws. Having implemented a new performance evaluation system for personnel in the Fire
Rescue Department in 2016, Human Resources expanded the pay for performance initiative to
encompass other employee groups in 2017, specifically to include Police Department personnel. The
Department will enhance the initiative’s effectiveness by focusing evaluation criteria on those that best
measure employees’ adherence to the organization’s values, their ability to perform their key functions
and, in some cases, their display of extraordinary effort or innovation to achieve the Village Council’s
goals for the organization or the community. In addition, Human Resources will focus on offering diverse
training programs and related opportunities to staff members in the areas of Business Etiquette and
Professionalism, Cultural Diversity, Conflict Resolution, Office Safety, Progressive Discipline, DrugFree/Alcohol-Free Workplace, and Leadership skills.. Lastly, the Department, in its role of managing
Workers' Compensation (W/C) cases in conjunction with the W/C insurance carrier, is working with the
Gehring Group's risk management team, as well as the newly established Employee Safety Committee,
to seek solutions to reduce instances of injury, lower W/C costs and provide a more positive claims
experience for all stakeholders.
The Library is focused on building a strategic relationship with The Conservatory School. To accomplish
this, initial steps include issuing each student a Library card and having classes visit the Library weekly
to checkout materials and listen to stories. The Library is currently streamlining processes and
procedures, upgrading outdated equipment, and reorganizing various departments. Additionally,
renovations within the Library to create a better experience for children and teens were recently
completed.
The Information Technology Department has been involved in numerous projects over the last year:
preparing the Village for Phase Two of the LPR (License Plate Recognition) systems, Police laptop
encryption, Country Club renovation and installations for temporary facilities, Library computer lab
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automation, and upgrading the Village’s phone system. The IT Department also implemented
ArchiveSocial to retrieve and archive all of the Village’s social media outlets.
The North Palm Beach Country Club is undergoing a multi-million dollar renovation that includes a new
clubhouse and ancillary facilities for members, residents, guests, and non-members alike. The new
facility will have new dining options, a splash park for juniors, updated administrative offices, a new pool
deck with updated shade structures, multipurpose rooms, locker rooms and an updated golf shop sizable
to the demand of a golf course that supports approximately 42,000+ annual rounds. The goal of the Golf
Operations Department is to provide first class service at the Jack Nicklaus Signature municipal facility
and expand upon its broad range of programming to juniors, women, seniors, beginners, families as well
as avid golfers. The Clubhouse will be opened by October, 2019. The Golf Operations Department also
worked with Nicklaus Design Group to implement a project to renovate the golf course and upgrade the
driving range turf and lighting at a cost of approximately $1.7 million. The driving range opened in
February, 2019. The course opened to members and guests in mid-March and will open to the public on
April 1, 2019.
For Fiscal Year 2018-2019, the Village Council reiterated its primary objective to sustain the Village as
the “Best Place to Live Under the Sun.” As part of that objective, the Council developed the following
goals to guide the budget process:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Financial Sustainability
Beautification and Quality of Life
All Neighborhoods as Desirable Places to Live
Waterways and Recreation
Strong Local Economy
Improve Mobility
Organizational Excellence

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit
Article 11, Section 2.18 of the Village Charter requires an annual audit of the books of account, financial
records and transactions of all administrative departments of the Village by independent, certified public
accountants selected by the Village Council. To substantiate that this requirement has been met, the
independent auditor's report is included in this report.
Awards
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of North Palm Beach
for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the 30th
consecutive year the Village has received this award. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious
national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the governmental unit
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We expect our current CAFR will meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.
The GFOA also presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the Village for its annual
budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2017, the 10th consecutive year the Village has received
this award (previously this award had not been received since 1995). The Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award is a prestigious national award that recognizes conformance with the highest
principles of governmental budgeting. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy
document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communication device.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Village Council
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of North Palm Beach, Florida as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village of North Palm
Beach, Florida’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
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for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of North Palm Beach,
Florida as of September 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
Change in Accounting Principal
As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018. The beginning net position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and the Enterprise Fund as of October 1, 2017 has been restated. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 13, Pension and Other
Postemployment Benefit trend information on pages 77 through 81, and budgetary comparison
information on pages 82 through 83 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, other supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The Introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 11, 2019, on our consideration of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of
North Palm Beach, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

West Palm Beach, Florida
March 11, 2019
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s (Village) Administration offers readers of the Village's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal
letter beginning on page i, and the accompanying basic financial statements.
TABLE 1
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(in millions)
September 30,
2018
2017
Total net position
$24.30
$23.36
Unrestricted net position available for future use
$6.71
$6.90
Governmental net position
$22.57
$21.01
Total revenues from all sources
$28.40
$26.25
Governmental revenues
$26.13
$23.29
Total cost of all Village programs
$27.10
$26.36
Governmental revenues over (under) expenses
$1.94
($0.17)
General fund revenues over (under) expenses
$1.11
$0.76
General fund unassigned fund balance
$7.28
$11.81
As a percent of general fund expenditures
30.92%
54.99%
Country Club revenues over (under) expenses
($0.64)
$0.05
Change in total long-term debt for the Village
($0.99)
$14.56

Increase/
Statement
(Decrease)
Page #
$0.94
14
($0.19)
14
$1.56
14
$2.15
15
$2.84
15
$0.74
15
$2.11
16
$0.35
19
($4.53)
17
-24.07%
($0.69)
22
($15.55)

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of the financial
statements are: (1) Government-wide financial statements that include the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. These statements provide information about the activities of the Village as a
whole. (2) Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short term, as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Village's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the Village's most significant
funds. (3) Notes to the basic financial statements expand upon information reported in the governmentwide and governmental fund statements.
REPORTING ON THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)
A frequently asked question regarding the Village's financial health is whether the year's activities
contributed positively to the overall financial well being. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities report information about the Village as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps
answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into
account, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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These two statements report the Village's net position and changes therein. Net position, the difference
between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, is
one way to measure the Village's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position are an indicator of whether the financial health is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present information about the following:
•

Governmental activities - All of the Village's basic services are considered to be governmental
activities, including general government, community development, public safety, public services,
library, and recreation. Property taxes, sales taxes, utility taxes, and franchise fees finance most of
these activities.

•

Proprietary activities/Business-type activities - The Village charges a fee to customers to cover all
or most of the cost of the services provided. The Village's Country Club is reported in this
category.
REPORTING THE VILLAGE'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the
Village as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, management
establishes other funds, which aid in the management of money for particular purposes or meet legal
responsibilities associated with the usage of certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Village's three
types of funds - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - use different accounting approaches as
explained below.
•

Governmental Funds
Most of the Village's basic services are reported in governmental funds. Governmental funds
focus on how resources flow in and out, with balances available for spending remaining at yearend. These funds are reported using an accounting method called the modified accrual accounting
method, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be converted to cash readily.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Village's general
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information shows
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the Village's programs.
The Village maintains seven individual governmental funds: the General Fund, one Capital
Projects Fund, and five Special Revenue Funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the General Fund, the Infrastructure Surtax Fund,
and the Capital Projects Fund all of which are considered major funds (generally accepted
accounting principles define a fund as major based on that fund’s size relative to the other funds
of the government; a fund may also be reported as major if the government's officials believe that
fund is particularly important to financial statement users). The remaining funds are considered
non-major funds, and data from these governmental funds is combined into a single column for
an aggregated presentation. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on
pages 17-20 of this report.
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•

Proprietary Funds
The Village's only proprietary fund is the Country Club Fund, which charges customers for the
services it provides. These services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages
21-23 of this report.

•

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The funds in this category are the Village’s Pension Trust Funds and Agency Funds.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the Village's own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund
financial statements can be found on pages 24-25 of this report.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net positon may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of the Village, the net position was $24.30 million at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.
A significant portion of the Village's net position (70.42%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding, which was used to
acquire those assets. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.
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Table 2
Village of North Palm Beach
Net Position
(In Thousands)
Governmental
Business-type
Activities
Activities
2018
2017
2018
2017
Assets:
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets

$ 28,457
18,361
46,818

$ 30,326
14,479
44,805

2,782

4,044

2,030
20,973
23,003

1,248
24,720
25,968

161
1,996
2,157

4,025

1,867

54

Net positon:
Net investement in capital assets
15,429
Restricted
485
Unrestricted
6,659
Total net position
$ 22,573

13,485
992
6,536
$ 21,013

1,685

1,991

46
$ 1,731

362
$ 2,353

Deferred outflows of resources:
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:

$ (1,053)
4,996
3,943

$

655
4,238
4,893

149
2,391
2,540

Total
2018

2017

$ 27,404
23,357
50,761

$ 30,981
18,717
49,698

2,782

4,044

2,191
22,969
25,160

1,397
27,111
28,508

4,079

1,867

17,114
485
6,705
$ 24,304

15,476
992
6,898
$ 23,366

Governmental Activities
The cost of all governmental activities this year was $24.19 million. As shown on Table 3, Changes in
Net Position, those who directly benefited from the programs paid for $3.57 million of this cost and
$22.56 million was financed through general revenues. Governmental activities increased the Village's
net position by $1.94 million, thereby accounting for 100% of the total increase in the net position of the
Village.
Additional detail is shown in Table 3, which follows on the subsequent page.
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Table 3
Village of North Palm Beach
Changes in Net Position
(In Thousands)
Governmental
Business-type
Activities
Activities
2018
2017
2018
2017
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Local option gas taxes
Local option infrastructure surtax
Utility service taxes
Sales and use taxes
Franchise taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Gain on asset disposals
Total revenues
Expenses:
Program expenses:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Leisure Services
Interest on long-term debt
Country Club
Total expenses
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position - beginning of year (1)
Net position - end of year
(1) As restated

$ 3,571
422
10

$ 3,484
377
102

15,003
302
880
2,512
1,413
1,294
376
269
75
26,127

13,092
306
553
2,414
1,371
1,307
127
151
7
23,291

3,214
10,046
5,911
1,459
3,058
500

3,206
9,906
5,707
1,255
3,115
267

24,188

23,456
(165)
21,178
$ 21,013

1,939
20,634
$ 22,573
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$

$

2,255

$

2,946

Total
2018

$

5,826
422
10

$ 6,430
377
102
13,092
306
553
2,414
1,371
1,307
137
151
7
26,247

3,206
9,906
5,707
1,255
3,115
267
2,903
26,359

14

10

2,269

2,956

15,003
302
880
2,512
1,413
1,294
390
269
75
28,396

2,913
2,913

2,903
2,903

3,214
10,046
5,911
1,459
3,058
500
2,913
27,101

(644)
2,376
1,732

53
2,300
2,353

1,295
23,010
$ 24,305

$

2017

(112)
23,478
$ 23,366

The Village's programs include General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Community
Development & Planning, and Leisure Services. Each program's net cost (total cost, less revenues
generated by the activities) is presented below. The net cost shows the extent to which the Village's
general taxes support each of the Village's programs.
Table 4
Village of North Palm Beach
Cost of services
(In Thousands)

General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Leisure services
Interest on long-term debt

2018
Total Cost
Net Cost
of Services of Services

2017
Total Cost
Net Cost
of Services of Services

$

$

$

3,214
10,046
5,911
1,459
3,058
500
24,188

$

(2,997)
(9,179)
(5,385)
37
(2,160)
(500)
$ (20,184)

$

3,206
9,906
5,707
1,255
3,115
267
23,456

$

(3,068)
(9,013)
(5,124)
(32)
(1,988)
(267)
$ (19,492)

At the end of the current year, as compared to the prior year, the total cost of services increased by $0.73
million. This increase is primarily due to increased interest and personnel related costs.
Business-Type Activities
At the end of the current year, as compared to the prior year, Charges for Services (revenues) for the
Business-type activities decreased by $0.69 million and expenses increased by $0.01 million. Net positon
of the Proprietary Fund (Country Club) at September 30, 2018, were $1.73 million. Net position
decreased by $0.64 million.
The negative impact in the Village’s Business-type activities was largely due to the Country Club
clubhouse construction and golf course renovation projects. The closure of both facilities disrupted the
Country Club’s ability to deliver services and resulted in significant revenue loss in the Country Club.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Village's financing
requirements. In particular, unrestricted (unassigned/assigned) fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the combined fund balance for all Governmental Funds was $26.36
million, a $2.78 million decrease from the 2017 fund balance of $29.14 million. Approximately 49% of
the combined ending fund balance ($12.97 million) constitutes unrestricted (unassigned/assigned) fund
balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance
($13.39 million) is restricted (non-spendable/restricted) to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed for a variety of other restricted purposes.
General Fund
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $7.28 million while the General Fund total fund
balance was $9.24 million. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance
is 31% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 39% of that same amount.
The general fund unassigned fund balance ($7.28 million) represents a decrease of $4.53 million from the
2017 unassigned general fund balance of $11.81 million. Key elements of this decrease are listed below:
•

Use of General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance (General Fund Reserves) to finance a portion of
the following projects:
o Country Club Clubhouse project ($3.92 million)
o Public Safety Roof project ($0.39 million)

•

The repayment schedule on the $15 million loan to reconstruct the clubhouse began this fiscal
year. Without revenues from the operation of the Country Club, the General Fund is temporarily
servicing the debt on its own.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $5,527,789 and can be briefly
summarized as follows:
•
•
•
•

Grant Match ($50,000)
Prior Year Open Purchase Order Carryover ($755,281)
Use of Developer Fees ($252,000)
Transfers out to the Capital Projects Fund to provide funding for the following projects:
o Public Safety Roof project ($547,981)
o Country Club Clubhouse project ($3,922,527)

General Fund Budget Analysis
As shown on pages 84-86 of this report, in the Schedule of Departmental Expenditures – Budget and
Actual, there was an overall favorable budget to actual cost variance of $518,076 in General Fund
Departmental Expenditures. This is primarily a result of several unfinished projects at fiscal year-end that
were carried over into the following fiscal year ($391,427); savings in personnel costs ($77,928) as a
result of several position vacancies; and savings in operating costs ($117,686) as a result of departments
holding the line on operating costs.
Capital Projects Fund
The Village’s Capital Projects Fund is project specific and involves multi-year projects. Appropriations in
this fund remain open and carry over to succeeding years until planned expenditures are made, or until
they are amended or cancelled. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance was $17.07
million, a $1.96 million increase over the 2017 fund balance of $15.10 million. This is primarily due to a
transfer in from the General Fund unassigned fund balance to finance the Country Club Clubhouse
project.
Infrastructure Surtax Fund
The Village’s Infrastructure Surtax Fund is used to account for surtax proceeds. On November 8, 2016
PBC voters approved a one-cent sales surtax, raising the sales tax from 6% to 7% effective January 1,
2017. The surtax will sunset on December 31, 2026. The use of surtax proceeds is restricted to, among
other things, the financing, planning and construction of infrastructure. Appropriations in this fund
remain open and carry over to succeeding years until planned expenditures are made, or until they are
amended or cancelled. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance was $0.16 million.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The capital assets of the Village are those assets that are used in the performance of Village functions.
Capital assets include equipment, buildings, land, and park facilities etc. The Village has elected to
retroactively apply the capitalization requirements of GASB Statement No 34 to major general
infrastructure assets acquired in fiscal years ending after June 30, 1980, or that were significantly
reconstructed or improved during that multiyear period.
The Village's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounts to $23.36 million and $18.72 million, respectively (net of
accumulated depreciation).

11

Table 5
Village of North Palm Beach
Capital Assets
(In Thousands)
Governmental
Activities
2018
2017
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Total assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Net position

$ 2,056
5,334
23,973
8,253
39,616
(21,255)
$ 18,361

Business-type
Activities
2018
2017

$ 2,056
1,171
23,577
8,072
34,876
(20,397)
$ 14,479

$ 1,051
1,591
6,538
212
9,392
(4,396)
$ 4,996

Total

$ 1,051
228
7,551
308
9,138
(4,900)
$ 4,238

2018

2017

$ 3,107
6,925
30,511
8,465
49,008
(25,651)
$ 23,357

$ 3,107
1,399
31,128
8,380
44,014
(25,297)
$ 18,717

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 46 through 47 of
this report.

Debt
Currently, the Village uses debt financing on an as-needed basis each year. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the Village had total long-term debt of $16.26 million; $14.32 million in the governmental activities
and $1.94 million in business-type activities. None of the Village’s long-term debt comprises debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the government.
Table 6
Village of North Palm Beach
Outstanding Debt
(In Thousands)
Governmental
Activities
2018
2017
Loans payable
Total

$ 14,320
$ 14,320

$ 15,000
$ 15,000

Business-type
Activities
2018
2017
$
$

1,939
1,939

$
$

2,247
2,247

Total
2018

2017

$ 16,259
$ 16,259

$ 17,247
$ 17,247

Additional information on the Village's debt can be found in Note 6 on pages 48 through 50 of this report.

12

NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS
The Village’s Unassigned Fund Balance is viewed by the Administration as a measurement of Village
financial stability. Unassigned general fund balance decreased to $7.28 million during the current 2018
fiscal year. The decrease is primarily due to providing additional funds for the Country Club Clubhouse
Project.
The FY 2018/19 Budget reflects continued improvement to citizen services, public safety, and public
facility maintenance while emphasizing improved community appearance and financial stability. The
Village’s operating millage rate was increased from 7.3300 mils to 7.5000 mils. The millage increase
was approved as a means to address potential increases associated with public safety union contracts and
preparation for a significant revenue loss should Amendment 1 be approved by Florida voters.
The Village’s financial plan represents an aggressive approach to adequately maintain infrastructure and
address gaps in the organization in order to deliver services to the community while completing the North
Palm Beach Country Club clubhouse construction and golf course renovation projects. Continued work
to build a new clubhouse and renovate the golf course will result in reduced Country Club revenues due to
the closure of both facilities at different times and the need for the General Fund to support debt service
associated with the projects until the Country Club returns to full operation. Increasing property
valuations and continued state and national economic growth, however, will blunt the impact of these
short-term facility closures to the annual financial plan.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the Village's finances and to show the Village's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Village's Finance Department, at the Village of North Palm Beach, 501 U.S. Highway 1, North Palm
Beach, Florida 33408.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2018
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest
Inventories
Prepaids
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (net of depreciation)
Total assets

$

5,148,069
9,117,772
411,407
33,485
133,878
6,408
361,593
1,371,447

$

229,836

Total

$

363
79,985
8,296

3,926,016
7,947,338

7,390,123
10,970,575
46,818,111

2,642,793
2,353,288
3,943,114

10,032,916
13,323,863
50,761,225

2,782,318
2,782,318

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred revenue
Other postemployement benefits related items
Pension related items
Total deferred inflows of resources

2,782,318
2,782,318

1,525,527
213,316
137,417
153,720

69,011

1,857,710
19,115,278
23,002,968

333,203
1,662,529
2,157,193

$

See notes to the financial statements.
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2,190,913
20,777,807
25,160,161

54,184

171,600
1,806,119
2,101,130
4,078,849

1,685,268

17,114,752

46,469
1,731,737

279,302
158,123
13,778
33,365
6,705,213
24,304,533

54,184

15,429,484

$

1,594,538
213,316
229,867
153,720

92,450

171,600
1,751,935
2,101,130
4,024,665

279,302
158,123
13,778
33,365
6,658,744
22,572,796

5,377,905
9,117,772
411,770
33,485
213,863
14,704
361,593

(1,371,447)

3,926,016
7,947,338

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related items
Total deferred outflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Recreation
Infrastructure
Library
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net position

Business-type
Activities

$

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Functions/Programs

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Government:
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development and planning
Leisure services
Interest expense
Total governmental activities

$

Business-type activities - country club
Total business-type activities

3,213,886
10,045,757
5,911,225
1,458,523
3,058,410
499,929
24,187,730

$

3,571,221

2,912,523
2,912,523

Total government

$

15

27,100,253

140,998
548,019
510,732
1,495,298
876,174

2,254,638
2,254,638
$

5,825,859

Program Revenues

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

$

$

75,654
309,600
15,394

Net Expense (Revenue) and

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

Changes in Net Position
Governmental
Business-type
Activities
Activities

$

$
9,111

21,607

480

422,255

9,591

422,255 $

9,591

(2,997,234)
(9,179,027)
(5,385,099)
36,775
(2,160,149)
(499,929)
(20,184,663)

$

(20,184,663)

$

Total

(2,997,234)
(9,179,027)
(5,385,099)
36,775
(2,160,149)
(499,929)
(20,184,663)

(657,885)
(657,885)

(657,885)
(657,885)

(657,885)

(20,842,548)

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Local option gas taxes
Local option infrastruture surtax
Utility service taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales and use taxes
Investment income - unrestricted
Miscellaneous
Gain on disposal of equipment

15,003,141
302,208
879,565
2,511,877
1,294,280
1,413,335
376,227
268,471
74,449

Total general revenues

22,123,553

13,874

22,137,427

Change in net position

1,938,890

(644,011)

1,294,879

Net position, beginning of year as restated
Net position, end of year

13,874

20,633,906
$

22,572,796

2,375,748
$

1,731,737

See notes to the financial statements.
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15,003,141
302,208
879,565
2,511,877
1,294,280
1,413,335
390,101
268,471
74,449

23,009,654
$

24,304,533

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2018

General
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest
Inventories
Prepaids
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Due from other governments
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Total assets

$

Infrastructure
Surtax
Fund

$

67,151

Capital
Projects
Fund

$ 4,744,105

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

336,813

$

$

336,813

5,148,069
9,117,772
411,407
33,485
133,878
6,408
1,144,535
1,371,447
361,593
3,926,016
7,947,338
$ 29,601,948

$

403,558

$

9,117,772
411,407
33,485
133,878
6,408
1,144,535
1,371,447
280,081
47,338
$ 11,401,816

81,512
158,123
$

306,786

3,767,893
7,900,000
$ 17,556,533

$

148,663

$

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

$

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred revenue
Unavailable revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources
Fund balances
Nonspendable:
Inventories and prepaids
Advances to other funds
Restricted for:
Country club project
Recreation
Infrastructure
Streets and roads
Police
Library
Other purposes
Assigned for:
Small business grants
Subsequent year's expenditures
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

482,911
213,316
1,100,507
137,417
1,934,151

490,395

44,028
148,663

490,395

447,586

1,525,527
213,316
1,144,535
137,417
3,020,795

171,600
52,657
224,257

171,600
52,657
224,257

140,286
1,371,447

140,286
1,371,447
11,388,786
279,107

195

11,388,786
279,302
158,123
25,645
4,947
13,778
2,773

158,123
25,645
4,947
13,778
2,773
16,435
391,427
3,506
5,398,245
7,276,475
9,243,408
$ 11,401,816

$

158,123

17,066,138

306,786

$ 17,556,533

See notes to the financial statements.
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(114,279)
(110,773)
$

336,813

16,435
391,427
3,506
5,398,245
7,162,196
26,356,896
$ 29,601,948

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2018

Fund balances - total governmental funds

$ 26,356,896

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:
Governmental capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

$ 39,615,919
(21,255,221)
18,360,698

Governmental funds report revenues when earned and available.
However, in the Statement of Activities, revenues are recongnized when
earned, regardlesss of availability.
Current year unavailable grant revenue
Long-term liabilities, including notes and bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds. Long term liabilities at year-end consist of:
Accrued interest payable
Revenue notes
Net pension liability
Other postemployement benefits
Accrued compensated absences

52,657

(153,720)
(14,320,000)
(3,843,124)
(1,399,684)
(1,410,180)
(21,126,708)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the
govenmental funds:
Other postemployement benefits deferred inflows
Pension related deferred outflows
Pension related deferred inflows

(1,751,935)
2,782,318
(2,101,130)
(1,070,747)

Net position of governmental activities

$ 22,572,796

See notes to the financial statements.
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

General
Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$ 19,111,506
1,222,594
1,482,113
2,200,860
100,140
112,809
412,513
24,642,535

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development and planning
Leisure services - recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

$

$

Net change in fund balances

(3,849,302)

$

13,092,710
9,243,408

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$
317,711

10,939

252,479

890,504

252,479

1,286,985

1,286,985

1,114,005

(4,963,307)
(4,963,307)

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

317,711

(396,481)

(396,481)

$

554,604
158,123

558,865

3,203,984

867,465

680,000
613,101
28,886,964

(2,951,505)

(549,754)

(2,783,735)

4,913,307

50,000

4,963,307
(4,963,307)

4,913,307

50,000

1,961,802

(499,754)

3,203,984

15,104,336
$ 17,066,138

See notes to the financial statements.
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19,111,506
1,222,594
2,679,389
2,200,860
100,140
376,227
412,513
26,103,229

3,059,623
9,669,361
5,313,834
1,429,764
2,613,664
5,507,617

308,600

680,000
613,101
23,528,530

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Capital
Projects
Fund

879,565

3,059,623
9,360,761
5,313,834
1,429,764
2,613,664
457,783

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balances
Beginning of year
End of year

Infrastructure
Surtax
Fund

$

388,981
(110,773)

(2,783,735)

$

29,140,631
26,356,896

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$ (2,783,735)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of capital
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense:
Expenditures for capital assets
Less: current year depreciation
Net book value for retired assets

$ 5,459,349
(1,548,008)
(29,266)
3,882,075

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any affect on net assets of governmental activities:
Principal payments on debt

680,000

Governmental funds report revenues when earned and
available. However, in the Statement of Activities, revenues are
recognized when earned, regardless of availability:
Current year unavailable grant revenue
Expenses that do not use current financial resources are not
reported on the governmental funds but are included in the
statement of activities:
Change in accrued interest payable
Change in long-term compensated absences
Change in net pension liability and related deferred amounts
Change in other postemployment benefits and deferred amounts

52,657

113,172
(74,399)
106,407
(37,287)
107,893

Change in net position

$ 1,938,890

See notes to the financial statements.
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2018

Enterprise
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaids
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets, net
Total non-current assets

$

229,836
363
79,985
8,296
318,480
4,996,081
4,996,081

Total assets

5,314,561

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences - current portion
Loans payable - current portion
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other postemployement benefits
Compensated absences
Advances from other funds
Loans payable
Total non-current liabilities

69,011
92,450
12,526
320,677
494,664
43,290
550
1,371,447
1,618,689
3,033,976

Total liabilities

3,528,640

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred
Other postemployement
revenue
benefits related items

54,184

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

1,685,268
46,469

Total net position

$ 1,731,737

See notes to the financial statements.
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Enterprise
Operating revenue
Greens fee/cart rentals/membership fees
Golf shop revenues
Driving range revenues
Restaurant revenues
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

$ 1,743,759
217,147
276,244
17,488
2,254,638

Operating expenses
Golf course maintenance expenses
Clubhouse grounds expenses
Golf shop expenses
Food and beverage expenses
Administrative and general
Insurance
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

1,159,941
68,349
811,743
46,201
98,968
42,711
323,964
2,551,877

Operating income (loss)

(297,239)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest revenue
Loss on disposal of equipment
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

13,874
(262,426)
(98,220)
(346,772)

Change in net position

(644,011)

Net position - beginning as restated

2,375,748

Net position - ending

$ 1,731,737

See notes to the financial statements.
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Enterprise
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers for goods or services
Payments to employees for services
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Advance from the general fund
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Principal paid on long term debt
Interest paid on debt
Acquisition of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

2,254,978
(1,662,403)
(530,354)
62,221

1,363,664
19,449
(307,722)
(90,437)
(1,363,664)
(378,710)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends on investments

13,874

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(302,615)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$

532,451
229,836

$

(297,239)

Reconciliation of operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Change in OPEB liability and related deferred amounts
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventory
Decrease in prepaids
Increase in accounts payable
Decrease in compensated absences payable
Decrease in deferred revenue
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to the financial statements.
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323,964
1,154

$

11,378
20,652
1,722
23,431
(11,803)
(11,038)
359,460
62,221

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2018

Employee
Retirement
Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments:
Domestic common equity securities
International common equity securities
U.S. Government and agencies
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds
Fixed income exchange traded funds
Equity exchange traded funds
Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Real estate investment fund
Money market mutual funds
Accrued interest and dividends
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Total assets

771,513

Agency
Funds
$

11,860,443
2,476,906
2,515,737
282,652
2,973,597
2,776,601
3,378,078
2,824,913
7,098,518
2,560,739
1,560,240
60,313
329,642
6,408
41,476,300

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to others
Total liabilities

373,617

373,617

52,371
373,617
373,617

52,371

Net position restricted for pensions

$ 41,423,929

See notes to the financial statements.
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$

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018
Employee
Retirement
Funds
Additions
Contributions
Employer
Plan members
State on-behalf payments
Total contributions

$ 1,274,511
331,073
308,600
1,914,184

Investment earnings
Dividends and interest
Net increase in fair value
of investments

1,003,704
2,049,428

Total investment earnings

3,053,132

Less: investment expenses

224,638

Total net investment earnings

2,828,494

Total additions

4,742,678

Deductions
Administrative expense
Benefits
Total deductions

99,888
1,223,344
1,323,232

Change in net position

3,419,446

Net position - beginning

38,004,483

Net position - ending

$ 41,423,929

See notes to the financial statements.
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida (“the Village”) was incorporated in 1956 pursuant to
Chapter 31481, Laws of Florida, Extraordinary Session 1956. The Village is located in the
northeast portion of Palm Beach County, Florida. Its municipal area comprises approximately
1,900 acres of land and 1,200 acres of lakes, canals and lagoons. The Village’s nonseasonal
population consists of approximately 13,000 residents, which increases during the winter months
to approximately 18,000 people. The Village operates under the Council-Manager form of
government and provides the following services to its residents: public safety, planning and
zoning, sanitation, library, parks, marinas, and a country club. The Village Council (the
“Council”) is responsible for legislative and fiscal control of the Village.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements include the
Village (the primary government) and its component units. Component units are legally separate
entities for which the Village is financially accountable. The Village is financially accountable if:
•

•

it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) it is able to
impose its will on the organization, or (2) there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Village,
or
the organization is fiscally dependent on the Village and (1) there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to the Village or (2) impose specific
financial burdens on the Village.

Organizations for which the Village is not financially accountable are also included when doing
so is necessary in order to prevent the Town’s financial statements from being misleading.
Based upon application of the above criteria, the Village of North Palm Beach has determined
that there are two legally separate entities to consider as potential component units. The Village
of North Palm Beach General Employees’ Retirement Fund and the Village of North Palm Beach
Fire and Police Retirement Fund are component units as they are fiscally dependent on and
impose a specific financial burden on the Village. They are reported in the Village’s financial
statements as pension trust funds in the fiduciary funds financial statements.
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the Village. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activities has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges
for support.
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements are reported
using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus. Fiduciary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting and, except for agency funds, the economic resources
measurement focus. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the Village considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental revenue, investment
income, and charges for services are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All other revenues are considered to be
measurable and available only when received in cash by the Village.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
The Village reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund
The general fund is the primary operating fund and is used to account for all financial resources
applicable to the general operations of the Village except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.
Infrastructure Surtax Fund
The Infrastructure Surtax Fund is special revenue fund used to account for the surtax proceeds
which are restricted to, among other things, the financing, planning and construction of
infrastructure.
Capital Projects Fund
The capital projects fund is used to account for the cost of acquiring, constructing, and placing
into service those capital improvements, which are associated with activities in the General
Fund.
The Village reports the following major (and only) proprietary fund:
Country Club Enterprise Fund
The fund accounts for the activities related to the Country Club.
Additionally, the Village reports the following fund types:
Special Revenue Funds
The Village has four special revenue funds to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific sources. The funds are the Public
Safety Fund, Northlake Boulevard Fund, Recreation, and On-Behalf Pension Contributions.
Employee Retirement Funds
The pension trust funds account for the activities of the General Employees Retirement Fund and
the Fire and Police Officers Retirement Fund, which accumulate resources for pension benefits
to qualified employees.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
Agency Funds
The Agency Funds account for assets that are held for other parties and cannot be used to finance
the Village’s own programs. The two agency funds are the Northlake Boulevard Task Force,
which is for the streetscape improvement of Northlake Boulevard, and the Manatee Protection
Fund, in which the assets are held in trust for the protection of manatees through the enforcement
of boat speed zones on the intracoastal and inland waterways.
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s
country club and various other functions of the Village. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Village’s Country Club Enterprise Fund are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise Fund include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of petty cash, deposits in checking accounts, money market
mutual funds, investments with Florida Prime managed by the State of Florida, State Board of
Administration and Florida Education Trust Fund (FEITF) sponsored by Florida School Boards
Association and the Florida Association of District School Superintendents
For purposes of determining cash equivalents, the Village has defined its policy concerning the
treatment of short-term investments to include investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased, as cash equivalents if management does not plan to reinvest the proceeds.
Short-term investments that management intends to rollover into similar investments are
considered part of the investment portfolio and are classified as investments.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable of the General Fund consists of billed and unbilled receivables.
Concentration of Credit Risk
The Village performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and does not require collateral.
The Village maintains an allowance for uncollectible accounts at a level which management
believes is sufficient to cover potential credit losses.
Investments
Investments are reported at fair value as required by generally accepted accounting principles.
The fair value of an investment is the amount that the Village could reasonably expect to receive
for it in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade date basis.
Interfund Transactions
Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to” or “due from other funds”. Any
residual balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances.
Transfers and interfund balances totally within governmental activities and those that are totally
within business-type activities are eliminated and not presented in the government-wide financial
statements. Transfers and balances between governmental and business-type activities are
presented in the government-wide financial statements.
Inventories and Prepaid Items
Inventories are valued at cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis (FIFO). The costs of
governmental fund type inventory are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased. Inventories in the Enterprise Fund consist of goods for sale to the public. The initial
cost is recorded as an asset at the time the individual inventory items are purchased and are
charged against operations in the period when used.
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods are reported as prepaid
items using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting
an expenditure in the year in which the services are consumed.

30

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets, which include property, plant, infrastructure, and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. The Village capitalizes all land purchases. The capitalization policy for other assets
are items with an estimated life in excess of one year and an initial individual cost of $250,000
for infrastructure, $25,000 for land improvements, $50,000 for buildings and building
improvements, and $5,000 for equipment and vehicles. The Village has elected to retroactively
apply the capitalization requirements of GASB Statement No. 34 to major general infrastructure
assets acquired in fiscal years ending after June 30, 1980, or that were significantly reconstructed
or improved during that multi-year period. Infrastructure is reported in buildings and
improvements.
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is
determined by the fund’s measurement focus. General capital assets are assets of the Village as
a whole. When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds
and capitalized as assets in the government-wide statement of net position. General capital
assets are carried at historical cost. Where cost cannot be determined from the available records,
estimated historical cost has been used to record the estimated value of the assets. Donated
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service
concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value.
Capital assets of the Enterprise Fund are capitalized in the fund. The valuation basis for
Enterprise Fund capital assets is the same as those used for General capital assets.
Additions, improvements, and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The estimated lives for each major class of depreciable capital assets are as
follows:
Buildings, improvements and infrastructure
Golf course improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
The statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
represents the usage of net position applicable to future periods and will not be recognized as
expenditures until the future period to which it applies. The Village reports deferred pension
items in connection with its two Retirement Systems. These deferred pension charges are either
(a) recognized in the subsequent period as a reduction of the net pension liability (which includes
pension contributions made after the measurement date) or (b) amortized in a systematic and
rational method as pension expense in future periods.
The statement of net position also includes a separate section, listed below total liabilities, for
deferred inflows of resources. This represents the acquisition of net position applicable to future
periods and will not be recognized as revenue until the future period to which it applies. The
Village currently has three types of deferred inflows. The first is local business tax revenues
received prior to the period for which the taxes are levied, these are recognized as income in the
period for which they are levied. The second is deferred pension items in connection with its
two Retirement Systems. The third is deferred OPEB items in connection to Other PostEmployment Benefits. These items are amortized in a systemic and rational method and
recognized as a reduction of expense in future periods.
Unearned Revenue
The Village reports unearned revenue on its statements of net position and governmental funds
balance sheet. Unearned revenue arises when resources are obtained prior to revenue recognition.
In subsequent periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met the unearned revenue is
removed and revenue is recognized.
Compensated Absences
The Village’s employees are granted compensated absence pay for vacation and sick leave in
varying amounts based on length of service. Unused compensated absences are payable upon
separation from service. Vacation is accrued as a liability when the employee earns benefits.
This means that the employee has rendered services that give rise to a vacation liability and it is
probable that the Village will compensate the employee in some manner, e.g., in cash or paid
time-off, now or upon termination or retirement. The Village uses the vesting method in
accruing sick leave liability. Under the vesting method, the liability for sick leave is accrued for
employees who are eligible to receive termination payments upon separation.
Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if
the amounts have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements. For
the governmental funds, compensated absences are liquidated by the General Fund.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
Net Position
Equity in the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund is displayed in
three categories: 1) net investment in capital assets, 2) restricted, and 3) unrestricted. Invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets reduced by accumulated depreciation
and by any outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct, or improve those assets. Restricted
net position is reported when there are legal limitations imposed on their use by Village
legislation or external restrictions by other governments, creditors, or grantors. Unrestricted net
position consists of all net position that does not meet the definition of either of the other three
components.
Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Village is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balance is
reported under the following categories:
•

Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in spendable form or are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

•

Restricted fund balance represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
stipulated by external providers (e.g. creditors, grantors, contributor, or laws or regulations
of other governments) or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
Fund Equity (Continued)
•

•

•

Committed fund balance represents amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by Village Commission by the adoption of an ordinance,
the Village’s highest level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the Village removes or changes the specified use by
the adoption of an ordinance.
Assigned fund balance includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be
used for specific purposes, as expressed by the Village Commission or Village Manager, in
accordance with the Villages fund balance policy, that are neither considered restricted nor
committed. The Small Business Grants is a program the Village Council approved in the
prior fiscal year to provide matching grants of up to $7,500 for improvements to small
business properties.
Unassigned fund balance is the residual fund balance classification for the general fund. It
is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. The Village will
first use committed fund balance, then assigned fund balance, and then unassigned fund balance
when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.
Use of Estimates
The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred inflows and outflows, and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and revenue and expenses during the period reported. These estimates include the collectability
of accounts receivable, the use and recoverability of inventory, the useful lives and impairment
of tangible assets, and the realization of net pension assets, among others. Estimates and
assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial
statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
A. Budgetary Data
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund. The only governmental fund with a legally adopted
annual budget is the General Fund. This budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.
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NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Data
Except for budgeting capital expenditures and not budgeting for depreciation, the annual
appropriated budgets for the Enterprise Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. For budgeting purposes, current year encumbrances are not
treated as expenditures.
The procedures for establishing budgetary data are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

In July of each year, the Village Manager submits a proposed operating budget to the
Council for the next fiscal year commencing the following October 1st. The proposed
budget includes expenditures and the means of financing them.
During the months of July, August and September, the Council holds public meetings to
obtain taxpayer comments.
Upon completion of the public hearings and prior to October 1st, a final operating budget
is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance. Estimated beginning fund
balances are considered in the budgetary process.
Any change to the total fund expenses must be approved by the Village Council.
Appropriations along with encumbrances lapse on September 30th.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by appropriate action. During the
year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.
Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g. purchase
orders or contracts) outstanding at year end are reported assigned fund balance and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and
honored during the subsequent year. The General Fund had $391,432 and the Capital Projects
Fund had $13,981,802 in outstanding encumbrances at year-end.
B. Property Taxes
Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal,
and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser
and the County Tax Collector. All property is reassessed according to its fair market value on
January 1 of each year and each assessment roll is submitted to the State Department of Revenue
for review to determine if the assessment rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State
law.
The laws of the State regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property
valuation method statewide. State Statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate
of up to 10 mills. The tax levy of the Village is established by the Council prior to October 1st of
each year during the budget process.
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NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
B. Property Taxes (Continued)
The Palm Beach County Property Appraiser incorporates the Village’s millage into the total tax
levy, which includes the County, County School Board, and special district tax requirements.
The millage rate assessed by the Village for the year ended September 30, 2018, was 7.3300
($7.3300 for each $1,000 of assessed valuation).
Taxes may be paid less a 4% discount in November or at declining discounts each month through
the month of February. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 following the year in
which they are assessed. Delinquent taxes on real property bear interest at 18% per year. On or
prior to June 1st following the tax year, certificates are offered for sale for all delinquent taxes on
real property.
After sale, tax certificates bear interest at 18% per year or at any lower rate bid by the buyer.
The certificate holder may make application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificate
after a period of two years. The County holds unsold certificates. Delinquent taxes on personal
property bear interest at 18% per year until the tax is satisfied either by seizure and sale of the
property or by the five-year statute of limitations. At September 30, 2018, unpaid delinquent
taxes are not material and have not been recorded by the Village.
NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits
As of September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the Village’s deposits (including fiduciary
funds) was $4,255,916 and the bank balances totaled $4,768,721. In addition to insurance
provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, deposits are held in banking
institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public funds. Under
Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer
requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or other banking
institution eligible collateral. In the event of failure of a qualified public depository, the
remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses. The
Village’s deposits at year end are considered insured for custodial credit risk purposes.
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
A reconciliation of deposit and investments as shown on the statement of net position and
statement of fiduciary net position for the Village is as follows:
By Category:
Deposits
Petty cash
Investments
Total deposits and investments

$ 4,255,916
4,770
63,561,899
$67,822,585

Presented in the statement of net position
Governmental activities
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted investments
Business-type activities
Cash and cash equivalents
Total statements of net position

$ 5,148,069
3,926,016
9,117,772
7,947,338
229,836
26,369,031

Presented in the statement of fiduciary net
position
Pension trust funds
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Agency funds
Cash and cash equivalents
Total fiduciary funds

771,513
40,308,424
373,617
41,453,554

Total deposits and investments

$67,822,585

Investments
The Village categorizes its investments according to the fair value hierarchy established GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The hierarchy is based on valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset as follows: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs to
include quoted prices for similar assets in active and non-active markets; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)
The money market mutual funds consist of investments with financial institutions in open end,
institutional, money market funds complying with Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
Rule 2a7. Rule 2a7 allows SEC registered mutual funds to use amortized cost rather than fair
value to report net assets used to compute share prices if certain conditions are met. Those
conditions include restrictions on the types of investments held, restrictions on the term-tomaturity of individual investments and the dollar-weighted average of the portfolio, requirements
for portfolio diversification, and requirements for divestiture considerations in the event of
security downgrades and defaults, and required actions if the fair value of the portfolio deviates
from amortized cost by a specified amount.
The Florida Education Investment Trust Fund (FEITF) and Florida PRIME are external
investment pools which meet the requirements with GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External
Investment Pools and Pool Participants, which allows reporting the investments at amortized
cost. For both funds as of September 30, 2018, there were no redemption fees or maximum
transaction amounts, or any other requirements that serve to limit a participant’s daily access to
100 percent of their account value. However, the Trustees of the funds can suspend the right of
withdrawal or postpone the date of payment if the Trustees determine that there is an emergency
that makes the sale of a Portfolio’s securities or determination of its net asset value not
reasonably practical.
Money market mutual funds, FEITF and Florida Prime are exempt from the GASB 72 fair value
hierarchy disclosures.
Equity securities, exchange traded funds, and mutual funds classified in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy are valued based on prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt
securities classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing
technique. Matrix pricing values securities based on the securities relationship to benchmark
quoted prices.
The American Core Realty Fund, LLC is a diversified open-end commingled fund that invests
primarily in high quality core income-producing office, industrial, retail, and multi-family
properties. This fund is an alternative investment vehicle valued using the net asset value (NAV)
provided by the investment manager of this fund. The NAV is based on the value of the
underlying assets owned by the fund minus its liabilities and then divided by the number of
shares or percentage of ownership outstanding. The NAV’s unit price is quoted on a private
market that is not active. Investments valued at NAV are excluded from the fair value hierarchy
because the valuation is not based on actual market inputs but rather is quantified using the
fund’s reported NAV.
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)
Redemptions from the fund may be made quarterly upon ten days’ notice. The units that are
subject to a redemption notice may be redeemed in full or in installments on a pro-rata basis as
funds become available for such redemptions and are subject to the availability of cash flow
arising from investment transactions, sales and other fund operations occurring in the normal
course of business. The fund is not required to liquidate or encumber assets or defer investments
in order to satisfy redemption requests.
The value of this alternative investment is not necessarily indicative of the amount that could be
realized in a current transaction. The fair value may differ significantly from the value that would
have been used had a ready market for the underlying fund existed, and the differences could be
material. Future confirming events will also affect the estimates of fair value and the effect of
such events on the estimated fair value could be material.
The Florida Education Investment Trust Fund – FEITF Term Series invests in highly rated
securities including U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. government agency securities, deposits
including certificates of deposit and commercial paper Securities are rated at least ‘A/F1’ by
Fitch Ratings or equivalent. The term portfolio is a fixed-rate, fixed-term portfolio with a
maximum term of one year. The maturity profile of the term portfolio is managed to meet preset
redemptions of the portfolio’s participants. Upon investing in the program, a participant selects a
planned maturity date on which the portfolio seeks to produce a share price of at least $1.00 for
the participant that redeems on said date. Participants may request premature redemption, but the
portfolio may charge significant penalties for any redemption prior to the agreed-upon
redemption date and net asset value may be more or less than $1.00 per share. Redemptions will
be made seven days after the request is received.
The Village’s investments in FEITF Term Series are as follows:
Maturity
12/31/18
01/13/19
02/28/19
03/29/19

Interest Rate
2.24%
2.35%
2.41%
2.44%

Amount
$ 1,500,000
1,900,000
2,100,000
2,400,000
$ 7,900,000

This fund is an alternative investment vehicle valued using the net asset value (NAV) provided
by the investment manager of this fund. The NAV is based on the value of the underlying assets
owned by the fund minus its liabilities and then divided by the number of shares or percentage of
ownership outstanding. The NAV’s unit price is quoted on a private market that is not active.
Investments valued at NAV are excluded from the fair value hierarchy because the valuation is
not based on actual market inputs but rather is quantified using the fund’s reported NAV.
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)
As of September 30, 2018, the Village held the following investments:
Weighted
Average
Maturity
Governmental Funds
U.S. Government and Agency
Asset Backed Securities
Municipal Bonds
Domestic Corporate Bonds
International Corporate Bonds
Fiduciary Funds
U.S. Government and Agency
Asset Backed Securities
Municipal Bonds
Domestic Corporate Bonds
International Corporate Bonds
Domestic Common Equity
Securities
International Common Equity
Securities
Fixed Income ETF
Equity ETF
Fixed Income Mutual Funds
Equity Mutual Funds

2.09 Years
3.39 Years
1.38 Years
1.77 Years
1.73 Years

Fair Value Measurement
Fair Value
$

3,520,535
1,632,519
279,056
1,903,068
1,810,438
940,238
1,575,499
282,652
2,382,594
591,003

N/A

11,860,443

11,860,443

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2,476,906
2,776,601
3,378,078
2,824,913
7,098,518

2,476,906
2,776,601
3,378,078
2,824,913
7,098,518
$ 30,415,459

N/A

7,900,000

N/A

2,560,739

N/A
72 Days
37 Days

19,494
695,009
5,188,054

N/A

1,865,542
$ 63,561,899
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Level 2
$

$

9.24 Years
19.81 Years
11.80 Years
8.13 Years
5.94 Years

45,333,061
Investments Reported at NAV
Governmental Funds
FEITF Term Series
Fiduciary Funds
American Core Realty Fund
Investments Reported at
Amortized Cost:
Governmental Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Florida Prime
FEITF
Fiduciary Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Total Investments

Level 1

3,520,535
1,632,519
279,056
1,903,068
1,810,438
940,238
1,575,499
282,652
2,382,594
591,003

$ 14,917,602
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NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)
Credit risk – Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. The Village’s investment policies limit its investments to high quality
investments to control credit risk. The table below outlines the Village’s credit ratings for
investments with certain investments not specifically rated by both S&P and Moody’s.
Investments:
Governmental Funds
U.S. Government and Agency
Asset Backed Securities
Municipal Bonds
Domestic Corporate Bonds
International Corporate Bonds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Florida Prime
FEITF
FEITF Term Series
Fiduciary Funds
U.S. Government and Agency
Asset Backed Securities
Municipal Bonds
Domestic Corporate Bonds
International Corporate Bonds
Common Equity Securities
Exchange Traded Funds
Mutual Funds
American Core Realty Fund
Money Market Mutual Funds
Total Investments

S&P
Rating

Moody’s
Rating

AA+
AAA & NR
AAAAA to BBB+
AAA to ANR
AAAm
AAAm
NR*

Aaa
Aaa & NR
Aa3
Aaa to A3
Aaa to A1
NR
NR
NR
NR

AA+
NR
AAA to AAAAA to BBBAAA to ANR
NR
NR
NR
NR

Aaa
Aaa
Aaa to Aa3
Aaa to Baa3
Aaa to A1
NR
NR
NR
NR
NR

Fair
Value
$

3,520,535
1,632,519
279,056
1,903,068
1,810,438
19,494
695,009
5,188,054
7,900,000

940,238
1,575,499
282,652
2,382,594
591,003
14,337,349
6,154,679
9,923,431
2,560,739
1,865,542
$ 63,561,899

* Rated AAAf by Fitch.
Interest rate risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the time to maturity, the greater the
exposure to interest rate risks.
The Village limits its exposure to fair value losses resulting from rising interest rates by
structuring the investment portfolio so that the securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to
maturity; and investing operating funds primarily in short-term securities, money market mutual
funds, or similar investment pools unless it is anticipated that long-term securities can be held to
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Investments (Continued)
maturity without jeopardizing the liquidity requirements. The Retirement Funds do not have a
formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Custodial credit risk – Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Village’s investments are held by a
third-party custodian, not in the name of the Village. Investments are held in book entry form at
the Federal Reserve by Depository Trust Company (DTC) via the custodian. The custodian
further segregates the Village’s investments in their trust accounting system. The investments in
mutual funds and investment partnerships are considered unclassified pursuant to the custodial
credit risk categories of GASB Statement No. 3, because they are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book-entry form.
Concentrations of credit risk – Concentration of credit risk is defined as the risk of loss attributed
to the magnitude of an investment in a single user. The Village places no limit on the amount it
may invest in any one issuer, except those in the Fire and Police Retirement Fund. Not more
than five (5) percent of the Fund’s assets shall be invested in the common stock or capital stock
of any one issuing company.
Investing in Foreign Markets – Investing in foreign markets may involve special risks and
considerations not typically associated with investing in companies in the United States of
America. These risks include revaluation of currencies, high rates of inflation, repatriation
restrictions on income and capital, and future adverse political, social, and economic
developments. Moreover, securities of foreign governments may be less liquid, subject to
delayed settlements, taxation on realized or unrealized gains, and their prices are more volatile
than those of comparable securities in U.S. companies.
Investing in Real Estate. – The Village is subject to the risks inherent in the ownership and
operation of real estate. These risks include, among others, those normally associated with
changes in the general economic climate, trends in the industry including creditworthiness of
tenants, competition for tenants, changes in tax laws, interest rate levels, the availability of
financing and potential liability under environmental and other laws.
Authorized Investments –The Village has adopted an investment policy that applies to all the
investment activity except the Employees’ Pension Funds, which are organized and administered
separately, as listed below, or for funds related to the issuance of debt where there are other
existing policies or indentures in effect for such funds.
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Investments (Continued)
Authorized Investments (Continued)
The Village is authorized to invest its funds as follows:
1. Banks, Qualified Public Depositories with a collateral pledge level of twenty-five percent
or fifty percent;
2. U.S Treasury obligations and obligations the principal and interest of which are backed
or guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S Government;
3. Debt obligations, participations or other instruments issued or fully guaranteed by any
U.S. Federal agency, instrumentality or government sponsored enterprise,
4. Supra-Nationals, U.S. dollar denominated debt obligations of a multilateral organization
of governments where the U.S. is a shareholder and voting member with a minimum
credit quality rating of A-1/P-1, AA-/Aa3 or equivalent,
5. U.S. dollar denominated corporate notes, bonds or other debt obligations issued or
guaranteed by a domestic or foreign corporation, financial institution, non-profit or other
entity with a minimum credit quality rating of A-1/P-1, A-/A3 or equivalent,
6. Obligations, including both taxable and tax - exempt, issued or guaranteed by any State,
territory or possession of the United States, political subdivision, public corporation,
authority, agency board, instrumentality or other unit of local government of any State or
territory with a minimum credit quality rating of SP-1/MIG 1, A-/A3 or equivalent,
7. Mortgage- backed securities (MBS), backed by residential, multi-family or commercial
mortgages, that are issued or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by a U.S.
Federal agency or government sponsored enterprise, including but not limited to passthroughs, collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and REMICs,
8. Asset-backed securities (ABS) whose underlying collateral consists of loans, leases or
receivables, including but not limited to auto loans /leases, credit card receivables,
student loans, equipment loans /leases, or home-equity loans with a minimum credit
quality rating of A-1/P-1, AAA/Aaa or equivalent,
9. U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper issued or guaranteed by a domestic or foreign
corporation, company, financial institution, trust or other entity, including both unsecured
debt and asset-backed programs with a minimum credit quality rating of A-1/P-1 or
equivalent,
10. Shares in open-end and no-load money market mutual funds, provided such funds are
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and operate in accordance with
Rule 2a-7 with a minimum credit quality rating of AAAm/Aaa-mf or equivalent,
11. State, local government or privately- sponsored investment pools that are authorized
pursuant to state law with a minimum credit quality rating of AAAm/Aaa-mf or
equivalent.
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Authorized Investments (Continued)
The Village General Employees’ Retirement Fund is authorized to invest its funds as follows:
1. Interest-bearing time deposits in qualified public depositories, as defined in Chapter 280,
Florida Statutes;
2. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any intergovernmental investment
pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, as provided in
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes;
3. Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest
credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency minimum credit quality
rating of A-1 from S&P or P-1 from Moody’s;
4. Obligations issued by the U.S. Government or obligations guaranteed by agencies or
instrumentalities of the U.S. Government;
5. Foreign Securities, including convertible bonds, convertible preferred issues and
preferred stock;
6. Equities, including publicly traded REITS, commodities, convertible bonds, convertible
preferred issues and preferred stock. Foreign security convertibles are limited to those
that settle in U.S. dollars and are traded on one or more of the nationally recognized
national exchanges.
7. Bonds or any other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a corporation
organized under the laws of the United States, any state or organized territory of the
United States, or the District of Columbia, provided the issues are traded on any one (1)
or more of the recognized national stock exchanges or over the counter and holds a
minimum credit rating of BBB from S&P or Baa from Moody’s, except that up to 20% of
the fixed income portfolio may be held in securities that do not meet this criteria. The
weighted average quality rating of the portfolio will be A or better and the effective
duration of the portfolio shall be kept within 20% of Barclays Aggregate Index;
8. Comingled stock, bond or money market funds.
9. Securities of, or interest in, any open-end or closed-end management-type investment
company or investment trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15
U.S.C. sections 80a-1 et seq., as amended from time to time, provided that the portfolio
of such investment company or investment trust is limited to obligations of the United
States Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof and to repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such United States Government obligations, and
provided that such investment company or investment trust takes delivery of such
collateral either directly or through an authorized custodian;
10. Other investments authorized by law or by ordinance by the Village.
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Authorized Investments (Continued)
Investments of the Fire and Police Retirement Fund can consist of the following:
1. Time or savings accounts of a national bank, a state bank insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, or a savings, building and loan association insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation;
2. Obligations issued by the U.S. Government, or an agency or instrumentality of the U.S.
Government, as well as obligations guaranteed by agencies or instrumentalities of the
U.S. Government, including mortgage-related or asset-backed securities;
3. Bonds, stocks, or any other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a
corporation organized under the laws of the United States, any state or organized territory
of the United States, or the District of Columbia, provided:
a. The corporation is listed on any one (1) or more of the recognized national stock
exchanges and holds a rating in one of the three (3) highest classifications by a
major rating service; and
b. The Board shall not invest more than five (5) percent of its assets in the common
stock, capital stock, bonds or indebtedness of any one (1) issuing company, nor
shall the aggregate investment of in any one (1) issuing company exceed five (5)
percent of the outstanding capital stock of that company, nor shall the aggregate
of its investments in equities at cost exceed sixty (60) percent of the pension
funds’ assets;
4. Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, the Board is specifically
authorized to invest in foreign securities to the extent authorized by Sections 175.071(1)
and 185.06(1)(b), Florida Statutes;
5. Fixed income investments defined as preferred issues and fixed income securities
provided all issues shall meet or exceed S&P’s A or Moody’s A credit rating;
6. Money market funds, defined as fixed income securities having a maturity of less than
one year provided all issues shall meet or exceed S&P’s A1 or Moody’s P1 credit rating;
7. Bonds issued by the State of Israel;
8. Purchases in commingled real estate funds.
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Receivables at September 30, 2018, were as follows:

Utility franchise fees & taxes
Conroy Drive assessment
Other accounts receivable
Total accounts receivable

General
Fund

Country
Club

$ 390,472
2,777
18,158
$ 411,407

$
363
363

$

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital Assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as follows:
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Deletions

Transfers

Ending
Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$ 2,055,889

$

1,170,985

$

$

4,163,249

$ 2,055,889
5,334,234

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements

9,367,764

9,367,764

14,208,994

456,408

(60,750)

14,604,652

Machinery and equipment

3,034,715

99,352

(266,995)

2,867,072

Vehicles

5,037,495

740,340

(391,527)

5,386,308

34,875,842

5,459,349

(719,272)

39,615,919

Buildings

(5,934,684)

(260,280)

Improvements

(9,403,003)

(708,266)

55,319

(10,055,950)

Machinery and equipment

(1,999,698)

(174,499)

250,391

(1,923,806)

Vehicles

(3,059,834)

(404,963)

384,296

(3,080,501)

(20,397,219)

(1,548,008)

690,006

(21,255,221)

3,911,341

$ (29,266)

Total at historical cost:
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Total accumulated depreciation
Governmental activities capital
assets, net

$ 14,478,623

$

46

(6,194,964)

$

$ 18,360,698
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government

$

89,020

Public safety

423,542

Public works

582,110

Community development

21,648

Leisure services

431,688

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities

Business-type activities:

$ 1,548,008

Beginning
Balance

Additions

$ 1,051,311

$

Deletions

Ending
Balance

Transfers

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

227,818

$

$

$ 1,051,311

1,363,664

1,591,482

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings

1,405,035

(939,913)

465,122

Improvements

6,146,307

(73,228)

6,073,079

244,567

(82,147)

162,420

63,700

(14,546)

49,154

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Total at historical cost:

9,138,738

1,363,664

(1,109,834)

9,392,568

Buildings

(1,112,996)

(23,840)

671,714

(465,122)

Improvements

(3,501,088)

(293,433)

61,218

(3,733,303)

(227,112)

(3,467)

80,482

(150,097)

(59,286)

(3,224)

14,545

(47,965)

(4,900,482)

(323,964)

827,959

(4,396,487)

4,238,256

$ 1,039,700

$ (281,875)

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Business-type activities capital
assets, net

$

47

$

$

4,996,081
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Change in Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance

Amount
Due
Within
One Year

Reductions

Ending
Balance

$ (680,000)

$ 14,320,000

3,114,332

(1,714,648)

1,399,684

5,649,589

(1,806,465)

3,843,124

1,145,773

(1,071,374)

1,410,180

1,052,710

1,145,773

$(5,272,487)

$ 20,972,988

$ 1,857,710

$ (307,722)

$ 1,939,366

$ 320,677

(53,030)

43,290

29,830

(41,633)

13,076

12,526

29,830

$ (402,385)

$ 1,995,732

$ 333,203

Additions

Governmental activities:
Loans payable

$ 15,000,000

OPEB(1) (see Note 13)
Net pension liability
(see Note 8)
Compensated absences
payable
Total

$

1,335,781
$ 25,099,702

$

$ 2,247,088

$

$ 805,000

Business-type activities:
Loans payable
OPEB(1) (see Note 13)
Compensated absences
payable
Total

96,320
24,879
$ 2,368,287

$

(1) As restated, see note 18

Governmental activities other postemployment benefit obligations, compensated absences and
net pension liabilities are expected to be paid out of the general fund.
Loans Payable
$4,893,673 Promissory Notes
The Village Council adopted Resolution No. 23-2006 authorizing the issuance of a note in the
amount of $4,893,673 to finance certain capital expenditures relating to the municipal golf
course and country club. The revenues of the Country Club are pledged to secure the loan.
Principal and interest payments are due semi-annually in the amount of $199,079, with a final
maturity date of April 1, 2024. The interest rate on the loan is 4.11% and is subject to
adjustment in the event of taxability of the interest on this note. As of September 30, 2018, the
principal amount outstanding was $1,939,366 and was for the purpose of business-type activities.
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$4,893,673 Promissory Notes (Continued)
Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Business-type activities:
Year Ending
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Principal
$ 320,677
333,990
348,241
362,904
378,185
195,369
$ 1,939,366

Interest
$ 77,482
64,169
49,918
35,255
19,974
4,074
$ 250,872

Total
$ 398,159
398,159
398,159
398,159
398,159
199,443
$ 2,190,238

The loan agreement requires that pledged revenues cover 100% of the debt service due plus the
expenses, other than non-cash expenses, of owning and operating the Country Club. Due to the
Golf Course and Country Club being closed for part of the year for renovations pledged revenues
were short $357,560.
Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Notes, Series 2017
The Village Council adopted Resolution No. 2017-22 authorizing the issuance of Non-Ad
Valorem Revenue Notes, Series 2017, in one or more Series in the aggregate Principal amount
not to exceed $15,000,000 to finance the cost of constructing and equipping a new country club
clubhouse. The Notes are secured by a covenant to budget and appropriate legally available nonad valorem revenues of the Village.
Series 2017A
The Series 2017A is a tax-exempt issuance for $8,900,000 with an interest rate of 3.19%, which
is subject to adjustment in the event of taxability of the interest on this note. Interest is payable
on June 1 and December 1 of each year beginning December 1, 2017. Principal payments start
June 1, 2025 with the final payment on June 1, 2032. This note may be prepaid in whole but not
in part at any time after June 1, 2025, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount outstanding plus accrued interest through the redemption date. As of September 30,
2018, the principal amount outstanding was $8,900,000 and was for the purpose of
governmental-type activities.
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Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Note, Series 2017 (Continued)
Series 2017B
The Series 2017B is a taxable issuance for $6,100,000 with an interest rate of 3.78%. Interest is
payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year beginning December 1, 2017. Principal
payments start June 1, 2018 with the final payment on June 1, 2025. This note may not be
prepaid. As of September 30, 2018, the principal amount outstanding was $5,420,000 and was
for the purpose of governmental-type activities.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Series 2017A and 2017B are as follows:
Year Ending
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2032

Principal
$
805,000
835,000
865,000
900,000
935,000
5,190,000
4,790,000
$ 14,320,000

Interest
$ 488,786
458,357
426,794
394,097
359,981
1,278,397
388,064
$ 3,794,476

Total
$ 1,293,786
1,293,357
1,291,794
1,294,097
1,294,981
6,468,397
5,178,064
$ 18,114,476

Claims and Settlements
Effective October 1, 2006, the Village discontinued its participation in the Southeast Risk
Management Association (SERMA) and joined the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT).
However, as a former participant in SERMA, the Village is liable for claims incurred through
September 30, 2006. In the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014, SERMA was dissolved and
the outstanding claims were transferred to the Village’s current workman’s compensation
administrator. As part of the dissolution, the Village received $61,100 from SERMA as its
portion of the claims reserve balance, this was recorded as an accrued liability in the General
Fund. At this time, the Village believes that the $26,004 currently recorded in the General Fund
is adequate to cover the outstanding claims.
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NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT
The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts:
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters.

theft of, damage to, and

The Village currently reports all of its risk management activities in the General Fund. Claims
expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that
have been incurred but not reported.
The Village is covered by Florida Statutes under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity which
effectively limits the amount of liability of municipalities to individual claims of
$200,000/$300,000 for all claims relating to the same incident. However, under certain
circumstances, a plaintiff can seek to recover damages in excess of statutory limits by
introducing a claims bill to the Florida Legislature. The limits addressed in Florida Statutes do
not apply to claims filed in federal courts.
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year.
settlements exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years.

No

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
The Village maintains the following two separate single employer defined benefit plans: Village
of North Palm Beach Fire and Police Retirement Fund (F&P), covering firefighters and police
officers, and Village of North Palm Beach General Employees Retirement Fund (GERF),
covering substantially all other full-time Village employees. Both plans are reported as pension
trust funds and included as part of the Village’s reporting entity. The Police and Fire Fund issued
separate stand-alone financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2018, the report may
be obtained from the Village Clerk, at the Village of North Palm Beach, 501 U.S. Highway 1,
North Palm Beach, Florida 33408. The General Employees Plan does not issue separate
financial statements.
Each plan has its own board that acts as plan administrator and trustee: The Fire and Police
Retirement Fund Board of Trustees consists of five members (5); four (4) of whom were elected
by a majority of the members of the plan. Two (2) of the elected members are certified
firefighters of the Village and two (2) are certified police officers of the Village. The fifth
member of the board is a legal resident of the Village and is appointed by the Village council.
The General Employees Retirement Board consists of five members (5); two (2) of whom were
employees elected by a majority of the members of the plan, two (2) of the members is a legal
resident of the Village and appointed by the Village council, the two (2) council appointed
members of the Board shall appoint a member of the general public who has never been
employed by the Village to serve as the fifth member of the Board. Each plan’s assets may only
be used for the payment of benefits to the members and beneficiaries of the plan in accordance
with the terms of each plan document. The costs of administering each plan are financed in the
appropriate pension trust fund.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
All Retirement Plans
Basis of Accounting. The retirement plans are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The
plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis used by the pension plans.
Plan member and state contributions are recognized as revenues in the period that the
contributions are due. Employer contributions to each plan are recognized when due and the
employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.
Method Used to Value Investments. Investments are reported at fair value and are managed by
third party money managers.
Investments Concentrations. There were no investments representing concentrations of 5% or
more of net plan assets in investments that are not issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government.
PLAN DESCRIPTION, INVESTMENT AND CONTRIBUTION INFORMATION
The following schedule is provided for general information purposes only and is derived from
the respective actuarial reports and Village information for the two retirement plans. Plan
participants should refer to the appropriate source documents for more complete information on
the plans.
General Employees’ Fire and Police
Plan Description:
Authority
Asset Valuation:
Reporting
Legal Reserves
Long-Term Receivable
Internal/Participant Loans

Village Ordinance

Village Ordinance/State

Fair Value
None
None
None

Fair Value
None
None
None

Membership of each plan consisted of the following at October 1, 2017:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits
Active Plan Members
Total

52

GERF

F&P

35

27

36
33
104

12
53
92
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General Employees' Retirement System
Plan Description. The plan is established under Code of Ordinances for the Village of North
Palm Beach, Florida, Part II, Chapter 2, and was most recently amended under Ordinance No.
2010-07. The Plan is also governed by certain provisions of Part VII, Chapter 112, Florida
Statutes and the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death
benefits. All full time general employees who are not sworn police officers or firefighters shall
become members of the system on October 1st following completion of 12 months of
employment as a condition of employment. For those employees retired before February 1,
1982, those employees hired after September 30, 2000, or those employees hired before October
1, 2000, who elect to contribute an extra 2%, a 3% Cost of Living increase is paid annually from
the Plan. Authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plan rests with the
Village Council.
All benefits vest based on the following years of credited service:
Years of
Credited Service
Under 5
5 or 6
7 or 8
9 or more

Vested %
0%
50%
75%
100%

Employees become eligible for normal retirement benefits after attaining the age of 60 and
completing nine years of credited service, or attaining the age of 65 (depending on employee
contribution rate). The normal retirement benefit consists of a life annuity, options available,
(subject to cost of living increases not to exceed 3% a year), of either 2%, 2.25%, or 2.5%
(depending on employee contribution rate) of Average Monthly Earnings (AME) times credited
service up to 20 years plus 1% of AME times credited service over 20 years. Early retirement
benefits can be received at age 55. The benefit is determined as for normal retirement and
payable at normal retirement date or payable immediately after reduction by 5% for each year by
which the benefit commencement date precedes the normal retirement date. If an active member
dies, his beneficiary receives a refund of member contributions without interest. For a member
who is age 55 and has at least five years of service but who dies before commencement of
retirement benefits, a monthly benefit is payable to the designated beneficiary; the benefit is
calculated as though the member had retired on his date of death and payable according to the
option elected by the employee. For an active member who has at least five years of credited
service and dies prior to reaching normal retirement date, a benefit equal to his vested accrued
benefit will be paid to his beneficiary for ten years.
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General Employees' Retirement System (Continued)
If an employee terminates his employment, he is entitled to the following:
-

With less than five years of credited service, a refund of member contributions
without interest and no other benefit.

-

With five or more years of credited service, a refund of member contributions, the
vested accrued benefit payable at normal retirement date or at any time after age 55
is attained, with the benefit being subject to the same reduction as for early
retirement benefits. The vesting schedule is listed above.

"Average Monthly Earnings" is the average during the 5 years within the last 10 years of
employment which produces the highest average.
"Credited Service" consists of the total number of years and fractional parts of years of actual
service with the Village and shall apply to an employee whose employment is terminated with
the Village and who recommences fulltime employment within two years from the date of
termination.
Asset Allocation. The plan’s adopted asset allocation policy as of September 30, 2018, is as
follows:
Asset Class
Target Allocation
Domestic equity
45%
International equity
15
Domestic bonds
40
Total
100%
Rate of Return. For the year ended September 30, 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of
return on Pension Plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 8.26 percent.
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
Contributions. General employees may contribute 6%, 4%, 2% or 0% of earnings as elected by
the employee, with the retirement benefit received being based on the amount contributed. The
Village is required to contribute the amount necessary to fund the Plan properly according to the
Plan’s actuary. Contribution requirements of plan members and the Village are established and
may be amended by the Village Council.
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Fire and Police Retirement System
Plan Description. The plan is established under Code of Ordinances for the Village of North
Palm Beach, Florida, Part II, Chapter 2, and was most recently amended under Ordinance No.
2015-05. The Plan is also governed by certain provisions of Part VII, Chapter 112, Florida
Statutes and the Internal Revenue Code. The plan provides retirement benefits as well as death
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of credited service. All fulltime police
officers or firefighters are eligible for membership immediately upon hire. Previously, members
were not eligible until October 1st following completion of 12 months of employment. Cost of
living adjustments (COLA) are provided annually each October 1, to reflect changes in CPI
(subject to maximum increases or decreases of 3% per year). Authority to establish and amend
the benefit provisions of the plan rests with the Village Council. Employees become eligible for
normal retirement benefits after attaining the age of 55, or the date on which the member attains
age 52 and 25 credited years of service. Previously, employees became eligible for normal
retirement benefits after attaining the age of 55, only. The normal retirement benefit consists of
ten years certain and life thereafter, with other options available, (subject to cost of living
adjustments not to exceed 3% a year), of 2.5% of AME times the years of credited services, with
a maximum benefit of 60% of AME. Members are eligible for non-service connected disability,
after ten years of credited service and a total and permanent disability. For service connected
disability, a total and permanent disability with no service requirement, the disability benefit
consists of a ten-year certain and life annuity that can be provided by the single-sum value of the
member’s accrued pension benefit, but is at least 42% of AME for service connected disability
and at least 25% of AME for non-service connected disability. See the description of the
General Employees’ Retirement System for the remainder of the benefits, except that early
retirement and termination benefits for vested members can be received at age 50.
Asset Allocation. The plan’s adopted asset allocation policy as of September 30, 2018, is as
follows:
Asset Class
Target Allocation
Domestic equity
50%
International equity
10
Domestic bonds
30
Real estate
10
Total
100%
Rate of Return. For the year ended September 30, 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of
return on Pension Plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 7.14 percent.
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Fire and Police Retirement System
Contributions. Firefighter members are required to contribute 3.50% from April 1, 2015 to
March 31, 2016 and 5.00% thereafter of their basic compensation to the plan. Non-collectively
bargained Police Officer are required to contribute 2% their basic compensation. Collectively
bargained Police Officer members are required to contribute 4.00% of their basic compensation
to the plan. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amount to fund the plan using
the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. Contribution requirements of plan members and the
Village are established and may be amended by the Village Council.
The Florida Constitution requires local governments to make the actuarially determined
contribution. The Florida Division of Retirement reviews and approves each local government’s
actuarial report prior to its being approved for use for funding purposes. Additionally, the State
collects locally authorized insurance premium surcharges which can only be distributed after the
State has ascertained that the local government has met its actuarial funding requirement for the
then most recently completed fiscal year. Contributions to the Plan from the State of Florida
totaled $310,200 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.
All Retirement Plans
Net Pension Liability. The components of net pension liability of the Village on September 30,
2018 were as follows:
General
Employees
Total pension liability

$ 17,833,215

Plan fiduciary net position
Village's net pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability

Fire and
Police
$ 27,159,019

(16,399,189)
$

1,434,026
91.96%

(25,024,740)
$

2,134,279
92.14%

The pension liability of the Fire and Police plan increased by a net of $174,565 due to an
assumption change in the investment rate of return from 7.80% to 7.75%.
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All Retirement Plans
Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of October 1, 2017 updated to September 30, 2018 using the following actuarial assumptions
applied to the September 30, 2018 measurement period.

Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Mortality

General Employees
2.75%

Fire and Police
2.50%

Service based

Service based

6.75%
RP2000 Combined
Healthy Participant,
Scale BB.
Female: 100%
Annuitant White
Collar,
Male Annuitant White
Collar/50% Annuitant
Blue Collar

7.75%
Female: RP2000
Generational,
100%Annuitant White
Collar, Scale BB
Male: RP2000
Generational,
10%Annuitant White
Collar/90% Annuitant
Blue Collar, Scale BB

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class included the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of September 30, 2018, are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Long-Term Expected Real Rate of
Return
General
Fire and
Employees
Police

Domestic equity

6.50%

7.50%

International equity

6.75%

8.50%

Domestic bonds

3.50%

2.50%

N/A

4.50%

Real estate
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All Retirement Plans
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75 percent for
the General Employees Retirement Fund and 7.75 percent for the Fire and Police Retirement
Fund. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rates assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions
will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following
presents the net pension liabilities of the Village, calculated using the discount rates above, as
well as what the Village’s net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate.
General Employees' Retirement System

Village's net pension liability

1% Decrease
5.75%
$ 3,951,019

Current
Discount
Rate
6.75%
$ 1,434,026

1% Increase
7.75%
$ (639,648)

1% Decrease
6.75%
$ 6,026,816

Current
Discount
Rate
7.75%
$ 2,134,279

1% Increase
8.75%
$ (1,055,685)

Fire and Police Retirement System

Village's net pension liability
All Retirement Plans

The Village’s total pension liability, plan fiduciary net position, net pension liability, pension
related deferred outflows and inflows, and pension expense for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2018, are reported using a measurement date of September 30, 2017.
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All Retirement Plans
Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of October 1, 2016 updated to September 30, 2017 using the following actuarial assumptions
applied to the September 30, 2017, measurement period.

Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Mortality

General Employees
2.75%

Fire and Police
2.50%

Service based

Service based

6.75%

7.80%
Female: RP2000
Generational,
100%Annuitant White
Collar, Scale BB
Male: RP2000
Generational,
10%Annuitant White
Collar/90% Annuitant
Blue Collar, Scale BB

Female: RP2000,
100%Annuitant White
Collar, Scale BB
Male: RP2000,
50%Annuitant White
Collar/50% Annuitant
Blue Collar, Scale BB

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class included the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of September 30, 2017, are
summarized in the following table:
Target
Allocation
General
Fire and
Employees
Police
Domestic equity
45%
50%
International equity
15
10
30
Domestic bonds
40
Real estate
N/A
10
Total
100%
100%
Asset Class
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Fire and
Employees
Police
6.50%
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8.50%
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All Retirement Plans
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75 percent for
the General Employees Retirement Fund and 7.80 percent for the Fire and Police Retirement
Fund. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rates assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions
will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
General Employees' Retirement System
Changes in Net Pension Liability
Using a measurement date of September 30, 2017, the components of the net pension liability
reported by the Village at September 30, 2018, were as follows:

Description
Balances at September 30, 2016
Changes due to:
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Changes of Assumptions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefit payments and refunds
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Total changes
Balances at September 30, 2017

Total
Pension
Liability
(a)

Fiduciary
Net
Position
(b)

Net
Pension
Liability
(a)-(b)

$ 16,487,216

$ 13,500,269

$ 2,986,947

275,504
1,116,142

275,504
1,116,142

(246,222)
23,053

(246,222)
23,053
(527,617)
(110,417)

713,906

527,617
110,417
(454,571)
1,487,313
(22,361)
1,648,415

(1,487,313)
22,361
(934,509)

$ 17,201,122

$ 15,148,684

$ 2,052,438

(454,571)
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General Employees' Retirement System (Continued)
The pension liability of the General Employees plan increased by $23,053 due a change in the
mortality rates.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Village's net pension liability

Current
Discount
Rate
6.75%
$ 2,052,438

1% Decrease
5.75%
$ 4,561,024

1% Increase
7.75%
$ (9,258)

Pension expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Village recognized pension expense of
$449,578. In addition, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to the Plan from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Description
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Assumption changes
Village plan contributions subsequent
to the measurement date

$

400,473

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$

713,054
171,268

277,801
451,560

Total

$
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NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
General Employees' Retirement System (Continued)
Pension expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources (Continued)
The deferred outflows of resources totaling $451,560 resulting from Village contributions to the
plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the plan will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30:
2019
2020
2022
2022
2023
Thereafter

Amount
$

90,934
(1,458)
(181,404)
(114,120)

$ (206,048)
Fire and Police Retirement System
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Village's net pension liability

1% Decrease
6.80%
$ 5,352,774
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Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued)
Changes in Net Pension Liability
Using a measurement date of September 30, 2017, the components of the net pension liability
reported by the Village at September 30, 2018, were as follows:

Description
Balances at September 30, 2016
Changes due to:
Service cost
Interest
Change in excess state money
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Change of Assumptions
Employer contributions
Employer contributions-state
Employee contributions
Employee contributions buy back
Benefit payments and refunds
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Total changes
Balances at September 30, 2017

Total
Pension
Liability
(a)

Fiduciary
Net
Position
(b)

Net
Pension
Liability
(a)-(b)

$ 22,602,715

$ 19,940,073

$ 2,662,642

851,932
1,779,947
83,231

851,932
1,779,947
83,231

(197,249)
198,680

(197,249)
198,680
(945,880)
(309,138)
(211,474)

2,043,770

945,880
309,138
211,474
7,902
(680,673)
2,198,298
(76,293)
2,915,726

(2,198,298)
76,293
(871,956)

$ 24,646,485

$ 22,855,799

$ 1,790,686

7,902
(680,673)

The pension liability of the Fire and Police plan increased by a net of $198,680 due to
assumptions changes in the investment rate of return and mortality rates.
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Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued)
Pension expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Village recognized pension expense of
$1,027,126. In addition, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the Plan from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Description
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Change of assumptions
Village plan contributions subsequent
to the measurement date

$

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$
241,596
279,337

67,948
197,030
951,830

1,131,551

Total

$

1,652,484

$

1,216,808

The deferred outflows of resources totaling $1,131,551 resulting from Village contributions to
the plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the plan will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:
Year ended September 30:

Amount

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

$

40,652
95,472
(153,878)
(260,257)
(139,288)
(278,576)
(695,875)
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All Retirement Plans
Summarized information
The Village’s total pension liability, plan fiduciary net position, net pension liability, pension
related deferred outflows and inflows, and pension expense for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2018, using a measurement date of September 30, 2017, are as follows:

Total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension expense
Accounts Payable

General
Employees

Fire and
Police

Total

$ 17,201,122
15,148,684
2,052,438
1,129,834
884,322
449,578
-

$ 24,646,485
22,855,799
1,790,686
1,652,484
1,216,808
1,027,126
-

$ 41,847,607
38,004,483
3,843,124
2,782,318
2,101,130
1,476,704
-

NOTE 9 – ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS
The state makes a contribution to the Fire and Police Officers’ Retirement System from the
firefighters’ and police officers’ Insurance Premium Tax. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018, $308,600 was recorded as revenues and expenditures in the On-Behalf
Pension Contribution Special Revenue Fund relating to on-behalf payments received from the
state.
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Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires that financial statements for
individual pension plans be presented in the notes to the financial statements of the primary
government if separate GAAP financial reports have not been issued. The General Employees’
pension fund does not have a separate GAAP report issued, and the financial information as of
September 30, 2018, is presented below.
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
General
Employees’
Pension
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments:
Fixed income exchange traded funds
Equity exchange traded funds
Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Accrued dividends and interest
Accounts receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Net position
Held in trust for pension benefits and
other purposes

$

305,302
2,776,601
3,378,078
2,824,913
7,098,518
7,016
21,042
16,411,470
12,281

$ 16,399,189
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
General
Employees’
Pension
Additions
Contributions
Employer
Plan members
Total contributions
Investment earnings
Dividends and interest
Net (decrease) in the fair value
of investments
Less investment expense
Total investment earnings
Total additions
Deductions
Administration
Benefits
Total deductions
Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

$

451,560
101,858
553,418
398,012
840,786
(48,195)
1,190,603
1,744,021
21,489
472,027
493,516
1,250,505
15,148,684

$

16,399,189

NOTE 11 – DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Effective October 1, 2006, all employees of the Village may participate in one of four Money
Purchase Plans that are qualified Defined Contribution Plans adopted under the provisions of
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The four pension plans include Village Manger,
Directors, General Employees, and Municipal Employees. The defined contribution plans are
administered by International City/County Management Association and Retirement Corporation
(ICMA-RC). The ICMA-RC is a nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Delaware. Contribution requirements of employees’ and the Village are established
and may be amended by the Village Council.
The vesting period for each defined contribution plan is five years, with a vesting of zero percent
in the first year, and a vesting of twenty-five percent for each year thereafter. While the plans
will not provide for retroactive funding, the vesting period shall run from each employee’s
original date of hire. If an employee terminates before becoming fully vested, forfeited amounts
will be used to reduce future Village contributions. No loans are permitted by the plan.
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The normal retirement age for the plan shall be age sixty. There is no waiting period for
participation in the plan. The minimum age for participation is eighteen. The Village contributes
15% of participant earnings for the plan year. Earnings include regular and bonus compensation,
but do not include overtime or commissions. Employee contributions are voluntary, after-tax
contributions that are not matched by the Village. Employees may contribute 3%, 5%, 10%, or
15% of earnings to the plan. Contributions are remitted to the trusts every payroll period.
Because the Village has little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing
function for funds in the plans, the Village’s activities do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the
fiduciary funds of a government. Consequently, the plans are not included in the Village’s financial
statements.
Plan detail for participating employees at September 30, 2018, is listed below:

Employee contributions
Village pension expense
Forfeitures
Payable as of fiscal year end

Village
Manager
$ 4,770
23,850
-

Directors
$ 56,862
108,880
-

General
Employees
$ 53,306
169,493
30,157
-

Municipal
Employees
$ 74,351
161,767
45,190
-

NOTE 12 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN ASSETS
Employees of the Village may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted under the
provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to
Service for State and Local Governments).
The deferred compensation plan is available to all employees of the Village. Under the plan,
employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred
portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation amount is not available for
withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. A third
party administers the deferred compensation plan.
In 1998, the Village Adopted GASB-32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The Village modified its Deferred
Compensation Plan to conform with the changes in the Internal Revenue Code brought about by the
Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 (the “Act”). The Act requires that eligible deferred
compensation plans established and maintained by governmental employers be amended to provide
that all assets of the plan be held in trust, or under one or more appropriate annuity contracts or
custodial accounts, for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. As a result
of this change, these plan assets are not property of the Village and are not subject to the claims of
the Village’s general creditors.
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Because the Village has little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing
function for funds in the Plan, the Village’s activities do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the
fiduciary funds of a government.
NOTE 13 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
General Information about the OPEB Plan
Effective October 1, 2016, the Village implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement 75 (GASB 75), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, see Note 19. Retirees of the Village pay an amount equal to the actual
premium for health insurance charged by the carrier. The premium charged includes an implied
subsidy, as the amount charged for all participants (active employee or retiree) is the same,
regardless of age. Under GASB 75, an implied subsidy is considered other post-employment
benefits (OPEB).
The following describes the Village’s OPEB Provisions:
Plan Description
The Village provides a single employer defined benefit health care plan to all of its employees
and the plan is administered by the Village. The plan has no assets and does not issue a separate
financial report.
Benefits Provided
The plan allows its employees and their beneficiaries, to continue to obtain health and dental
benefits upon retirement. The normal retirement age for police and firefighters is 55 or 52; ,
depending on the option selected by the employee and the normal retirement age for all other
Village employees is either age 60 or 65, depending on the option selected by the employee. The
benefits of the plan are in accordance with Florida Statutes, which are the legal authority for the
plan. The plan has no assets and does not issue a separate financial report.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At September 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by benefit terms:
Participants
Active employees
Inactive employees currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefits
Total
69
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NOTE 13 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Contribution Requirements: The Village does not make direct contributions to the plan on behalf
of retirees. Retirees and their beneficiaries pay the same group health rates as active employees.
However, the Village’s actuaries, in their actuarial valuation, calculate an offset to the cost of
these benefits as an employer contribution, based upon an implicit rate subsidy. This offset
equals the total annual age-adjusted costs paid by the Village, or its active employees, for
coverage of the retirees and their dependents net of the retiree’s own payments for the year.
Total OPEB Liability
The Village’s total OPEB liability of $1,442,974 was measured as of September 30, 2018 and
was determined by the actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other
methods:
Valuation Date:

September 30, 2018

Discount Rate:
Source

4.15% per annum
Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Index

Salary Increase Rate:

Service based between 4% to 12.5% per annum

Health Care Trend Rate:

An initial rate of 9.0% decreasing by 0.5%
annually to an ultimate rate of 5.0%.

Inflation Rate:

General 2.75% per annum
Fire and Police 2.5% per annum

Census Data:

The census was provided by the Village as of
August 2018.

Marriage Rate/Participation:

The assumed number of eligible dependents is
based on the current portions of single and family
contracts in the census provided. The spousal
participation assumed at retirement is 75%.

Actuarial Cost Method:

Entry Age Normal based on level percentage of
projected salary.

Amortization Method:

Experience/Assumptions gains and losses are
amortized over the closed period of 9 years
starting on October 1, 2017, equal to the average
remaining service of active and inactive plan
members (who have no future service).
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Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (Continued)
Plan Participation Percentage:

The participation percentage is the assumed rate
of future eligible retirees who elect to continue
health coverage at retirement. It is assumed that
40% of employees in the General and the Fire and
Police Pension Plans and 35% in the Defined
Contribution Plan elect coverage. This assumes
that a one-time irrevocable election to participate
is made at retirement.

Mortality Rates:

General and Defined Contribution Plans: RPH2018 Total Dataset Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-2018.
Police and Fire Plan: RPH-2018 Blue Collar
Mortality Table fully generational using Scale
MP-2018

Discount Rate
The Village does not have a dedicated Trust to pay retiree healthcare benefits. Per GASB 75, the
discount rate is a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt municipal bonds. As a result, the
calculation used a rate of 4.15%.
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Balance at September 30, 2017, as restated
Changes for the Year:
Service Cost
Interest Cost
Changes of Assumptions and Other Inputs
Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience
Benefit Payments
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Balance at September 30, 2018
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Total OPEB
Liability
$
3,210,652
274,702
124,097
(677,494)

$

(1,354,390)
(134,593)
(1,767,678)
1,442,974

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018
NOTE 13 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Changes in Assumptions
The discount rate was 3.36% at 10/1/17 and 4.15% at 9/30/18, the actuarial cost method changed
from Projected Unit Credit to Entry Age Normal, the mortality table was updated, and the health
care trend rates were increased.
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (3.15%) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.15%) then the current discount rate:

Total OPEB Liability

1.0% Decrease
(3.15%)

Discount Rate
(4.15%)

$

$

1,574,408

1,442,974

1.0% Increase
(5.15%)
$

1,324,036

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rates
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trends that are 1-percentagepoint lower or 1-percentage-point higher (then the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1.0% Decrease
(8% decreasing
to 4%)
Total OPEB Liability

$

Healthcare cost
Trend Rates
(9% decreasing
to 5%)

1,286,774

$

1,442,974

1.0% Increase
(10% decreasing
to 6%)
$

1,626,882

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the Village recognized OPEB expense of $173,034. At
September 30, 2018, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Changes of Assumptions/Inputs
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Total
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Deferred
Outflows
of Resources
$
$

-

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources
$
602,217
1,203,902
$
1,806,119

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018
NOTE 13 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending:
September 30, 2019
September 30, 2020
September 30, 2021
September 30, 2022
September 30, 2023
Thereafter

$

(225,765)
(225,765)
(225,765)
(225,765)
(225,765)
(677,294)
$ (1,806,119)

NOTE 14 – JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION
The Village, through an interlocal agreement with certain other municipalities and Palm Beach
County, created the Seacoast Utility Authority (“Seacoast”) which provides water and sewer
service to the citizens of each of the participating municipalities and a portion of Palm Beach
County. Seacoast’s governing board consists of one member from each participating entity.
Seacoast is an Independent Authority organized under the laws of the State of Florida, and the
Village has no participating equity ownership in Seacoast. The Village paid $150,265 to
Seacoast during the fiscal year for water and sewer service.
NOTE 15 –INTERFUND ACTIVITY
Due from/to other funds
The $1,100,507 due to the Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund is due to funds
transferred for capital projects that have not been fully expended and the $44,028 due from the
Recreation Special Revenue Fund (a Non-Major Fund) to the Capital Projects fund is from grant
funds that have been spent but are not yet reimbursed.
Advances to/from other funds
The $1,371,447 advanced from the General Fund to the Country Club Fund was to provide funds
for the renovation of the Golf Course. The Country Club Fund will start paying back the
advance in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, which is after the Bank of America loan is
paid off.
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NOTE 15 –INTERFUND ACTIVITY (Continued)
Transfers
Interfund transfers during the year ended September 30, 2018, are as follows:
The $4,913,307 from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund and $50,000 from the
General Fund to the Recreation Special Revenue Fund (a Non-Major Fund) to fund capital
projects according to the original budget and subsequent budget amendments.
NOTE 16 – DEFICIT FUND BALANCE
Recreation Special Revenue Fund (a Non-Major Fund) has a deficit unassigned fund balance of
$114,279 which is due to incurring grant related expenditures before all the conditions of
reimbursement have been met. These expenditures are expected to be reimbursed in the
subsequent fiscal year.
NOTE 17 – CONTRACTS, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Lease
The Village entered into a three-year operating agreement for 80 golf carts, including GPS
systems and software, for the Country Club in December 2015. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018 expenses under the lease were $110,682. Due to the closure of the golf
course for renovations, in May 2018 the lease was cancelled and replaced with a new three year
lease starting in December 2018, at a monthly cost of $13,391.
Contract Commitments
On September 17, 2014, the Village entered into an agreement with the City of Palm Beach
Gardens whereby the City of Palm Beach Gardens will provide the Village public safety dispatch
services. The term of the agreement was for two years beginning on October 1, 2014, and
extending through September 30, 2016. In 2016 the agreement was renewed for an additional
five years extending through September 30, 2021. The fee for each year under the contract will
be based upon the budget of the North County Dispatch (NCDC) center prorated to each
contracting municipality based on that municipalities cost share. If at the end any contract year a
budget shortfall exists, each contracting municipality shall pay its share of the shortfall.
Conversely, if at the end of any contract year a budget surplus exists, such surplus shall represent
a committed fund balance to be utilized specifically for NCDC budgetary purposes. The
Village’s estimated cost for fiscal year ending September 30, 2019 is $409,220.
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NOTE 17 – CONTRACTS, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Contract Commitments (Continued)
Commitments outstanding at September 30, 2018 are the new country club clubhouse for
$13,523,700, the golf course renovation for $154,400, the new roof for the public safety building
for $518,000, and Anchorage park improvements for $90,393,
Subsequent to September 30, 2018, the Village approved a capital lease for 11 vehicles at a total
cost of $389,675 over five years, $176,600 for conceptual bridge and streetscape designs for
Prosperity Farms Road, US Highway One and Lighthouse Drive, $216,963 for a new sanitation
truck, $518,000 for the capital lease of a new fire truck over seven years, and $114,480 for the
Community Center Trail.
Contingencies
The Village is involved in various litigations and claims arising in the course of operations. It is
the opinion of legal counsel that the likelihood of unfavorable outcome and the amounts of
potential losses cannot be reasonably determined for all claims at this time.
NOTE 18 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Implementation of GASB Statements: The Village implemented the following GASB Statements
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018:
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction
Period. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period
be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred. As a result, interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a
capital asset. Construction related interest costs of $7,783 were expensed in the current fiscal
year and there was no cumulative restatement.
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. This Statement improves accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions. It also improves
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for
OPEB that is provided by other entities. The cumulative effect of applying this statement is
required to be reported as a restatement of beginning net position.
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NOTE 18 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (Continued)
A reconciliation of the prior period ending net position to the current period beginning net
position is as follows:
Business-type
Activities/
Governmental
Enterprise Fund
Activities
Balance at September 30, 2017, as reported
Adjustment for adoption of GASB 75
Balance at September 30, 2017, as restated

$ 21,013,494
(379,588)
$ 20,633,906

$ 2,352,629
23,119
$ 2,375,748

NOTE 19 – NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Below is a brief description and effective date of new accounting standards that could have a
significant impact on the Village.
•

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This Statement will increase the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting that is based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
This Statement is effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021.

•

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements
related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which
liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This
Statement is effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019.

Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Village’s
financial statements.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OTHER THAN MD&A
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Required Supplemental Information
September 30, 2018
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest cost
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assuptions and other imputs
Benefit payments
Other changes
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year
Total OPEB liability, end of year

$

274,702
124,097
(1,354,390)
(677,494)
(134,593)
(1,767,678)
3,210,652

$ 1,442,974

Changes of Assumptions
For 2018 the discount rate was 3.36% at 10/1/17 and 4.15% at 9/30/18.

NOTE: The Village implemented GASB Statement 75 in 2018; information is presented for those
years in which information is available.
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General Employees Retirement Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014
Total pension liability:
Service cost
Interest
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience
Assumption changes
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions

$

374,926
972,865

2015

$

(263,674)

Net change in total pension liability

317,676
1,048,746

2016

$

357,344
1,106,085

2017

$

275,504
1,116,142

2018

$

250,072
1,162,025

(329,040)

(129,381)
928,295

(246,222)
23,053

(307,977)

(293,890)

(331,174)

(454,571)

(472,027)

1,084,117

743,492

1,931,169

713,906

632,093

Total pension liability - beginning

12,728,438

13,812,555

14,556,047

16,487,216

17,201,122

Total pension liability - ending (a)

$ 13,812,555

$ 14,556,047

$ 16,487,216

$ 17,201,122

$ 17,833,215

$

$

$

$

$

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - Employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

562,953
142,609
1,072,009
(263,674)
(17,171)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

464,189
125,738
(96,116)
(293,890)
(20,655)

458,615
126,947
1,161,530
(331,174)
(24,794)

527,617
110,417
1,487,313
(454,571)
(22,361)

451,560
101,858
1,190,603
(472,027)
(21,489)

1,496,726

179,266

1,391,124

1,648,415

1,250,505

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

10,433,153

11,929,879

12,109,145

13,500,269

15,148,684

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

$ 11,929,879

$ 12,109,145

$ 13,500,269

$ 15,148,684

$ 16,399,189

Net pension liability (a) - (b)

$

$

$

$ 2,052,438

$ 1,434,026

1,882,676

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability
Covered payroll

86.37%
$

2,701,771

Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

2,446,902

83.19%
$

69.68%

2,375,585

103.00%

2,986,947

81.88%
$

2,376,069

125.71%

Changes of Assumptions
For the 2016 fiscal year the discount rate, investment rate of return, inflation rate, salary scale,
and the withdrawal and mortality rates changed.
For the 2017 fiscal year the mortality rate changed.
NOTE: The Village implemented GASB Statement 67 in 2014; information is presented for those
years in which information is available.
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88.07%
$ 2,072,121

99.05%

91.96%
$ 1,966,566

72.92%

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Required Supplemental Information
September 30, 2018
Fire and Police Retirement Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Fiscal Years
2014
Total pension liability:
Service cost
Interest
Changes in excess state money
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions - Buy Back
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions

$

699,244
1,419,425
90,535

2015

$

810,654
1,555,518
67,645
1,682

2016

$

483,189
246,146
65,446
(451,574)

Net change in total pension liability

833,909
1,738,069
79,505

2017

$

851,932
1,779,947
83,231

2018

$

897,280
1,922,314
77,905

(31,422)
(1,223,780)
7,609

(197,249)
198,680
7,902

187,041
174,565
4,746

(653,993)

(680,673)

(751,317)

(611,678)

2,003,776

2,372,456

749,897

2,043,770

2,512,534

Total pension liability - beginning

17,476,586

19,480,362

21,852,818

22,602,715

24,646,485

Total pension liability - ending (a)

$ 19,480,362

$ 21,852,818

$ 22,602,715

$ 24,646,485

$ 27,159,019

$

$

$

$

$

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - State
Contributions - Employees
Contributions - Buy Back
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

943,634
321,230
87,010

975,733
298,340
151,450
65,446
111,884

1,468,473
(451,574)
(66,748)

969,836
310,200
190,989
7,609
1,475,735

(611,678)
(76,457)

(653,993)
(76,967)

945,880
309,138
211,474
7,902
2,198,298
(680,673)
(76,293)

822,951
308,600
224,469
4,746
1,637,891
(751,317)
(78,399)

2,302,025

914,718

2,223,409

2,915,726

2,168,941

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

14,499,921

16,801,946

17,716,664

19,940,073

22,855,799

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

$ 16,801,946

$ 17,716,664

$ 19,940,073

$ 22,855,799

$ 25,024,740

Net pension liability (a) - (b)

$ 2,678,416

$ 4,136,154

$ 2,662,642

$ 1,790,686

$ 2,134,279

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability
Covered employee payroll
Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

86.25%
$ 4,312,746

81.07%
$ 4,518,020

62.10%

88.22%
$ 4,601,075

91.55%

57.87%

92.73%
$ 4,772,092

37.52%

Changes of Assumptions
For the 2014 fiscal year the investment rate of return changed.
For the 2016 fiscal year the salary scale, normal retirement rates, the investment rate of return, discount rate,
withdrawal and mortality rates, and the actuarial cost method all changed.
For the 2017 fiscal year the mortality rate and the investment rate of return changed.
For the 2018 fiscal year the the investment rate of return changed.
NOTE: The Village implemented GASB Statement 67 in 2014; information is presented for those
years in which information is available.
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92.14%
$ 5,088,564

41.94%

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Required Supplemental Information
September 30, 2018
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule of Contributions
Fiscal Year
Ending
September 30

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Actual
Contribution

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

Covered
Payroll

Actual Contribution
as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

(9,063)
(7,796)
(2,083)

$ 2,701,771
2,375,585
2,376,069
2,072,121
1,966,566

20.84%
19.54%
19.30%
25.46%
22.96%

(399)
(1,020)
(7,472)
4,057
(15,070)

$ 4,312,746
4,518,020
4,601,075
4,772,092
5,088,564

27.23%
26.70%
26.09%
24.55%
20.71%

General Employees Retirement Fund
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$

562,509
464,189
449,552
519,821
449,477

$

562,953
464,189
458,615
527,617
451,560

$

1,174,329
1,206,428
1,200,531
1,171,787
1,053,646

$

(444)

Fire and Police Retirement Fund
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$

1,173,930
1,205,408
1,193,059
1,175,844
1,038,576

$

Schedule of Investment Returns

Fiscal Year
Ending
September 30
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Annual money weighted rate of return
net of investment expense
General
Fire and Police
Employees
Employees
10.50%
-0.39%
9.72%
11.32%
8.26%

10.00%
0.66%
8.25%
10.92%
7.14%

NOTE: The Village implemented GASB Statement 67 in 2014; information is presented for those years
in which information is available.
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Methods and assumptions used in calculations of determined contributions.
The actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year
in which contributions are reported.

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation
Salary increases

Cost of living adjustments

Investment Rate of Return

Mortality

General Employees
Retirement Fund

Police and Fire
Retirement Fund

Frozen Entry-Age

Entry Age Normal

Level Dollar, closed

Level Percentage of Compensation

30 years

20 years

Five year smoothed market

Five year smoothed market

2.75%

2.50%

Service based
Between 4% and 10%

Service based
Between 4.5% and 10%

2.5% for those retired before
2/1/82 or who contribute
an extra 2%.

2.50%

6.75%

7.85%

Female: RP2000, 100%
Annuitant White Collar,
Scale BB Male: RP2000,
50% Annuitant White
Collar/50% Annuitant Blue
Collar, Scale BB
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Female: RP2000, 100%
Annuitant White Collar, Scale
BB Male: RP2000, 10%
Annuitant White Collar/90%
Annuitant Blue Collar, Scale BB

GENERAL FUND

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$ 18,560,841
955,200
1,466,358
2,328,050
68,575
50,300
12,800
23,442,124

$ 18,560,841
955,200
1,466,358
2,328,050
68,575
50,300
171,045
23,600,369

$ 19,111,506
1,222,594
1,482,113
2,200,860
100,140
112,809
412,513
24,642,535

3,157,283
9,206,587
5,228,004
1,567,934
2,838,416

3,158,684
9,213,820
5,349,022
1,646,458
2,875,120
510,401

3,059,623
9,360,761
5,313,834
1,429,764
2,613,664
457,783

99,061
(146,941)
35,188
216,694
261,456
52,618

680,000
613,101
23,291,325

680,000
613,101
24,046,606

680,000
613,101
23,528,530

518,076

1,114,005

1,560,242

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development and planning
Leisure services - recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal payments
Interest paid on debt
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over
expenditures

150,799

Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance
Transfer out
Total other financing uses

40,000
(190,799)
(150,799)

Net change in fund balances

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

(446,237)

5,409,544
(4,963,307)
446,237

(4,963,307)
(4,963,307)
(3,849,302)

Fund Balances
Beginning of year

13,092,710
$

82

550,665
267,394
15,755
(127,190)
31,565
62,509
241,468
1,042,166

(5,409,544)

$

End of year

$

9,243,408

(5,409,544)
$

(3,849,302)

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Notes to the Budgetary
Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
General Fund
September 30, 2018

Note 1 - Basis of Accounting
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) serve as the budgetary basis of accounting.
Note 2 - Legal Level of Control
The legel level of budgetary control is at the fund level.
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GENERAL FUND

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Schedule of Departmental Expenditures - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Original
Budget

Village Council
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Village Council
Village Manager
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Village Manager

$

50,466
83,065
133,531

Final
Budget

$

50,466
83,065
133,531

Actual

$

50,463
73,206
123,669

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

Percent
Variance

3
9,859
9,862

0.01
11.87
7.39

3.08
-19.64
1.67

529,949
35,000
564,949

529,949
35,000
564,949

513,622
41,873
555,495

16,327
(6,873)
9,454

84,091
10,665
94,756

84,091
10,665
94,756

78,441
1,744
80,185

5,650
8,921
14,571

Village Finance
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Village Finance

588,169
59,120
647,289

588,169
59,120
647,289

557,354
85,052
642,406

30,815
(25,932)
4,883

5.24
-43.86
0.75

Village Attorney
Operating expenses

160,000

160,000

185,704

(25,704)

-16.07

Village Clerk
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Village Clerk

344,291
37,525
381,816

344,291
37,525
381,816

358,096
36,270
394,366

(13,805)
1,255
(12,550)

-4.01
3.34
-3.29

Information Technology
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Information Technology

338,809
70,325
409,134

338,809
71,726
410,535

318,181
62,049
380,230

20,628
9,677
30,305

6.09
13.49
7.38

Human Resources
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Human Resources

308,734
116,883
425,617

308,734
116,883
425,617

299,025
83,387
382,412

9,709
33,496
43,205

3.14
28.66
10.15

Police
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Police

4,648,909
994,467
5,643,376

4,648,909
994,467
5,643,376

5,037,873
839,573
5,877,446

(388,964)
154,894
(234,070)

-8.37
15.58
-4.15

Fire Rescue
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Fire Rescue

3,194,184
262,550
3,456,734

3,194,184
269,783
3,463,967

3,140,454
223,913
3,364,367

53,730
45,870
99,600

1.68
17.00
2.88

Procurement and Purchasing
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Procurement and Purchasing

(Continued)
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Schedule of Departmental Expenditures - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Original
Budget
(Continued)
Public Works Administration
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Public Works
Sanitation
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Sanitation

$

317,052
67,493
384,545

Final
Budget

$

317,052
72,201
389,253

Actual

$

329,910
80,834
410,744

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

Percent
Variance

(12,858)
(8,633)
(21,491)

-4.06
-11.96
-5.52

1,378,335
223,950
1,602,285

1,378,335
223,950
1,602,285

1,382,646
211,449
1,594,095

(4,311)
12,501
8,190

-0.31
5.58
0.51

341,669
424,850
766,519

341,669
503,669
845,338

324,248
539,385
863,633

17,421
(35,716)
(18,295)

5.10
-7.09
-2.16

481,605
1,452,438
1,934,043

481,605
1,489,929
1,971,534

459,613
1,252,136
1,711,749

21,992
237,793
259,785

4.57
15.96
13.18

Vehicle Maintenance
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Vehicle Maintenance

267,662
272,950
540,612

267,662
272,950
540,612

268,532
216,441
484,973

(870)
56,509
55,639

-0.33
20.70
10.29

Planning and Engineering
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Planning and Engineering

337,132
166,650
503,782

337,132
219,602
556,734

269,496
194,799
464,295

67,636
24,803
92,439

20.06
11.29
16.60

Building
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Building

756,593
149,388
905,981

756,593
164,960
921,553

645,618
181,274
826,892

110,975
(16,314)
94,661

14.67
-9.89
10.27

Code Enforcement
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Code Enforcement

129,060
29,111
158,171

129,060
39,111
168,171

128,769
15,808
144,577

291
23,303
23,594

0.23
59.58
14.03

729,030
374,098
1,103,128

729,030
374,098
1,103,128

643,388
327,637
971,025

85,642
46,461
132,103

11.75
12.42
11.98

Facility Services
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Facility Services
Street Maintenance
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Street Maintenance

Leisure Services-Recreation
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Leisure Services-Recreation

(Continued)
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Schedule of Departmental Expenditures - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Original
Budget
(Continued)
Library
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Library

$

669,017
204,620
873,637

Final
Budget

$

669,017
204,620
873,637

Actual

$

602,931
233,054
835,985

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

Percent
Variance

66,086
(28,434)
37,652

9.88
-13.90
4.31

Tennis
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Tennis

420,132
155,723
575,855

420,132
192,427
612,559

416,298
120,541
536,839

3,834
71,886
75,720

0.91
37.36
12.36

Pool
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Pool

70,072
114,724
184,796

70,072
114,724
184,796

82,084
124,166
206,250

(12,012)
(9,442)
(21,454)

-17.14
-8.23
-11.61

Special Events
Operating expenses
Total Special Events

101,000
101,000

101,000
101,000

63,565
63,565

37,435
37,435

37.06
37.06

1,293,101

1,293,101

1,293,101

207,753
207,753

334,810
334,810

(127,057)
(127,057)

446,668
446,668

428,104
428,104

18,564
18,564

70,844

(70,844)
1,879

Debt Service
Reserves and contingencies
Operating expenses
Non-Departmental
Operating expenses

446,668
446,668

Capital Outlay
Police
Planning and Engineering
Reserves and contingencies
Total Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

1,879
300,769
302,648

$

23,291,325

$

86

24,046,606

0.00

300,769
371,613

$

23,528,530

$

4.16
4.16

(68,965)

100.00
0.00
-22.79

518,076

2.15%

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds
Public Safety Fund
Northlake Boulevard Fund
Recreation Fund
On-Behalf Pension Contributions

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds
Northlake
Boulevard
Fund
Recreation

Public
Safety
Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

$
$

$

Fund balances
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

1,520
1,520

$
$

1,986
1,986

$

1,520

1,520

Total Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$
$

24,707
24,707

$
$

308,600
308,600

$
$

336,813
336,813

$

94,958
44,028
138,986

$

308,600

$

403,558
44,028
447,586

308,600

1,986

1,520
$

On-Behalf
Pension
Contributions

1,986
$

1,986

87

3,506
(114,279)
(110,773)

(114,279)
(114,279)
$

24,707

$

308,600

$

336,813

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds
Public
Safety
Fund
Revenues
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Total revenues

$

9,111

Northlake
Boulevard
Fund
$

Recreation
$

On-Behalf
Pension
Contributions

Total Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$

$

9,111

Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

9,111
9,111

549,754
549,754

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

308,600

317,711

308,600

317,711

308,600

308,600
558,865
867,465

308,600

(549,754)

(549,754)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

50,000

50,000

Total other financing sources (uses)

50,000

50,000

(499,754)

(499,754)

385,475

388,981

Net changes in fund balances
Fund balances - Beginning of year
Fund balances - End of year

1,520
$

1,520

1,986
$

1,986

88

$

(114,279)

$

$

(110,773)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Pension Trust Funds
General Employees Pension Trust Fund
Fire and Police Officers Pension Trust Fund

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Combining Statement of Net Position - Pension Trust Funds
September 30, 2018

Fire and
Police
Officers
Pension

General
Employees
Pension
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments:
Domestic common equity securities
International common equity securities
U.S. Government and agencies
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds
Fixed income exchange traded funds
Equity exchange traded funds
Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Real estate investment fund
Money market mutual funds

305,302

466,211

$

11,860,443
2,476,906
2,515,737
282,652
2,973,597

2,560,739
1,560,240

16,411,470

53,297
308,600
6,408
25,064,830

60,313
329,642
6,408
41,476,300

12,281
12,281

40,090
40,090

52,371
52,371

7,016
21,042

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

$

771,513

11,860,443
2,476,906
2,515,737
282,652
2,973,597
2,776,601
3,378,078
2,824,913
7,098,518
2,560,739
1,560,240

2,776,601
3,378,078
2,824,913
7,098,518

Accrued interest and dividends
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Total assets

Net Position restricted for pensions

$

Total
Employee
Retirement
Funds

16,399,189
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$

25,024,740

$

41,423,929

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Fire and
Police
Officers
Pension

General
Employees
Pension
Additions
Contributions
Employer
Plan members
State on-behalf payments
Total contributions

$

Investment earnings
Dividends and interest
Net increase in fair value of investments
Total investment earnings
Less: investment expenses
Total investment earnings
Total additions
Deductions
Administration
Benefits
Total deductions
Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

90

451,560
101,858

$

Total
Employee
Retirement
Funds

553,418

822,951
229,215
308,600
1,360,766

$

1,274,511
331,073
308,600
1,914,184

398,012
840,786
1,238,798

605,692
1,208,642
1,814,334

1,003,704
2,049,428
3,053,132

48,195

176,443

224,638

1,190,603

1,637,891

2,828,494

1,744,021

2,998,657

4,742,678

21,489
472,027
493,516

78,399
751,317
829,716

99,888
1,223,344
1,323,232

1,250,505

2,168,941

3,419,446

15,148,684

22,855,799

38,004,483

$ 16,399,189

$ 25,024,740

$ 41,423,929

AGENCY FUNDS
Manatee Protection Agency
Northlake Boulevard Task Force

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Combining Statement of Agency Net Position
September 30, 2018

Manatee
Protection
Agency

Northlake
Boulevard
Task Force

Total
Agency
Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

308,111

$

65,506

$

373,617

Liabilities
Due to others

$

308,111

$

65,506

$

373,617
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THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Combining Schedule of Changes in Agency Net Position
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

September 30, 2017

Additions

Deductions

September 30, 2018

Manatee Protection Agency
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

302,987

$

5,124

$

$

308,111

Liabilities
Due to others

$

302,987

$

5,124

$

$

308,111

Northlake Boulevard Task Force
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

64,417

$

1,089

$

$

65,506

Liabilities
Due to others

$

64,417

$

1,089

$

$

65,506

Total All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

367,404

$

6,213

$

$

373,617

Liabilities
Due to others

$

367,404

$

6,213

$

$

373,617
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PROPRIETARY FUND
(ENTERPRISE FUND)
Country Club Fund

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
Schedule of Revenues and Departmental Expenses - Budget and Actual
Country Club Fund - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Revenue
Greens fee/cart rentals/membership fees
Golf shop revenues
Driving range revenues
Interest revenues
Proceeds from sale of assets
Miscellaneous
Loan from general fund (1)
Appropriated net position (1)

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

$ 1,742,611
239,500
238,524
10,000

$ 1,742,611
239,500
238,524
10,000

6,000
425,770

6,000
1,700,000
425,770

2,662,405

4,362,405

1,149,822
12,000
1,161,822

Total revenues
Golf Maintenance
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Golf Maintenance
Golf Pro Shop and Range
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Golf Pro Shop and Range
Food and Beverage
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Food and Beverage
Administration
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Total Administration
Clubhouse and Grounds
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Clubhouse and Grounds
Insurance and General Liability
Operating expenses
Reserves
Operating
Total Reserves
Debt service
Debt service
Total expenses on the budgetary basis
Revenues under expenses (1)

Actual

191.47
-100.00
-100.00

2,287,961

(2,074,444)

-47.55

1,149,822
1,712,000
2,861,822

1,159,941
1,363,664
2,523,605

(10,119)
348,336
338,217

-0.88
20.35
11.82

514,323
421,939
11,000
947,262

514,323
421,939
11,000
947,262

500,790
310,953
811,743

13,533
110,986
11,000
135,519

2.63
26.30
100.00
14.31

16,600
16,600

16,600
16,600

4,222
41,979
46,201

(4,222)
(25,379)
(29,601)

-152.89
(178.32)

67,438
12,200
79,638

67,438
12,200
79,638

68,004
17,191
85,195

(566)
(4,991)
(5,557)

-0.84
-40.91
-6.98

4,886

4,886

68,349

(63,463)

(1298.87)

4,886

4,886

68,349

(63,463)

(1298.87)

44,038

44,038

42,711

1,327

3.01

10,000
10,000

10,000
10,000

13,773
13,773

(3,773)
(3,773)

(37.73)
(37.73)

398,159

398,159

405,942

(7,783)

(1.95)

2,662,405

4,362,405

3,997,519

$

Adjustments to reconcile to the GAAP Basis
Total expenses on the budgetary basis
Less: capital outlay costs capitalized
Less: debt service
Add: depreciation expense

$ (1,709,558)

$ 3,997,519
(1,363,664)
(405,942)
323,964

Total operating expenses

$ 2,551,877

(1) The revenue under expenses was less than the $425,770 budgeted along with the loan.
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$

Percent
Variance

1,148
(22,353)
37,720
3,874
19,449
11,488
(1,700,000)
(425,770)

$

$ 1,743,759
217,147
276,244
13,874
19,449
17,488

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

364,886
$ (1,709,558)

0.07
-9.33
15.81
38.74

8.36

STATISTICAL SECTION

STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of the Village of North Palm Beach's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed unaudited information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statement, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Village's overall financial health.
Contents

Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Village's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time. These schedules include:
Net Position by Component
Changes in Net Position
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Fund

94
95
97
98

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.
Net Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
Principal Property Taxpayers
Property Tax Levies and Collections

100
101
102
103

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Village's
current levels of outstanding debt and the Village's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

104
105
106

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the Village's financial activities take place.
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

107
108

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help understand how the information
in the Village's financial report relates to the services the Village provides and the activities it performs.
Full-Time Equivalent Village Government Employees by Function
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) Unaudited

2009

2010

Fiscal Year
2011

2012

2013

Governmental Activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net position

$ 16,643,241
251,088
11,016,626
27,910,955

$ 18,184,508
390,081
10,568,594
29,143,183

$ 17,237,355
548,489
11,775,621
29,561,465

$ 16,109,707
658,194
11,846,141
28,614,042

$ 15,431,966
317,190
11,973,715
27,722,871

Business-Type Activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net position

2,364,814
434,212
2,799,026

2,295,125
403,261
2,698,386

2,200,927
385,623
2,586,550

2,082,668
557,954
2,640,622

1,998,974
668,434
2,667,408

19,008,055
251,088
11,450,838
$ 30,709,981

20,479,633
390,081
10,971,855
$ 31,841,569

19,438,282
548,489
12,161,244
$ 32,148,015

18,192,375
658,194
12,404,095
$ 31,254,664

17,430,940
317,190
12,642,149
$ 30,390,279

Primary government:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government net position

2014

2015 (1)

2016

2017

2018

Governmental Activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net position

$ 14,966,927
180,755
11,314,096
26,461,778

$ 14,711,016
177,431
6,168,366
21,056,813

$ 14,102,547
398,519
6,677,850
21,178,916

$ 13,484,731
992,538
6,536,225
21,013,494

$ 15,429,484
484,568
6,658,744
22,572,796

Business-Type Activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net position

1,907,746
514,167
2,421,913

1,833,975
544,523
2,378,498

1,880,421
418,726
2,299,147

1,991,168
361,461
2,352,629

1,685,268
46,469
1,731,737

16,874,673
180,755
11,828,263
$ 28,883,691

16,544,991
177,431
6,712,889
$ 23,435,311

15,982,968
398,519
7,096,576
$ 23,478,063

15,475,899
992,538
6,897,686
$ 23,366,123

17,114,752
484,568
6,705,213
$ 24,304,533

Primary government:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government net position

(1)

The Village implemented GASB 68 in 2015 related to pension accounting which significantly reduced unrestricted net position.
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) Unaudited

Fiscal Year
2009
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development and planning
Leisure services
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activities:
Country club
Total business-type activities
Total primary government expenses
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development and planning
Leisure services
Other government
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Country club
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities program revenues
Total primary government program revenues
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government net expense
General revenues and other changes in net position:
Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Local option gas taxes
Local option infrastruture surtax
Utility service taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales and use taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions for Support Our Troops
Gain on disposl of equipment
Transfers
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total business-type activities
Total primary government
Change in net position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

$

2,239,511
7,095,043
4,083,441
826,149
3,174,623
26,702
17,445,469

2010

$

2,679,192
7,304,233
4,594,738
806,536
2,830,292
4,384
18,219,375

2011

$

2,403,681
7,232,748
4,733,913
811,177
2,749,065

2012

$

2,520,815
7,892,561
4,652,620
884,773
2,873,496

2013

$

2,489,488
8,282,062
4,482,973
966,245
2,974,290

17,930,584

18,824,265

19,195,058

3,308,535
3,308,535
$ 20,754,004

3,398,206
3,398,206
$ 21,617,581

3,691,528
3,691,528
$ 21,622,112

3,536,139
3,536,139
$ 22,360,404

3,629,120
3,629,120
$ 22,824,178

$

$

$

$

$

$

122,569
378,591
394,082
699,130
912,862

126,968
465,263
411,722
734,718
1,063,748

130,886
420,653
400,662
861,394
1,043,459

135,372
440,568
386,974
816,673
1,018,883

107,976
522,121
403,447
993,059
1,087,182

105,080
2,017,158
4,629,472

96,670
75,845
2,974,934

126,568
5,169
2,988,791

149,573
5,686
2,953,729

91,901
233,949
3,439,635

3,404,859

3,227,580

3,571,199

3,582,760

3,577,446

3,404,859
8,034,331

$

3,227,580
6,202,514

$

3,571,199
6,559,990

$

3,582,760
6,536,489

$

3,577,446
7,017,081

$ (12,815,997)
96,324
$ (12,719,673)

$ (15,244,441)
(170,626)
$ (15,415,067)

$ (14,941,793)
(120,329)
$ (15,062,122)

$ (15,870,536)
46,621
$ (15,823,915)

$ (15,755,423)
(51,674)
$ (15,807,097)

$ 11,917,359
267,557

$ 11,053,128
266,077

$ 10,441,869
259,794

$ 10,011,748
263,369

$

2,239,002
1,256,831
1,116,107

2,261,375
1,204,328
1,114,945

2,198,148
1,191,155
1,140,744

2,164,920
1,178,598
1,138,097

2,197,760
1,160,780
1,187,221

280,217
213,425

97,743
30,622

90,968
75,413

37,029
38,219

17,065,765

16,393,495

15,360,075

14,923,113

14,864,252

7,376

14,686
55,300

8,493

7,451

8,555
69,905

7,376
$ 17,073,141

69,986
$ 16,463,481

8,493
$ 15,368,568

7,451
$ 14,930,564

78,460
$ 14,942,712

$

$

$

$

$

(1,346)
263,459
6,796

$

4,249,768
103,700
4,353,468

$

1,149,054
(100,640)
1,048,414

$

Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.
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418,282
(111,836)
306,446

$

(947,423)
54,072
(893,351)

$

9,981,391
261,852

(891,171)
26,786
(864,385)

2014

$

3,028,716
9,311,441
4,963,704
1,308,924
2,973,687

2,985,185
9,308,778
5,106,651
1,382,121
2,904,715
21,687,450

3,902,131
3,902,131
$ 24,503,629

3,842,660
3,842,660
$ 25,429,132

3,845,547
3,845,547
$ 25,532,997

2,903,224
2,903,224
$ 26,359,239

2,912,523
2,912,523
$ 27,100,253

$

$

$

$

$

128,459
628,529
565,011
1,213,032
994,918

$

2018

21,586,472

131,445
537,064
514,354
1,163,875
1,006,382

$

2017

20,601,498

110,694
592,644
402,814
1,621,471
1,096,021

$

2016

3,205,903
9,905,815
5,707,570
1,255,115
3,114,720
266,892
23,456,015

$

2,696,298
9,259,442
4,485,246
1,046,299
3,114,213

2015

134,249
557,265
547,596
1,222,464
1,022,175

$

3,213,886
10,045,757
5,911,225
1,458,523
3,058,410
499,929
24,187,730

140,998
548,019
510,732
1,495,298
876,174

90,520
16,098
3,930,262

380,567
26,548
3,760,235

365,823
229,161
4,124,933

377,339
102,187
3,963,275

422,255
9,591
4,003,067

3,645,706

3,788,852

3,720,573

2,946,432

2,946,432

3,645,706
7,575,968

$

3,788,852
7,549,087

$

3,720,573
7,845,506

$

2,946,432
6,909,707

$

2,946,432
6,949,499

$ (16,671,236)
(256,425)
$ (16,927,661)

$ (17,826,237)
(53,808)
$ (17,880,045)

$ (17,562,517)
(124,974)
$ (17,687,491)

$ (19,492,740)
43,208
$ (19,449,532)

$ (20,184,663)
33,909
$ (20,150,754)

$ 10,154,695
266,147

$ 11,364,888
282,549

$ 12,253,917
288,150

2,277,366
1,232,669
1,260,617

2,267,118
1,253,139
1,332,209

2,303,294
1,263,812
1,363,954

$ 13,091,985
305,700
552,600
2,413,679
1,306,997
1,371,890

$ 15,003,141
302,208
879,565
2,511,877
1,294,280
1,413,335

16,653
146,360

108,794
57,137

103,353
60,026

126,926
150,698

376,227
268,471

55,636

30,457

48,114

6,843

74,449

15,410,143

16,696,291

17,684,620

19,327,318

22,123,553

10,930

10,393

9,230
36,393

10,274

13,874

10,930
$ 15,421,073

10,393
$ 16,706,684

45,623
$ 17,730,243

10,274
$ 19,337,592

13,874
$ 22,137,427

$

$

$

$

$

$

(1,261,093)
(245,495)
(1,506,588)

$

(1,129,946)
(43,415)
(1,173,361)

$

122,103
(79,351)
42,752

$

(165,422)
53,482
(111,940)

$

1,938,890
47,783
1,986,673
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) Unaudited

2009
Pre GASB 54
General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Total general fund
Post GASB 54
General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total general fund
Pre GASB 54
All other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total all other governmental funds
Post GASB 54
All other Governmental Funds
Restricted
Assigned
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total all other governmental funds
Post GASB 54
General Fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total general fund
All other Governmental Funds
Restricted
Assigned
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Unassigned
Total all other governmental funds

$

563,115
10,058,216

2010

$

2011

$

2012

$

2013

$

167,108
338,457

276,924
548,489

166,839
658,194

$ 10,621,331

104,245
10,443,099
$ 11,052,909

186,594
10,688,660
$ 11,700,667

127,574
11,244,977
$ 12,197,584

$

$

$

$

$

$

293,674
317,190
442,833
200,016
11,451,668
12,705,381

(152,861)
825,778

$

672,917

$

2014
$

244,438
135,255

47,379
844,742
892,121

$

2015
$

155,594
131,931

47,107
1,491,574
1,538,681

47,652
2,129,831
$ 2,177,483

2016
$

358,606
353,019

$

2017
$

183,220
781,756

47,652
1,799,617
1,847,269
2018

$

1,511,733
47,338

216,808
12,391,362
$ 12,987,863

319,888
10,802,623
$ 11,410,036

208,204
10,724,049
$ 11,643,878

316,266
11,811,468
$ 13,092,710

$

407,862
7,276,475
9,243,408

$

$

$

45,500

$ 13,988,744

$

11,826,016

508,481
1,604,073

388,981
1,670,196

2,158,054

$ 16,047,921

$

5,398,245
3,506
(114,279)
17,113,488

45,500
325,152
841,850

$ 1,212,502

45,500
318,526
1,448,620

$

1,812,646

$

Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.
The Village implemented GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Definitions, in 2011 and restated the 2010 amounts.
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) Unaudited

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

2010

2011

$ 15,680,749
880,016
3,315,908
1,684,718
145,340
(1,345)
300,455
22,005,841

$ 14,784,906
910,997
1,768,388
1,944,245
142,048
280,218
278,062
20,108,864

$ 14,090,966
959,098
1,557,377
1,934,424
164,366
97,743
59,462
18,863,436

$ 13,618,635
810,390
1,591,678
1,966,179
140,610
90,968
130,293
18,348,753

$ 13,601,783
803,337
1,817,603
2,141,437
131,524
37,029
207,076
18,739,789

1,970,257
6,835,730
3,432,556
784,486
2,898,252

2,496,342
7,021,231
3,887,034
774,121
2,361,388

2,402,241
7,053,282
4,044,642
790,937
2,295,959

2,328,568
7,583,018
3,886,698
844,748
2,374,748

2,346,281
7,947,221
3,733,977
933,117
2,491,559

3,939,455

663,582

682,057

495,254

1,110,051

1,395,735
43,725
21,300,196

2,250,000
4,384
19,458,082

17,269,118

17,513,034

18,562,206

705,645

650,782

1,594,318

835,719

177,583

454,111
(454,111)

163,490
(163,490)

1,334,934
(1,334,934)

500,000
(500,000)

265,000
(265,000)

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development and planning
Leisure services - recreation
Other government
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal payments
Interest paid on debt
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital lease
Proceeds from debt issuance
Miscellaneous
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
expenditures

Fiscal Year
2012

2009

$

705,645

8.07%

$

650,782

11.99%
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$

1,594,318

-

$

835,719

-

$

2013

177,583

-

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

$ 13,930,877
1,344,653
1,688,608
2,320,305
117,869
16,653
258,086
19,677,051

$ 15,167,694
947,158
1,758,246
2,231,673
128,235
108,794
122,107
20,463,907

$ 16,109,173
1,235,782
1,765,836
2,364,013
91,534
103,353
191,250
21,860,941

$ 17,118,361
997,656
2,417,809
2,321,298
124,395
126,926
157,063
23,263,508

$ 19,111,506
1,222,594
2,679,389
2,200,860
100,140
376,227
412,513
26,103,229

2,541,546
8,947,627
3,773,689
1,004,642
2,644,598

2,904,553
8,966,077
4,255,636
1,270,399
2,514,495

2,876,521
9,129,947
4,266,749
1,351,061
2,448,164

2,970,223
9,166,060
4,882,159
1,190,759
2,591,866

3,059,623
9,669,361
5,313,834
1,429,764
2,613,664

1,117,234

1,530,430

1,209,249

2,123,742

5,507,617

21,281,691

22,924,809

680,000
613,101
28,886,964

579,250

338,699

20,029,336

21,441,590

(352,285)

(977,683)

323,000
(323,000)

2,091,246
(2,091,246)

1,503,750
(1,503,750)

(2,783,735)

1,503,750
(1,503,750)

4,963,307
(4,963,307)

15,000,000
15,000,000
$

(352,285)

-

$

(977,683)

-

$

579,250

-

$ 15,338,699

$ (2,783,735)

-

5.84%
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
NET ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Real Property

Fiscal Year
Ended
Sept 30,

Tax Roll
Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

Note:

Commercial
Property

Residential Property
$

1,575,367,916
1,394,954,867
1,295,097,223
1,265,549,795
1,254,302,880
1,287,481,785
1,355,969,888
1,453,735,176
1,545,192,840
1,804,338,668

$

230,599,951
221,443,121
210,844,220
189,284,601
195,770,816
203,512,929
214,484,701
232,020,936
259,097,141
279,488,569

Personal
Property
$

41,471,282
40,552,276
38,261,607
33,303,512
30,033,151
33,792,851
34,077,944
36,939,006
40,181,846
35,855,827

Total Net Market Assessed Value
$

1,847,439,149
1,656,950,264
1,544,203,050
1,488,137,908
1,480,106,847
1,524,787,565
1,604,532,533
1,722,695,118
1,844,471,827
2,119,683,064

Assessed values are established by the Palm Beach Property Appraiser's office as of January 1, each year.
Assessments were increased to 100% of market value as of 1980.
Property in the Village is reassessed each year. Property is assessed at actual value, therefore the assessed
values are equal to actual value. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.

Source:

Palm Beach County Property Appraiser

100

Total Direct
Tax Rate
6.6977
6.9000
6.9723
6.9723
6.9723
6.8731
7.3300
7.3300
7.3300
7.3300

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Overlapping Rates (1)

Fiscal
Year

Tax Roll
Year

Village of
N. Palm Beach

Palm Beach
County
School
District

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

6.6977
6.9000
6.9723
6.9723
6.9723
6.8731
7.3300
7.3300
7.3300
7.3300

7.2500
7.9830
8.1540
8.1800
7.7780
7.5860
7.5940
7.5120
7.0700
6.7690

Note:
Source:

(1)

Palm
Beach
County

Special
Districts

3.9660
4.5614
4.9960
4.9925
4.9902
4.9852
4.9729
4.9277
4.9142
4.9023

2.2570
2.4934
2.5549
2.3433
2.3154
2.2280
2.1732
2.0974
1.9453
1.7818

Total
Direct and
Overlapping
Rates
20.1707
21.9378
22.6772
22.4881
22.0559
21.6723
22.0701
21.8671
21.2595
20.7831

All millage rates are based on $1 for every $1,000 of assessed value.
North Palm Beach: Notice of Ad Valorem Taxes and Non-Ad Valorem Assessments

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the Village
of North Palm Beach. Not all overlapping rates apply to all Village of North Palm Beach property owners
(i.e. The rates for special districts apply only to the proportion of the government's property owners whose
property is located within the geographic boundaries of the special district.)

101

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
2018 & 2009 Presented

2018

Taxable
Assessed
Value

Taxpayers
Olen Residential Realty
SHM Old Port Cove LLC
Sanctuary Bay Trust Corporation
Florida Power & Light
JB Shoppes LLLP
Pearland RJR LLC
New Country Motor Cars
SHM North Palm Beach LLC
Palm Beach Autoplex LLC
Domani Devolopment, LLC
Crystal Tree NPB
Greater Fla Inv Co&
CF02 Palm Beach III LP
Village Shoppers at US 1LLC
Old Port Cove Holding, INC
Riverside National Bank of FL
701 US One Inc

$

Total

$ 185,142,798

2009

Rank

Percentage
of Total
Village Net
Taxable
Assessed
Value

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

1.51%
1.42%
1.19%
1.03%
0.78%
0.63%
0.70%
0.57%
0.47%
0.45%

$

8.75%

$ 109,643,934

31,984,561
30,071,012
25,213,753
21,769,966
16,486,443
13,360,328
14,810,680
12,074,982
9,861,030
9,510,043

Rank

Percentage
of Total
Village Net
Taxable
Assessed
Value

18,000,000

1

0.97%

14,000,300

3

0.76%

9,213,927
17,030,531
12,911,802
11,000,000
7,896,575
7,706,522
6,044,474
5,839,803

6
2
4
5
7
8
9
10

0.50%
0.92%
0.70%
0.60%
0.43%
0.42%
0.33%
0.32%

Taxable
Assessed
Value

Source: Palm Beach Country Appraiser
Note: Assessed values are established by the Palm Beach Property Appraiser's offices as of January 1, each year.

102

5.95%

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Fiscal Year
Ending
Sept 30,

Tax Roll
Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018*

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

Collected within
the Fiscal Year
of the Levy
Percent
Amount
of Levy

Total Taxes
Levied for
Fiscal Year
$

12,401,519
11,564,281
10,793,319
10,424,715
10,358,172
10,503,598
11,761,226
12,627,355
13,519,978
15,537,277

$

11,530,384
10,683,829
10,097,289
9,992,145
9,948,550
10,097,763
11,350,738
12,197,736
13,051,272
14,999,572

92.98%
92.39%
93.55%
95.85%
96.05%
96.14%
96.51%
96.60%
96.53%
96.54%

Source: Palm Beach Country Property Appraiser
* Information available from the PBC Tax Collector is presented
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Collections in
Subsequent
Years
$

349,642
284,004
298,514
15,616
36,366
57,493
14,777
57,133
41,267
3,390

Total Collections
to Date
Percent
Amount
of Levy
$ 11,880,026
10,967,833
10,395,803
10,007,761
9,984,916
10,155,256
11,365,515
12,254,869
13,092,539
15,002,962

95.79%
94.84%
96.32%
96.00%
96.40%
96.68%
96.64%
97.05%
96.84%
96.56%

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Business-type
Activities

Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year
Ended
Sept 30,

Loans
Payable

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$

Note:

*

(1)

2,250,000
15,000,000
14,320,000

Capital
Leases
$

Loans
Payable

-

$
-

Capital
Leases

4,383,033
4,090,284
3,844,928
3,608,294
3,357,875
3,096,925
2,824,987
2,684,913
2,247,088
1,939,366

$

97,049
235,176
173,084
106,933
396,055
274,471
147,767
-

Total
$

6,730,082
4,325,460
4,018,012 *
3,715,227
3,753,930
3,371,396
2,972,754
2,684,913
17,247,088
16,259,366

Percent of
Median Personal
Income (1)
0.83%
0.56%
0.54%
0.50%
0.49%
0.46%
0.37%
0.35%
1.85%
1.79%

Per
Capita
$
*

Details regarding the Village's outstanding debt may be found in the notes to the
financial statements.
Information was not available, the prior year info was used.

See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 103 for personal income and population data.
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583.20
371.64
345.22
303.51
305.37
266.62
234.94
212.20
1,292.69
1,229.26

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Unaudited

Net
Debt
Outstanding *

Government Unit
Debt repaid with property taxes:
Palm Beach County
Palm Beach County School Board

$

Other debt:
Palm Beach County
Palm Beach County School Board

Percentage
Applicable to
the Village of
North Palm Beach (1)

89,669
9,853

1.20%
1.12%

791,484

1.20%
1.12%

Amount
Applicable to
the Village of
North Palm Beach

$

1,076
110

9,498

Subtotal, overlapping debt

10,684

Village of North Palm Beach Direct Debt

14,230

Total direct and overlapping debt

$

* In thousands.
Sources: Palm Beach County Tax Appraiser's Office
Palm Beach County School Board
Palm Beach County Clerk & Comptroller
Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries
of the Village. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the Village of North Palm Beach. This
process recognizes that, when considering the Village's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However,
this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt,
of each overlapping government.
(1) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using
taxable assessed property values. Value that is within the Village's boundaries and dividing it by the
County's and School Board's total taxable assessed value. This approach was also used for the other
debt.
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24,914

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH

Pledged - Revenue Coverage
Country Club Bonds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

Fiscal
Year

Gross
Revenues (1)

Operating
Expenses (2)

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$ 3,412,235
3,242,266
3,579,692
3,590,211
3,586,001
3,656,636
3,799,245
3,766,196
2,956,706
2,268,512

$ 2,587,171
2,728,470
3,049,301
2,932,743
2,986,080
3,248,284
3,226,907
3,333,395
2,472,812
2,227,913

Required
Debt
Service

Net Revenue

$

825,064
513,796
530,391
657,468
599,921
408,352
572,338
432,801
483,894
40,599

$

Coverage (3)

394,900
394,900
394,900
398,159
398,159
398,159
398,159
398,159
398,159
398,159

2.09
1.30
1.34
1.65
1.51
1.03
1.44
1.09
1.22
0.10

Note: The Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Notes, Series 2017 do not have any pledged revenues.
(1)

Gross revenue includes all revenues derived by the Village from the ownership and operation
of the Country Club.

(2)

Operating expenses excludes non-cash expenses

(3)

Coverage should be not less than 1.00.
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Unaudited

Calendar
Year
2009 (estimate)
2010 (estimate)
2011 (estimate)
2012 (estimate)
2013 (estimate)
2014 (estimate)
2015 (estimate)
2016 (estimate)
2017 (estimate)
2018 (estimate)

Population (1)
11,541
11,639
*
12,241
12,293
12,645
12,653
12,817
13,342
13,227

Sources:

Median
Personal
Income (1)
66,401
64,156
*
***62,121
***59,778
***63,349
***61,057
***61,653
***69,718
***68,833

Per
Capita
Personal
Income (1)
49,350
49,130
*
****49,117
****42,830
****43,120
****43,120
****45,110
****46,160
****46,160

Palm Beach
County
Unemployment
Rate (2)
10.8
12.0
10.7
**5.29
**4.66
**3.92
**3.15
**2.10
**2.70
**1.79

Business Development Board
US Census Bureau
* 2011 Demographic data is not available due to Agency Software upgrade
that is not complete
** Village of North Palm Beach Unemployment Rate for 2012-2018 presented
*** North Palm Beach Median Personal Income for 2012 - 2018 presented
**** West Palm Beach/Ft Lauderdale/Miami Mean Income data presented

Note:

(1)

All information available at the current time is presented.

107

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

729972

Employer
Palm Beach Country School Board

2018**
Percentage
of Total
Employees
Employment

628411
2008
Percentage
of Total
Employees
Employment

21,200

2.90%

21,718

3.46%

Federal Government

6,226

0.85%

6,191

0.99%

Tenet Health Care Corp

5,939

0.81%

4,500

0.72%

Palm Beach County Government

5,952

0.82%

11,319

1.80%

NextEra Energy (Florida Power & Light)

4,404

0.60%

3,632

0.58%

Hospital Corporation of America (HCA) (1)

3,550

0.49%

3,395

0.54%

State Government

3,003

0.41%

2,198

0.35%

Boca Raton Regional Hospital (2)

2,800

0.38%

2,100

0.33%

Florida Alantic University

2,644

0.36%

2,838

0.45%

Veterans Health Administration

2,468

0.34%

2,207

0.35%

Bethesda Memorial Hospital

2,282

0.31%

1,496

0.24%

Office Depot

2,055

0.28%

2,100

0.33%

The Breakers Hotel

2,000

0.27%

1,800

0.29%

Florida Crystals (Headquarters)

2,000

0.27%

1,800

0.29%

Jupiter Medical Center

1,907

0.26%

1,440

0.23%

G4S Secure Solutions

1,501

0.21%

-

0.00%

City of West Palm Beach

1,420

0.19%

1,800

0.29%

71,351

9.75%

70,534

11.24%

Source:

Business Development Board of Palm Beach County, floridajobs.org
*

Employer: Palm Beach County
Information is not available for the Village of North Palm Beach.

**

Percentage of total employment is calculated using Palm Beach County's
available labor force in each of the respective years presented.

***

FY 2017 data is not available - FY 2007 & 2016 data presented

(1)
(2)

Formerly Columbia Palm Beach Health Care Systems, Inc
Formerly Boca Raton Community Hospital

Notes:
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
Full-Time Equivalent Village Government Employees by Function
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (*)

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

4
1

4
1

Information Technology
Full-Time
Part-Time

2
1

2
1

2
1

3
0

3
0

3
0

3
0

3
0

3
0

3
0

Human Resources
Full-Time
Part-Time

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

Village Clerk - Full-Time

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Full-time
Part-Time

5
1

5
1

5
1

5
1

5
1

5
1

7
0

7
0

5
1

6
0

Full-time
Part-Time

38
0

37
0

37
0

37
0

37
0

37
0

35
0

34
0

36
0

37
0

Full-time
Part-Time

67
11

67
12

67
12

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Full-time
Part-Time

0
0

0
0

0
0

43
12

43
13

43
13

36
13

36
13

36
13

38
15

Fire Rescue
Full-time
Part-Time

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
0

24
0

24
0

24
0

24
0

24
0

24
0

9
2

9
2

9
2

8
2

8
2

10
1

11
0

12
0

13
1

14
1

6
10

6
10

6
10

6
10

6
10

6
10

7
9

7
9

7
9

7
7

9
42

7
42

6
43

6
43

6
43

6
43

6
43

6
43

6
43

6
42

5
21

5
21

7
64

5
56

6
54

8
65

8
65

8
65

5
27

5
27

236

234

279

268

268

282

275

276

241

244

Number of Employees:
General Government
Village Manager
Full-Time
Part-Time

Finance

Public Works

Police & Fire

Police

Community Development and Planning
Full-time
Part-Time
Leisure Services
Library
Full-time
Part-Time
Recreation
Full-time
Part-Time
Other Government - Country Club
Full-time
Part-Time
Total Number of Employees Budgeted FY Ending

* Variance exists due to the employment of seasonal and part-time employees.

Source: Village of North Palm Beach Budget Report
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2009

2010

10,667
7,214
110
2.5

10,165
7,070
110
2.71

POLICE
Number of arrests by police officers
Number of traffic citations issued

448
6,305

FIRE RESCUE
EMS average response times (minutes)
Number of EMS calls

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

9,962
7,071
98
-

10,065
7,076
98
-

10,720
7,471
111
-

10,720
7,616
98
-

11,167
7,618
98
-

402
4,951

260
2,564

211
2,566

216
1,254

238
2,799

5.01
1,214

5.12
1,146

5.19
1,179

5.26
1,326

5.11
1,296

1,548
613

1,744
391

1,616
575

1,835
817

73

38

72

28
1,125

28
1,005

35,681

39,277

2016

2017

2018

12,556
7,614
92
-

12,980
7,614
85
-

12,624
7,632
89.00
-

293
3,407

247
2,494

233
1,974

192
2,014

5.10
1,110

5.05
1,499

5.26
1,601

5.21
1,746

5.37
1,550

2,480
790

2,103
887

3,920
769

4,242
680

100

62

28

56

42

98

246

38
1,260

49
1,311

37
2,074

53
1,439

57
1,389

48
1,174

40
1,109

38
1,174

40,658

43,340

44,966

46,546

47,339

*57,935

41,161

43,992

FUNCTION/PROGRAM
PUBLIC WORKS
Sanitation (Tons of Refuse Collected)
No. of collection units for solid waste (residential)
Number of vehicles maintained
Number of repair overlays completed (miles)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING
Bldg Dept - Number of Permits,Subpermits and certificates
Number of code enforcement violations/cases
Number of code violations brought to board/magistrate
(Calendar Yr End)
RECREATION
Number of community events presented
Number of registrants in athletic programs
LIBRARY
Library - Number of Volumes
OTHER GOVERNMENT
Country Club
Number of Golf Members
Number of Tennis Members

297
180

354
184

298
173

283
162

262
190

250
194

255
193

Source: Village of North Palm Beach

* Beginning in FY 2016 Number of Volumes includes not only printed items, but media items as well.
** Includes only the number of violations/cases opened and not a reflection of the total number of open violations as was reported for years prior to 2017
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265
183

4,665
2,173
**516/357 **726/317

271
183

178
159

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016*

2017

2018

23

23

23

23

23

23

23

23

23

23

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
36.00
513

5.18
32.30**
513

5.18
32.30
628****

5.18
32.30
628****

1
0
23
0

1
0
23
0

1
0
23
0

1
0
22
0

1
0
22
0

1
0
22
0

1
0
22
0

1
0
23
0

1
0
24
0

1
0
21
0

1
31
0

1
31
0

1
31
0

1
28
2

1
28
2

1
28
2

1
28
2.5

1
28
2.5

1
28
2.5

1
30
2.5

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

4
2
1
1

Function/Program:
General Government
No. of General Government Buildings
Public Works
Square Miles
Miles of Streets
Number of Street Lights (within corp surroundings)

Public Safety
Fire:
Number of Stations
Number of Firemen& Officers
Number of Firemen/Paramedics/EMTs
Number of Fire Captains
Police/EMS Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Policemen & Officers
Number of Police Captains
Leisure Services
Recreation
Number of Parks
Public Tennis Courts
Swimming Pool
Number of Marinas
Library
Number of Libraries
Number of Volumes (Printed items only)
Other Government
Country Club
Golf Course
Driving Range
Tennis Courts
Restaurant
Snack Bar

1
35,681

1
1
10
0
0

1
39,277

1
1
10
1
1

1
40,658

1
1
10
1
1

1
43,340

1
1
10
1
1

1
44,966

1
1
10
1
1

1
46,546

1
1
10
1
1

1
47,339

1
1
10
1
1

Source: Village of North Palm Beach
*

Preliminary 2016 information is presented

**

A Centerline Miles Study was completed during FY 2016 and the number of NPB Village centerline miles from the report is presented.

***

Restaurant services closed on 10/01/2016

**** 173 Village owned/455 FPL owned
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1
48,913

1
1
10
1
1

1
33,502

1
36,009

1
1
10
1***
1***

1
1
10
1***
1***

OTHER REPORTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Village Council
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida, as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated March 11, 2019.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village of
North Palm Beach, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of North Palm
Beach, Florida’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village of North Palm Beach,
Florida’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

West Palm Beach, Florida
March 11, 2019
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MANAGEMENT LETTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Village Council
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida, as of and for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 11, 2019.
Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of
the Auditor General.
Other Reporting Requirements
We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountant’s Report on an
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, At-C Section 315,
regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Disclosures in those reports, which are dated March 11, 2019, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter.
Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
financial audit report. No findings and recommendations were made in the preceding financial
audit report.

114

Official Title and Legal Authority
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this Management Letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This
information is disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.
Financial Condition and Management
Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the
Village of North Palm Beach, Florida has met one or more of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our
audit, we determined that the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida did not meet any of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018.
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the
Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s financial condition, and our financial condition
assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of
financial information provided by same. Our assessment was done as of the fiscal year end. The
results of our procedures did not disclose any matters that are required to be reported.
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such recommendations.
Special District Component Units
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c, Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we
communicate the failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality,
or special district, to provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the
component unit, within the audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special
district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.
Based on the application of criteria in publications cited in Section 10.553, Rules of the Auditor
General, there are no special district component units of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida.
Additional Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that us to communicate
noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or
are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material
but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we had
one finding.
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Finding 2018-1
The 2006 loan agreement with Bank of America requires that pledged revenues cover 100% of the
debt service due plus the expenses, other than non-cash expenses, of owning and operating the
Country Club. Due to the Golf Course and Country Club being closed for part of the year for
renovations pledged revenues were short $357,560.
Management Response
Continued work to build a new clubhouse and renovate the golf course will result in reduced
Country Club Revenues due to the closure of both facilities at different times. The golf course will
resume operations in April 2019 and the Clubhouse is anticipated to open in October 2019. All
required debt service payments have been paid on time for the loan

Single Audits
The Village expended less than $750,000 of federal awards and less than $750,000 of state
financial assistance for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, and was not required to have a
federal single audit or a state single audit.
Response to Management Letter
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s response to the finding identified in our audit is
described above. The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the audit committee, the Village Council,
and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

March 11, 2019
West Palm Beach, Florida
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 218.415,
FLORIDA STATUTES

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Village Council
The Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
We have examined the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s compliance with Section 218.415,
Florida Statutes during the year ended September 30, 2018. Management of the Village of North Palm
Beach, Florida is responsible for the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s compliance with the
specified requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Village of North Palm Beach,
Florida’s compliance with the specified requirements based on our examination.
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida
complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above. An examination
involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the Village of North Palm Beach,
Florida complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures
selected depend on our judgement, including an assessment of the risk of material noncompliance,
whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida’s
compliance with the specified requirements.
In our opinion, the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida complied, in all material respects, with Section
218.415, Florida Statutes for the year ended September 30, 2018.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General,
applicable management, and the Village Council, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

West Palm Beach, Florida
March 11, 2019
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
Village Manager’s Office

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

FROM:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

DATE:

March 28, 2019

SUBJECT:

RESOLUTION – COUNTRY CLUB RESTAURANT LEASE Approving a 5-Year
Restaurant Operator Agreement with Farmer’s Table, LLC for exclusive provision of
Restaurant and Catering Services to the North Palm Beach Country Club.

The Village is in the process of opening its newly-renovated Jack Nicklaus Signature Golf Course and
constructing a new 37,000 square foot Clubhouse. The golf course will open to the general public on
April 1, 2019, and the Clubhouse is expected to open in September, 2019.
As part of the effort to develop a Clubhouse that will provide a community gathering place, as well as
serve the needs of the Club’s members and visitors, the Village has been actively seeking a vendor to
provide restaurant and catering services.
Background:
After an initial Request for Proposals, the Village entered into an agreement with a vendor to provide
restaurant and catering services in 2016, but terminated the agreement in 2017 due to the vendor’s
inability to comply with the contractual requirements and expectations.
Following the termination of that agreement, the Village issued Requests for Proposals (RFP) on two
separate occasions to identify a new vendor. The first RFP was issued in November, 2017. This initial
RFP did not attract an adequate number of applicants to meet the Village’s expectations by the
submittal deadline in February, 2018. As a result, the Village modified the RFP requirements in an
effort to attract qualified applicants and reissued it in March, 2018 with responses due in April, 2018. A
committee reviewed the two proposals received and interviewed the vendors. Based upon the
committee’s recommendation, the Village Council authorized staff to negotiate a Restaurant and
Catering Services Agreement with The Bistro (Jupiter, FL) in May, 2018. The Village and The Bistro
were unable to reach mutually agreed upon terms and ended negotiations in late-August, 2018.
Being unable to identify a vendor through the RFP process, the Village reached out to potential vendors
directly and through the network of contacts and brokers to identify restaurants and/or caterers who
would be interested in providing restaurant and catering services at the clubhouse. While Village staff
was communicating with about a half dozen potential vendors during this time, the list was ultimately
reduced to two: a group identified as Oakes Grill, which has ties to the Duffy’s restaurant chain; and
Farmer’s Table, a restaurant that has been successfully operating in Boca Raton.
Farmer’s Table and Oakes Grill each presented their vision and proposed terms to the Village Council
at a Special Meeting in February, 2019. Additionally, the Village Council sampled the types of food that
would be provided by the vendors. Following the two presentations, the Village Council directed staff to
negotiate an agreement with Farmer’s Table.

Service Approach and Agreement Terms:
The Village has stressed the importance of a collaboration between the Club and the Restaurant and
Catering Services but has also recognized the need to allow Farmer’s Table to operate as a full-service
restaurant, and not as a typical country club food and beverage operation that exists mainly to
complement the other services offered by the Club.
Farmer’s Table’s commitment to the Village is to “cook for the community”. The owners understand the
Village’s desire to accommodate all of our residents as it relates to price points and types of food
offerings. The use of soft openings and surveys, as well as a willingness to consider feedback from the
Country Club members and the community, will ensure Farmer’s Table will be able to accommodate
the Village’s needs.
Farmer’s Table has already initiated conversations with staff over interior design elements. Farmer’s Table
is also working on integrating the POS system with the Village’s financial software, providing Country Club
members with charging privileges and developing a priority seating program for Village residents.
Important terms in the Agreement include:













Five-year term in accordance with limits imposed by the Village Charter beginning on or around
September 1, 2019. The Agreement will automatically renew for additional five-year terms
unless either party gives written notice of its intent not to renew 180 days prior to the end of the
initial term or any renewal term.
Exclusive right of Farmer’s Table to use the indoor and covered porch dining areas, the
indoor/outdoor bar, kitchen, snack bar on the pool deck, and designated storage areas,
Farmer’s Table will be the exclusive provider of Restaurant and Catering Services to the
Country Club.
Farmer’s Table will be responsible to:
o book private parties/events in the banquet room;
o market and advertise the restaurant and banquet services;
o at a minimum, provide food and beverage services between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.;
o provide 50% of the cost of utilities and up to $12,000 in ad valorem property taxes; and
o maintain and replace equipment provided by the Village,
The Village will have access to exclusive right areas during declared emergency events when
the restaurant is not in operation.
Farmer’s Table will make the banquet room available for the Village for public or Club-related
events and functions (the Village will coordinate with Farmer’s Table so to minimize interference
with private rentals or other revenue generating functions).
Base rent will be $100,000 annually, beginning four months after Farmer’s Table commences
operations, with an additional payment of 5% of annual gross sales over $2 million. The base
rent will increase 2% annually after the initial five-year term of the Agreement.
The Village maintains revenues for the rental of the conference rooms.
Farmer’s Table will provide a cash guarantee equal to five months’ base rent, to be reduced by
one month’s base rent each year.
The Village will reimburse Farmer’s Table for the restaurant broker’s commission, with a
payment of $10,000 upon execution of the Agreement and additional $30,000 upon
commencement of Restaurant and Catering Services.

The attached Resolution has been prepared/reviewed by the Village Attorney for legal sufficiency.
Recommendation:
Village staff recommends approval of the attached Resolution approving a Restaurant Operator
Agreement with Farmer’s Table, LLC for the exclusive provision of Restaurant and Catering
Services at the North Palm Beach Country Club and authorizing the Mayor and Village Clerk to
execute the Agreement in accordance with Village policies and procedures.

RESOLUTION 2019-______
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA APPROVING A RESTAURANT
OPERATOR AGREEMENT WITH FARMER’S TABLE, LLC FOR THE
EXCLUSIVE PROVISION OF RESTAURANT AND CATERING SERVICES
AT THE NORTH PALM BEACH COUNTRY CLUB AND AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT
ON BEHALF OF THE VILLAGE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, the Village issued multiple Requests for Proposals for the operation of Restaurant
and Catering Services at the new North Palm Beach Country Club Clubhouse; and
WHEREAS, the RFP’s issued by the Village resulted in the termination of an agreement with a
prior vendor selected by the Village Council for failure to meet the Village’s expectations and
unsuccessful negotiations with a second vendor selected by the Village Council; and
WHEREAS, as a result, the Village contacted vendors and restaurant brokers directly and
ultimately arrived at a list of two potential vendors; and
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019, the Village Council received presentations from the two potential
vendors and authorized Village Staff to negotiate an agreement with Farmer’s Table, LLC; and
WHEREAS, the Village Council determines that the execution of a Restaurant Operator Agreement
with Farmer’s Table, LLC is in the best interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North
Palm Beach and, to the extent applicable, waives any conflicting purchasing policies and procedures.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.

Section 2.
The Village Council of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida, hereby
approves a Restaurant Operator Agreement to Conduct Food and Beverage Operations at the
North Palm Beach Country Club with Farmer’s Table, LLC, a copy of which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference, and authorizes the Mayor and Village Clerk to execute the
Agreement on behalf of the Village.
Section 3.
All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.
Section 4.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2019.

(Village Seal)
MAYOR
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK

RESTAURANT OPERATOR AGREEMENT
TO CONDUCT FOOD AND BEVERAGE OPERATIONS AT
THE NORTH PALM BEACH COUNTRY CLUB
THIS RESTAURANT OPERATOR AGREEMENT (this “LEASE” or “LEASE
AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into by and between the VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM
BEACH, a Florida municipal corporation, having its main office at 501 U.S. Highway One,
North Palm Beach, Florida 33408 (hereinafter referred to as the “VILLAGE”) and FARMER’S
TABLE LLC, a Florida limited liability company, having its principal place of business at 1901
N. Military Trail, Boca Raton, FL 33431 (hereinafter referred to as the “LESSEE”).
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the VILLAGE is the owner of the North Palm Beach Country Club, located at 951
U.S. Highway One, North Palm Beach, Florida; and
WHEREAS, the VILLAGE has designed and is re-building a new Country Club at this location
(as so re-built, the “Country Club”); and
WHEREAS, LESSEE desires to lease from the VILLAGE certain facilities within the new
Country Club to supply, on an exclusive basis, all food, beverage and general dining and catering
services (collectively, “Restaurant and Catering Services”) to the Country Club in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth herein.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and promises set forth herein and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
1.

PREMISES AND ACCEPTANCE BY LESSEE

A.
Upon the terms and conditions hereinafter contained, and in consideration for the
payment of rent hereinafter provided, and for and in consideration of the performance by
LESSEE of its other obligations hereinafter contained, the VILLAGE does hereby lease, let and
demise unto LESSEE, and LESSEE hereby leases from the VILLAGE, the following facilities
within the new Country Club based upon design drawings dated April 13, 2018 and revised as
indicated on each document (such design drawings, which are attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit A, are referred to herein as the “Design Documents”):
The Restaurant including indoor and covered porch dining areas and indoor/outdoor bar,
Kitchen, Snack Bar, Beverage and Server Station, and designated storage areas in the
new Village of North Palm Beach Clubhouse Building (the “Exclusive Use Premises”),
together with non-exclusive right to the use of the Covered Pavilion, Covered front entry,
Pool deck, Banquet Room, Event Lawn, restrooms and other public areas in and around
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said building (the “Non-Exclusive Use Premises” and together with the Exclusive Use
Premises, the “Premises”).
B.
LESSEE will examine the Premises from time to time as the construction thereof
progresses and will notify the VILLAGE of any matters of which LESSEE obtains actual
knowledge that fail to conform with the Design Documents (each, a “Non-Conforming Matter”).
LESSEE shall not be responsible or liable for any Non-Conforming Matter or other condition
affecting the Premises. With respect to any Non-Conforming Matter, the VILLAGE shall
promptly, at its expense, take such action as shall result in the Premises being in conformance
with the Design Drawings. If, during the course of construction, LESSEE discovers any matter
not addressed in the Design Documents that would reasonably and materially interfere with the
conduct of LESSEE’s Restaurant and Catering Services (each, an “Adverse Matter”), LESSEE
shall notify the VILLAGE and propose a modification or resolution. The VILLAGE shall be
obligated to address Adverse Matters only to the extent that the proposed modification or
resolution does not result in a cost increase or a delay in construction and the existence of an
Adverse Matter shall not relieve LESSEE of its obligations under this LEASE.
C.
The Premises shall be delivered to LESSEE with all kitchen equipment in place and in
good working order and fully furnished in accordance with the Design Documents. All such
equipment and furnishings shall be provided by the VILLAGE at its sole cost and expense.
2.

TERM

A.
The initial term of this LEASE is five (5) years (the “Initial Term”). Provided LESSEE
is not in material default hereunder, the LEASE shall automatically renew for additional five (5)
year terms (each a “Renewal Term”) unless either party gives the other party written notice of its
intent not to renew at least one hundred and eighty (180) days prior to the end of the Initial Term
or any Renewal Term (the Initial Term, together with each applicable Renewal Term, is referred
to herein as the “Term”). The Initial Term of this Lease shall commence on or around
September 1, 2019, the actual date to be the date of the grand re-opening of the Country Club, as
determined by the VILLAGE (the “Lease Commencement Date”). The VILLAGE shall utilize
its best efforts to provide LESSEE with at least sixty (60) days prior notice of the Lease
Commencement Date, and provided that the VILLAGE has been issued a Temporary Certificate
of Occupancy, shall allow LESSEE to occupy the Premises during this sixty (60) day period for
initial start-up activities, such as decoration and the training of staff. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if there exist any material, unresolved Non-Conforming Matters on the designated
Lease Commencement Date, then the actual Lease Commencement Date shall not occur until all
such Non-Conforming Matters have been resolved by the VILLAGE to LESSEE’s reasonable
satisfaction.
B.
During the Term, LESSEE shall be the exclusive provider of Restaurant and Catering
Services to the Country Club.
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C.
It is understood and agreed that any and all improvements and/or refurbishments erected
in or placed upon the Premises shall, to the extent the same constitute fixtures, remain thereon
and shall not be removed therefrom, and on the expiration of this Lease Agreement, any and all
such improvements constituting fixtures shall be and become the property of the VILLAGE.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, personal property of any kind or nature, including, without
limitation, equipment, tools of trade and furnishings provided by LESSEE that can be removed
without any damage to the Premises, shall not be construed as improvements constituting
fixtures under this Lease Agreement and shall be removed by LESSEE at the termination of or
expiration of this Lease Agreement. Floor coverings, window, wall and ceiling treatments, and
one food and beverage cart provided by the VILLAGE shall not be removed from the Premises
and shall remain the property of the VILLAGE.
D.
All parties, banquets, receptions, dinners and/or special events at the Country Club shall
be booked by LESSEE; provided, however, that LESSEE shall not book any parties, banquets,
receptions, dinners or special events beyond the Term of this LEASE without the consent of the
VILLAGE Manager. Any deposits collected for such events beyond the Term of this LEASE
that are approved by the VILLAGE Manager shall be held in escrow by the VILLAGE Attorney.
3.

LESSEE OBLIGATIONS

A.
LESSEE shall market and advertise the Restaurant and Catering Services in connection
with the grand re-opening of the Country Club and shall continue throughout the Term of this
LEASE to conduct additional marketing efforts. LESSEE agrees to obtain approval from the
Village Manager prior to issuing any press release pertaining to the grand re-opening of the
Restaurant and Catering Services. In addition, LESSEE agrees to provide a project manager to
coordinate and expedite all move-in and general start-up activities with the VILLAGE to
facilitate a smooth grand re-opening of the Restaurant and Catering Services.
B.
LESSEE shall operate the restaurant, indoor/outdoor bar, snack bar and areas surrounding
the pool and any events as a clean and friendly operation and shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to staff the restaurant with customer service-oriented people who are professional,
friendly and courteous to all golfers, families and the general public. Staff must maintain a neat
appearance and be appropriately dressed. In addition, staff shall wear name tags identifying
LESSEE and his/her name at all times during the performance of their services, and shall
conduct themselves in a professional manner reasonably acceptable to the Village.
C.
LESSEE shall provide food and beverage services from 7:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. daily,
with additional hours at the option of LESSEE. Early morning service for golf patrons may be a
limited menu offered from the snack bar or other efficient methods determined by LESSEE.
LESSEE shall provide delivery of food and beverages to tennis facility patrons during season
play. LESSEE, at its option, may close food and beverage operations after 5:00 p.m. on
Christmas Eve and all day on Christmas day. Additionally, all Restaurant and Catering Services
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may be suspended by LESSEE when there is a declaration of stated emergency, a hurricane or
tropical storm warning has been issued, and/or when any event of force majeure has occurred
and is continuing. The LESSEE agrees to permit the VILLAGE to occupy the exclusive use
premises when services are suspended for a stated emergency, including hurricane warnings, to
temporarily house first responders and municipal staff.
D.
LESSEE shall operate a beverage and food cart on days the golf course is open for play;
provided the same is made available by the VILLAGE to LESSEE and is then in good working
order and condition sufficient to permit LESSEE’s use thereof.
E.
LESSEE shall staff and operate or sub-contract a Valet Parking Service during the peak
times to make parking easier for food and beverage customers.
F.
LESSEE shall coordinate, schedule and negotiate all contracts with groups desiring use
of the Banquet Room and/or other public areas of the Country Club for the purpose of holding an
event. Other than scheduling events for the Banquet Room, the use of other public areas for
private events must be coordinated with and approved by and the Village Manager. The
Village’s intent is to facilitate the use of other public areas and will not unreasonably withhold
approval unless such use would negatively impact the Village’s operations. The Village
Manager may deny any group or event that advocates unconstitutional or illegal acts or that the
Village Manager determines is contrary to the best interests of the VILLAGE.
G.
LESSEE agrees to attend a meeting at least once per month during the Term of this Lease
Agreement with the General Manager of Country Club Operations and such other individuals as
requested by the General Manager of Country Club Operations. The meeting shall be held to
discuss schedule of events and to coordinate events and functions between the various
departments of the Country Club and for such other purposes set forth by the General Manager
of Country Club Operations.
H.
LESSEE agrees to schedule and pay for all required third-party inspections relating to the
food and beverage operations, including fire/safety check fees relating thereto.
I.
LESSEE shall provide an alcoholic beverage license for the Country Club for the sale and
service of alcoholic beverages on the Premises and shall maintain all other necessary licenses
and permits to provide the Restaurant and Catering Services.
J.
LESSEE shall provide the Restaurant and Catering Services in accordance with all
applicable federal, State of Florida and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations.
K.
LESSEE agrees to pay for all federal, State of Florida and local taxes chargeable to the
Restaurant and Catering Services. LESSEE shall also be responsible for paying $12,000 toward
the ad valorem property taxes assessed by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser and Tax
Collector as a result of its operations. LESSEE shall make such payment to the VILLAGE prior
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to November 30th of every year for which ad valorem property taxes are due and owing. In the
event the VILLAGE challenges the assessed value of the new Clubhouse and/or the value of the
leasehold interest, LESSEE agrees to cooperate fully with the VILLAGE and to provide any
information as may be relevant or required by the VILLAGE. Commencing with the 2021 tax
year, LESSEE agrees that its payment shall increase (or decrease) so that its percentage of the
total amount of ad valorem property taxes due and owing as a result of the Restaurant and
Catering Services remains the same as that of 2020.
L.
As required by Florida law, LESSEE and all of its employees shall have current food
handler’s permits. LESSEE shall keep the Exclusive Use Premises (and, when used by LESSEE,
the Non-Exclusive Use Premises) clean, satisfactory and in sanitary condition according to
conditions approved by the VILLAGE and as regulated by federal, State of Florida and local
regulations and agencies. All refuse and waste materials created in the provision of the
Restaurant and Catering Services shall be removed by LESSEE to nearby designated collection
points for further removal by the VILLAGE. LESSEE shall provide and pay the annual
assessment from Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County, Florida for dumpsters used by
LESSEE for temporary storage of refuse and waste. LESSEE shall not use the “dumpster” or
similar receptacle designated for VILLAGE operations at the Country Club.
M.
All State of Florida, County of Palm Beach and local fire, health and safety regulations
pertaining to the Restaurant and Catering Services shall be strictly complied with and at the sole
cost of LESSEE.
N.
LESSEE agrees to permit the appropriate officials onto and in the Exclusive Use
Premises for the purpose of conducting an inspection to ensure the building’s and Exclusive Use
Premises’ compliance with all codes, ordinances, regulations, statutes or other laws. LESSEE
shall provide the Village Manager with a copy of all Health Inspection reports that are issued in
respect of LESSEE’s business at the Country Club.
O.
LESSEE shall offer a variety of food options, such as farm to table, casual menu items,
items for children and specialty pricing such as early bird dinners. LESSEE shall offer food in a
range of price points.
P.
LESSEE shall have the sole responsibility for the repair and maintenance and,
replacement, of all kitchen, dining and other equipment and inventory owned by the VILLAGE
and used by LESSEE in the storage and preparation of food and beverages. LESSEE is further
responsible for the repair, maintenance and operation of LESSEE’s own equipment and personal
property. LESSEE shall use and operate said equipment in accordance with its intended use.
1.
Except for the equipment and personal property that qualifies as LESSEE’s
equipment and personal property under this Lease Agreement, all equipment and personal
property shall be delivered to the VILLAGE by LESSEE upon termination or expiration of this
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Lease Agreement without demand by VILLAGE in good repair and condition, less reasonable
wear and tear.
2.
LESSEE shall be responsible for repair and maintenance of all bulbs, light
fixtures and doors in the Exclusive Use Premises.
3.
If LESSEE fails to properly maintain or make needed repairs as set forth herein,
VILLAGE shall give ten (10) days written notice to LESSEE to make the specified repairs or
maintenance. If LESSEE disagrees that the repairs or maintenance needs to be made, LESSEE
shall give written notice thereof and deliver same to the Village Manager at Village Hall within
the said ten (10) day notice. Upon the Village Manager receiving written notice by LESSEE
objecting to the repairs or maintenance, the Village Manager shall review the matter. If upon
reviewing the matter, the Village Manager makes the reasonable determination that the repairs or
maintenance should be made, then the Village Manager shall notify LESSEE, who must make
the repairs or maintenance within twenty (20) days from such notice from the Village Manager
(subject to the availability of parts and/or labor to effect such maintenance or repair). If LESSEE
fails to make the stated repairs or maintenance within the time frame specified herein, then the
VILLAGE shall have the right to make the repairs or maintenance and charge LESSEE the
reasonable costs thereof.
Q.
LESSEE shall be the exclusive provider of food and beverages for the VILLAGE’S 4th of
July and Holiday Boat Parade events on Country Club grounds during the Term of this Lease.
LESSEE shall generally provide a variety of both cart sales (e.g. lemonade, snow cones, pretzels
and hot dogs) and food sales (e.g. hamburgers, chicken sandwiches, gyros, steak sandwiches,
chicken tenders, french fries, funnel cakes) at such events.
R.
LESSEE agrees to thoroughly clean all restaurant and banquet spaces, including kitchen,
dining room, indoor/outdoor bar areas, snack bar, covered pavilion, areas around the Country
Club which receive food and beverage services, designated restaurant bathrooms and storage
areas, including walk in coolers on a daily basis or more frequently as needed. LESSEE further
agrees to clean the grease traps, dishwashers, freezers and other systems necessary to operate the
food and beverage services; to operate and pay for credit card processing; to operate and pay for
point of sale software system and any other systems necessary to operate the Restaurant and
Catering Services.
S.
LESSEE agrees to maintain books of accounts, reports and records customarily used in
this type of operation and to provide the VILLAGE, on a monthly basis, with a statement of
gross sales from the Restaurant and Catering Services, along with the most recent copies of the
filings for sales tax made by LESSEE with the Florida Department of Revenue for sales from the
Restaurant and Catering Services during the previous month. In addition to the foregoing, the
VILLAGE may, upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice, request LESSEE to provide it with
supplemental financial information (limited to such information required to determine LESSEE’s
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gross sales, for the purposes of determining the percentage rent due the VILLAGE pursuant to
Section 6(B) of this Lease). All of such records shall be made accessible for purposes of
investigation or audit and shall be maintained for three (3) years after the termination of this
Lease Agreement. Records exempted from disclosure by Florida Statutes shall remain
confidential.
T.
LESSEE agrees to allow the VILLAGE to use the Banquet Room for public voting
purposes, golf events, community events, training and other scheduled purposes without charge
when no food or beverages are requested. For these scheduled events, VILLAGE shall set up
and take down all equipment and clean the area. Other scheduled events which include food and
beverage service will be paid for by either the VILLAGE or attendees of the event and will be
handled as any other event, with set up and cleaning services included in the fees charged.
U.
LESSEE agrees to purchase and maintain all insurance described herein during the Term
of this Lease.
V.
LESSEE agrees to pay electric, water/sewer, burglar alarm and natural gas at a cost of
fifty percent (50%) of the monthly bills of the Premises.
W.

LESSEE agrees to operate the Food and Beverage operation as a drug free workplace.

X.

LESSEE shall report to the Village Manager or his designee.

Y.
LESSEE may use sub-consultants or sub-contractors to provide or assist in the provision
of the Restaurant and Catering Services as long as all activities are coordinated and managed by
LESSEE.
4.

PERMITTED USE

A.
LESSEE shall use the Premises to provide food and beverage sales and service, including
alcoholic beverages sales and service, and catering sales and services and to supply food,
beverage and general dining and eating services to members of the Country Club, Village
residents, and members of the general public.
B.
LESSEE shall have the right to operate vending machines on the Premises at locations
agreed to between the parties.
C.
LESSEE shall not without the prior written approval of the VILLAGE Manager: (1)
make any material alterations to or paint the Premises; or (2) install or remove any exterior
lighting, decorations or paintings. The Village Manager or his or her designee must give
approval for the erection, installation and utilization of any signs or decorations at the Country
Club, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The VILLAGE shall provide room on
the monument sign on U.S. Highway One for a prominent logo sign for Farmer's Table. Signs
shall be permitted up to the maximum size allowed by the VILLAGE’s Code of Ordinances.
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LESSEE may, without the prior written approval of the VILLAGE, utilize any advertising media
to promote the restaurant, provided that the advertisements are not objected to in writing by the
Village Manager. If the Village Manager objects to such advertisement, then LESSEE shall
cease use of such advertisement, and if the Village Manager objects on more than three (3)
occasions during the Term, then any subsequent advertisements (following the third objection)
shall first require the prior written approval of the Village Manager, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld.
D.
LESSEE shall not, without prior written approval from the VILLAGE, sub-let or sublease the Premises.
E.
So long as LESSEE is not in default, LESSEE shall quietly enjoy undisturbed possession
of the Premises.
F.
It is specifically understood and agreed that the VILLAGE has no obligation or duty to
inspect the Exclusive Use Premises; however, the VILLAGE and each of its authorized agents
and employees, shall have the right to enter the Exclusive Use Premises during all reasonable
hours and upon reasonable prior notice to examine the same. However, LESSEE is under a
continuing obligation to immediately notify the VILLAGE in writing of any condition existing
within the Exclusive Use Premises that may be considered dangerous or hazardous, even if such
condition is open and obvious.
G.
LESSEE acknowledges that the Premises include a covered area on the VILLAGE’s Pool
patio and that the VILLAGE maintains scheduled pool operating hours. At all times that the
VILLAGE pool is closed or is without the supervision of a lifeguard, LESSEE shall place such
signage and/or barriers as shall be provided by the VILLAGE to LESSEE, in such locations as
the VILLAGE shall direct in writing, for the purpose of restricting access from such covered area
by LESSEE’s customers, guests and invitees to the adjacent pool deck, pool lounges, pool
bathrooms, swimming pool, splash park and diving areas. Failure of LESSEE to utilize such
signage or barriers shall constitute a material default of the LEASE by LESSEE.
5.

VILLAGE’S OBLIGATIONS

A.

The VILLAGE shall provide pest control for the Premises.

B.
The VILLAGE shall provide a service for television viewing of sports and other
entertainment as well as internet services which can be used by the guests at the clubhouse.
Voice over IP (VOIP) phone service will also be available to LESSEE at no additional charge.
C.
The VILLAGE shall provide dumpsters and waste collection and disposal service as a
condition of this LEASE at the cost of the assessment from Solid Waste as previously indicated.
D.
The VILLAGE shall replace the restaurant chairs and tables and banquet room chairs and
tables on a schedule and include the cost in its capital budget.
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E.
The VILLAGE shall be responsible for maintaining the basic infrastructure, which
includes only the parking lot, exterior landscape, exterior walls, foundation, roof and all
components of the electrical, plumbing, HVAC, water and sewer systems serving the Premises.
The VILLAGE shall be responsible for maintaining the entire Non-Exclusive Use areas of the
Premises at its sole expense.
Note: The design of the new Country Club will include parking for food and beverage staff and
customers. Valet parking, provided by LESSEE, may be supplemented by off-site parking at
other Village owned property, when available, during peak schedules.
F.
The VILLAGE shall provide a single point of contact, the Village Manager or his
designee for LESSEE, to bring any questions/concerns.
6.

RENT

A.
LESSEE shall pay the VILLAGE lease payments monthly, no later than the 5th day of
each month for that month. During the Initial Term, the base rent shall be $8,333.33 per month.
The rent commencement date shall be the later to occur of: (i) January 1, 2020; or (ii) the first
day of the first full month that is at least four (4) months after the Lease Commencement Date
(i.e. if the Lease Commencement Date is September 15, 2019, then the rent commencement date
would be February 1, 2020). Beginning on the first date of any such Renewal Term, the rent
shall increase by two percent (2%) over the base rent payable for the immediately preceding
twelve (12) month period. On the first anniversary of the commencement of each such Renewal
Term, and each anniversary thereafter during such applicable Renewal Term, the base rent shall
increase by two percent (2%) over the base rent payable for the immediately preceding twelve
(12) month period.
B.
In addition to the base rent set forth in Section 6.A above, LESSEE shall pay to the
VILLAGE an amount equal to five percent (5%) of LESSEE’s annual gross sales for Restaurant
and Catering Services (excluding tips, credit card fees and sales taxes) over Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00), commencing with the first month that LESSEE’s annual gross sales exceed this
amount.
C. The VILLAGE is responsible for the operation of the Conference Rooms and shall have
preferred use of these facilities. The VILLAGE shall establish the rental rates for the Conference
Rooms, and all revenues received from such rentals shall be payable to the VILLAGE. LESSEE
may schedule the use of these facilities for private functions with the approval of the VILLAGE,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. When applicable, LESSEE may charge fees for food
and beverage services, as well as any set up and cleaning services.
7.

INSURANCE
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A.
During the Term of this Lease Agreement, the VILLAGE, at its expense, shall maintain
casualty insurance upon the building and VILLAGE’s personal property therein. This insurance
shall protect the VILLAGE from, and shall insure against, loss or damage by fire, windstorm,
theft, vandalism and other like casualties. Any sums payable by reason of damage insured
against in said casualty insurance policies shall be payable to the VILLAGE and VILLAGE may,
but shall not be obligated, to utilize said sums for the reconstruction, replacement or the repair of
the loss covered. Any excess of such amount received upon such policies shall be the property
of the VILLAGE.
In the event the Premises shall be so destroyed or so damaged or injured by fire or other casualty
whereby the same shall be untenantable, all insurance proceeds shall be paid to VILLAGE but
VILLAGE shall have no obligation to rebuild or repair the damage or render the Premises
tenantable but there shall be a prorated abatement or prorated refund of the rental amounts
required to be paid hereunder.
B.
It is specifically provided, as part of this provision, that the VILLAGE shall not be
obligated in any way whatsoever to provide any insurance protecting LESSEE, it being the
specific intent of the parties that the insurance to be provided hereunder in subparagraph (A)
shall be for the protection of the VILLAGE’s property and not the property of LESSEE. The
LESSEE may, at its own expense, obtain such casualty insurance, as in the exercise of its
discretion it deems appropriate, so as to protect any property upon the premises owned by it.
C.
LESSEE shall maintain and prior to August 1, 2019, provide the VILLAGE with
certificates of insurance evidencing the following coverage issued by companies authorized to do
business under the laws of the State of Florida:
Commercial General Liability for limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
from claims for damages for bodily and personal injury, including wrongful death, as well as
from claims of property damages which may arise from any operations under this Lease, whether
such operations be by LESSEE or by anyone directly employed by or contracted with LESSEE.
Liquor Liability with limits not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence.
Comprehensive Business Automobile Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damages liability to protect LESSEE from
claims for damages for bodily and personal injury, including death as well as from claims for
property damage, which may arise from the ownership use or maintenance of owned and nonowned automobiles, including rented automobiles and valet parking activities whether operations
be by LESSEE or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by LESSEE.
Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability insurance for all employees of
LESSEE as required by Florida Statutes.
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All policies shall provide the VILLAGE with a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation and
include the VILLAGE as an Additional Insured.
Insurance coverage shall be provided by carriers having an AM Best rating of B+ or higher. If,
at any time, any of the policies shall be or become unsatisfactory to the VILLAGE as to form or
substance, or if any of the carriers issuing such policies shall be or become unsatisfactory to the
VILLAGE, LESSEE shall promptly obtain a new and satisfactory policy in replacement. Failure
to provide such replacement policy shall constitute a material default of the LEASE by LESSEE
for which there is no opportunity to cure.
8.

INDEMNIFICATION

A.
To the fullest extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, LESSEE shall
indemnify and hold harmless and defend the VILLAGE, its officials, agents, servants, and
employees (collectively, “Village Parties”) from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses
and/or causes of action arising out of or in any way related to the services furnished by LESSEE
pursuant to this Lease Agreement or arising from any breach or default in the performance of any
obligation on LESSEE’s part to be performed under the terms of this LEASE, including, but not
limited to, those caused by or arising out of any act, omission, negligence or default of LESSEE
and/or its subcontractors, agents, servants or employees. LESSEE’s indemnification shall
include all costs, attorney’s fees, expenses, and liabilities incurred in the defense of any such
claim or any such action or proceeding brought thereon; and in case any action or proceeding
shall be brought against the VILLAGE by reason of any such claim, LESSEE, upon notice from
the VILLAGE, shall defend the same at LESSEE’s expense by counsel satisfactory to the
VILLAGE. Notwithstanding the foregoing, LESSEE shall not be required to indemnify the
Village Parties when the claims, liability, loss and/or cause of action results from the negligence
or intentional misconduct of any Village Party.
B.
To the fullest extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, the VILLAGE shall
indemnify and hold harmless and defend LESSEE and its members, managers, agents, servants,
and employees (collectively, “ Lessee Parties”) from and against any and all claims, liabilities,
losses and/or causes of action arising from the VILLAGE's use of the Premises, or from the
conduct of the VILLAGE's business or from any activity, work, or things done, permitted, or
suffered by the VILLAGE in, on, or about the Premises, and shall further indemnify and hold
harmless the Lessee Parties from and against any and all claims arising from any breach or
default in the performance of any obligation on the VILLAGE's part to be performed under the
terms of this Lease, or arising from any negligence of the Village Parties (or any of them), and
from and against all cost, attorney's fees, expenses, and liabilities incurred in the defense of any
such claim or any action or proceeding brought thereon; and in case any action or proceeding
shall be brought against LESSEE by reason of any such claim, the VILLAGE, upon notice from
LESSEE, shall defend the same at the VILLAGE's expense by counsel satisfactory to
LESSEE. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the VILLAGE shall not be required to indemnify the
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Lessee Parties when the claims, liability, loss and/or cause of action results from the negligence
or intentional misconduct of any Lessee Party.
C.
Nothing contained in this Lease shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of
action in favor of a third party against either the VILLAGE or LESSEE, nor shall this Lease be
construed a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the limited waiver provided in §768.28,
Florida Statutes.
D.
The terms of this Section shall survive completion of all services, obligations and duties
provided for in this Lease as well as the termination of this Lease for any reason.
9.

INSPECTOR GENERAL

LESSEE is aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to
investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of this Lease and, in
furtherance thereof, may demand and obtain records and testimony from LESSEE and its
subcontractors. LESSEE understands and agrees that in addition to all other remedies and
consequences provided by law, the failure of LESSEE or its subcontractors to fully cooperate
with the Inspector General when requested may be deemed by the VILLAGE to be a material
breach of the Lease justifying termination.
10.

FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The VILLAGE is exempt from Federal and State taxes for tangible personal
property. However, LESSEE shall not be authorized to use the Village’s Tax Exemption
Number in securing goods or materials for services performed on the Premises.
11.

PUBLIC RECORDS

IF LESSEE HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119,
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO LESSEE’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS LEASE, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:
(561) 841-3355; NPBCLERK@VILLAGE-NPB.ORG; OR 501 U.S. HIGHWAY ONE, NORTH
PALM BEACH, FL 33408.
In performing services pursuant to this Lease, LESSEE shall comply with all relevant provisions
of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, LESSEE
shall:
A.

Keep and maintain public records required by the VILLAGE to perform the service.

B.
Upon request from the VILLAGE’s custodian of public records, provide the VILLAGE
with a copy the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes,
or as otherwise provided by law.
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C.
Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of
the Term of this Lease and following the expiration of the Term of this Lease if LESSEE does
not transfer the records to the VILLAGE.
D.
Upon completion of the Term of this Lease, transfer, at no cost, to the VILLAGE all
public records in possession of LESSEE or keep and maintain public records required by the
VILLAGE to perform the services. If LESSEE transfers all public records to the VILLAGE
upon completion of the Term of this Lease, LESSEE shall destroy any duplicate public records
that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If
LESSEE keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Term of this Lease,
LESSEE shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored
electronically must be provided to the VILLAGE, upon request from the VILLAGE’s custodian
of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the
VILLAGE.
12.

NOTICES

Any notice which the VILLAGE or LESSEE may be required or permitted to give to the other
party shall be in writing and shall be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the
addresses specified above.
13.

LIENS ON LESSEE’S PROPERTY

LESSEE shall pay all debts and obligations arising in the conduct of its business at the Premises
in the ordinary course. LESSEE shall make no improvements to the Premises that might result
in a mechanic's lien against the Premises or other property of the VILLAGE without first
providing a performance and payment bond to pay for said improvements. LESSEE shall not
advertise or in any way inform the public or suppliers that the Exclusive Use Premises are
operated by the VILLAGE or the North Palm Beach Country Club, and shall inform all third
parties making inquiry that LESSEE operates the Exclusive Use Premises.
14..

NON-WAIVER

The failure of either party to exercise any right hereunder, including any rights to terminate, shall
not be waived as to any subsequently arising right to act hereunder or as to any default by the
other party thereafter occurring; and, a failure of a party to act shall not constitute a waiver as to
any subsequent arising right to act on default.
15.

DEFAULT
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A.
The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material
default and breach of this Lease Agreement by LESSEE:
1.

The vacating or abandonment of the Premises by LESSEE.

2.
The failure by LESSEE to make payment of rent or any other payment
required to be made by LESSEE under this Lease Agreement, as and when due, where such
failure shall continue for a period of seven (7) days after written notice thereof from the
VILLAGE to LESSEE.
3.
The failure by LESSEE to observe or perform any of the covenants,
conditions or provisions to be observed or performed by LESSEE, where such failure shall
continue for a period of twenty (20) days after written notice thereof from the VILLAGE to
LESSEE; provided, however, that if the nature of LESSEE’s default is such that more than
twenty (20) days are reasonably required for its cure, LESSEE shall not be deemed to be in
default if LESSEE commences such cure within said twenty day (20) day period and thereafter
diligently pursues such cure to completion.
4.
If LESSEE should commence, in any court pursuant to any statute either
of the United States or of any State, an insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding (including without
limitation a proceeding for liquidation, reorganization or for adjustment of debts of an individual
with regular income), or if such a proceeding is commenced against LESSEE or any said
guarantor and either an order for relief is entered against such party or such party fails to secure a
discharge of the proceeding within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the filing thereof, or if
LESSEE or any said guarantor becomes insolvent or is unable or admits in writing his or her
inability to pay his or her debts as they become due, or makes an assignment for the benefit or
creditors or petitions for or enters into an agreement within his or her creditors or a custodian is
appointed or takes possession of LESSEE’s or any said guarantor’s property, whether or not a
judicial proceeding is instituted in connection with such arrangements or in connection with the
appointment of such custodian.
B.
In the event of any default or breach by LESSEE, the VILLAGE may at any time
thereafter, without notice or demand and without limiting the VILLAGE in the exercise of any
right or remedy which the VILLAGE may have any reason of such default or breach, do the
following:
1.
Terminate LESSEE’s right to possession of the Premises by any lawful
means and retake possession thereof for the account of the VILLAGE, in which event LESSEE
shall immediately surrender possession of the Premises to the VILLAGE and all further liability
under this Lease Agreement on the part of LESSEE and the VILLAGE shall terminate.
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2.
Maintain LESSEE’s right to possession, in which event this Lease
Agreement shall continue in effect whether or not LESSEE shall have abandoned the Premises.
In such event, the VILLAGE shall be entitled to relet the Premises and to enforce all of the
VILLAGE’s rights and remedies under this Lease Agreement, including the right to recover the
rent and other sums due as they become due.
3.
The VILLAGE may hold LESSEE liable for rent that otherwise would
have been payable by LESSEE to VILLAGE for the balance of the Term of this Lease or any
Renewal Term, less any amount that VILLAGE receives from re-letting the Premises. LESSEE
will deposit an amount equal to five (5) months base rent in an escrow account to be held by the
Village Attorney. The escrow amount will be reduced an equivalent of one month’s base rent at
the end of each year of the Initial Term of the agreement.
4.
Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter involving LESSEE under the
Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq., if this Lease Agreement is assumed by
LESSEE’s trustee in bankruptcy (after he or she has cured all existing defaults, compensated the
VILLAGE for any loss resulting therefrom and provided adequate assurance of future
performance), then this Lease Agreement may not be assigned by the trustee to a third party,
unless such party (a) executes and delivers to the VILLAGE an agreement in recordable form
whereby such party assumes and agrees with the VILLAGE to discharge all obligations of
LESSEE under this Lease Agreement; (b) has a net worth and operating experience at least
comparable to that possessed by LESSEE and any guarantor hereof as of the time of execution of
this Lease Agreement; and, (c) grants to the VILLAGE, to secure the performance of such
party’s obligations under this Lease Agreement, a security interest in such party’s merchandise,
inventory, personal property, fixtures, furnishings and accounts receivable (and in the proceeds
of all of the foregoing) with respect to his or her operations at and in the Premises, and in
connection therewith, such party shall execute such security agreements, financing statements
and other documents (the forms of which are to be prepared by the VILLAGE) as are necessary
to perfect such lien.
C.
If the VILLAGE should exercise any of its remedies hereunder, LESSEE shall be liable
for and shall pay to the VILLAGE the costs of removing and storing LESSEE’s or other
occupant’s property; the costs of repairing, altering, remodeling or otherwise putting the
Exclusive Use Premises into condition that approximates the condition at the time of
commencement of the Lease Agreement, ordinary wear and tear excepted; real estate
commissions actually paid; that portion of the leasing commission paid by the VILLAGE
applicable to the unexpired Term of this Lease Agreement, if applicable; and, all reasonable
expenses incurred by the VILLAGE to relet the premises, including attorney’s fees.
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D.
If this Lease Agreement should be terminated, or the Lease should expire, the VILLAGE
shall have the immediate right thereafter to reenter the Premises and to remove all persons and
LESSEE’s property therefrom. Such property may be stored in a public warehouse or elsewhere
at the cost of, and for the account of LESSEE, all without service of notice or resort to legal
process (all of which LESSEE expressly waives). In such event, the VILLAGE shall not be
deemed guilty of trespass or become liable for any loss or damage which may be occasioned
thereby.
E.
The rights and remedies granted herein to the VILLAGE are distinct, separate and
cumulative remedies, and the exercise of any of them shall not be deemed to exclude the
VILLAGE's right to exercise any or all of the others. All charges payable to LESSEE under the
terms of this Lease Agreement shall be deemed rent for the purpose of the VILLAGE exercising
its remedies.
F.
No waiver of any covenant or condition or of the breach of any covenant or condition of
this Lease Agreement shall be taken to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of such
covenant or condition nor to justify or authorize the non-observance on any other occasion of the
same or of any other covenant or condition hereof, nor shall the acceptance of rent by the
VILLAGE at any time when LESSEE is in default under any covenant or condition hereof be
construed as a waiver of such default or of the VILLAGE’s right to terminate the Lease
Agreement on account of such default, nor shall any waiver or indulgence granted by the
VILLAGE to LESSEE be taken as an estoppel against the VILLAGE, it being expressly
understood that if at any time LESSEE should be in default in any of its covenants or conditions
hereunder, an acceptance by the VILLAGE of rent during the continuance of such default or the
failure on the part of the VILLAGE promptly to avail itself of such other rights or remedies as
the VILLAGE may have shall not be construed as a waiver of such default, but the VILLAGE
may at any time thereafter, if such default continues, terminate this Lease Agreement on account
of such default.
G.
LESSEE waives all claims for damages by reason of the VILLAGE’s exercising its right
to re-enter the Premises and take possession of the property located therein, or damages by
reason of any distress warrant, forcible detainer proceedings, sequestration proceedings or other
legal process.
H.
The VILLAGE shall not be in default unless the VILLAGE fails to perform its
obligations required of the VILLAGE within a reasonable time, but in no event later than ten
(10) days after written notice by LESSEE to the VILLAGE and to the holder of any first
mortgage or loan covering the Demised Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore
been furnished to LESSEE in writing, specifying wherein the VILLAGE has failed to perform
such obligations; provided, however, that if the nature of the VILLAGE’s obligations is such that
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more than ten (10) days are required for performance, the VILLAGE shall not be in default if the
VILLAGE commenced performance within such ten (10) day period and thereafter diligently
prosecutes the same to completion.
I.
LESSEE hereby acknowledges that late payment by LESSEE to the VILLAGE of rent
and other sums due hereunder will cause the VILLAGE to incur costs not contemplated by this
Lease Agreement, the exact amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Such costs
include, but are not limited to, processing and accounting charges, and late charges which may
be imposed on the VILLAGE by the terms of any mortgage or loan covering the Premises.
Accordingly, if any installment of rent or any other sum due from LESSEE shall not be received
by the VILLAGE or the VILLAGE’s designee within ten (10) days after such amount shall be
due, LESSEE shall pay to the VILLAGE a late charge equal to five percent (5%) per annum on
the amount of such overdue amount. The parties hereby agree that such late charge represents a
fair and reasonable estimate of the costs the VILLAGE will incur by reason of late payment by
LESSEE. Acceptance of such late charge by the VILLAGE shall in no event constitute a waiver
of LESSEE’s default with respect to such overdue amount, nor prevent the VILLAGE from
exercising any of the other rights and remedies granted hereunder.
16.

SURRENDER.

Upon the expiration or termination of this Lease Agreement, LESSEE shall deliver and
surrender to the VILLAGE the Premises and shall leave the Exclusive Use Premises in good
repair and condition with ordinary wear and tear excepted, and shall deliver all keys and
combinations to locks, safes and vaults to the VILLAGE. Before surrendering the Premises,
LESSEE shall remove all of its personal property, equipment, tools of trade, and/or furnishings
provided by LESSEE and shall repair any damage caused thereby. Floor coverings, window,
wall and ceiling treatments shall not be removed from the Premises and shall be the property of
the VILLAGE. If LESSEE should fail to restore the Premises as aforesaid or if LESSEE should
fail to repair any damage caused by the removal of LESSEE’s property from the Premises, the
VILLAGE may restore the Premises, and all such costs incurred thereby shall be an expense of
LESSEE. VILLAGE shall have the right to defray such costs by deducting same from
LESSEE’s security deposit, if any. LESSEE’s obligation to perform this provision shall survive
the termination or expiration of this Lease Agreement. If LESSEE should fail to remove its
property upon the termination or expiration of this Lease Agreement, said property shall be
deemed abandoned and shall become the property of the VILLAGE.
17.

HOLDING OVER.

If LESSEE should remain in possession of all or any part of the Premises after the
termination or expiration of this Lease Agreement, with the consent of the VILLAGE, which the
VILLAGE shall have the unconditional discretion to grant or deny, then LESSEE shall be
deemed to hold the Premises from month to month subject to all of the terms and provisions
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thereof, except only as to the Term of this Lease Agreement; provided, however, if LESSEE
holds over without the consent of the VILLAGE, then the rent payable during such period as
LESSEE shall continue to hold the Premises or any part thereof shall be one hundred twenty five
percent (125%) of the rent that would otherwise be due and owing.
18.

MISCELLANEOUS

A.
The parties hereto specifically intend that LESSEE’s operation and conduct of business
upon the Premises shall be solely as an independent contractor and nothing herein is intended nor
shall it be construed by the parties hereto, nor by any third party, as creating a relationship of
principal and agent, employer or employee, partnership or joint venture between the parties
hereof. Neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provisions contained herein,
nor any acts of the parties hereto, shall be deemed to create any relationship between the parties
hereto other than the relationship of lessor and lessee.
B.
If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement,
or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any
provisions of this Agreement, the successful or prevailing party or parties shall be entitled to
recover reasonable attorney’s fees, court costs and all expenses even if not taxable as court
awarded costs (including, without limitation, all such fees, costs and expenses incident to
appeals), incurred in that action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such party
or parties may be entitled.
C.
The invalidity of any provision of this Lease Agreement as determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction shall in no way affect the validity of any other provision hereof.
D.

Time is of the essence.

E.
In the event any payments are not made as and when due in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Lease, or should it become necessary for the VILLAGE to make any
payments otherwise required to be made by LESSEE under this Agreement, then all such
payments shall bear interest from the date due at the highest lawful rate of interest.
F.
The captions used herein are for convenience only and do not limit or amplify the
provisions hereof.
G.
This Lease Agreement contains all agreements of the parties with respect to any matter
mentioned herein. No prior agreement or understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be
effective. This Lease Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed by the parties in
interest at the time of modification.
H.
Subject to the provisions hereof restricting assignment or subletting by LESSEE and
regarding the VILLAGE’s liability, this Lease Agreement shall bind the parties, their personal
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representatives, successors and assigns. The Lease Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Florida with venue in Palm Beach County, Florida.
I.
This Lease Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party
regardless of which party was more responsible for its preparation.
J.
LESSEE and the Village Manager shall meet no less than annually to discuss and review
the prior calendar year’s activity. During this meeting, any significant changes in law, economic
or marketplace conditions; and/or any suggestions on ways to improve the performance of the
food and beverage operations at the North Palm Beach Country Club shall be discussed. Should
any of these changes/suggestions warrant a change in the Restaurant Operator Agreement (as
mutually agreed by LESSEE and the Village Manager), then they will be presented to the Village
Council for consideration. All changes to this Agreement shall be in writing and executed by
both parties.
K.
The VILLAGE hereby waives its rights, statutory or otherwise, to any lien on LESSEE’s
equipment and other personal property. The VILLAGE shall, upon LESSEE’s request, execute,
or cause to be executed, a commercially reasonable waiver of landlord's lien on any of LESSEE's
equipment and other personal property.
19.

BROKERS

A.
The VILLAGE and LESSEE warrant that they have had no dealings with any real estate
broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Lease except for Richard Pachino of
Strategic Retail Advisors, and that they know of no other real estate broker or agent who is or
might be entitled to a commission in connection with this Lease. Both parties agree to indemnify
the other against and from any claims for any brokerage commissions (except those payable to
Richard Pachino of Strategic Retail Advisors) and all costs, expenses and liabilities in connection
therewith, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, for any breach
of the foregoing representation.
B.
The LESSEE shall pay a Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000.00) broker commission to
Richard Pachino of Strategic Retail Advisors in accordance with a separate agreement between
LESSEE and Richard Pachino.
C.
The VILLAGE shall reimburse LESSEE for the broker commission in the total amount
of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000.00), with Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) payable to
LESSEE upon execution of this Lease and Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) payable upon
LESSEE’s commencement of Restaurant and Catering Services.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first written
above.
VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
(VILLAGE SEAL)

By:_______________________________
Darryl Aubrey, Mayor

ATTEST:
By:_______________________________
Melissa Teal, Village Clerk

WITNESSED BY:
Print Name:

Print Name:
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL
SUFFICIENCY:
By: _______________________________
Leonard G. Rubin, Village Attorney

FARMER’S TABLE LLC
By:______________________________
Print Name:
Title:
WITNESSED BY:
Print Name:

Print Name:
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
OFFICE OF THE VILLAGE ATTORNEY

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

THRU:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

BY:

Leonard G. Rubin, Village Attorney

DATE:

March 28, 2019

SUBJECT:

RESOLUTION – Approval of a Second Amendment to the Lease
Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC for existing space within Village Square
Plaza for use by the Community Development Department to extend the
term an additional five years.

Through the adoption of Resolution No. 2013-67 on December 12, 2013, the Village Council
approved a five-year Lease Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC to occupy two suites totaling
approximately 2,400 square feet for the Village’s Community Development within Village
Square Plaza, located at 420 U.S. Highway One, across the street from Village Hall.
Through the adoption of Resolution No. 2018-100 on November 8, 2018, the Village Council
approved a First Amendment to the Lease Agreement to add an additional 878 square feet
to the existing Lease Agreement.
The term of the Lease Agreement expires on March 31, 2019. The Village has negotiated
a Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement to extend the term an additional five years.
The monthly rent for the first year shall remain the same ($4,116.05) for the first year.
Thereafter, the rent shall increase by three percent (3%) per year. The Village is also
responsible for paying an adjustment for taxes and insurance over the Base Year of 2014
for the remainder of the term. The total monthly adjustment is currently $346.92 per month.
The attached Resolution and Second Amendment have been prepared and/or reviewed for
legal sufficiency by the Village Attorney.
Recommendation:
Village Staff requests Council consideration and adoption of the attached Resolution
approving a Second Amendment to the existing Lease Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC
for space within Village Square Plaza for the Village’s Community Development
Department for an additional five-year term and authorizing the Mayor and Village Clerk
to execute the Second Amendment in accordance with Village policies and procedures.

RESOLUTION 2019-____
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT
TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ICV NPB, LLC FOR EXISTING
SPACE WITHIN VILLAGE SQUARE PLAZA FOR USE BY THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT TO EXTEND THE TERM
AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE
THE SECOND AMENDMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution No. 2013-67 on December 12, 2013, the Village
Council approved a five-year Lease Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC to occupy two suites
totaling approximately 2,400 square feet for the Village’s Community Development within
Village Square Plaza, located at 420 U.S. Highway One within the Village; and
WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution No. 2018-100 on November 8, 2018, the
Village Council approved an amendment to the Lease Agreement to occupy an additional suite
within the Plaza for the remainder of the lease term through March 31, 2019; and
WHEREAS, the Village and ICV NPB, LLC have agreed to execute a Second Amendment to the
Lease Agreement to extend the term an additional five years through March 31, 2024, and the
Village Council determines that the approval of the Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement
is in the best interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.

Section 2.
The Village Council hereby approves a Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement
with ICV NPB, LLC, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to
extend the term for an additional five years. The monthly rent, exclusive of the adjustment for
real estate taxes and insurance, shall be $4,116.05 for the first year of the extended term.
Section 3.
All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed
to the extent of such conflict.
Section 4.

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2019.

(Village Seal)
MAYOR
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK

SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT is made and entered into this ______ day of
_______________, 2019 to that certain Lease Agreement dated December 12, 2013 between
ICV NPB, LLC., a Florida limited liability company having a place of business at 30 Main
Street, Suite 401, Burlington, Vermont (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord") and the
VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Florida, with its principal place of business at 501 U.S.
Highway One, North Palm Beach, Florida (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant").
RECITALS:
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2013, the parties executed a Lease Agreement for the
leasing of Suites 18 and 21 (mistakenly identified as Suite 27 in Section 1(A) of the
Agreement but correctly identified in the Exhibit) at Landlord’s multi-tenant retail shopping
center known as Village Square Plaza located at 420 U.S. Highway One, North Palm Beach,
Florida (hereinafter known as “Building”); and
WHEREAS, through the execution of a First Amendment to the Lease Agreement,
Tenant added Suite 16 of the Building, having approximately 878 rentable square feet
(“Expansion Space”), to the existing Lease Agreement of approximately 2,400 rentable
square feet; and
WHEREAS, the Lease Agreement shall expire on March 31, 2019 and there is
currently no option for renewal to extend the term of the Lease Agreement; and
WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant wish to extend the Term of the Lease.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in the Lease
Agreement and this First Amendment and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows:
1.

The above recitals are true and correct.

2.
Landlord and Tenant agree to extend the term of the Lease Agreement for an
extended term of five (5) years commencing April 1, 2019 and expiring on March 31, 2024.
3.
The Demised Premises shall consist of Suites 18, 21 and 16 of the Building,
with a combined rentable square footage of approximately 3,278 square feet.
4.
The monthly Base Rent for the first year of the extended Term shall be
$4,611.05. The rent shall be increased in the second (2nd) year on the anniversary of the
commencement date, and each subsequent year of the extended term by three ( 3%) annually.
5.
Tenant shall pay monthly an adjustment for Real Estate Taxes and Insurance
over the Base Year of 2014 for extended term of the Lease.
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6.
All other terms of the Lease Agreement, to the extent not expressly not
modified herein, shall remain in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this First Amendment the day
and year cited above.

_____________________________
Witness

ICV NPB LLC
By _______________________________
Paul Sprayregen, Managing Member

_____________________________
Witness

Attest:
_______________________________
Village Clerk

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
By__________________________________
Mayor

Approved as to Form
and Legal Sufficiency:
_______________________________
Village Attorney
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RESOLUTION 2018- 100
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO
THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ICV NPB, LLC FOR AN ADDITIONAL 878
SQUARE FEET WITHIN VILLAGE SQUARE PLAZA FOR USE BY THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR AND VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution No. 2013- 67 on December 12, 2013, the

Village Council approved a five- year Lease Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC to occupy two

suites totaling approximately 2, 400 square feet for the Village' s Community Development within
Village Square Plaza, located at 420 U.S. Highway One within the Village; and
WHEREAS,

the Community Development Department is in need of additional space,

and

Village Staff has negotiated a First Amendment to the Lease Agreement to occupy an additional,

adjacent suite within the Plaza totaling 878 square feet for the remainder of the lease term
through April 1, 2019);

and

WHEREAS, the Village Council determines that the approval of the First Amendment to the Lease
Agreement is in the best interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.

Section 2.

The Village Council hereby approves a First Amendment to the Lease Agreement with

ICV NPB, LLC, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to occupy an
additional 878 square feet within Village Square Plaza for use by the Community Development
Department and authorizes the Mayor and Village Clerk to execute the First Amendment on
behalf of the Village. The cost total cost of the additional space shall be $ 1, 327. 97 per month
1, 235. 05 in Base Rent and $ 92. 92 for real estate taxes and insurance).

All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed

Section 3.

to the extent of such conflict.

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

Section 4.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS

8TH

DAY OF NO'

Village Seal)

ATTEST:

X

e
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VILLAGE CLERK

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS

FIRST

to-/ Wbty, ,
ICV NPB, LLC.,

AMENDMENT

is

made

and

entered

into this "'

day

of

2018 to that certain Lease Agreement dated December 12, 2013 between

a Florida limited liability company having a place of business at 30 Main

Street, Suite 401, Burlington, Vermont ( hereinafter referred to as " Landlord") and the

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Florida, with its principal place of business at 501 U.S.

Highway One, North Palm Beach, Florida (hereinafter referred to as "

Tenant").

RECITALS:
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2013, the parties executed a Lease Agreement for the

leasing of Suites 18 and 21 ( mistakenly identified as Suite 27 in Section 1( A) of the
Agreement but correctly identified in the Exhibit) at Landlord' s multi -tenant retail shopping

center known as Village Square Plaza located at 420 U.S. Highway One, North Palm Beach,
Florida (hereinafter known as "
WHEREAS,

878

rentable

Building");

and

Tenant wishes to add Suite 16 of the Building, having approximately

square

feet (" Expansion

Space"),

to

the

existing

Lease

Agreement

of

approximately 2,400 rentable square feet; and
WHEREAS,

15 2018;

Tenant wishes to occupy the Expansion Space commencing December

and

WHEREAS, the Lease Agreement shall expire on April

1,

2019,

and there

is

currently no option for renewal to extend the term of the Lease Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in the Lease

Agreement and this First Amendment and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows:
1.

The above recitals are true and correct.

2.

The Demised Premises shall consist of Suites 18,

3.

Within ninety ( 90) days of the execution of this Lease Agreement, Landlord

21 and 16 of the Building,
with a combined rentable square footage of approximately 3, 278 square feet.

and Tenant shall enter into new Agreement to extend the term of the Lease Agreement.
4.

The monthly Base Rent for the remaining term of the Lease Agreement shall
and Tenant' s monthly adjustment for Real Estate Taxes and Insurance over
Year shall be $ 346. 92 per month for the remaining term of the Lease Agreement.

be $ 4, 611. 05,

the Base
5.

All other terms of the Lease Agreement, to the extent not expressly not
modified herein, shall remain in full force and effect.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this First Amendment the day
and year cited above.

Witness

ICVZ;
By

Attest:

Village Clerk

Approved as to Form

and Legal Sufficiency:

Village Attorney
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egen,

Managing Member

RESOLUTION 2013 -67
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT
WITH ICV NPB, LLC FOR TWO SUITES TOTALING 2, 400 SQUARE FEET

WITHIN VILLAGE SQUARE PLAZA AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
AND VILLAGE CLERK TO EXECUTE SAME; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Village Council has approved the relocation of the Village' s Building Department
to an off s-ite location and the renovation of this new space to meet the Village' s needs; and
WHEREAS, Village Administration has negotiated a five -year Lease Agreement with ICV NPB, LLC

to occupy two suites totaling 2,400 square feet within Village Square Plaza, located at 420 U.S.
Highway One; and
WHEREAS, the Village Council has determined that approval of the Lease Agreement is in the best
interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE

OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.

The Village Council hereby approves a five -year Lease Agreement with ICV NPB,
LLC, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, and authorizes the Mayor and
Section 2.

Village Clerk to execute the Lease Agreement on behalf of the Village.
Section 3.

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 12th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2013.

Village Seat)
MAYO

ATTEST:

LEASE AGREEMENT
Between

ICV NPB, LLC as Landlord

And

the VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH a municipal organization

December 12 , 2013
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LEASE

AGREEMENT OF LEASE made this

AGREEMENT

day of December ,

2013, ICVNPB, LLC, a

Florida Limited Liability company ( hereinafter referred to as " Landlord" )and the VILLAGE

OF NORTH PALM BEACH municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Florida ( hereinafter referred to as " Tenant ").

1. DEMISED PREMISES:

A) Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant rents from Landlord those certain

premises, as part of now or hereafter to be erected in a multi- tenant building (hereinafter'
referred to as " Building "), located at Village Square Plaza, 420 U. S. Highway One, Village
of North Palm Beach, State of Florida, which premises are more particularly described as
Suite # 18 and #

27, approximately 2, 400 rentable square feet hereinafter called the

Demised Premises ".

B) The boundaries and location of the Demised Premises are outlined in red
on a diagram of the Building, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof and

marked Exhibit A. Said Exhibit A sets forth the general layout of the Building and shall not
be deemed to be a warranty, representation or agreement on the part of Landlord that
said Building will be exactly as indicated on said diagram. Landlord may increase, reduce

or change the number, dimensions or locations of the walks, buildings and parking areas
in any manner whatsoever) as Landlord shall deem proper, and reserves the right to
make alterations or additions to the Building in which the Demised Premises are

contained and to add buildings adjoining the same or elsewhere in the Building, provided
that the current access points to the Demised Premises remain unchanged.
C) Use and occupancy by Tenant of the Demised Premises shall include the

use in common with others of the common areas and facilities, as hereinafter more fully
provided.

D) Nothing herein contained shall be construed as a grant or rental by
Landlord to Tenant of the roof and exterior walls of the buildings, of which the Demised
Premises form a part, or of the walks and other common areas beyond the Demised
Premises.
E)

The Tenant shall deliver to the landlord in writing evidence of Tax

exemption.

2. LENGTH OF TERM: The term of this Lease shall be for five (5) years.
3. COMMENCEMENT OF TERM:

The term of this Lease shall commence ninety
90) days from the date of delivery of the demised premises or the date Tenant opens for
business, whichever is sooner.

a]

4. RENT: Without demand by Landlord:
A) The rent during the first year of the Lease term shall be payable by
Tenant in equal monthly installments on the last day of the month preceding the month
for which the rent is due and shall be at the annual rate as follows: $ 36, 000. 00 per year,

payable in equal monthly installments of $3, 000. 00per month.
B) The rent shall be increased annually as per the rent payment schedule
hereafter set forth in Paragraph 6.

S.

PREPAID RENT:

Simultaneously with the execution of this Lease, Tenant has

deposited with Landlord the sum of $3, 000. 00 -which represents the first month' s rent.

6. RENTAL INCREASES: The annual rental shall be increased in the second year on

the anniversary of the commencement date and each year by 3%

annually.

Year 2- $ 3, 090. 00 per month
Year 3- $ 3, 182. 70 per month

Year 4- $ 3, 278. 18 per month
Year 5- $ 3, 376. 53 per month

7.

METHOD AND PLACE OF PAYMENTS:

payable to ICV NPB, LLC,)

All payments required to be paid ( made

and all reports required to be rendered by Tenant shall be

delivered to the office of Landlord at:

Investors Corporation of Vermont
30 Main Street, Suite 401, Burlington, Vermont 05401

Landlord may designate from time to time in writing where rental payments
are to be delivered.

8. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Intentionally Deleted
9. TRANSFER OF DEPOSIT: Intentionally Deleted
10.

SALES OR USE TAX: Tenant is exempt from the payment of state sales tax and

shall both maintain and provide Landlord with a current tax exemption certificate during
the term of the Lease.

11.

TENANT' S INSTALLATIONS:

Any work or equipment other than those items
specifically enumerated in this Lease Agreement shall be performed by Tenant at its own
cost and expense and Tenant shall fully equip the Demised Premises with all trade
equipment, lighting fixtures, furniture, operating equipment, furnishings, fixtures, floor
coverings, exterior signs and any other equipment special or necessary for the proper
operation of Tenant' s business.

Tenant shall not do any construction work or install any
equipment without first obtaining Landlord' s written approval and consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Tenant shall present to Landlord plans and
specifications for any such work at the time approval and consent is sought. Any work to
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be performed shall be done only by licensed and qualified contractors and subcontractors
and Tenant shall obtain all necessary governmental permits and approvals before
commencing any work. Any and all improvements, betterments and alterations that do
not constitute the personal property of the Tenant and cannot be removed without
damaging or significantly altering the Demised Premises shall immediately become
Landlord' s property subject to Tenant' s use during the term of the Lease and Paragraph
32 hereafter. Landlord reserves the right to review the Tenant improvements to confirm

they are consistent with the submitted and approved plans upon completion prior to the

Tenants occupancy.
In lieu of a Damage Deposit, the Landlord and Tenant agree the Tenant
shall contribute $ 6,

Suites # 18

000. 00 toward the purchase and installation of new HVAC systems for

and # 27,

which shall

be

permitted, installed

at

Landlord' s

expense

and

operational prior to the commencement of the Lease term. Such funds shall be delivered

to the Landlord upon date of execution and delivery of Lease Agreement.
12.

USE OF PREMISES:

Tenant shall use the Demised Premises for Village

business purposes in accordance with all applicable Village Code requirements.

Tenant

will not use or permit the Demised Premises to be used for any illegal or improper
purposes, nor permit any disturbance, noise, or annoyance whatsoever, detrimental to
the Demised Premises or to the comfort of the other tenants of the Building. Tenant
further agrees to keep the Demised Premises in good and substantial repair and in a clean
condition.
Tenant shall at no time during the term of this Lease store or keep any
material or equipment on the outside of or in and around the Demised Premises.

13. LAWS, WASTE OR NUISANCE: Tenant shall, at its own expense:

A) comply with all governmental laws, ordinances, orders and regulations
affecting the Demised Premises now in force or which may be in force;
B) comply with and execute all rules, requirements and regulations of the
Board of Fire

Underwriters, Landlord' s insurance companies and other organizations

establishing insurance rates;
C)

not suffer, permit or commit any waste or nuisance, or permit the

Demised Premises to be used in a hazardous or dangerous manner;

D) not conduct any auction, distress, fire or bankruptcy sale without the
written consent of Landlord.

14.

SIGNS, AWNINGS, CANOPIES:

It is specifically understood that no signs,

awnings or canopies will be erected until such signs, awnings or canopies have been

approved by the Landlord, or its agents, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, and that Landlord shall have the sole right to reject any proposed signs,
awnings or canopies submitted to be used in or on the Demised Premises.

Tenant shall

maintain any such signs, awnings, or canopies or other installation as may be approved in
good condition and repair.

0

15.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING:

Tenant shall not sublet the Premises or any
part thereof or assign or encumber any interest in this Lease ( whether by sale of assets,
merger, consolidation or otherwise; or by sale or disposition of control or ownership), or

permit the Premises to be occupied by anyone other than Tenant' s employees, without
first having obtained the written consent of Landlord, which shall not be unreasonably
A denial of the consent will not be unreasonable if Lessor believes that as a

withheld.

business consideration the proposed assignee or sublessee will not provide a benefit to

the Shopping Center because of an unacceptable financial statement, prior business
history, quality of business operations, continuous operation, or for some other business
consideration.

If Tenant requests such consent, permission or approval in a written

notice to Landlord and Landlord does not notify Tenant of its express disapproval thereof
within twenty ( 20) days after receipt of such request, setting forth Landlord' s reason for
such disapproval, such consent, permission or approval shall be deemed to have been
granted.

Regardless of Landlord' s consent, no subletting or assignment shall release
Tenant of Tenant' s obligations hereunder; nor shall it alter the primary liability of Tenant
to pay the rental and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Tenant
hereunder.

16.

REPAIRS BY LANDLORD:

Landlord covenants to keep, or cause to be kept, in

good order, repair and condition, the foundations, roof and downspouts of the Demised
Premises, the structural soundness of the floors and exterior walls thereof installed as
part of Landlord' s Work, and the common pipes, common ducts, common

conduits and

common wires running through the Demised Premises and installed therein as part of
Landlord' s Work ( but not including Tenant' s connections to any pipes, ducts, conduits or
wires within or without the Demised Premises) and all common areas, except such repairs

as are necessitated or occasioned by the acts, omissions or negligence of Tenant in the
performance of Tenant' s Work or otherwise or by the acts of trespassers or other persons
who enter or attempt to enter the Demised Premises.

Landlord shall not be required to

commence any such repair, except in the case of an emergency, until ten ( 10) days after
written notice by Tenant to Landlord that such repair is necessary. The provisions of this
Section shall not apply in the case of damage or destruction by fire or other casualty or by
eminent domain, in which events the obligations of Landlord shall be controlled by those
provisions dealing with Destruction and Condemnation. Except as provided herein,
Landlord shall not be obligated to make repairs, replacements or improvements of any
kind to the Demised Premises or to any equipment, facilities or fixtures contained therein
or servicing the same.
17.

REPAIRS BY TENANT: Except for repairs required

in Paragraph -

to be

performed by Landlord, Tenant shall keep the interior portion of the Demised Premises
and the improvements placed therein in a good state of repair, and it will be responsible

for all repairs and replacements, including the painting, maintenance and interior repairs
to the interior of the building, including all windows, doors and openings, all electrical,
heating, plumbing, air conditioning and other systems installed within or without of the
building. It is intended that the Landlord will maintain the exterior masonry of the
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building and roof area only, and the Tenant shall maintain everything else.
acknowledged,

however,

that

if

Tenant

installs

and

maintains

T. V.

antennas,

It

is
air

conditioning and /or signs, lighting and /or other equipment, objects or materials and the
like, on the roof of the premises ( and such installation shall be only on the roof directly
over the premises leased by the Tenant), the Tenant shall be solely responsible for all of
said area over the Demised Premises and any other area affected by the installation or
maintenance work thereon. Tenant agrees to perform preventative maintenance services

on the air conditioning equipment on at least a quarterly basis. Tenant is responsible for a
safe and clean egress along the walkways that front the Tenants' space.
18. MECHANIC' S LIENS: Tenant shall promptly pay all contractors and materialmen
for the cost of all construction, installations, repairs, alterations, improvements, or other

work done by it to the leased premises. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
the

Landlord' s

interest

in

the

leased

premises

shall

not

be

subject

to

liens

for

improvements for work made or done in accordance with an agreement between the
Landlord and Tenant or with the consent or knowledge of the Landlord.

In no event shall

the Landlord be liable for or subjected to any mechanic' s, materialmen' s or laborers' liens
for improvements or for work made or done by the Tenant. This lease expressly prohibits
the subjecting of the Landlord' s interest in the leased premises to any such mechanic' s,
materialmen' s, or laborers' liens for improvements or work made or done by the Tenant,
and all persons dealing with the Landlord or Tenant are hereby put on notice of this
provision.

Should any mechanic' s or other liens be filed against the Demised Premises
or any part thereof for any reason whatsoever by reason of Tenant' s acts or omissions or
because of a claim against Tenant, Tenant shall cause the same to be cancelled and

discharged of record by bond or otherwise within ten ( 10) days after the notice to
Landlord.

19.

UTILITY CHARGES:

Landlord shall not be liable in the event of any interruption

in the supply of any utilities. Tenant agrees that it will not install any equipment which

will exceed or overload the capacity of any utility facilities and that if any equipment
installed by Tenant shall require additional utility facilities; the same shall be installed by
Landlord' s

sub-

contractors

at

Tenant' s

expense

in

accordance

with

plans

and

specifications to be approved in writing by Landlord. Tenant shall be solely responsible
for and shall promptly pay all charges for use or consumption for gas, electricity or any
other utility services except water and sewer charges for normal business use which
Landlord shall pay as hereinafter provided. Should the nature of Tenant' s business cause
an increase in water and sewage, trash removal or any services above and beyond normal
use, Tenant shall pay for any increased costs applicable thereto.
20.

PARKING LOT: The right of Tenant' s customers to use the parking lot is a non-

exclusive right in common with customers and employees of other Tenants of the entire

premises. Landlord shall be responsible for maintaining the parking lot in good repair and
in compliance with all applicable codes, laws and regulations. Tenant agrees to instruct

employees to a parking area located on the east parking lot facing Corsair Drive.

N.

21. INDEMNITY:

A) To the extent permitted by law and subject to the limitations of liability
set forth in Section 768. 28, Florida Statutes,_Tenant shall indemnify Landlord and save it
harmless from suits, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with loss of life,
bodily or personal injury or property damage arising from or out of any occurrence in,
upon or at or from the Demised Premises or the occupancy or use by Tenant of said
premises or any part thereof, or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of
Tenant,

its

agents,

contractors,

employees,

servants,

invitees,

licensees

or

concessionaires, including the sidewalks, and common areas and facilities within the
Building and Demised Premises, provided, however, that Tenant shall not be required
indemnify Landlord or save it harmless from suits, actions, damages, liability and
expenses caused by the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of Landlord, its agents,
contractors, servants or employees; and

B) Tenant shall store its property in and shall occupy the Demised Premises
and all other portions of the Building at its own risk, and release Landlord to the full
extent permitted by law, from all claims of every kind resulting in loss of life, theft,

personal or bodily injury or property damage unless caused by the intentional or
negligent acts or omissions of Landlord, its agents, contractors, servants or employees;
and

C) Landlord shall not be responsible or liable at any time for any loss or
damage to Tenant' s merchandise or equipment, fixtures or other personal property of
Tenant or to Tenant' s business for any reason whatsoever unless caused by the
intentional or negligent acts or omissions of Landlord, its agents, contractors, servants or
employees; and

D) Landlord shall not be responsible or liable to Tenant or to those claiming
by, through or under Tenant for any loss or damage to either the person or property of
Tenant that may be occasioned by or through the acts or omission of persons occupying
adjacent connecting or adjoining premises unless caused by the intentional or negligent
acts or omissions of Landlord, its agents, contractors, servants or employees; and

E) Landlord shall not be responsible or liable for any injury, theft, any loss of
business, loss or damage to any person or to any property of Tenant or other person
caused by or resulting from bursting, breakage or by or from leakage, steam, running or
the overflow of water or sewerage in any part of said premises, or wind driven water, or
for any injury or damage caused by or resulting from acts of God or the elements, or for
any injury or damage caused by or resulting from any defect or negligence in the
occupancy, operation or use of any said premises;

F) Tenant also releases Landlord and holds Landlord harmless for any and
all losses suffered by Tenant by reason of theft or burglary by forcible or non -forcible
entry into Tenant' s Demised Premises irrespective how said entry is made, i. e. through
areas of the building not adjacent or part of the Demised Premises or directly through the
Demised Premises unless such access is directly attributable to Landlord, its agents,
contractors, servants or employees. Tenant has made its own evaluation of the building
and hereby accepts the condition of the building in its present condition and accepts the
risk of loss due to theft or burglary. Tenant also shall undertake to protect its property
and merchandise from theft or burglary and recognizes that it is its sole responsibility to
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take all prudent and reasonable measures to protect and secure the Demised Premises

from this type of loss or casualty, which measures shall include, but not be limited to, the
installation of burglar alarm devices, security cameras, insurance, etc. Tenant shall also
be responsible for repairing any and all damage to the Demised Premises caused by any
forcible entry or burglary.
G) Tenant shall give prompt notice to Landlord in case of fire or accidents in

the Demised Premises or in the building of which the Demised Premises are a part;
H) in case Landlord shall without any fault on its part to be made a party to
any litigation commenced by or against Tenant, the Tenant shall protect and hold
Landlord harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses and reasonable attorney' s fees.
22. INSURANCE:

Tenant shall maintain at its own cost and expense the following
A) Tenant shall, during the Term of this Lease, maintain insurance against
public liability, including that form personal injury or property damage in or about the
Premises resulting from the occupation, use or operation of the Premises, insuring both

insurance: (

Landlord and Tenant, in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000)

Combined Single Limit for both bodily injury and property damage; ( B) Tenant shall
maintain insurance upon all property in the Premises owned by Tenant, or for which
Tenant is legally liable, and shall provide Landlord with evidence of same. The insurance
specified herein shall provide protection against perils included within the standard

Florida form of fire and extended coverage insurance policy, together with insurance
against vandalism and malicious mischief and FULL Plate GLASS COVERAGE; ( C) If Tenant

fails to comply with the requirements of this paragraph, Landlord may, but shall not be
obligated to, obtain such insurance and keep same in effect, and Tenant shall pay
Landlord the premium therefor upon demand. ( D)

Tenant shall provide Landlord with a

Certificate of Insurance from a company having a minimum rating of A+ by Moody or
Standard and Poor, licensed to do business in the State of Florida as evidence that it

possesses the coverage required by Paragraph 22 above. ( E) Such insurance may not be
cancelled or amended with respect to Landlord without ten ( 10) days written notice by
registered mail to Landlord by the insurance company.
23.

WINDOWS AND DOORS: Tenant will replace at its expense all plate and other

windows and doors broken by whatever cause, and replace with like glass, subject to local
building codes. Storm Shutters shall be provided by the Landlord at the Landlord' s
expense; Tenant shall be responsible for the installation and removal of said shutters.

24.

INCREASE IN INSURANCE PREMIUMS:

Tenant shall not stock, use or sell any
article or do anything in or about the Demised Premises which may be prohibited by
Landlord' s insurance policies or any endorsements or forms attached thereto, or which
will increase any insurance rates and premiums on the Demised Premises. Tenant shall
pay on demand any increase in premiums for Landlord' s insurance that may be charged

on such insurance carried by Landlord resulting from Tenant' s use and occupancy on the
Demised Premises, whether or not Landlord has consented to the same. In determining
whether increased premiums are the result of Tenant' s use, occupancy or vacancy of the
Demised Premises, a schedule issued by the organization making fire insurance, extended
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coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief, special extended coverage or any all -risk

insurance rates for said premises or any rule books issued by the rating organization or
similar bodies or by rating procedures or rules of Landlord' s insurance companies shall be
conclusive evidence of the several items and charges which make up the insurance rates
and premiums on the Demised Premises and the Building. If, due to the ( a) occupancy, or
b) abandonment, or ( c) Tenant' s failure to occupy the Demised Premises as herein
provided, any insurance shall be cancelled by the insurance carrier or if the premiums for
any such insurance shall be increased, then in any of such events Tenant shall indemnify
and hold Landlord harmless and shall pay on demand the increased cost of such
insurance.

25.

DESTRUCTION:

If the Demised Premises shall be partially damaged by any

casualty insurable under the Landlord' s insurance policy, Landlord shall, upon receipt of
the

insurance

proceeds,

repair the

same

and

the

minimum

rent

shall

be

abated

proportionately as to that portion of the Demised Premises rendered untenantable.

If

the Demised Premises ( a) by reason of such occurrence is rendered wholly untenantable
or ( b) should be damaged as a result of a risk which is not covered by Landlord' s
insurance or (c) should be damaged in whole or in part during the last one ( 1) year of the
term or of any renewal term hereof, (d) or the building of which it is a part, whether the
Demised Premises is damaged or not or all of the buildings which then comprise the

Building should be damaged to the extent of fifty percent ( 50 %) or more of the then
monetary value thereof, and ( e) if any or all of the buildings or common areas of the
Building are damaged, whether or not the Demised Premises are damaged to such an
extent that the Building cannot in the sole judgement of Landlord be operated as an
integral unit, then or in any of such events, Landlord may either elect to repair the

damage or may cancel this Lease by notice of cancellation within ninety ( 90) days after
such event and thereupon this Lease shall expire, and Tenant shall vacate and surrender

the Demised Premises to Landlord. Tenant' s liability for rent upon the termination of this
Lease shall cease as of the day following the event or damage. Unless this Lease is
terminated by Landlord, Tenant shall hold the proceeds of all insurance carried by Tenant
on its property and improvements in trust for the purpose of repair and replacement. In
the event Landlord elects to repair the damage, any abatement of rent shall end upon
Landlord receiving a Certificate of Occupancy from the local governing bodies or if no
Certificate of Occupancy is required, upon completion of the repairs by Landlord. If any
damage is caused by the negligence of Tenant or its employees, the damages shall be
repaired by Landlord, upon receipt of the insurance proceeds, but there shall be no
abatement of rent.

26.

CONDEMNATION:

If the whole of the leased premises shall be acquired or

condemned by eminent domain for any public or quasi -public use or purpose, then the
term of this Lease shall cease and terminate as of the date of title vesting in such
proceeding and all rentals shall be paid up to that date and Tenant shall have no claim
against Landlord nor the condemning authority for the value of any unexpired term of
this Lease.
If any part of the leased premises shall be acquired or condemned as
aforesaid, and in the event that such partial taking or condemnation shall render the
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leased premises unsuitable for the business of the Tenant then the term of this Lease

shall cease and terminate as of the date of title vesting in such proceeding. Tenant shall
have no claim against Landlord nor shall the condemning authority for the value of any
unexpired term of this Lease and rent be adjusted to the date of such termination. In the

event of a partial taking or condemnation which is not extensive enough to render the
premises unsuitable for the business of the Tenant, then Landlord shall promptly restore
the leased premises to a condition comparable to its condition at the time of such

condemnation less the portion lost in the taking and this Lease shall continue in full force
and effect without any reduction or abatement of rent.

27. REMEDIES OF THE LANDLORD:

A) If, at any time during the Term or any extensions or
renewals thereof, a petition for relief under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or a
petition for reorganization or arrangement under any of the bankruptcy laws of the
United States is filed by the Tenant or is filed against Tenant or if the assets of the Tenant
or the business conducted by the Tenant on the Premises are taken over or sequestered
by a trustee or any other person pursuant to any judicial proceedings, or if the Tenant
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then the occurrence of any such act
shall be deemed, at the option of the Landlord, to constitute a breach of this Lease by the
Tenant. At any time and from time to time, Landlord, at its election, may immediately
terminate this Lease in the event of occurrence of any of the events enumerated above.

B) If Tenant shall fail to pay any rental payment due hereunder after three
3) days written notice or in the payment of any item of additional monies due
hereunder, or Tenant shall default in the observance of any of the other terms, covenants
and conditions of this Lease and such default shall continue for more than ten ( 10) days
after written notice of such default; or if the Demised Premises shall be abandoned,
deserted or vacated, or if Tenant shall sublet the Demised Premises or assign this Lease

except as herein provided; then, upon the happening of any one or more of the defaults
or events specified above, this Lease and the term hereof shall wholly cease and
terminate with the same force and effect as though the date so specified were the date

hereinabove first set forth as the date of the expiration of the term of this Lease; and

thereupon or at any time thereafter, Landlord may re -enter said premises either by force
or otherwise and have possession of the same and /or may recover possession thereof by
summary

proceeding

or

otherwise ( but Tenant

shall

remain

liable

to

Landlord

as

hereinafter provided).

C) In case of any such default, re- entry, expiration and /or dispossession by
summary proceedings, or otherwise, Tenant shall, nevertheless, remain and continue
liable to Landlord in a sum equal to all rent and additional rent herein reserved for the

balance of the term herein demised as the same may become due and payable pursuant
to the terms of this Lease and Landlord may re- enter the Demised Premises using such

force for that purpose as may be necessary without being liable to any prosecution
therefor, and Landlord may repair or alter the Demised Premises in such a manner as the
Landlord may deem necessary or advisable, and /or let or re -let the Demised Premises and
any and all parts thereof for the while or any part of the remainder of the original term
hereof or for a longer period, in Landlord' s name, or as the agent of Tenant, and out of
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any rent so collected or received, Landlord shall, first, pay to himself the expense and cost
of retaking,

repossessing,

repairing and /or altering the Demised Premises, and the

expense of removing all persons and property therefrom, and second, pay to himself any
cost or expense sustained in securing any new tenant or tenants and, third, pay to himself
any balance remaining on account of the liability of Tenant to Landlord for the sum equal
to the rent reserved herein unpaid by Tenant for the remainder of the term herein
demised.
Any entry or re -entry by Landlord, whether had or taken under summary
proceedings or otherwise, shall not absolve or discharge Tenant from liability hereunder.
D) Should any rent so collected by Landlord after the payment aforesaid be
insufficient fully to pay to Landlord a sum equal to all rent and additional rent herein
reserved, the balance or deficiency shall be paid by Tenant on the rent days herein
specified, that is, upon each of such rent days Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount of
the deficiency then existing and Tenant shall be and remain liable for any such deficiency,
and the right of Landlord to recover from Tenant the amount thereof, or a sum equal to

the amount of all rent and additional rent herein reserved, if there shall be not re- letting,
shall survive the issuance of any dispossessor warrant or other termination hereof.
E) Suit or suits for the recovery of such deficiency or damage, or for a sum
equal to any installment or installments of rent or additional rent hereinunder, may be
brought by Landlord from time to time at Landlord' s election, and nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to require Landlord to await the date wherein this Lease or

the term hereof would have expired by limitation had there been so such default by
Tenant or no such termination or cancellation.

F)
premises,

Landlord may also elect to terminate Tenant' s occupancy of the

resume

possession

of

the

premises

for

its

own

account

and

recover

immediately from the Tenant all sums past due plus a sum equal to the then annual
rental, including all other charges due, multiplied by the number of years and fractions
thereof remaining in the full term stated herein, together with any other damages
occasioned by or resulting from such breach or default.
G) Landlord, in addition to the other rights and remedies given herein, and

notwithstanding any statute or rule of law to the contrary, may retain as liquidated
damages, any rent, security, deposit or monies received by Landlord from Tenant or
others in behalf of Tenant upon the execution hereof.

H) All court costs and reasonable attorneys fees paid out and incurred by
the prevailing party to enforce any of the provisions of this Lease shall be paid by the non prevailing party in the litigation, including a reasonable attorney' s fee for any appellate
proceedings.

1)

In addition to all of the remedies herein, Landlord shall be entitled to all

remedies provided by Florida law.
J) Tenant agrees to pay Landlord a late charge of One Hundred Dollars
150. 00) on all rental payments received by Landlord fifth ( 5) days after the rent has
become payable as provided in Paragraph 4 herein. In addition, for each day after the
said tenth day of each month that rents remain unpaid, Tenant agrees to pay Landlord
Ten Dollars ($ 10. 00) per day for each day that rents remain unpaid. Any and all late fees
shall be considered additional rent and shall never be considered a penalty.
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28. ENTRY OF LANDLORD: Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Demised

Premises in person, or by and through its agents, at all reasonable hours for the purpose
of inspecting the same, preventing waste, and examining the Demised Premises. Absent
exigent circumstances, Landlord shall only enter the Demised Premises during business
hours with prior notice to Tenant.

29. SUBORDINATION: Tenant agrees that it will subordinate its rights hereunder to

the lien of any mortgage, ground lease or any other method of financing now or hereafter
placed against the land and /or the Demised Premises and /or any or all of the buildings
now or hereafter built or to be built by Landlord and to any and all advances made or to
be made thereunder and to the interest thereon and to all renewals, replacements,
consolidations

and

extensions

there.

This Paragraph shall be self- operative and no

further instrument of subordination shall

be required,

however, upon

request from

Landlord, Tenant will execute a written subordination agreement.

30.

QUIET ENJOYMENT AND LANDLORD' S DEFAULT:

Tenant, upon paying the

rents and performing all of the terms on its part to be performed, shall peaceably and
quietly enjoy the Demised Premises subject, nevertheless, to the terms of this Lease and
to any mortgage, ground lease or agreements to which this Lease is subordinated.
Landlord shall be

in default of this agreement in the event it fails to perform the

obligations required of Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than te-R

thirty ( 30) days after written notice by Tenant to Landlord specifying wherein Landlord
has failed to perform such obligations.

If the nature of Landlord' s obligations is such that

more than thirty ( 30) days are required for performance, Landlord shall not be in default
if Landlord commenced performance within such thirty ( 30) day period and thereafter
diligently prosecutes same to completion. In the event of default by Landlord, Tenant
shall have the right to terminate the lease agreement, surrender the Demised Premises
and obtain refund of all pre -paid rent ( on a pro rata basis).

31.

END OF TERM:

At the expiration of this Lease, Tenant shall surrender the

Demised Premises in a condition equal to that existing prior to Tenant' s occupancy,.
reasonable wear and tear excepted, and shall deliver all keys and combinations to locks,
safes and vaults to

Landlord.

All electric, lighting, exit lights, emergency lights, air
conditioning units and plumbing shall be in good working order upon delivery back to
Landlord.

Before surrendering said premises,

Tenant

shall

remove

all

its

personal

property and trade fixtures, and shall repair any damage caused thereby. The removal of
any alterations, additions and /or decorations made by the Tenant during the term of the
Lease that cannot be removed without damaging or significantly altering the Demised
Premises shall be at the Landlord' s discretion.

Tenant' s obligations to perform this

provision shall survive the end of the term of this Lease. If Tenant fails to remove its

property upon the expiration of this Lease, the said property shall be deemed abandoned
and shall become the property of Landlord.
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32.

HOLDING OVER:

If Tenant holds over and does not deliver possession of the

premises to Landlord upon termination of this Lease or termination of Tenant' s right to

occupy the premises, or Tenant fails to remove all its property from the premises on
termination of this Lease, then, in addition to all other remedies provided herein and at

law and equity, the Tenant immediately shall pay Landlord rent for the hold over period
equal to double the amount of rent that otherwise would be due hereunder for a like

period during the term of this Lease, including, without limitation, payment of all other
sums, charges and interest due hereunder.

33.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS:

Tenant shall throughout the demised term, and at

no expense whatsoever to the Landlord, promptly comply, or cause compliance with all
laws and ordinances and the orders,
Federal,

rules

and

regulations

and

requirements

of

all

State,

Commissions,

County and Municipal governments, and appropriate Departments,
Boards and offices thereof relating to the use and occupancy of the

Demised Premises.

34.

FORCE MAJEURE:

The parties shall be excused for the period of any delay in
the performance of any obligations hereunder when prevented from so doing by cause or
causes

beyond

disputes,

civil

Landlord' s
commotion,

control which
war,

war -like

shall

include,

operations,

without

invasion,

limitation, all
rebellion,

labor

hostilities,

military or usurped power, sabotage, governmental regulations or controls, fire or other
casualty, inability to obtain any material, services or financing or through acts of God and
such period or periods of delay shall be added to the time period provided for such
performance.

35.

RECORDING:

Tenant agrees not to record this Lease or any memorandum

thereof. Tenant, at the request of the Landlord, shall execute, acknowledge and deliver,

at any time after the date of this Lease a Memorandum of Lease prepared by the
Landlord pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida which Landlord shall have the right
to record, but the provisions of this Lease shall control the rights and obligations of the
parties.

36.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY:

If any provision of this Lease or application thereof to
any person or circumstance shall to any extent be invalid, the remainder of this Lease or
the application

of such

provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to

which it is held invalid shall not be affected thereby and each provision of this Lease shall
be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.
37.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT:

This Lease and the exhibits and riders, if any, attached,

set forth the entire agreement between the parties.
are merged herein and extinguished.

Any prior conversations or writings

No subsequent amendment to this Lease shall be

binding upon Landlord or Tenant unless reduced to writing and signed. Submission of this
Lease for examination does not constitute an option for the Demised Premises and

becomes effective as a lease only upon execution and delivery thereof by Landlord to
Tenant.

If any provision contained in a rider is inconsistent with the printed provision of

15

this Lease, the provision contained in said rider shall supersede said printed provision.

The captions, numbers and index appearing herein are inserted only as a matter of
convenience and are not intended to define, limit, construe or describe the scope or

intent of any paragraph, nor in any way effect this Lease.
38.

PROVISIONS BINDING:

Except as otherwise expressly provided, all provisions
herein shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, their legal
representative, successors and assigns. Each provision to be performed by Tenant shall
be construed to be both a covenant and a condition, and if there shall be more than one

Tenant, they shall all be bound, jointly and severally, by these provisions.
39.

RULES AND REGULATIONS:

The Tenant will observe and comply with and will

cause its sub -tenants and concessionaires and its and their employees and agents to

observe and comply with reasonable rules and regulations from time to time
promulgated by the Landlord for the benefit and prosperity of the entire premises.
40.

NOTICES:

Wherever in this Lease it shall be required or permitted that notice

or demand be given or served by either party to this Lease to or on the other, such notice
or demand shall not be deemed to have been duly given or served unless in writing and
either personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail, Certified Mail, Return
Receipt Requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

To the Landlord at:

ICV NPB, LLC,
Investors Corporation of Vermont
30 Main Street, Suite 401

Burling ton, Vermont 05401
To the Tenant at:

Ed Green, Village Manager
Village of North Palm Beach

501 U. S. Highway One
North Palm Beach, Florida 33408

Such addresses may be changed from time to time by either party by serving notices as
above provided.

41.

BROKERS:

Tenant and Landlord represent and warrant that they have had no
dealings with any broker or agent in connection with this Lease, except for Lynette Green
of CBRE, and Landlord shall be completely responsible for the commission. Each party
agrees to indemnify and hold the other party harmless for breach of this warranty,
including a reasonable attorney' s fee at the trial and appellate levels.
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42.

WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY: Landlord and Tenant shall and hereby do waive
trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim brought by either of the parties
hereto against the other in any matter arising out of or in any way connected with this
Lease, the relationship of Landlord and Tenant, Tenant' s use or occupancy of the Demised
Premises, the Common Areas or any part of the Building, any claim of injury or damage,
and any emergency statutory or any other statutory remedy.

43.

LANDLORD' S RIGHT TO CURE DEFAULTS:

Landlord may, but shall not be
obligated to, cure, at any time, upon ten ( 10) days' notice to Tenant, or in the event of an
emergency, without notice to Tenant, any default by Tenant under this Lease; and
whenever Landlord so elects, all costs and expenses incurred by Landlord in curing a
default, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and disbursements on the amount
of costs and expenses so incurred, shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord on demand, and
shall be recoverable as Additional Rent.

44. OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS: All installations, alterations, additions or

improvements upon the Demised Premises, made by either party, including, but not
limited to, all pipes, ducts, conduits, wiring, paneling, railings, mezzanine floors, galleries
and the like, shall, unless Landlord otherwise elects ( which election shall be made by
giving a notice pursuant to Paragraph 32 not less than three days prior to the Expiration
Date) become the property of Landlord and shall remain upon and be surrendered with
the Demised Premises as a part thereof on the Expiration Date.

45. TRASH AND TRASH ENCLOSURES:

Tenant shall utilize the trash dumpsters and

trash enclosures in such a way so as not to create a nuisance and /or additional

maintenance for Landlord. Tenant agrees not to dispose of any trash or waste without
bagging same in plastic bags. Tenant shall also not dispose of any cardboard boxes of any
nature without first properly breaking them down and flattening them before placing said
cardboard boxes into the trash dumpsters. Tenant further agrees not to dispose of any
trash in the trash enclosures if said trash can not be securely disposed of inside the trash
dumpster.

Tenant agrees that if the trash dumpster is full at the time disposal is

attempted, Tenant shall temporarily store said trash inside Tenant' s demised premises
until the trash dumpster is emptied, and thereafter dispose of said trash. Tenant further

agrees to abide by any and all reasonable rules and regulations promulgated by the
Landlord pertaining to the trash enclosures. In the event that Tenant fails to adhere to

the provisions of this Paragraph or the rules and regulations that may hereafter be
promulgated by Landlord, then, Tenant shall be so notified by Landlord in writing of the
specific nature of the violation.

Upon each occurrence of a violation, Tenant shall be

responsible to reimburse Landlord the cost of cleaning the trash enclosures including, but
not limited to, any additional pickups. The second violation by Tenant shall subject
Tenant to all of the remedies under Paragraph 28 of this Lease, including eviction.
46. ENTRANCEWAYS:

Tenant agrees that no property of Tenant shall be stored or
kept in the front of Tenant' s entranceway without first obtaining Landlord' s approval,
which Landlord may withhold in its absolute discretion. Tenant agrees that Tenant will
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not place any plants, hanging plants or baskets, any furniture, or decorations of any kind
or nature in the front entranceway or entranceways of the demised premises without
first obtaining Landlord' s approval, such approval may be withheld in Landlord' s sole
discretion.

47. CONDITION OF PREMISES: Tenant accepts the condition of
the premises in " AS IS" condition.

48 . PETS AND ANIMALS: No pets of any nature, animals, cats, dogs or guard dogs
kept or maintained on the leased premises at any time, with the

shall be allowed,

exception of service animals.

Violation of this paragraph shall constitute a default of the

Lease.

49.

TIME

OF

THE

ESSENCE:

Time of the

Essence shall apply to all time

requirements as set forth in this Lease.

50. REAL ESTATE TAX AND INSURANCE STOP:

A) Commencing with the calendar year next following the calendar year for
which the total real estate tax assessment upon Landlord' s property in the building shall
reflect the completion of the building of which the Demised Premises are a part, Tenant
agrees to pay to Landlord each year on demand, " Tenant' s share of excess real estate
taxes ", if any, as hereinafter described. Tenant' s share of excess real estate taxes for any
such calendar year shall be an amount equal to the product obtained by multiplying the
number of square feet of gross floor area leased to Tenant ( 2, 400 square feet) by the
excess, if any, of the " current tax per square foot" for such calendar year over the " basic
tax per square foot ". The " basic tax per square foot" shall be computed by dividing the
amount of the total real estate taxes levied on Landlord' s property in the building for the
2014 calendar year by the total number of square feet of rentable ground floor area in
Landlord' s property in the building ( 24, 000 square feet) reflected in the real estate tax
assessment thereof for such calendar year. Tenant shall pay such increase within ten ( 10)
days after written request is made by Landlord.
B) The Landlord will pay in the first instance all premiums for fire,
windstorm,
extended coverage and liability casualty insurance upon the building
containing the Demised Premises. If the amount of the premium for such insurance shall
exceed in any lease year the amount of such insurance for the year 2014, Tenant shall pay
that portion of such excess equal to the product obtained by multiplying said excess by a
fraction the numerator of which shall be the square foot area of the Demised Premises
and the denominator of which shall be the total number of square feet of rentable

ground floor area of Landlord' s property in the building, provided, however, that such
payment shall not exceed three percent ( 3 %) of the total annual rent paid by Tenant
during the applicable calendar year. Tenant shall pay such increased insurance premiums
within ten ( 10) days after written request is made by Landlord. An insurance premium bill
submitted by Landlord to Tenant shall be sufficient evidence of the amount of premium
required to be paid.
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C) In the event the Lease terminates in a month where the real estate taxes

for that current year are not known, and Tenant paid to Landlord its share of excess real

estate taxes for the previous year, then Tenant shall pay the excess real estate taxes for
the current year based

prorate the amount

upon the previous year' s payment. However, Landlord shall

due based

upon what

possession of the Demised Premises.

percentage of the year Tenant was

in

For example, if Tenant paid $ 200. 00 in excess real

estate taxes the prior year, and the Lease expires on June 30th of the ensuing year,
Tenant would pay $ 100. 00 in excess real estate taxes since Tenant was in possession for
one -half of the year. Tenant shall also be charged for its prorated share of excess

insurance premiums based upon the same methodology used in computing the excess
real estate taxes. Tenant shall be billed the prorated amount for excess real estate taxes
and excess insurance premiums in the next to last month of the Lease, and Tenant shall

pay such increases with ten ( 10) days after written request is made by Landlord.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hands and seals the day and
year first above written.

ICV NPB, LL

Paul Sprayregen, Managing Member

Witness:

VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH

By:
William L. Manuel, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Teal, Village Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

Leonard G. Rubin, Village Attorney
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VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH
Country Club - Golf

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Council

THRU:

Andrew D. Lukasik, Village Manager

FROM:

Zack Shriver, Assistant Golf Professional

DATE:

March 28, 2019

SUBJECT:

RESOLUTION – Approval of payment of an invoice from Precision
Landscape Company of Palm Beach, Inc. for work related to the golf course
renovation project in the amount of $19,960.00.

Village Staff requests Village Council approval for the payment of Invoice #174421 from
Precision Landscape Company of Palm Beach County, Inc. (“Precision”) in the amount of
$19,960.00 in connection with the golf course renovation project. Precision performed drainage
repairs and an extension of the lake at Hole 18.
Background:
The area between the tees on Hole 18, where water accumulates, was left out of the original
scope of work for the golf course renovation project. Due to the extra use of irrigation to grow in
the golf course, along with seasonal rains, this area was too wet to grow the newly planted grass.
Our agronomist, Jon Scott, recommended looking into methods to move the water because the
grass would never flourish in that environment. With Jon’s recommendation in mind, Village
Staff sought out the guidance of Chad Goetz and Chris Cochran from Nicklaus Design to help
arrive at a solution. Additional drainage or a catch basin would not work due to the existing
grade; consequently, Nicklaus Design suggested that we extend the lake into this area. Precision
was able to execute this design, and as a result, the area is much dryer, the grass is healthier, and
the adjacent homeowners have an improved view of the golf hole.
Solicitation of a Quote:
Immediately following the final visit from the agronomist, and in accordance with his
recommendation, Village Staff contact Precision, the Village’s landscape maintenance
contractor, for a quote for the project.
Solicitation of a single quote for this scope of work did not comply with the Village’s purchasing
policies and procedures. Given the cost of the repair work, three written quotes should have
been solicited and presented to the Village Council for approval prior to making the repairs.
This work, along with the golf cart path repairs performed by Drive On Cart Path Systems,
moved forward in error. Factors leading to the error included the anticipation of opening the
course in December or January, training on purchasing policies and open critical positions within
the organization. Based on the foregoing, this purchase will require a waiver of the purchasing
policies and procedures.

Even with this additional cost, the project remains within budget.
Account Information:

Fund

Department

Account
Number

Account Description

Amount

Country Club

Golf Course
Maintenance

L8045-66210

Construction and
Major Renovation

$19,960.00

.
Recommendation:
Village Staff requests Village Council consideration and approval of the attached
Resolution approving and authorizing the payment of Invoice No. 174421 in the amount of
$19,960.00 to Precision Landscape Company of Palm Beach County, Inc. for work
performed on the golf course specific to the renovation, with funds expanded from Account
No. L8045- 66210 (Golf Course Maintenance – Construction and Major Renovation) and
waiving the Village’s purchasing policies and procedures.

RESOLUTION 2019-___
A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA APPROVING A PAYMENT TO
PRECISION LANDSCAPE COMPANY OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, INC.
FOR DRAINAGE REPAIRS AT THE NORTH PALM BEACH COUNTRY CLUB;
WAIVING THE VILLAGE’S PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES;
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, the Village failed to include a problem area where water accumulates between the tees
at Hole 18 as part of the North Palm Beach Country Club golf course renovation project; and
WHEREAS, the Village obtained a quote from its landscape maintenance contractor,
Precision Landscaping of Palm Beach County, Inc. (“Precision”) to perform the remedial actions
recommended by the Village’s agronomist and Nicklaus Design; and
WHEREAS, due to time constraints and other factors, the Village authorized Precision to complete
the work at a total cost of $19,960.00 without adhering to the Village’s purchasing policies and
procedures; and
WHEREAS, the Village Council determines that the adoption of this Resolution, including a waiver
of the purchasing policies and procedures generally applicable to purchases in excess of $10,000, is
in the best interests of the residents and citizens of the Village of North Palm Beach.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA as follows:
Section 1.

The foregoing recitals are ratified as true and incorporated herein.

Section 2.
The Village Council hereby approves a payment to Precision Landscape Company
of Palm Beach County, Inc. for work performed at the North Palm Beach Country Club
golf course in the amount of $19,960.00, with funds expended from Account No. L8045- 66210
(Golf Course Maintenance – Construction and Major Renovation).
Section 3.

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ____________, 2019.

(Village Seal)
MAYOR
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK

